
 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 13, 2024 

5:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to due notice and call thereof, a Regular meeting of the Grand Rapids City 

Council will be held on Monday, May 13, 2024 at 5:00 PM in City Hall Council Chambers, 420 North 

Pokegama Avenue, Grand Rapids, Minnesota. 

CALL OF ROLL: 

POSITIVE HAPPENINGS IN THE CITY: 

PUBLIC FORUM: 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. Approve minutes for Monday, April 22, 2024 Worksession and Regular meetings, Thursday, 

April 18, 2024 Joint City Council & PUC meeting and April 22, 2024 Closed meeting 

summary. 

VERIFIED CLAIMS: 

2. Approve the verified claims for the period April 16, 2024 to May 6, 2024 in the total amount of 

$1,568,621.79 of which $237,500 are debt service payments. 

ACKNOWLEDGE MINUTES FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS: 

3. Review and acknowledge the following minutes for boards and commissions. 

March 27, 2024 Human Rights Commission 

April 2, 2024 Arts & Culture Commission 

April 10, 2024 Library Board 

April 11, 2024 GREDA  

April 16, 2024 GREDA 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

4. Consider entering into Advertising Agreements with businesses at Yanmar Arena. 

5. Consider Voiding Lost Accounts Payable Check and Issue a Replacement Check 
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6. Consider adopting a resolution to accept $2,450.00 cash donations and $405 in-kind donations 

to Grand Rapids Police Department from various sources to support Open-Source INTernet 

(OSINT) Training. 

7. Consider request to interview and hire a paid summer intern for the Grand Rapids Police 

Department.   

8. Consider hiring staff for Pokegama Golf Course for the 2024 Golfing Season, make corrections 

to hourly wage, and discontinue employment relationship with seasonal golf employee. 

9. Consider authorizing quotes and awarding a contract to TNT Construction Group for the Rain 

Garden Inlet Improvements Project 

10. Consider the purchase of Service Body Truck Equipment for the Public Works Department 

11. Consider approving seasonal liquor license for Grand Rapids Speedway Inc.  

12. Consider approval of City Administrator Goals for 2024 

13. Consider resolutions approving Use Agreements with GRAHA and SNC. 

14. Consider accepting the resignation of Roger Mischke from the Pokegama Golf Board 

15. Consider approving change order for Yanmar Arena Project 

16. Consider approving final payment in the amount of $36,409.30 for Work Scope 4 on the Civic 

Center Project 

17. Consider accepting the 2023 audited financial reports. 

18. Consider approval of seasonal contractors  

SET REGULAR AGENDA: 

CIVIC CENTER & PARKS: 

19. Consider passing a resolution accepting donations from the City of Cohasset and Harris 

Township for financial assistance with the July 4th Fireworks Display. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

20. Consider the approval of a resolution approving certain lender documents related to the L&M 

Supply Distribution Center Project 

ADJOURNMENT: 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2024 AT 5:00 PM 

Hearing Assistance Available:  This facility is equipped with a hearing assistance system. 

MEETING PROTOCOL POLICY:  Please be aware that the Council has adopted a Meeting Protocol 

Policy which informs attendees of the Council’s desire to conduct all City meetings in an orderly 
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manner which welcomes all civil input from citizens and interested parties. If you are unaware of the 

policy, copies (orange color) are available in the wall file by the Council entrance. 

 

ATTEST: Kimberly Gibeau, City Clerk 
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JOINT CITY COUNCIL / PUC MEETING 

MINUTES 
Thursday, April 18, 2024 

4:00 PM 

Mayor Connelly called the meeting to order at 4:00 PM. 

PRESENT:  Mayor Tasha Connelly, Councilor Dale Adams, Councilor Molly MacGregor, Councilor 

Rick Blake  ABSENT: Councilor Tom Sutherland 

PUC MEMBERS PRESENT: Tom Stanley, Nancy Saxhaug, Luke Francisco, Dale Adams 

STAFF: Tom Pagel, Julie Kennedy, Matt Wegwerth, Chery Pierzina, Barb Baird, Mike LeClaire, Rob 

Mattei 

ADMINISTRATION: 

1. Review Local Utility Preservation Resolution 

Ms. Kennedy provides background on local utility preservation, clarifying responsibilities and 

powers of Minnesota Public Utilities Commission vs. Grand Rapids PUC as well as powers of 

the City Council relative to the proposed resolution. Recommending that the Council Consider 

at a future meeting. There is no action pending at this time. 

2. Discuss Capital Infrastructure Project Funding 

Mr. Pagel provided information regarding the idea behind the suggested franchise fees. Mr. 

Wegwerth provides presentation including: 

 ~ Funding Options 

 ~ Annual Debt Service 

 ~ Implementation 

Preference is to not wait, but revisit soon. Mr. Wegwerth will do more research to bring back to 

Council with plans for outreach, education, etc. 

3. Legionella and Drinking Water Update 

Ms. Kennedy updated on current status of Legionella in Grand Rapids, steps being taken for 

mitigation and assisting and educating the public. PUC will begin chlorinating, likely in June, 

and ensure that proper notification for residents is made. 

The City Council and PUC will plan a follow up meeting in October 2024. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:20 PM. 
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Respectfully submitted,  

 

Kimberly Gibeau, City Clerk 
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CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION MINUTES 
Monday, April 22, 2024 

4:00 PM 

Mayor Connelly called the meeting to order at 4:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Tasha Connelly, Councilor Molly MacGregor, Councilor Tom Sutherland, Councilor 

Rick Blake.  ABSENT: Councilor Dale Adams 

STAFF:  Tom Pagel, Chad Sterle, Rob Mattei, Barb Baird 

BUSINESS: 

1. Build Mesabi Build Itasca Presentation - Larry Sutherland & Greg Heybloom 

Larry Sutherland, Mesabi Metallics, provided overview of company and plans for mining in the 

region. Plan to be in operation as of 2026. A full report can be viewed at watchictv.org. 

REVIEW OF REGULAR AGENDA: 

Upon review, the addition of an attachment to item #19 presented and no other changes are noted.  

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:46 PM. 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

Kimberly Gibeau, City Clerk 
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, April 22, 2024 

5:00 PM 

Mayor Connelly called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Tasha Connelly, Councilor Molly MacGregor, Councilor Tom Sutherland, Councilor 

Rick Blake.   ABSENT: Councilor Dale Adams 

STAFF:  Tom Pagel, Chad Sterle, Andy Morgan, Dale Anderson, Rob Mattei, Barb Baird, Matt 

Wegwerth, Justin Edmundson, K9 Murphy 

POSITIVE HAPPENINGS IN THE CITY: 

Mayor Connelly acknowledged National Volunteer Month, thanking all those that give their time and 

efforts to the City of Grand Rapids in serving the community.  Also commended the Grand Rapids High 

School Student Council for the work done on Prom with a Purpose, an alternative prom for students with 

special needs. This event included lunch, a grand march, dance. 

Councilor MacGregor shared information about "Walk for Water" event that took place on Sunday, 

April 21, 2024. 

PUBLIC FORUM: 

No one from the gallery wished to speak. 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

Councilor Blake discussed Itasca Just Transition Task Force, focus is dealing with eventual closure of 

MN Power.   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. Approve Council minutes for April 8, 2024 Worksession & Regular meetings, April 15, 2024 

Special Council meeting and acknowledge summary of April 15, 2024 Closed meeting. 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Blake to approve Council 

minutes as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor 

Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

VERIFIED CLAIMS: 

2. Approve the verified claims for the period April 2, 2024 to April 15, 2024 in the total amount 

of $589,343.54.  
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Motion made by Councilor Sutherland, Second by Councilor MacGregor to approve the 

verified claims as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor 

Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

ACKNOWLEDGE MINUTES FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS: 

3. Reviewed and acknowledged minutes for boards and commissions: 

 ~ March 13, 2024 Library Board meeting 

 ~ February 20, 2024 Golf Board meeting 

 ~ March 19, 2024 Golf Board meeting 

 ~ March 28, 2024 GREDA meeting 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

4. Consider approving the purchase of one (1) Axon Squad Camera. 

5. Consider authorizing the Police Department to sell seven (7) city owned police squads through 

Mid-State Auto online auction. 

6. Consider adopting a resolution approving the updated City-Wide fee schedule for city services 

Adopted Resolution 24-34 

7. Consider approving final payment in the amount of $6,250.00 for Work Scope 9 on the Civic 

Center Project 

8. Consider hiring staff for Public Works for the 2024 Spring/Summer Maintenance Season 

9. Consider submittal of an MPCA Local Climate Action grant  

10. Consider approving Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Grand Rapid Public 

Utilities Commission and the City of Grand Rapids relating to Oracle Cloud Services and 

Software. 

11. Consider adopting a resolution approving reimbursement of expenditures for CP 2010-1, 3rd 

Avenue/7th Street NE Project. 

Adopted Resolution 24-35 

12. Consider approval of seasonal contractors at Pokegama Golf Course. 

13. Consider authorizing the sale of old patio furniture at the Golf Course through the sealed bid 

process. 

14. Consider adopting a resolution accepting a Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness 

Grant 

Adopted Resolution 24-36 

15. Consider Removal of Appointment to Part-Time Hospital Security Officer Roster 
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16. Consider hiring staff for Pokegama Golf Course for the 2024 Golfing Season and making 

corrections to hourly wages 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor Sutherland to approve the Consent 

agenda as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor 

Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

SET REGULAR AGENDA: 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor MacGregor to approve the regular agenda as 

presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

CIVIC CENTER & PARKS: 

17. Consider entering into an Agreement with Grand Rapids Amateur Hockey Association 

authorizing them to install refrigeration in Miner’s Pavilion. 

Dale Anderson presented information relative to proposed project to install synthetic ice at the 

MUP at Yanmar Arena.  This project will be funded by GRAHA and donated to the City.  

Motion made by Councilor Sutherland, Second by Councilor MacGregor to approve the 

agreement with GRAHA authorizing installation of refrigeration in Miner's Pavilion. Voting 

Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

18. Consider adopting a resolution forgiving a certain loan to Itasca County Farm Service 

Association 

Mr. Mattei provided background information regarding the loan issued to Itasca County Farm 

Service and subsequent filing for bankruptcy. Recommending forgiving the loan contingent 

upon transfer of property to GREDA. 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Blake to adopt Resolution 24-

37, forgiving loan to Itasca County Farm Service Association. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, 

Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

19. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the execution and recording of a quit claim deed to 

correct a parcel overlap issue and authorize land release approval letter. 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor MacGregor to adopt Resolution 24-

38, authorizing execution and recording of quit claim deed to correct parcel overlap issue and 

authorize land release approval letter. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, 

Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

FINANCE: 
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20. Consider approving a public sector (master) agreement with Oracle NetSuite for Government 

for the joint purchase of an ERP cloud-based services and software system and authorize the 

Mayor to sign necessary agreements. 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Blake to approve master 

agreement with Oracle NetSuite for Government joint purchase of ERP cloud-based services 

and software system as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, 

Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

POLICE: 

21. Consider adopting a resolution accepting an ongoing Purina dog food donation to GRPD 

Canine Program. 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor Sutherland to adopt Resolution 24-39, 

accepting Purina Dog Food donation. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, 

Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

22. Consider adopting a resolution accepting a donation of $800.00 from Minnesota Power to 

purchase medical / AED equipment. 

Motion made by Councilor Sutherland, Second by Councilor MacGregor to adopt Resolution 

24-40, accepting $800 donation from MN Power. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor 

MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (scheduled to begin no earlier than 5:00 PM) 

23. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider a request submitted by HWY 35 Properties LLC for tax 

increment financing business assistance. 

Mayor Connelly stated the purpose of the public hearing, confirming that all required notices 

have been made and no correspondence has been received regarding this matter.   

Mr. Mattei presents project background, including estimated costs and future assessed value, 

TIF, etc.  

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Sutherland to open the public 

hearing. Voting Yea: Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Blake, Councilor Sutherland, Mayor 

Connelly 

No one from the public wished to speak, therefore the following motion was made. 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor MacGregor to close the public 

hearing. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor 

Blake 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 
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24. Consider adopting a resolution approving amendment to the tax increment financing (TIF) plan 

for TIF District 1-15: HWY 35 LLC (Formerly known as TIF District 1-14: Arbor Wood) 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Blake to adopt Resolution 24-

41, approving amendment to TIF plan for TIF District 1-15, HWY 35 LLC. Voting Yea: Mayor 

Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (scheduled to begin no earlier than 5:00 PM) 

25. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider the preliminary plat of Hawkinson Commercial 

Development Second Addition. 

Mayor Connelly stated the purpose of the public hearing, confirming all required notices have 

been made and no correspondence was received in regard to this matter. 

Mr. Mattei reviewed project plans and preliminary plat, recommending approval.  

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor Sutherland to open the public 

hearing. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor 

Blake 

No one from the public wished to speak, therefore the following motion was made. 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Sutherland to close the public 

hearing.  Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, 

Councilor Blake 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

26. Consider adopting a resolution approving the final plat of Hawkinson Commercial 

Development Second Addition 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor Sutherland to adopt Resolution 24-42, 

approving the final plat for Hawkinson Commercial Development Second Addition. Voting 

Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (scheduled to begin no earlier than 5:00 PM) 

27. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider the rezoning of land from AP (Airport District) to I-1 

(Industrial Park) for a portion of parcel 91-033-1406 (4.3 acres). 

Mayor Connelly stated the purpose of the public hearing, confirming all required notices have 

been made and no correspondence has been received in regard to the matter. 

Mr. Mattei reviews petition for rezone, current map and proposed changes. 
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Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor MacGregor to open the public 

hearing. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor 

Blake 

No one from the public wished to speak, therefore the following motion was made. 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Sutherland to close the public 

hearing. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor 

Blake 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

28. Consider the recommendation of the Planning Commission regarding adoption of an ordinance, 

amending the Official Zoning Map, by rezoning land from AP (Airport District) to I-1 

(Industrial Park) for a portion of parcel 91-033-1406 (4.3 acres) 

Motion made by Councilor MacGregor, Second by Councilor Blake to adopt Ordinance 24-

04-02, approving rezone of land from Airport District to Industrial Park. Voting Yea: Mayor 

Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, Councilor Blake 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:02 PM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

Kimberly Gibeau, City Clerk 
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CITY COUNCIL CLOSED MEETING SUMMARY 
Monday, April 22, 2024 

 

Mayor Connelly called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Tasha Connelly, Councilor Molly MacGregor, Councilor Tom Sutherland, Councilor 

Rick Blake. ABSENT: Councilor Dale Adams 

STAFF:  Chad Sterle, Kimberly Gibeau 

BUSINESS: 

Mayor Connelly stated the purpose for the closed meeting and called for a motion to close.  

1. Conduct annual performance review for Tom Pagel, City Administrator. 

Motion made by Councilor Blake, Second by Councilor Sutherland to close the 

meeting. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, 

Councilor Blake 

Reviewed proposed goals. Following discussions, goals will be submitted for approval on May 

13, 2024. 

Motion made by Councilor Sutherland, Second by Councilor Blake to close the closed 

meeting. Voting Yea: Mayor Connelly, Councilor MacGregor, Councilor Sutherland, 

Councilor Blake 

ADJOURN: 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:37 PM. 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

Kimberly Gibeau, City Clerk 
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 1
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GENERAL FUND

CITY WIDE
0309805 CIVICPLUS, LLC 7,800.00
0715808 GOVCONNECTION INC 1,093.36
1915248 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP 1,982.40
2018225 TREASURE BAY PRINTING 39.00
T001486 JAMES D MICHAUD 50.00

TOTAL CITY WIDE 10,964.76

SPECIAL PROJECTS-NON BUDGETED
1105530 KENNEDY & GRAVEN, CHARTERED 6,552.00

TOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS-NON BUDGETED 6,552.00

SPECIAL PROJECTS-BUDGETED
2500050 ITASCA COUNTY FAMILY YMCA INC 15,000.00

TOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS-BUDGETED 15,000.00

ADMINISTRATION
0421725 DUTCH ROOM INC 243.22
1215630 LOREN SOLBERG CONSULTING, LLC 1,853.65

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,096.87

BUILDING SAFETY DIVISION
0118100 VESTIS GROUP, INC 129.72
0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 246.87
0701650 GARTNER REFRIGERATION CO 600.00
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 115.82
1901535 SANDSTROM'S INC 61.32

TOTAL BUILDING SAFETY DIVISION 1,153.73

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 164.01

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 164.01

FINANCE
0809436 HILDI INC 1,150.00

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 2
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GENERAL FUND

FINANCE

TOTAL FINANCE 1,150.00

FIRE
0100010 5 STAR PEST CONTROL & 300.00
0118100 VESTIS GROUP, INC 43.65
0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 9.49
0315455 COLE HARDWARE INC 11.18
0513231 EMERGENCY APPARATUS 14,062.89
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 41.86
1321527 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 150.61
1415484 NORTHERN LIGHTS TRUCK 508.75
1415536 NORTHLAND HYDRAULICS SERVICE 1,650.00
2215600 VOLUNTEER FIREMANS BENEFIT 453.00

TOTAL FIRE 17,231.43

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
1309332 MN STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 1,580.60

TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 1,580.60

PUBLIC WORKS
0103325 ACHESON TIRE INC 70.00
0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 345.63
0301685 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 572.66
0305510 CENTRAL LANDSCAPE SUPPLY INC 526.60
0315455 COLE HARDWARE INC 133.86
0415525 DONDELINGER DODGE 206.40
0601690 FASTENAL COMPANY 625.11
0612083 FLAGSHIP RECREATION 1,874.00
0612218 FLEET US LLC 45.98
0801836 HAWKINSON SAND & GRAVEL 1,595.89
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 710.51
1200500 L&M SUPPLY 738.58
1201730 LATVALA LUMBER COMPANY INC. 34.86
1415544 NORTHLAND PORTABLES 138.00
1415545 NORTHLAND LAWN & SPORT, LLC 399.47
1421700 NUSS TRUCK GROUP INC 268.80
1801615 RAPIDS WELDING SUPPLY INC 119.95
1813125 RMB ENVIRONMENTAL 280.13
2018560 TROUT ENTERPRISES INC 350.00

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 9,036.43

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 3
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GENERAL FUND

FLEET MAINTENANCE
0301685 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 14.71
0315455 COLE HARDWARE INC 10.00
0601690 FASTENAL COMPANY 889.80
1801615 RAPIDS WELDING SUPPLY INC 15.44
1901264 SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS INC 302.78
1903554 SCOTT'S AUTO ELECTRIC INC 130.00

TOTAL FLEET MAINTENANCE 1,362.73

POLICE
0100031 A&B MISHAPS 341.04
0124550 AXON ENTERPRISE INC 5,138.64
0205725 BETZ EXTINGUISHER COMPANY 100.00
0301685 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 124.35
0409501 JOHN P. DIMICH 4,583.33
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 3,094.40
1415048 NORTH COUNTRY VET CLINIC 786.90
1618125 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC 99.25
1800149 RCB COLLECTIONS 25.00
1801480 RAMPART AUDIT LLC 3,660.00
1920233 STREICHER'S INC 4,493.79
1920236 STELLAR MEDICAL & EQUIPMENT 1,495.00

TOTAL POLICE 23,941.70

RECREATION
0118100 VESTIS GROUP, INC 92.38
0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 206.79
1901535 SANDSTROM'S INC 952.61

TOTAL RECREATION 1,251.78

GENERAL FUND-LIQUOR/CHART GAMB

1901500 SAMMY'S PIZZA 339.07
2018225 TREASURE BAY PRINTING 415.00

TOTAL 754.07

CENTRAL SCHOOL

0118100 VESTIS GROUP, INC 64.09

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 4
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CENTRAL SCHOOL

0218745 ASHLEY BRUBAKER 224.30
0701650 GARTNER REFRIGERATION CO 404.00
1201730 LATVALA LUMBER COMPANY INC. 145.84
1908248 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS 42.98

TOTAL 881.21

AIRPORT

0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 101.73
0301685 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 11.07
0907850 INFINITY GRAPHIX & DESIGNS 97.00
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 61.33

TOTAL 271.13

CIVIC CENTER
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 124.84
0300020 CTM SERVICES, INC 370.09
0601690 FASTENAL COMPANY 712.69
0805640 HERC-U-LIFT INC 525.78

TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 1,733.40

STATE HAZ-MAT RESPONSE TEAM

0312110 CLAREY'S SAFETY EQUIPMENT INC 1,015.68
1415480 NORTHERN HEALTH & FITNESS PLUS 160.00

TOTAL 1,175.68

POLICE DESIGNATED FORFEITURES

0100031 A&B MISHAPS 539.41

TOTAL 539.41

CEMETERY

0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 19.98

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 5
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CEMETERY

0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 62.70
1200500 L&M SUPPLY 15.48
2315745 NICHOLAS D. WOURMS 190.00

TOTAL 288.16

DOMESTIC ANIMAL CONTROL FAC

0118100 VESTIS GROUP, INC 30.00
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 233.25

TOTAL 263.25

TXB GO TEMP BONDS 2022A

2100265 U.S. BANK 237,500.00

TOTAL 237,500.00

GO IMPRV RECONST BONDS 2017A

1920240 CHAD B STERLE 195.00

TOTAL 195.00

MUNICIPAL ST AID MAINTENANCE

1303039 MCCOY CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY -91,000.00

TOTAL -91,000.00

NO PROJECT
1303039 MCCOY CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY 241,000.00

TOTAL NO PROJECT 241,000.00

PARK ACQUISITION & DEVELOPMENT
PARK IMPROVEMENTS

0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 241.64
0301685 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 34.92

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 6
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
PARK ACQUISITION & DEVELOPMENT

PARK IMPROVEMENTS
0315455 COLE HARDWARE INC 23.15

TOTAL PARK IMPROVEMENTS 299.71

CAPITAL EQPT REPLACEMENT FUND
CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDG SFTY

0907850 INFINITY GRAPHIX & DESIGNS 323.00

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDG SFTY 323.00

CAPITAL OUTLAY-COMMMUNITY DEV
0907850 INFINITY GRAPHIX & DESIGNS 323.00

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-COMMMUNITY DEV 323.00

CAPITAL OUTLAY-FINANCE
1105530 KENNEDY & GRAVEN, CHARTERED 580.50

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-FINANCE 580.50

CAPITAL OUTLAY-PUBLIC WORKS
0907850 INFINITY GRAPHIX & DESIGNS 219.00

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-PUBLIC WORKS 219.00

CAPITAL OUTLAY-POLICE
0221650 BURGGRAF'S ACE HARDWARE 659.10
1001300 JAG INVESTIGATIONS, INC. 6,181.19
1309090 SUPERONE FOODS NORTH 17.76
1920150 STATT LLC 975.00
1920233 STREICHER'S INC 3,575.00
2001138 TACTICAL ADVANTAGE, LLC 10,710.64

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-POLICE 22,118.69

2021 INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS
CP2020/FD-1 NEW FIRE HALL

2015725 TOTAL TOOL SUPPLY, INC 3,250.00

TOTAL CP2020/FD-1 NEW FIRE HALL 3,250.00

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 7
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CIVIC CENTER CAPITAL IMP PJT

IRA CIVIC CENTER RENOVATION
0900054 ICS CONSULTING LLC 4,154.14
2000522 TNT CONSTRUCTION GROUP, LLC 9,452.50
2008225 THELEN HEATING & ROOFING INC 36,409.30

TOTAL IRA CIVIC CENTER RENOVATION 50,015.94

2024 INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS
CP2010-1 3RD AVE NE RECON

2000522 TNT CONSTRUCTION GROUP, LLC 7,647.50

TOTAL CP2010-1 3RD AVE NE RECON 7,647.50

PIR-PERMANENT IMPRV REVOLV FND
NO PROJECT

1920240 CHAD B STERLE 195.00

TOTAL NO PROJECT 195.00

STORM WATER UTILITY

0103325 ACHESON TIRE INC 200.00
0301685 CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 12.24
0301705 CASPER CONSTRUCTION INC 1,312.50
0514798 ENVIRONMENTAL EQUIPMENT AND 1,092.26
0920060 ITASCA COUNTY TREASURER 227.13
1303039 MCCOY CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY 165,850.00
1621125 PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 2,200.00
1809154 RICHARD F RYSAVY 240.00
1908248 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS 323.95
2300763 WW THOMPSON CONCRETE PRODUCTS 218.60
T001264 LEA FRIESEN 25.77

TOTAL 171,702.45

TOTAL UNPAID TO BE APPROVED IN THE SUM OF:     $741,762.14  
CHECKS ISSUED-PRIOR APPROVAL

PRIOR APPROVAL
0104095 DALE ADAMS 79.06
0113105 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 455.70
0205640 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS TRUST 469.18
0300225 CEF SAFETY SERVICES 4,100.00
0305530 CENTURYLINK QC 50.40
0309600 CIRCLE K/HOLIDAY 3,666.46

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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DATE: 05/09/2024 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 8
TIME: 15:03:05 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT
ID: AP443GR0.WOW

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/13/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHECKS ISSUED-PRIOR APPROVAL

PRIOR APPROVAL
0315543 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY -GAS 479.92
0605191 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE 99.64
0701105 KARL GAALAAS 724.86
0718015 GRAND RAPIDS CITY PAYROLL 574,059.98
0718070 GRAND RAPIDS STATE BANK 65.00
0815440 HOLIDAY STATIONSTORES LLC 176.00
0815500 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 334.01
0900060 ICTV 33,759.63
0920055 ITASCA COUNTY RECORDER 368.00
0920059 ITASCA COUNTY SHERIFFS DEPT 1,008.67
1115550 KOOTASCA COMMUNITY ACTION INC 80.00
1201402 LAKE COUNTRY POWER 52.76
1205090 LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA CITIES 275.00
1301145 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 79.86
1305046 MEDIACOM LLC 176.90
1305725 METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE CO 2,136.97
1309199 MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES 2,576.27
1309291 MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY 912.69
1309302 MN DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 16.25
1309332 MN STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 2,070.00
1309335 MINNESOTA REVENUE 4,235.00
1309338 MN STATE TREAS/BLDG INSPECTOR 2,695.98
1309375 MINNESOTA UNEMPLOYMENT COMP FD 9,914.83
1315649 ANDY MORGAN/PETTY CASH 2,750.00
1315650 ANDY MORGAN 121.79
1321750 MUTUAL OF OMAHA 474.58
1415479 NORTHERN DRUG SCREENING INC 226.00
1516220 OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL #49 125,762.00
1520720 KEVIN OTT 67.33
1601305 THOMAS J. PAGEL 1,126.94
1601750 PAUL BUNYAN COMMUNICATIONS 1,671.34
1621130 P.U.C. 40,063.23
1903555 ERIK SCOTT 69.68
2000100 TASC 33.75
2021685 JAMIE TURNBULL 734.48
2305300 MATTHEW WEGWERTH 804.00
2305825 WEX INC 5,933.27
T001237 JB LARSON CONSTRUCTION 500.00
T001512 GARY DOYLE 952.24
T001513 JOAN RICHARDSON 450.00

TOTAL PRIOR APPROVAL ALLOWED IN THE SUM OF:  $826,859.65

TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS                      $1,568,621.79

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS BILL LIST - MAY 13, 2024

04/16/24 - 05/06/24 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT $237,500.00
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS  

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

Wednesday, March 27, 2024  

4:00 PM  

MISSION STATEMENT 
The Mission of the Grand Rapids Human Rights Commission is to promote a community 

 of harmony and respect for the rights and dignity of all. 

CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to due notice and call thereof, the Human Rights Commission will hold a 

regular meeting on Wednesday, March 27, 2024 at 4:00pm in City Hall Council Chambers at 420 North 

Pokegama Avenue, Grand Rapids, Minnesota. 

The meeting was called to order at 4pm. 

ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT 

Commissioner Angella Erickson 

Commissioner Doug Learmont 

Commissioner Amanda Lussier 

Commissioner Amy Blomquist 

Commissioner Ronald Grossman 

Commissioner Rick Blake 

Commissioner Katelyn Dokken 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Joan Gunderman 

Commissioner Peggy Clayton 

City Liaison, Human Resource Officer, Chery Pierzina 

PUBLIC INPUT (if anyone wishes to address the Commission): 

None. 

SETTING THE AGENDA: (This is an opportunity to approve the regular agenda as presented or 

add/delete an Agenda item by a majority vote of the Commission members present.) 

Motion made by Commissioner Blake, Seconded by Commissioner Blomquist to approve the 

agenda. Voting Yea: Commissioner Erickson, Commissioner Learmont, Commissioner Lussier, 

Commissioner Blomquist, Commissioner Grossman, Commissioner Blake and Commissioner 

Dokken. 
 

PRESENTATION: 
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None. 

APPROVE MINUTES:   

1. Approve Minutes February 28, 2024 

Motion made by Commissioner Learmont, Seconded by Commissioner Blomquist to 

approve the February 28, 2024, Meeting Minutes. Voting Yea: Commissioner Erickson, 

Commissioner Learmont, Commissioner Lussier, Commissioner Blomquist, 

Commissioner Grossman, Commissioner Blake and Commissioner Dokken. 
 

FINANCIALS:  No change at this time. 

No motion needed. 

BUSINESS: 

2. Welcome/Introduction of New Commissioners 

The Commission welcomed new Commissioner Karelyn Dokken.  New Commissioner Peggy 

Clayton was absent and the Commission will welcome her at the next meeting. 

3. Election of Officers 

Motion made by Commissioner Learmont, Seconded by Commissioner Grossman to 

nominate Angela Erickson as the new Commission Chair. Voting Yea: Commissioner 

Learmont, Commissioner Lussier, Commissioner Blomquist, Commissioner Grossman, 

Commissioner Blake and Commissioner Dokken. Voting Abstaining: Commissioner 

Erickson. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Grossman, Seconded by Commissioner Erickson to 

nominate Commissioner Amy Blomquist as Commission Vice Chair. Voting Yea: 

Commissioner Erickson, Commissioner Learmont, Commissioner Lussier, Commissioner 

Grossman, Commissioner Blake and Commissioner Dokken. Voting Abstaining: 

Commissioner Blomquist. 
 

4. Reorganization of Work Groups: 

   A.  Community Event Work Group; Lussier and Gunderman 

   B.  Data and Demographics; Erickson and Blomquist 

   C.  Programming & Presentations; Erickson 

The Commission decided to reorganize the current work groups into task forces for events.  

 

The task force for Pride will be Commissioner Blomquist, Commissioner Lussier, 

Commissioner Grossman and Commissioner Blake. 

 

The task force starting out for Indigenous People's Day will be Commissioner Dokken and 

Commissioner Erickson. 
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5. 2024 Work Plan 

The discussion revolved around upcoming events. Commissioner Blomquist will do more 

research into having a representative from Itasca Pride to speak to the Commission regarding 

their group and event taking place on June 23, 2024. 

 

The task force for Indigenous People's Day will reach out to Anishinaabe Education to assist 

with the Event.  There are  multiple indoor sites that the task force could check on to hold the 

event due to it being in October. 

 

There are a couple other events to put on the Commission's radar, such as the walk by Kootasca 

for Juneteenth (Commissioner Blomquist will bring more information) and the Stomp Out 

Stigma event. The Commission could have a presence at both with a table and banners.  

6. Poster Purchase/Banner Placement 

One of the Human Rights Commission banners is up at City Hall, and the Library would like to 

put up a banner, but would actually like something smaller like an 11"x17" poster.  The 

Commission discussed and decided to purchase some smaller posters to use. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Erickson, Seconded by Commissioner Lussier to 

purchase ten Human Rights Commission posters from Minuteman Press for an amount 

not to exceed $40.00. Voting Yea: Commissioner Erickson, Commissioner Learmont, 

Commissioner Lussier, Commissioner Blomquist, Commissioner Grossman, 

Commissioner Blake and Commissioner Dokken. 

 

The Commissioners also discussed a new banner for the highway and reaching out to the city to 

post Events to the Reader Board.  Commissioner Erickson will reach out Forestry to see where 

they purchased their banner and to the City Engineer, Matt Wegwerth on details for a highway 

banner. 

7. Approve Onboarding Packet 

The Commission reviewed the Onboarding Packet for newly appointed Commissioners and 

would like to see a summary of the Work Plan on it. Once this is updated, they will review and 

approve.  

UPDATES: 

8. Nami Training 

No discussion, add to next meeting's agenda. 

9. Blanket Exercise Attendance 

The Blanket Exercise will take place on April 8th, 2024 at 6pm at Yanmar Arena. There are 

approximately five Commissioners that are going to attend and it will be posted that there will 

be a possible quorum. 

CALLS/COMPLAINTS/INQUIRIES: 
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There was a discussion regarding the inquiry made from former Commissioner Bernadine Joselyn 

regarding School District Policy that the Commission would like to follow up on.  

SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: 

BUSINESS: 

2.  Welcome/Introductions of New Commissioners 

3.  2024 Work Plan 

4.  Approve Onboarding Packet 

 

UPDATES: 

6.  Blanket Exercise 

7.  Nami Training 

8.  School District Policies 

ADJOURN: 

The meeting adjourned at 5:29pm.  The next meeting of the Human Rights Commission will be April 

24th, 2024.   

 

Respectfully submitted by Cynthia Lyman. 
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ARTS & CULTURE COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

Tuesday, April 02, 2024  

3:45 PM  

CALL TO ORDER: 

The meeting was called to order by Vice commission Chair Gorman at 3:45pm. 

ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT 

Commissioner Ed Zabinski 

Commissioner Jennifer Gorman 

Commissioner Myrna Peterson 

Commissioner Aaron Squadroni 

Commissioner Amanda Lamppa  

Commissioner Angie Miskovich 

Assistant Community Development Director, Dan Swenson  

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Kari Hedlund 

Commissioner Derek Fox 

Commissioner Sara Slaubaugh 

City Administrator, Tom Pagel 

PUBLIC INPUT: (if anyone wishes to address the Commission) 

None. 

SETTING THE AGENDA: 

Motion made by Commissioner Squadroni, Seconded by Commissioner Miskovich to accept the 

Agenda as written. Voting Yea: Commissioner Zabinski, Commissioner Gorman, Commissioner 

Peterson, Commissioner Squadroni, Commissioner Lamppa and Commissioner Miskovich. 
 

CORRESPONDENCE: 

None. 

APPROVE MINUTES: 

1. Approve Minutes from March 12, 2024 
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Motion made by Commissioner Zabinski, Seconded by Commissioner Peterson to accept 

the March 12, Minutes. Voting Yea: Commissioner Zabinski, Commissioner Gorman, 

Commissioner Peterson, Commissioner Squadroni, Commissioner Lamppa and 

Commissioner Miskovich. 
 

FINANCIALS:  No Change. 

No motion needed. 

BUSINESS: 

2. NE Neighborhood Art Project Presentations 

     3:50 pm - Greg Mueller 

     4:30 pm - Tom Page 

     5:10 pm - Ann Klefstad 

The three artists for the NE Neighborhood Art Project each gave their art presentations to the 

Commission for the Project Area at Ice Lake.  The Commission will discuss their presentations 

and scores to make a decision at their next meeting.  

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

Commissioner Zabinski announced that Karen Noyce will have a written report for the Commission at 

their May Meeting.   

SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: 

BUSINESS: 

3. NE Neighborhood Art Project Presentations 

4. Riverfest 2024 

 

UPDATES: 

5.  Blanket Exercise 

6.  Strategic Plan/New Commissioner Training Subcommittee 

7.  Tru North Central School Sculpture/Welcome Sign Proposal 

8.  Blandin Mural 

9.  Pokegama Band Map - Karen Noyce 

 

ADJOURN: 

Motion made by Commissioner Zabinski, Seconded by Commissioner Squadroni to adjourn the 

meeting at 5:55pm.  Voting Yea: Commissioner Zabinski, Commissioner Gorman, Commissioner 

Peterson, Commissioner Squadroni, Commissioner Lamppa and Commissioner Miskovich. 
 

Respectfully submitted by Cynthia Lyman 
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GRAND RAPIDS AREA LIBRARY BOARI)
MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, April 10, 2024

5:00 PMmlN MNNESoTAE NAruRr

CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to due notice and call thereof, a Regular meeting of the Grand Rapids
Area Library Board will be held on Wednesday, April 10,2024 at 5:00 PM in City Council Chambers,
420 North Pokegama Avenue, Grand Rapids, Minnesota.

Chair Martin called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.

CALL OF ROLL:

Present: Barr, Blocker, Casteel, Dobbs, Kee, Martin, Richards, Squadroni, Teigland

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Motion to approve the agenda as presented.

Mover: Dobbs

Seconder: Kee

Result: passed unanimously

PUBLIC COMMENT (if anyone wishes to address the Board):

None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1 . Consider approval of Library Board Meeting Minutes from 03 - I 3 -2024.

Motion to approve March meeting minutes as presented.

Mover: Kee

Seconder: Teigland

Result: passed unanimously

COMMUNICATIONS:

2. E-mail from Andrew Fox
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Informational - no action taken

FINANCIAL REPORT & CLAIMS (Roll Call Vote Required):

3. Review financial reports and consider a motion to authorize payment of Bill List as presented.

Motion to authorize payment of April Bill List as presented.

Mover: Blocker

Seconder: Richards

Result: passed 9-0 (roll-call)

CONSENT AGENDA (Roll Call Vote Required):

4. Consider a motion accepting donations.

Motion to approve donation resolution as presented.

Mover: Richards

Seconder: Dobbs

Result: Passed 9-0 (roll-call)

REGULAR AGENDA:

5. Library Legislative Update

Informational - no action taken

6. Review City Government Academy presentation draft

Informational - no action taken

UPDATES:

Friends and Foundation

Friends update by Teigland

Pop up sale in May; Big sale in July

Foundation update by Barr

Next meeting is 4/18 at CPC, 5 PM.

STAFF REPORTS:

7. Review library reports and statistics.
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Informational - no action taken

ADJOURNMENT:

Chair Martin adjourned the meeting at 5:25 PM.

NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR MAY 8,2024, AT 5:00 PM.

ATTEST: Will Richter, Director of Library Services
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GRAND RAPIDS PUBLIC LIBRARY BILL LIST - APRIL 1O 2024

DATE:
TIME:
ID:

04/03/2024
L5 : 02 :21-
AP443GR0.WOW

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

PAGE: 1

TNVOTCES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/L0/2024

VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE

PUBLIC LIBRARY

0118100
0118660
020].428
02L2L24
030s485
042]-228
0914540
1205099
1309055
1505565
1508100
]-612225
1901535
2023352
2l-74356

ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
ARROWHEAD LIBRARY SYSTEM
BAKER & TAYLOR LLC
BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING
CENGAGE LEARNING INC
DUET RESOURCE GROUP, INC
INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS
LEARN]NG OPPORTUNITIES INC
MIDWEST TAPE LLC
PERSONNEL DYNAMICS LLC
PHAROS SYSTEMS INT'L INC
PLAYAWAY PRODUCTS LLC
SANDSTROM'S INC
PIONEER PRESS
UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

LL

]-25
21,

L,499
329

1-,266
I ,523

524
387
4l

550
1,479

348
61,

230
104

.52

.00

.l-0

.00

.88

.20

.31

.L9

.98

.80

.00

.45

.46

.76

.85

TOTAL UNPAID TO BE APPROVED TN THE SUM OF: $l_5,493.50

CHECKS ]SSUED-PRIOR
PRIOR APPROVAL

0100053
0113l-05
0505191
071_8015
L20 9 520
1301145
L3057 25
1309199
t5L6220
1601750
l_51_8119
161812 0
1621130
2301-700

APPROVAL

AT&T MOBILITY
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES
FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE
GRAND RAPIDS CITY PAYROLL
EMILY LINDNER
MARCO TECHNOLOGIES, LLC
METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE CO
MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL #49
PAUL BUNYAN COMMUNICATIONS
ISABELLA A PRATTO
MADELYN R PRATTO
P. U. C.
WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC

54 .48
37 3 .21,

6.90
45,770.05

150.00
119.08
76.L4

L60.43
10,092.00

247.60
50.00
50.00

2 ,2].6 . 02
145.85

TOTAL PRIOR APPROVAL AILOWED IN THE SUM OF: $59,51-L.77

TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS $75,005.27
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Item 4.

- RESOLUTION NO. 2024-4
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DONATIONS

WHEREAS, Minnesota State Statutes 465.03, states that cities may accept gifts of real or personal
property, including money, and use them in accordance with the terms the donor prescribes, and

WHEREAS, every such acceptance shall be by resolution of the governing body adopted by a two-thirds
majority of its members,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Library Board of the City of Grand Rapids, Itasca
County, Minnesota, accepts the listed donations and terms of the donors as follows:

Grand Rapids Area Library Foundation - $11,618.50
Program Room Tables - $8,523.20
Picnic Tables - $2,905.38
DVDs - $189.92

Adopted this l0th day of April2024

Kee, Secretary

f:
28
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GRAND RAPIDS  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

Thursday, April 11, 2024  

4:15 PM  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that a regular meeting of the Grand Rapids Economic Development 

Authority will be held in the City Council Chambers in the Grand Rapids City Hall, 420 North 

Pokegama Avenue, in Grand Rapids, Minnesota on Thursday, April 11, 2024 immediately following the 

closed session. 

CALL TO ORDER 

President Blake called the meeting to order at 4:20 PM. 

CALL OF ROLL 

PRESENT 

Commissioner Al Hodnik, President Sholom Blake, Commissioner Wayne Bruns, Commissioner Bill 

Martinetto, Commissioner Molly MacGregor 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Tom Sutherland, Commissioner Malissa Bahr 

STAFF 

Rob Mattei and Mandy Mitchell                                                                         

 

SETTING OF THE REGULAR AGENDA - This is an opportunity to approve the regular agenda as 

presented, or to add/delete an agenda item by a majority vote of the Commissioners present . 

Approved without additions. 

APPROVE MINUTES 

1. Consider approving minutes from the March 28, 2024 Regular Meeting 

Motion made by Commissioner Martinetto, second by Commissioner MacGregor to approve 

the minutes from the March 28, 2024 Regular Meeting. The following voted in favor 

thereof: Commissioner Hodnik, President Blake, Commissioner Bruns, Commissioner 

Martinetto, Commissioner MacGregor. Opposed: None, motion passed unanimously. 
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APPROVE CLAIMS 

2. Consider approval of claims in the amount of $47,718.75 

Motion by Commissioner Bruns, second by Comissioner Hodnik to approve claims in the 

amount of $47,718.75. The following voted in favor thereof: Commissioner Hodnik, President 

Blake, Commissioner Bruns, Commissioner Martinetto, Commissioner MacGregor. Opposed: 

None, motion passed unanimously. 

BUSINESS 

3. Consider adopting a resolution supporting a modification to the development program for the 

City’s Development District 1, establishing TIF District 1-16 and supporting a property tax 

abatement for certain property in the City. 

Community Development Director Mattei explained Oppidan Inc. requesting TIF and gave a 

PowerPoint presentation on the topic followed by questions and discussion. 

Motion by Commissioner Hodnik, second by Commissioner MacGregor to adopt a resolution 

supporting a modification to the development program for the City's Development District 1, 

establishing TIF District 1-16 and supporting a property tax abatement for certain property in 

the City. The following voted in favor thereof: Commissioner Hodnik, President Blake, 

Commissioner Bruns, Commissioner Martinetto, Commissioner MacGregor. Opposed: None, 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

4. Consider adopting a resolution supporting a modification of a tax increment financing district 

within City’s Development District 1. 

Community Development Director Rob Mattei provided a PowerPoint presentation explaining 

HWY 35 Properties LLC. filing an application for Business Assistance requesting Tax 

Increment Financing (TIF). 

Motion by Commissioner Martinetto, second by MacGregor to adopt a resolution supporting a 

modification of a tax increment financing district within City’s Development District 1. The 

following voted in favor thereof: Commissioner Hodnik, President Blake, Commissioner 

Bruns, Commissioner Martinetto, Commissioner MacGregor. Opposed: None, motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

UPDATES 

Community Development is spending time on applications for the Workforce Housing Program and 

transacting with L&M and the airport property. 
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ADJOURN 

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 5:03 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Mandy Mitchell, Recorder 

MEMBERS & TERMS 

Tom Sutherland - 12/31/2024 Council Representative 

Molly MacGregor - 12/31/2024 Council Representative 

Wayne Bruns - 3/1/25 

Sholom Blake - 3/1/25 

Al Hodnik - 3/1/27 

Bill Martinetto - 3/1/27 

Malissa Bahr - 3/1/30 
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GRAND RAPIDS  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 

Tuesday, April 16, 2024  

5:00 PM  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that a special meeting of the Grand Rapids Economic Development 

Authority will be held in the City Council Chambers in the Grand Rapids City Hall, 420 North 

Pokegama Avenue, in Grand Rapids, Minnesota on Tuesday, April 16, 2024 at 5:00 PM. 

CALL TO ORDER 

President Blake called the meeting to order at 5:02 PM. 

CALL OF ROLL 

PRESENT 

Commissioner Al Hodnik 

President Sholom Blake 

Commissioner Wayne Bruns 

Commissioner Tom Sutherland 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Bill Martinetto 

Commissioner Molly MacGregor 

Commissioner Malissa Bahr 

APPROVE CLAIMS 

1. Consider approval of claims in the amount of $64,903.52. 

Motion made by Commissioner Hodnik, Seconded by Commissioner Sutherland to approve the 

claims in the amount of $64,903.52. Voting Yea: Commissioner Hodnik, President Blake, 

Commissioner Bruns, Commissioner Sutherland. Opposed: None, motion passed unanimously. 

BUSINESS 

2. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract 

Discussion on the three absent commissioners and conflict of interest due to them being a part 

of the Free Range Co-op. 

Motion made by Commissioner Bruns, Seconded by Commissioner Sutherland to adopt a 

resolution authorizing a contract. Voting Yea: Commissioner Hodnik, Commissioner Bruns, 

Commissioner Sutherland. Opposed: None, motion passed unanimously. 
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3. Consider a resolution approving conveyance of certain property owned by GREDA and 

corresponding Purchase and Development Contract between GREDA and Free Range Food 

Co-op. 

Community Development Director Rob Mattei discussed the process Free Range Co-op has 

been going through to start up. The purchase price of the property is $200,000 with a closing 

date of March 21, 2025. Questions and discussion followed. 

Motion made by Commissioner Hodnik, Seconded by Commissioner Bruns to approve 

conveyance of certain property owned by GREDA and corresponding Purchase and 

Development Contract between GREDA and Free Range Food Co-op. Voting Yea: 

Commissioner Hodnik, President Blake, Commissioner Bruns, Commissioner 

Sutherland. Opposed: None, motion passed unanimously. 

 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 5:11 PM. 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

Amanda Mitchell, Recorder 

MEMBERS & TERMS 

Tom Sutherland - 12/31/2024 Council Representative 

Molly MacGregor - 12/31/2024 Council Representative 

Wayne Bruns - 3/1/25 

Sholom Blake - 3/1/25 

Al Hodnik - 3/1/27 

Bill Martinetto - 3/1/27 

Malissa Bahr - 3/1/30 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider entering into Advertising Agreements with businesses at 

Yanmar Arena. 

PREPARED BY: Dale Anderson, Director of Parks & Recreation 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Advertising is a great source of revenue at the Arena.  The following businesses wish to enter 

into Agreements to have dasher board ads and/or a wall sign: 

 Absolute PCA 

 Pokegama Store 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to enter into Advertising Agreements with businesses at Yanmar Arena. 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider Voiding Lost Accounts Payable Check and Issue a Replacement 

Check 

PREPARED BY: Laura Pfeifer 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Accounts payable check #153789 issued to Isabella Pratto on July 24, 2023 for $50.00 is lost. 

Isabella Pratto has completed the required Affidavit of Lost Check. 

 

 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to void lost accounts payable check #153789, issue a new check and waive bond 

requirements for the check issued to Isabella Pratto in the amount of $50.00.  
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider adopting a resolution to accept $2,450.00 cash donations and 

$405 in-kind donations to Grand Rapids Police Department from various 

sources to support Open-Source INTernet (OSINT) Training. 

PREPARED BY: Police Chief Andy Morgan 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Grand Rapids Police Department is committed to advancing our knowledge and skills in efforts 

to better serve this community. With little surprise, technology plays an ever-growing role in 

many aspects of everyday policing. Recognizing this demand, GRPD jumps at the opportunity to 

better train staff in the ever-evolving world of technology. 

Attached you will find information regarding Open-sourced Intelligence Training (OSINT) 

provided by the greatly respected Michele Stuart of JAG Investigations. All below donation 

efforts were achieved by longtime law enforcement supporter Conley Janssen. 

Cash Donations 

L&M Fleet Supply   $400.00 

Undem Law    $500.00 

Sons of American Legion   $500.00 

Deerwood Bank   $250.00 

Anonymous Donors total  $800.00 
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In-kind donations 

Timberlake Lodge- Instructor Lodging-Estimated Value $180.00 

MN North College- Venue- Estimated Value $175 

Sammy’s- Instructor Meals- Estimated Value $50 

All donations will be utilized toward supporting local OSINT training held on April 30, 2024. 

Grand Rapids Police Department and Itasca County Sheriff Department will be committing 

additional funds to satisfy the remaining balance. 

This is a non-budgeted item, GRPD will be committing $1,000.00 from the Public Safety Aid. 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to adopt a resolution to accept $2,450.00 of cash donations and $405 in-kind 

donations to Grand Rapids Police Department from various sources and authorize the payment of 

$6,181.19 to support OSINT Training. 
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Training for Law Enforcement and Education Professionals 
 

This presentation is free to all LEO and Education Professionals. It is organized by 

Conley Janssen, an independent crisis and safety advisor. Conley works with Itasca 

Sherriff’s Dept, Grand Rapids Police Dept and Itasca Area Schools Collaborative. 

GRPD is fiscal agent for this event and also is listed as the POST credentialling 

agent. He has organized many other trainings in past years and is pleased to present 

Michele Stuart of JAG Investigations. He has been to three presentations by her and 

her knowledge of OSINT and investigative process is exemplary.  

With over thirty years of investigative experience and twenty-six years of running 

her own company, Ms. Stuart is an expert in a range of investigative fields, 

including open-sourced intelligence(OSINT), counterintelligence, insurance fraud 

investigations, financial investigations, threat assessments, due diligence, organized 

retail crime, corporate and competitive intelligence. Ms. Stuart consults and trains a 

variety of clients, including federal, state, and local law enforcement agencies, 

military intelligence communities, Fortune 500 companies, as well as financial and 

insurance industries. Her focus is on open source intelligence, social media, and 

threat assessments and mitigation. She has also served as an Instructor at Quantico 

(FBI Academy), teaching international training in OSINT (Open-Source 

Intelligence). 

A general course outline is provided but Ms. Stuart is open to all relevant subject 

matter questions and discussions. 

Where- Davies Hall, Minnesota North College- Itasca Campus, Grand Rapids MN 

Date - April 30, 2024 

Time- 8am for Law Enforcement and others. 3pm Educators (shorter presentation) 

POC- Conley Janssen. 218 244 2841. cjanssen@grandrapidsmn.gov 

Please contact with general numbers of attendants and any questions.  

This is a Minnesota POST credited event.  
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Course description for Law Enforcement  
OPEN SOURCE INTEL IN TACTICAL INVESTIGATIONS  

 

The internet empowers investigators to efficiently gather information on subjects, emphasizing that 

concentrating solely on individuals may not always be the most effective approach. A crucial element in 

research is the identification of actionable intelligence, aiding in the discovery of details such as individual 

identification, movements, business associations, family ties, addresses, and telephone numbers. Furthermore, 

accurate searches on social media platforms can prove instrumental in pinpointing suspects and witnesses 

during investigations. This course is designed to equip you with the skills to employ accurate search patterns, 

leverage open-source resources, and effectively navigate social media platforms for investigative purposes. 

 

Course Objectives 

 

I AI (Artificial Intelligence) / Sock Puppets / Facial Recognition 

 

a. Demonstrate the capability of utilizing AI in the creation of sock puppets. 

b. How to identify if someone may have used an AI generated picture. 

c. Illustrate the use of ‘calendar’ programs. 

d. Will provide sites, techniques for image and facial recognition. 

 

 

II   Search Engines and Correct Effective Searching Techniques 

 

a. Demonstrate the correct techniques for the best search pattern results from search engines. 

b. Provide real time examples of search criteria manipulation 

c. Demonstrate publicly available image and facial recognition software that can assist in identifying a 

subject and/or identifying a fake account used for investigative purposes.   

 

III Internet Open Sources – Actionable Intelligence 

 

a. Review and identify numerous surface and deep web online open sources to identify residential 

locations or associated telephone numbers.  Demonstrate which open sources can pull different types 

of information – associates, family members, addresses, phone numbers and business associations. 

b. Demonstrate how to use usernames to find cross associated platforms associated to a subject. 

 

 

IV Using Social Networking Sites 

 

a. With estimated billions of social networking profiles and mobile social applications, techniques will 

show how to correctly search for information on these platforms to identify actionable intelligence 

b. Show the significance of hashtags and the ability to search and follow hashtag conversations over 

numerous platforms. 

c. Determine usernames and additional associations and the sources to identify the person behind the 

username. 
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Council member introduced the following resolution and moved for its adoption: 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  24- 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING $2,450.00 OF CASH DONATIONS FROM VARIOUS 

SOURCES AND $405 OF IN-KIND DONATIONS TO SUPPORT 

GRAND RAPIDS POLICE DEPARTMENT OSINT TRAINING 

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota State Statutes 465.03, states that cities may accept gifts of real 

or personal property, including money, and use them in accordance with the terms the donor 

prescribes; and  

 

WHEREAS, every such acceptance shall be by resolution of the governing body 

adopted by two-thirds majority of its members,  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Grand 

Rapids, Itasca County, Minnesota, accepts the listed donations below for the benefit of 

conducting the City of Grand Rapids Police Department OSINT Training: 

Cash Donations 

 L&M Fleet Supply   $400.00 

 Undem Law    $500.00 

 Sons of American Legion   $500.00 

 Deerwood Bank   $250.00 

 Anonymous Donors total  $800.00 

In-kind donations 

 Timberlake Lodge- Instructor Lodging-Estimated Value $180.00 

 MN North College- Venue- Estimated Value $175 

 Sammy’s- Instructor Meals- Estimated Value $50 

 

 

Adopted this 13th day of May 2024 

 

 

      ___________________________ 

                Tasha Connelly, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

Kimberly Johnson-Gibeau, City Clerk 
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Councilmember seconded the foregoing resolution and the following voted in favor thereof; 

and the following voted against same:  None, whereby the resolution was declared duly passed 

and adopted. 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider request to interview and hire a paid summer intern for the 

Grand Rapids Police Department.   

PREPARED BY: Chery Pierzina, Human Resources Officer 

 

BACKGROUND: 

A Police Department employee will be out of the office for a portion of the summer.  To cover 

this absence, the Grand Rapids Police Department would like to request authorization to 

interview and hire a paid summer intern, from approximately June 1, 2024, through August 31, 

2024.  Current students in a law enforcement academy will be considered.   The rate of pay for 

the intern is $18.00 per hour and the intern will work up to 40 hours per week for the Grand 

Rapids Police Department.   

The Police Department 2024 budget does support this position.   

 

 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to authorize City staff to interview and hire a summer intern for the Grand 

Rapids Police Department, beginning approximately June 1, 2024, through August 31, 2024, 

with a rate of pay of $18.00 per hour, for up to 40 hours per week.  
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider hiring staff for Pokegama Golf Course for the 2024 Golfing 

Season, make corrections to hourly wage, and discontinue employment 

relationship with seasonal golf employee. 

PREPARED BY: Chery Pierzina, Human Resources Officer 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Pokegama Golf Course hires part-time and seasonal workers for the 2024 Golfing Season.   

There are four (4) hires/rehires for Pokegama Golf Course listed below.  Their employment shall 

begin no sooner than May 14, 2024, and end no later than October 31, 2024.  

The position, approximate starting date and ending date, and rate of pay are listed below:   

Name   Position  Start Date  End Date         ROP   
Kevin Gunderson Grounds Maintenance May 14, 2024 October 31, 2024 $16.00 per hour 

Jodi Janecke Pro Shop/Ranger  May 14, 2024 October 31, 2024 $15.00 per hour  

Carter McLaughlin Pro Shop Attendant  May 14, 2024 October 31, 2024 $15.00 per hour 

Camdyn Keagle Pro Shop Attendant  May 14, 2024 October 31, 2024 $15.00 per hour 

 

At the March 11, 2024, City Council Meeting, the City Council approved rehiring several golf 

course employees.  Corrections need to be made to the hourly wage of one (1) Pokegama Golf 

Course rehires, as follows:   

Madison Janecke was rehired at $15.00 per hour.  Her corrected hourly rate of pay should 

be $15.50 per hour, retro-active to her first day of work in the 2024 Golf season.   

All costs associated with their employment are included in the 2024 budget.  
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Lastly, on March 11, 2024, the City Council approved hiring Breyden Birt as a seasonal golf course 

employee.  He will not be filling this role at this time but is eligible for re-hire in the future.   

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to hire the four (4) hires/rehires, as listed above, with the correlating position, 

approximate starting date and ending date, and rate of pay; approve revised hourly rate of pay for 

the one (1) golf course rehire as mentioned above, and approve ending the employment 

relationship with Breyden Birt effective April 20, 2024.   
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13th, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider authorizing quotes and awarding a contract to TNT 

Construction Group for the Rain Garden Inlet Improvements Project 

PREPARED BY: Matt Wegwerth 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The City recently received quotes for the Rain Garden Inlet Improvements Project at the Crystal 

Lake Roundabout.   The project includes installing rain garden inlet structures at 9 locations to 

catch sediment and protect the rain gardens.  Two quotes were received and are summarized 

below: 

TNT Construction Group - $39,800.00 

Casper Construction - $64,400.00 

This is a budgeted project for 2024 and will be funded with the SWU account. 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion authorizing quotes and awarding a contract to TNT Construction Group, in the 

amount of $39,800.00, for the Rain Garden Inlet Improvements Project 
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QUOTATION FORM – 2024 Rain Garden Inlet Improvements         
PAGE 1 OF 3 

 

QUOTATION FORM 
Grand Rapids, MN 

Rain Garden Inlet Improvements - 2024 
  
 
Submit quotation form to Matt Wegwerth PE, City of Grand Rapids, 420 North Pokegama 
Avenue, Grand Rapids, MN by 3:00 pm on Wednesday, May 1st, 2024.  Quotes can be 
mailed, hand delivered or emailed.  If mailed or hand delivered, quote should be 
submitted in a sealed envelope to the City Engineers office: 
 
Quote package shall include the following: 

1. Quotation Form 
2. Special Provisions  
3. Location Map 
4. Rain Guardian Bunker Details 

 
All spaces of the quotation form shall be filled in.  The quote must be in a sealed envelope 
labeled “2024 Rain Garden Inlet Improvements”. 
 
Project Description:  The project includes installation of Rain Guardian Bunkers at nine (9) 
locations around the Crystal Lake roundabout. 
 
Project will be completed on a lump sum basis, based on the location map, details and the 
estimated following quantities: 
 
 

STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 
ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY 

1 REMOVE CONCRETE APRONS LS 1 
2 INSTALL RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER EACH 9 
3 INSTALL CONCRETE APRON EACH 9 
4 TRAFFIC CONTRL LS 1 
5 EROSION CONTROL LS 1 

 
 
 
Total Lump Sum Bid: $__________________ 
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QUOTATION FORM – 2024 Rain Garden Inlet Improvements         
PAGE 2 OF 3 

We, the undersigned, doing business as                                              have carefully examined 
the Quotation Documents and the site of the proposed work, and are familiar with all of the 
conditions, laws and regulations surrounding the construction of the proposed project including 
the availability of materials and labor.  We hereby propose to the City of Grand Rapids, MN to 
furnish all labor, materials, equipment, skills and facilities for the complete construction of the 
2024 – Rain Garden Inlet Improvements as described herein.  The lump sum price shown 
includes sales tax and all other applicable taxes, permits and fees.   
 
 

Dated this                day of                                 , 2024 

Name of Company         

  Signature of Authorized Representative          

Printed Name of Authorized Representative           

Title of Authorized Representative          

 Legal Address              

 Business Phone        

  
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

General: 
 

1. EJCDC Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract shall apply to the 
project. 

2. All materials shall be in accordance with applicable building codes and local 
specifications. 

3. Rain Guardian bunkers shall be provided by the contractor and installed per 
manufacturer’s details and include all associated appurtenances. 

4. Existing curb and gutter shall not be disturbed.  Concrete apron shall be installed per 
Concrete Apron Detail 

5. The Work may not begin until June 1, 2024 and will be substantially completed on or 
before August 30, 2024 

6. The Work shall be coordinated with local community events.  Traffic closures shall 
not impact Tall Timber Days, Classic Car show and/or the Itasca County Fair.  Other 
events may be impacted and shall be coordinated around. 

7. Contractor shall complete rough grading around each site.  City will place topsoil, 
seed and erosion control 

8. Contractor shall be responsible for site cleanup 
9. Traffic control plan must be submitted to the City and approved prior to starting the 

work.  Closures may be allowed assuming proper signage. 
10. Contractor shall provide erosion control as necessary 
11. Liquidated damages shall be set at $300 per day for every day after the completion 

dates that the project is not complete.  
12. Contractor will be required to submit a City Stormwater permit.  Fee will be waived. 

 
 
S:\Storm Water\Projects\2024 - Rain Garden Inlet Improvements\Rain Garden Inlet Quote.docx 
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Rain Garden Inlet Project - 2024 

Location Map 
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RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER
PRETREATMENT CHAMBER

BIORETENTION PONDING DEPTH:  1'
TYPICAL DETAIL

REVISION HISTORY

REV BY DATE DESCRIPTION

A MDH 02/22/2022 BUNKER - 1'

SCALE VARIABLE

U.S. PATENT
NOS. 8,501,016 AND 8,858,804 

ELEVATION VIEW

SPECIFICATIONS
1. CHAMBER CONSTRUCTED OF RECYCLED PLASTIC LUMBER (95%+)
MANUFACTURED AND DESIGNED TO ASTM C1028, D6108, D6109, D6111,
D6117, AND D6341 (54 LBS).
2. TOP GALVANIZED METAL GRATE (35 LBS, 1" THICK) - 316 LB
CONCENTRATED LOAD OR 158 LB/SQ-FT UNIFORM LOAD.

INSTALLATION NOTES
1. INSTALL THE CONCRETE PAD WITH A 1’ 10” OFFSET FROM THE BACK
OF THE CURB TO ACCOMMODATE THE CONCRETE INLET. THIS
DISTANCE MAY VARY BASED ON SITE CONDITIONS, BUT
CONSIDERATIONS SHOULD INCLUDE SLOPE OF THE INLET AND BASIN
SIDE SLOPES ADJACENT TO THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER. POSITION
RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER SO PRIMARY OUTLET ALIGNS WITH TOE OF
BASIN SIDE SLOPE TO AVOID SOIL INTERFERENCE WITH REMOVABLE
FILTER WALL. THE CONCRETE PAD SHOULD BE REINFORCED WITH
REBAR.
2. EXCAVATE 1’ 10” BELOW THE GUTTERLINE ELEVATION (I.E. THE
BIORETENTION OVERFLOW ELEVATION) TO ACCOMMODATE THE 1’
PONDING DEPTH, 6” CLASS 5 AGGREGATE, AND 4” CONCRETE PAD TO
WHICH THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER WILL BE SECURED. THEREFORE,
THE TOP OF THE FINISHED CONCRETE PAD IS PRECISELY 1’ BELOW THE
GUTTERLINE ELEVATION. THE TOP OF THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER
METAL GRATE WILL BE 10-1/2” ABOVE THE TOP OF THE CONCRETE PAD
AND 1-1/2” BELOW THE GUTTERLINE ELEVATION TO ACCOMMODATE A
SLOPED INLET FROM THE GUTTER TO THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER.
3. THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER SHOULD BE POSITIONED 2” FROM THE
EDGE OF THE CONCRETE PAD CLOSEST TO THE BACK OF THE CURB. 
THEREFORE, THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER WILL BE 2’ FROM THE BACK 
OF THE CURB.
4. USING THE PILOT HOLE IN EACH OF THE FOUR CORNER POSTS,
PREDRILL 5/32” HOLES INTO THE CONCRETE PAD WITH A 4-1/2” 
MASONRY BIT AND HAMMER DRILL.  
5. SECURE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER TO CONCRETE PAD WITH FOUR
3/16” X 2-3/4” MASONRY SCREWS (PROVIDED).
6. INSTALL FRAMING FOR INLET BETWEEN RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER AND
BACK OF CURB. TOP ELEVATIONS OF THE FRAMING SHOULD MATCH 
THE TOP OF THE CURB ON THE STREET SIDE AND THE TOP OF THE RAIN 
GUARDIAN BUNKER ON THE BIORETENTION SIDE. 
7. WHEN POURING THE CONCRETE INLET, ENSURE THE CARRIAGE
BOLTS ON THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER ARE SURROUNDED BY AT 
LEAST 2” OF CONCRETE ON ALL SIDES.
8. SIDE CURBS OF THE POURED INLET MUST HAVE AN
INSURMOUNTABLE PROFILE TO PREVENT WATER FLOW FROM 
OVERTOPPING THE DOWNSTREAM SIDE OF THE INLET.
9. WRAP CABLE THROUGH TOP METAL GRATE AND SECURE WITH
PROVIDED CLAMP. ENSURE SUFFICIENT SLACK EXISTS IN CABLE TO
ALLOW FOR GRATE REMOVAL AND PLACEMENT IN CONCRETE INLET
DURING CLEANING. REMOVABLE FILTER WALL SHOULD BE INSTALLED
WITH FILTER FABRIC FACING THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER INLET.

3D VIEWS

PLAN VIEW PLAN VIEW NOTES
1. INLET WIDTH AND DISTANCE BETWEEN BACK OF CURB
AND RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER MAY VARY WITH SITE
CONDITIONS. INSTALLATION FLUSH WITH THE BACK OF
THE CURB CAN ALSO BE COMPLETED WITH THE RAIN
GUARDIAN BUNKER.
2. CONCRETE PAD EXTENDS BEYOND THE FILTER WALL
OF THE RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER TO SERVE AS A SPLASH
DISSIPATOR.

ELEVATION VIEW NOTES
1. THE TOP OF THE CLASS 5 BASE (COMPACTED TO 95%
STANDARD PROCTOR) IS PRECISELY 1’ 4” BELOW THE
GUTTERLINE ELEVATION.
2. THE TOP OF THE CONCRETE PAD IS PRECISELY 1'
BELOW THE GUTTERLINE.

1'-0"

4"

6"

6"

SITE SPECIFIC

CARRIAGE BOLT (PROVIDED)

PRIMARY OUTLET
REMOVABLE
FILTER WALL

TOP GRATE
HIGH VOLUME OVERFLOW

GUTTERLINE

BASIN BOTTOM

RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER
INLET INSURMOUNTABLE CURB

GUTTERLINE

CLASS 5 AGGREGATE

SUBSOILS

SITE SPECIFIC

MASONRY SCREWS (PROVIDED)

1'-3 7/8"

10 1/2"

1 1/2"

RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER INLET

5 1/4"

5"

5 1/2"

CONCRETE PAD

POSITION RAIN GUARDIAN 
BUNKER SO PRIMARY OUTLET 
ALIGNS WITH TOE OF BASIN 
SIDE SLOPE TO AVOID SOIL 
INTERFERENCE WITH FILTER

RAIN GUARDIAN BUNKER

BACK OF CURB

INSURMOUNTABLE CURB FACE

CONCRETE INLET
SEE CONCRETE APRON 

DETAIL

EXISTING CURB-CUT (WIDTH VARIES)

2'

2'-6"

5'-0"

1'-7 7/8"

INSURMOUNTABLE CURB FACE

CONCRETE PAD

4'-3 1/4"

2"

www.RainGuardian.biz

DEVELOPED/MANUFACTURED BY:
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13th, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider the purchase of Service Body Truck Equipment for the Public 

Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Matt Wegwerth 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works has ordered a new truck chassis to replace the current 255.  PW255 is used as the 

service vehicle for fleet and needs to have a service body with lift gate.  A service body is used 

in lieu of a standard truck bed, in order to store tools, air compressors, welders and other 

equipment safely.  

Attached is a quote from Bert’s Truck Equipment for the purchase of a Service Body and 

Liftgate.  The pricing is through the MN State Contract in the total amount of $21,961.00 plus 

and estimated delivery charge of $620.00. 

Total equipment price, including delivery, is $22,581.00 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to approve the Public Works Department’s request to purchase and make 

payment for Service Body Truck equipment from Bert’s Truck Equipment in the amount of 

$22,581.00 
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         TRUCK EQUIPMENT
 September 27, 2023

Kevin Koetz
City of Grand Rapids
218-879-1621

Proposal for Knaphiede A6110 Aliminum Service Body
Item Description

2.3-7
Knapheide A6110 Knapheide Service body with all Standard  
Equipment (fits 60" CA Single Wheel Ra Chassis) 8,933.00$   

2.3-101 Ram Mounting kit 432.00$      
2.3-103 LED Flush Mount Light kit 400.00$      
2.3- Warning light harness for OEM Switch 165.00$      
NCI Delete tailgate for Liftgate application N/C
2.3-122 Knapheide Factory Blended White 1,535.00$   
2.3-151 Installation of body 1,285.00$   
2.3-107 Aluminum fuel cup 125.00$      
1.56 Full height Rock Guards 195.00$      
1.86 Class V Reciever Hitch Rated at 16000LB 2.5 " Reciver Tube 745.00$      
1.94 7-way RV electrical 90.00$        
1.55-2 Install OEM suppleid backup camera 190.00$      
NCI C-tek Drawer Stack SS FV1 (77013690) 3-3", 2-5", 1-7" Drawer 1,815.00$   
NCI Bottle Gas Holder CS FV1 (77013360 670.00$      
1.52 Line-X Cargo Area and Compartment Tops 995.00$      

Total 17,575.00$ 

Maxon Liftgate
C2-54-
1642 
EA38+6" 
RAMP, 
W/INSTL 
KIT

 C2 series service body lift, 1600 lbs capacity, 55" frame width, 38" 
extruded aluminum platform (includes Galvinized Frame)

3,351.00$   

Labor
Installation of Maxon, Pick-up, Service Bodies  Models on 
Appropriate Chassis 1,035.00$   
Total for Liftgate 4,386.00$   

Estimated Project Cost 21,961.00$ 

Estiamted BTE Delivery add  620.00$      

Option
Manual Master Lock Installed 1,075.00$   
Electric Locks Installed 1,700.00$   

MN State Contract pricing

X Jim McLaughlin, Sales
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            YOUR TRUCK EQUIPMENT HEADQUARTERS
                                     1-800-232-3787
 (218) 233-8681                                                         3804 Hwy 75 North
Fax 218-233-9548                                                     Moorhead, MN 56560
                                           email:jimmc@bertsonline.com
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider approving seasonal liquor license for Grand Rapids Speedway 

Inc.  

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Gibeau 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Grand Rapids Speedway has submitted the renewal for a liquor license for their 2024 racing 

season.  The season for the speedway runs from May to October each year. 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to approve liquor license for the Grand Rapids Speedway Inc. 

65

Item 11.



 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: 5-13-24 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider approval of City Administrator Goals for 2024 

PREPARED BY: Tom Pagel, City Administrator 

 

BACKGROUND: 

On an annual basis the City Council and Administrator mutually established for the calendar 

year.  The attached document identifies the City Administrator Goals for 2024.  

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to approve the City Administrator goals for 2024. 
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2024 GOALS 

 

Date:   March 18, 2024 

 

To: Tom Pagel, City Administrator  

 

From: Mayor Connelly and Council 

 

Re: Review of 2023 Goals and Establishment of 2024 Goals 

 

In accordance with your employment agreement, you are directed by the City Council to work on up to three 

goals per year.  This correspondence will summarize progress on the three goals for 2023 that the City 

Council established for you along with four goals to focus on in 2024. 

 

The 2023 Goal updates are as follows: 

 

1. Housing - Assist staff and community partners in developing housing, including the redevelopment 

of the former WWTP site into around 90 units of single-family housing.  This is the same goal as in 

2022.  Its importance to the City remains paramount thus, it is to be a focus yet again in 2023. 

a. Update – City staff has determined that the WWTP site can accommodate about 62 units of 

housing.  We are continuing to develop the project with the Ives family.   

 

The City Council met in closed session on March 11, 2024.  After discussion the City Council felt 

very satisfied with your progress relative to this goal.  The Council appreciates your collaboration 

with the Itasca County HRA specifically as it relates to the new housing development at the old 

Forest Lake Elementary school site.  The City Council asks you to continue your good work in this 

endeavor.   

 

2. IRA Civic Center – Secure IRRRB grant, along with securing Naming Rights Agreement.  In 

addition, educate the public on the benefit of a local sales tax and assist in its implementation now 

that to referendum passed in November of 2022.  Over see the remodeling of the IRA Civic Center. 

a. Update – Secured a $500k grant from IRRRB.  Completed the reconstruction of the Civic 

Center on time and budget.  Secured Yanmar North America as the naming rights sponsor.  

  

The City Council met in closed session on March 11, 2024.  After discussion the City Council felt 

that you moved the City smoothly through this goal.  Your goal was successfully accomplished, and 

the project was a great benefit to the City.   

 

3. Central School/CBD- Using the appraisal, community survey and the Downtown Master Plan, work 

toward a long-range plan to minimize the building’s effect upon the City’s budget.  There appears to 

be dual tracks contemplated to achieve this goal.  Additionally, focus on pedestrian safety in the 

Central Business District. 
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a. Update Central School – Submitted a bond request to the State for bond funding.  Was 

notified by the State that the facility does not qualify for State bonding dollars.  Was directed 

to request State “cash”.  Our Senator and Representative have submitted bills for cash.  I have 

also submitted a preliminary request for federal funding from Representative Stauber. 

b. Update Pedestrian Safety – Staff continue to pursue funding for improvements to Pokegama 

Avenue, including the intersection of TH 2 which will involve enhanced pedestrian crossings. 

 

The City Council met in closed session on March 11, 2024.  After discussion the City Council felt 

that you made appropriate progress relative to this goal.  The City Council acknowledges that it will 

need legislative help to fully complete this goal and that its work will continue in the years to come.   

 

 

The following are your goals for 2024: 

 

1. Central School – Continue to pursue funding for improvements to the facility 

2. Legion Park Master Plan – Secure funding and move forward with a Master Plan for Legion Park that 

includes an economic impact component. 

3. Cannabis Dispensary – Complete a feasibility to determine if the City should own or own/operate a 

cannabis dispensary. 

4. Community Survey – Prepare and issue a community survey that allows citizens to provide insight 

into progress that has, and needs to be made, toward meeting the goals of the Comprehensive Plan.  

Specifically aimed at gaining satisfaction towards the goals accomplished along with identifying 

ideas for further progress towards the goals. 

 

 

 

Best regards, 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mayor Tasha Connelly 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: 5-13-24 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider resolutions approving Use Agreements with GRAHA and SNC. 

PREPARED BY: Tom Pagel, City Administrator 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The State has approved the attached Use Agreements between the City and GRAHA and SNC.  

These agreements are in the form of a resolution.  The are for the 2024/25 regular hockey and 

figure skating season. 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to approve resolutions entering into Use Agreements with GRAHA and SNC. 
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GRAHA Board Member _________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

City Council Member ________introduced the following resolution, City Council Member _________seconded 

the motion and moved its adoption: 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING IRA CIVIC CENTER 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, by and between the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota a municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and Grand Rapids Amateur Hockey Association, Grand Rapids, 

Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as the “GRAHA”, entered into this _____ day of _______, 2024. 

. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, City owns and operates the IRA Civic Center; and  

 

WHEREAS, GRAHA has determined that the IRA Civic Center is a suitable facility for conducting 

GRAHA's hockey programming; and  

 

WHEREAS, GRAHA wishes to lease the IRA Civic Center, on occasion in its entirety and on other 

occasions specific portions thereof; and  

 

WHEREAS, City and GRAHA wish to enter into this Lease Agreement for the purpose of establishing 

the terms and conditions pursuant to which GRAHA shall lease the IRA Civic Center or portions thereof;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable mutual consideration, City and GRAHA mutually agree as 

follows:  
 

ARTICLE I - AGREEMENT TO LEASE 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is a Statutory City organized under Minnesota Statute Chapter 412, with the 
authority to provide for the economic development and general welfare of the City, in accordance with statutory 
authority, including the ability to enter contracts; and Lease Agreement. 
 
 WHEREAS, in consideration of and subject to the mutual covenants, conditions and obligations of this 
Lease Agreement to be kept and performed, including the obligation to lease, City does hereby lease to GRAHA 
the IRA Civic Center solely to the extent specified in this Lease Agreement.  

 

1. In consideration of and subject to the mutual covenants, conditions and obligations of this Lease 

Agreement to be kept and performed, including the obligation to lease, City does hereby lease to GRAHA 

the IRA Civic Center solely to the extent specified in this Lease Agreement.  

 

2. The City is in the process of remodeling the IRA Civic Center on City-owned real property located at 

1401 Third Avenue NW, Grand Rapids, MN 55744 (the “Property”); and 

 

3. Pursuant to 2020 Laws of Minnesota, Chapter 3, Art. 1, Section 21, Subdivision 21, the City was awarded 

a grant from the State of Minnesota in the amount of $5 million (the “State Grant”) for the purpose of 

design, construction, and equipping of capital improvements to the IRA Civic Center, thereon (the 

“Project”), as set forth in that certain Grant Agreement – Construction Grant for the IRA Civic Center, 

SPAP-20-0014-P-FY23, dated October 22, 2020 (the “State Grant Agreement”). 

 

4. Under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 471.15 to 471.191, the City is authorized to remodel 

the Property as a civic center, and to thereafter expend funds for the operation and       maintenance of the 
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civic center and the operation of the Governmental Program (as defined in the State Grant Agreement) as 

a part of its program of public recreation, and to directly operate such program; and 

 

 

5. Conditions Precedent. All obligations of the Parties set forth herein are subject to the conditions precedent 

that the Parties shall have received the following (unless waived in writing by the Parties):   

 

a. Resolution of the GRAHA authorizing body the terms and conditions of this Agreement; 

b. Resolution of the Grand Rapids City Council authorizing the approval of the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement;   

c. A favorable written opinion of City of Grand Rapids legal counsel that all necessary approvals, 

including, but not limited to, the Minnesota Department of Department of Management and Budget 

(“MMB”) have been received by the City to move forward with this Agreement.  

 

6. No Joint Venture. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to place the parties in a relationship of 

partners or joint ventures and neither party shall have the power to obligate or bind the other in any 

manner whatsoever. 

 

7. Dispute Resolution. Parties agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a period of 

Thirty (30) days from the date of notice of dispute prior to proceeding to formal dispute resolution or 

exercising their rights under law. 

 
8. State Grant Agreement Requirements.  In addition to the requirements related to the State Grant and the 

State Grant Agreement set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, the provisions set forth in this Section are 

required under the State Grant Agreement. 

 

a. The Parties acknowledge and recognize that this Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions 

of the State Grant Agreement. Accordingly, this Agreement must be approved in writing by the 

Commissioner of Management and Budget (“Commissioner”), and absent such approval it is null 

and void and of no force or effect. The Parties agree to cooperate to obtain all necessary 

approvals and signatures under the State Grant Agreement. 

b. The Parties acknowledge and recognize that the terms, conditions and provisions of the State 

Grant Agreement control over any inconsistent provisions in this Agreement. 

c. The Parties acknowledge that the City is a public body with authority under the Act to own the 

Civic Center and operate the Governmental Program, as defined in the State Grant Agreement. 

d. This Agreement may be terminated by the City if there is an Event of Default by the GRAHA, or 

in the event that the City is no longer authorized by law to own the Property or operate the Civic 

Center. 

e. This Agreement will automatically and immediately terminate upon a termination of the 

Governmental Program, as defined in the State Grant Agreement, or change in such 

Governmental Program that no longer allows the City to continue to own or operate The Civic 

Center for the Governmental Program. The City will give the GRAHA as much notice as possible 

and, to the extent permitted by law, the Parties shall use good faith efforts to enter into a new 

agreement with the same or substantially similar terms as this Agreement. 

f. The GRAHA is prohibited from creating or allowing any voluntary lien or encumbrance or any 

involuntary lien or encumbrance upon the Property, except with the advance written consent of 

the Commissioner. 

g. Any changes, alterations, or modifications to this Agreement must be agreed to, in writing, by the 

Commissioner. 
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9. Compliance as to Bonds. 

 

9.1 Subject to direction from Minnesota Management and Budget, interest on any bonds issued by 

the State for the Project is intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes (“Tax-Exempt Bonds”) and if the City or the Commissioner determines, based upon the 

written notice of nationally recognized bond counsel, that any action under this Agreement 

creates a significant risk that interest on any Tax-Exempt Bonds will not be excludable from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to agree on 

alternative action to avoid such a result. In no event shall the foregoing agreement require any 

Party to amend or modify any material term of this Agreement. 

 

9.2 The GRAHA irrevocably waives any claim for depreciation or investment credit with respect to 

the Property and shall not deduct any payments to the City provided for in this Agreement as rent. 

 

10. REPORTING AND PROGRAM OVERSIGHT 

a. General Documentation.  GRAHA shall promptly submit to City, upon written request, 
any such documentation, information and reports as are needed by City to fulfil its reporting 
requirements under the Grant Agreement. 
b. Initial Report.  Upon execution of this Lease, GRAHA shall provide City with an initial 
program evaluation report to show, among other things, anticipated revenue and expenses. 

 
c. Annual Reporting.  On an annual basis, not later than the date necessary for City to fulfil 
its reporting requirements under Section 2.04 of the Grant Agreement, GRAHA shall submit to 
City the following information (the “Annual Report”):   

A) A report of major activities at the Property for the current fiscal year of GRAHA, 
and a description of how the major activities meet the elements of the Governmental Program. 

B) GRAHA’s annual budget including revenues and expenses for the current fiscal 
year that show that forecast revenues (from all sources) will be equal to or exceed forecast 
program expenses.  

C) GRAHA’s projected budgets for funding operations of the Property for the next 
fiscal year that show that forecast revenues (from all sources) will be equal to or greater than 
forecast program expenses. 
 

11. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party without the written consent of the other 

Party. 

 

12. Modifications/Amendment. Any alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of the 

provisions of this Contract shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, and signed by 

authorized representative of the City and the GRAHA and approved in writing by the Commissioner of 

Minnesota Management and Budget. 

 

13. Records—Availability and Retention. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, the GRAHA agrees that 

the City, the State Auditor, or any of their duly authorized representatives at any time during normal 

business hours and as often as they may reasonably deem necessary, shall have access to and the right to 

examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent to 

the accounting practices and procedures of the GRAHA and involve transactions relating to this Contract. 

The GRAHA agrees to maintain these records for a period of six years from the date of termination of this 

Agreement. 

 
14. Events of Default. An Event of Default includes: the failure of either Party to observe or perform its 

obligations hereunder and the breach or default of this Agreement by either Party. 
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15. Force Majeure. The Parties shall each be excused from performance under this Contract while and to the 

extent that either of them are unable to perform, for any cause beyond its reasonable control. Such causes 

shall include, but not be restricted to fire, storm, flood, earthquake, explosion, war, total or partial failure 

of transportation or delivery facilities, raw materials or supplies, interruption of utilities or power, and any 

act of government or military authority.  In the event either Party is rendered unable wholly or in part by 

force majeure to carry out its obligations under this Contract then the Party affected by force majeure 

shall give written notice with explanation to the other Party immediately. 

 

16. Governing Law. This Contract shall be deemed to have been made and accepted in Itasca County, 

Minnesota, and the laws of the State of Minnesota shall govern any interpretations or constructions of the 

Contract without regard to its choice of law or conflict of laws principles.  

 

17. Data Practices. The Parties acknowledge that this Contract is subject to the requirements of Minnesota’s 

Government Data Practices Act (Act), Minnesota Statutes, Section 13.01 et seq. The GRAHA agrees to 

abide by the applicable provisions of the Act, HIPAA requirements and all other applicable state or 

federal rules, regulations or orders pertaining to privacy or confidentiality. The GRAHA understands that 

all of the data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained or disseminated by the GRAHA in 

performing those functions that the City would perform is subject to the requirements of the Act, and the 

GRAHA must comply with those requirements as if it were a government entity.  This does not create a 

duty on the part of the GRAHA to provide the public with access to public data if the public data is 

available from the City, except as required by the terms of this Contract. 

 

18. No Waiver. Any Party’s failure in any one or more instances to insist upon strict performance of any of 

the terms and conditions of this Contract or to exercise any right herein conferred shall not be construed 

as a waiver or relinquishment of that right or of that Party’s right to assert or rely upon the terms and 

conditions of this Contract. Any express waiver of a term of this Contract shall not be binding and 

effective unless made in writing and properly executed by the waiving Party. 

 

19. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Contract shall not affect the 

validity or enforceability of any other provision.  Any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be deemed 

severed from this Contract to the extent of its invalidity or unenforceability, and this Contract shall be 

construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain that particular provision to the extent of its 

invalidity or unenforceability. 

 

20. Entire Contract. These terms and conditions constitute the entire Contract between the Parties regarding 

the subject matter hereof. All discussions and negotiations are deemed merged in this Contract.   

 

21. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are incorporated into and are made a part of this Amendment.  

 
22. Headings and Captions. Headings and captions contained in this Contract are for convenience only and 

are not intended to alter any of the provisions of this Contract and shall not be used for the interpretation 

of the validity of the Contract or any provision hereof. 

 

23. Survivability. All covenants, indemnities, guarantees, releases, representations and warranties by any 

Party of Parties, and any undischarged obligations of City and the GRAHA arising prior to the expiration 

of this Contract (whether by completion or earlier termination), shall survive such expiration. 

 

24. Execution. This Contract may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts that, when taken 

together, shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same document. The signature of any 

Party to the counterpart shall be deemed a signature to the Contract, and may be appended to, any other 

counterpart. Facsimile and email transmissions of executed signature pages shall be deemed as originals 

and sufficient to bind the executing Party. 
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25. GRAHA's Right of Possession and Use: GRAHA shall have the right to possess and use the IRA Civic 

Center for the purposes of hockey. GRAHA's right to possess and use the IRA Civic Center shall be 

intermittent and confined to those portions of the IRA Civic Center specifically identified in Exhibit A or 

necessary to carry out GRAHA's intended uses as identified in Exhibit A. City and its licensees shall have 

the right to enter upon and use the IRA Civic Center at all times not inconsistent with Exhibit A. GRAHA 

shall at all times comply with all statutes, ordinances, codes and regulations of any governmental 

authority concerning the use of the premises. GRAHA shall not permit any hazardous or dangerous 

activity to be conducted at the IRA Civic Center or any activity which will increase insurance risks for 

premiums on the premises. 

 

26. Schedule of Use:  GRAHA shall submit to City annually before April 1 a schedule of all proposed ice 

uses for the following year, which schedule shall be subject to City’s approval. GRAHA’s ice uses shall 

be given priority scheduling by the City. 

 

27. Supervision, Crowd Control:   

 

a. Safety: GRAHA shall be responsible to summon appropriate medical personnel in the event any 

such persons require medical attention. 

 

b. Crowd Control:  GRAHA shall monitor and oversee spectator activity for the purpose of 

maintaining orderly behavior and compliance with any policies for the use of the IRA Civic 

Center which may be promulgated by City from time-to-time. 

 

28. Parking Lot:  GRAHA, its participants, staff and spectators shall have the right to use the IRA Civic 

Center parking lot in conjunction with GRAHA’s activities and events at the IRA Civic Center, subject to 

parking lot utilization policies which may be promulgated by City from time-to-time.  Said use shall be in 

common with other invitees of City who may be using the IRA Civic Center. 

 

ARTICLE II – LEASE 
 

1. Lease:  GRAHA shall pay to City monthly lease payments in accordance with the following table: 

 

Period Base Hourly Rate Maximum Payment 

July 1, 2024, through June 30, 

2025 

$154/hour $240,000 

 

 

 

2. Usage:  GRAHA may use the premises only for the purposes described in this Agreement and shall not 

sublet or otherwise rent the ice to the public or any other outside group. 

 

3. Responsibilities of GRAHA:   

 

a. GRAHA shall be responsible for the supervision and cleaning of the Pavilion Warming Shack, 

Mondays through Fridays from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. during the outdoor skating season. 

b. Should the Civic Center indoor ice arena be booked, GRAHA shall have priority scheduling in 

the Miner’s Pavilion at no charge. 
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c. GRAHA shall not do or permit to be done anything which will invalidate or increase the cost of 

any fire and extended coverage insurance policy covering the premises and will not allow the 

premises to be used for any immoral, unlawful or objectionable purpose. 

d. GRAHA coaches will be responsible for opening the facility for early bird practice (6:30 a.m.) 

throughout the season. Designated coaches will be given keys to open the facility and for turning 

on lights. Coaches agree to only use assigned keys for their scheduled early bird practices and for 

no other time to enter the facility. It is understood that there will not be City staff present at this 

time. 

 

4. Lease Renegotiations:  Lease renegotiations due to the increase or alteration in use by GRAHA shall be 

conducted in accord with this Section.  For the 2025-2026 lease period, the parties shall conduct any 

renegotiations during the month of March 2025.  If the parties are unable to reach agreement after any 

such renegotiation, then this agreement shall terminate as of June 30, 2025.   

5. Within thirty (30) days of the end of each 12 month period in the Lease term, starting on the Effective 

Date of the Lease (each such 12 month period shall be referred to herein as “Lease Year”), City agrees to 

provide the Commissioner of the Department of Management and Budget, his or her successor or assigns, 

a reconciliation of all rent received under all use agreements for the Property and the operating and 

maintenance expenses for the Property for the then just-completed Lease Year (“Reconciliation 

Statement”).  If for any Lease Year the rent collected for Property for the prior Lease Year exceeds the 

operating and maintenance expenses for the Property for such prior Lease Year, based upon the City’s 

Reconciliation Statement, then City shall immediately refund to GRAHA any overpayment. GRAHA 

shall provide evidence of such refund to the Commissioner of the Department of Management and 

Budget, his or her successor or assigns, within 30 days of the end of such Lease Year.  

 

 
ARTICLE III – MAINTENANCE, REPAIR 

 

1. Maintenance, Repair:    City shall at all times during the term of this Lease Agreement, at City’s own cost 

and expense, repair and maintain the IRA Civic Center, any improvements or alterations thereto, all 

fixtures and equipment therein, and the exterior of the building and the parking lot, except as otherwise 

provided in this Article. 

 

2. Damages: GRAHA shall reimburse City for the reasonable cost to repair and restore the IRA Civic Center 

in the event of damage to the premises caused by negligence on the part of participants, coaches or other 

staff, or spectators who are in or upon the IRA Civic Center in conjunction with any of GRAHA's 

activities or events.   

 

3. Clean up: Although City retains ultimate responsibility for maintenance, GRAHA shall perform routine 

clean up after its use of the premises, including proper storage of all equipment, pick up and proper 

disposal of litter.  

 

4. Alterations, Improvements: GRAHA shall not make alterations or improvements to the premises without 

the advance written consent of City.  
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ARTICLE IV -UTILITIES 
 

1. City shall furnish such heat, air conditioning, water, sewer, electricity and garbage collection as shall be 

necessary, in City's judgment for the comfortable use and occupancy of the premises under normal 

conditions.  

 

2. GRAHA shall conserve heat, water, and electricity, and shall not neglect or misuse, water fixtures, 

electric lights, or other equipment or facilities furnished in conjunction with City's provision of utilities 

pursuant to this Article.  

ARTICLE V - TERM 
 

1. The term of this Lease Agreement shall be from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, except that this Lease 

Agreement may terminate pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

  

2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, City is not required to renew this Lease with 

GRAHA, and may at that time, in its sole option and discretion (i) decide to self-operate the 

Governmental Program in the Property, (ii) contract with some other entity to operate the Governmental 

Program in the Property, or (iii) determine that the Property is no longer needed or useful for the 

operation of the Governmental Program and sell its interest in the Property. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI - DEFAULTS 
 

1. On the occurrence of either of the following: (a) a lease payment from the GRAHA to the City shall 

remain unpaid in whole or in part for more than thirty (30) days after it is due and payable; or (b) the 

GRAHA's violation or default in any of covenants, agreements, stipulations or conditions herein, and such 

violation or default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the City of 

such violation or default; then it shall be optional for the City to declare this Lease Agreement forfeited 

and the terms, including GRAHA's right of use and possession of the IRA Civic Center, ended.  

 

2. City shall not be deemed to be in default under this Lease Agreement until the GRAHA has given the 

City written notice specifying the nature of the default, and the City does not cure such default within 

thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice or within such reasonable time thereafter as may be necessary 

to cure such default where such default is of such character as to reasonably require more than thirty (30) 

days to cure.  

 

ARTICLE VII - ASSIGNMENT, SUBLETTING 
 

1. GRAHA shall not assign any rights or duties under this Lease Agreement or sublet the leased premises, or 

any part thereof, nor allow any other person to occupy or use the leased premises without the prior written 

consent of City, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld. A consent to one assignment, sublease 

or other occupation or use by any other person or entity shall not be a consent to any subsequent 

assignment, sublease, occupation or use by persons other than GRAHA. This Lease Agreement shall not 

be assignable, as to the interest of GRAHA, by operation of law, without the written consent of City.  If 

City does give consent to assignment, subletting or occupation by another, such consent shall not release 

GRAHA from its obligations hereunder unless a release is specifically given by City.  
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ARTICLE VIII - CITY'S ACCESS 
 

1. City, its agents and employees shall have the right to enter the leased premises upon reasonable advance 

notice for the purpose of inspecting, repairing, altering or improving the leased premises, or for any other 

purpose not inconsistent with Exhibit A. There shall be no diminution of rent and no liability on the part 

of City by reason of any inconvenience, annoyance or injury caused by City's reasonable exercise of the 

rights reserved by City in this Article.  

 

ARTICLE IX - FIRE AND OTHER CASUALTY 
 

1. If during the term of this Lease Agreement the leased premises or any portion thereof shall be damaged or 

destroyed by fire or other casualty so that the said leased premises or a portion thereof shall thereby be 

rendered unfit for use or occupation, City shall have the option to either (a) repair such damage with all 

reasonable diligence and restore the premises to substantially the condition immediately prior to such 

event, and until said premises shall have been duly repaired and restored, the rent herein reserved, or a 

just and proportionate part thereof, according to the nature and extent of the injury which has been 

sustained, shall be abated, or (b) City may terminate this lease and end the term thereof, and in case of 

such termination, the rent shall be paid to the date of such fire or casualty and all other further obligations 

on the part of either party hereto shall cease.  

 

ARTICLE X - HOLDING OVER 
 

1. Any holding over by GRAHA of the leased premises after the expiration or termination of the term of this 

Lease Agreement without consent of City shall constitute a default by GRAHA hereunder and GRAHA 

shall be liable and responsible for all damages and costs sustained by City thereby. Said holding over 

shall constitute GRAHA to be a tenant from month-to-month, subject to all the conditions, provisions and 

obligations of this Lease Agreement and so far as the same can be applicable to a month-to-month 

tenancy.  

 

 

ARTICLE XI - INDEMNIFICATION, INSURANCE 
 

1. Indemnity:  GRAHA shall protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify City against any and all claims, 

actions, losses, costs, expenses and liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees for defense, arising out 

of or in any way related to GRAHA's use of the premises or any of GRAHA's activities or events, save 

when said claim, action, loss, cost, expense or liability is proximately caused solely and exclusively by 

the negligence or breach of this Lease Agreement by City. In case of any action or proceeding brought 

against City by reason of a claim covered by this Agreement, upon notice from City, GRAHA covenants 

to defend such action or proceeding by counsel reasonable satisfactory to City. 

  

2. Insurance:  GRAHA shall maintain through the term of this Lease Agreement a policy of comprehensive 

general liability insurance with limits of at least $1,000,000 per person, $1,000,000 per occurrence, or 

City's statutory limits of liability pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, whichever is greater.  As to each such 

policy City shall be named as an additional insured.  Said policy of insurance shall be evidenced by a 

certificate of insurance which shall be placed on file with City by GRAHA prior to commencement of 

occupancy of the premises by GRAHA. Each such policy or certificate shall contain a valid provision or 

endorsement that the policy may not be cancelled, terminated, changed or modified without giving City 

thirty (30) days advance written notice of such change. The policy shall also contain a contractual liability 
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endorsement evidencing insurance coverage for GRAHA's indemnification obligation to City under this 

Lease Agreement.  

 

3. Liability to GRAHA: City shall not be liable to GRAHA or to any employee, student or invitee of 

GRAHA for any claim or cause of action arising out of death, injury, damage to property occurring in, on 

or about the leased premises except for damages attributable exclusively to the negligence or breach of 

this Lease Agreement by City, its employees or agents, by a court of competent jurisdiction.  

 

4. Liability Limits Not Waived:  Nothing in this Article XI shall cause either City or GRAHA to be subject 

to liability in excess of any statutory limits of liability applicable to City or GRAHA. 

 

ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Notices: All notices herein provided for shall be sent by registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 

requested, and shall be deemed to have been given when sent, and if by GRAHA to City shall be 

addressed to City at the place herein provided for the payment of rent, and if given by City to GRAHA 

shall be addressed to: President, GRAHA, PO Box 422, Grand Rapids, MN 55744. 

 

2. Waiver, Modification: No waiver of any condition, covenant, right or option of this Lease by City shall be 

deemed to imply or constitute a further waiver of any like condition or covenant of said Lease Agreement. 

No amendment or modification of this Lease Agreement shall be valid or binding unless expressed in 

writing and executed by duly authorized representatives of the parties in the same manner as the 

execution of this Lease.  

 

3. Representations: Neither City nor any agent or employee of City has made any representations or 

promises with respect to the leased premises or the IRA Civic Center except as herein expressly set forth, 

and no rights, privileges, easements or licenses are required by GRAHA except as herein expressly set 

forth.  

 

4. Cumulative Rights: No right or remedy herein conferred on and reserved to the GRAHA or the City is 

intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy hereof provided by law, but each shall be 

cumulative in addition to every other right or remedy given herein or not or hereafter existing by law or in 

equity or by statute.  

 

5. Approvals: Wherever the City's or the GRAHA's approval or consent shall be required herein, such 

approval or consent shall not be arbitrarily or unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld and shall be 

deemed to have been given, unless within twenty (20) days of the request therefor, the City of the 

GRAHA, as appropriate, notifies the requesting party that the City or the GRAHA, as appropriate, is 

denying such approval or consent, stating in such notice that reasonable grounds therefor.  

 

6. Successors, Assigns: This Lease Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the 

parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. However, nothing in this paragraph shall be 

deemed to avoid the necessity of GRAHA obtaining written consent from City to assign or sublet this 

Lease Agreement.  

 

7. No Partnership: Nothing contained in this Lease Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a 

partnership or joint venture of or between City and GRAHA or to create any other relationship between 

the parties hereto other than that of City and GRAHA.  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the day and year first above written.  

 

      CITY:  CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS 

 

 

      BY:          

       Its Mayor 

 

      BY:           

       Its City Clerk 

 

      Date:  __________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

      GRAHA:  

 

      BY:          

       Jon Toivonen 

       Its President 

 

           

Date: ___________________________________________ 
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SNSC Board Member _________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

City Council Member ________introduced the following resolution, City Council Member _________seconded 

the motion and moved its adoption: 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING IRA CIVIC CENTER 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, by and between the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota a municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and Star of the North Skating Club, Grand Rapids, Minnesota, 

hereinafter referred to as the “SNSC”, entered into this _____ day of _______, 2024. 

. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, City owns and operates the IRA Civic Center; and  

 

WHEREAS, School has determined that the IRA Civic Center is a suitable facility for conducting SNSC's 

figure skating programming; and  

 

WHEREAS, SNSC wishes to lease the IRA Civic Center, on occasion in its entirety and on other 

occasions specific portions thereof; and  

 

WHEREAS, City and SNSC wish to enter into this Lease Agreement for the purpose of establishing the 

terms and conditions pursuant to which SNSC shall lease the IRA Civic Center or portions thereof;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable mutual consideration, City and SNSC mutually agree as 

follows:  
 

ARTICLE I - AGREEMENT TO LEASE 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is a Statutory City organized under Minnesota Statute Chapter 412, with the 
authority to provide for the economic development and general welfare of the City, in accordance with statutory 
authority, including the ability to enter contracts; and Lease Agreement. 
 
 WHEREAS, in consideration of and subject to the mutual covenants, conditions and obligations of this 
Lease Agreement to be kept and performed, including the obligation to lease, City does hereby lease to SNSC the 
IRA Civic Center solely to the extent specified in this Lease Agreement.  

 

1. In consideration of and subject to the mutual covenants, conditions and obligations of this Lease 

Agreement to be kept and performed, including the obligation to lease, City does hereby lease to SNSC 

the IRA Civic Center solely to the extent specified in this Lease Agreement.  

 

2. The City is in the process of remodeling the IRA Civic Center on City-owned real property located at 

1401 Third Avenue NW, Grand Rapids, MN 55744 (the “Property”); and 

 

3. Pursuant to 2020 Laws of Minnesota, Chapter 3, Art. 1, Section 21, Subdivision 21, the City was awarded 

a grant from the State of Minnesota in the amount of $5 million (the “State Grant”) for the purpose of 

design, construction, and equipping of capital improvements to the IRA Civic Center, thereon (the 

“Project”), as set forth in that certain Grant Agreement – Construction Grant for the IRA Civic Center, 

SPAP-20-0014-P-FY23, dated October 22, 2020 (the “State Grant Agreement”). 

 

4. Under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 471.15 to 471.191, the City is authorized to remodel 

the Property as a civic center, and to thereafter expend funds for the operation and       maintenance of the 
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civic center and the operation of the Governmental Program (as defined in the State Grant Agreement) as 

a part of its program of public recreation, and to directly operate such program; and 

 

 

5. Conditions Precedent. All obligations of the Parties set forth herein are subject to the conditions precedent 

that the Parties shall have received the following (unless waived in writing by the Parties):   

 

a. Resolution of the SNSC authorizing body the terms and conditions of this Agreement; 

b. Resolution of the Grand Rapids City Council authorizing the approval of the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement;   

c. A favorable written opinion of City of Grand Rapids legal counsel that all necessary approvals, 

including, but not limited to, the Minnesota Department of Department of Management and Budget 

(“MMB”) have been received by the City to move forward with this Agreement.  

 

6. No Joint Venture. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to place the parties in a relationship of 

partners or joint ventures and neither party shall have the power to obligate or bind the other in any 

manner whatsoever. 

 

7. Dispute Resolution. Parties agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a period of 

Thirty (30) days from the date of notice of dispute prior to proceeding to formal dispute resolution or 

exercising their rights under law. 

 
8. State Grant Agreement Requirements.  In addition to the requirements related to the State Grant and the 

State Grant Agreement set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, the provisions set forth in this Section are 

required under the State Grant Agreement. 

 

a. The Parties acknowledge and recognize that this Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions 

of the State Grant Agreement. Accordingly, this Agreement must be approved in writing by the 

Commissioner of Management and Budget (“Commissioner”), and absent such approval it is null 

and void and of no force or effect. The Parties agree to cooperate to obtain all necessary 

approvals and signatures under the State Grant Agreement. 

b. The Parties acknowledge and recognize that the terms, conditions and provisions of the State 

Grant Agreement control over any inconsistent provisions in this Agreement. 

c. The Parties acknowledge that the City is a public body with authority under the Act to own the 

Civic Center and operate the Governmental Program, as defined in the State Grant Agreement. 

d. This Agreement may be terminated by the City if there is an Event of Default by the SNSC, or in 

the event that the City is no longer authorized by law to own the Property or operate the Civic 

Center. 

e. This Agreement will automatically and immediately terminate upon a termination of the 

Governmental Program, as defined in the State Grant Agreement, or change in such 

Governmental Program that no longer allows the City to continue to own or operate The Civic 

Center for the Governmental Program. The City will give the SNSC as much notice as possible 

and, to the extent permitted by law, the Parties shall use good faith efforts to enter into a new 

agreement with the same or substantially similar terms as this Agreement. 

f. The SNSC is prohibited from creating or allowing any voluntary lien or encumbrance or any 

involuntary lien or encumbrance upon the Property, except with the advance written consent of 

the Commissioner. 

g. Any changes, alterations, or modifications to this Agreement must be agreed to, in writing, by the 

Commissioner. 
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9. Compliance as to Bonds. 

 

9.1 Subject to direction from Minnesota Management and Budget, interest on any bonds issued by 

the State for the Project is intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes (“Tax-Exempt Bonds”) and if the City or the Commissioner determines, based upon the 

written notice of nationally recognized bond counsel, that any action under this Agreement 

creates a significant risk that interest on any Tax-Exempt Bonds will not be excludable from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to agree on 

alternative action to avoid such a result. In no event shall the foregoing agreement require any 

Party to amend or modify any material term of this Agreement. 

 

9.2 The SNSC irrevocably waives any claim for depreciation or investment credit with respect to the 

Property and shall not deduct any payments to the City provided for in this Agreement as rent. 

 

10. REPORTING AND PROGRAM OVERSIGHT 

a. General Documentation.  SNSC shall promptly submit to City, upon written request, any 
such documentation, information and reports as are needed by City to fulfil its reporting 
requirements under the Grant Agreement. 
b. Initial Report.  Upon execution of this Lease, SNSC shall provide City with an initial 
program evaluation report to show, among other things, anticipated revenue and expenses. 

 
c. Annual Reporting.  On an annual basis, not later than the date necessary for City to fulfil 
its reporting requirements under Section 2.04 of the Grant Agreement, SNSC shall submit to City 
the following information (the “Annual Report”):   

A) A report of major activities at the Property for the current fiscal year of SNSC, 
and a description of how the major activities meet the elements of the Governmental Program. 

B) SNSC’s annual budget including revenues and expenses for the current fiscal 
year that show that forecast revenues (from all sources) will be equal to or exceed forecast 
program expenses.  

C) SNSC’s projected budgets for funding operations of the Property for the next 
fiscal year that show that forecast revenues (from all sources) will be equal to or greater than 
forecast program expenses. 
 

11. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party without the written consent of the other 

Party. 

 

12. Modifications/Amendment. Any alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of the 

provisions of this Contract shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, and signed by 

authorized representative of the City and the SNSC and approved in writing by the Commissioner of 

Minnesota Management and Budget. 

 

13. Records—Availability and Retention. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, the SNSC agrees that the 

City, the State Auditor, or any of their duly authorized representatives at any time during normal business 

hours and as often as they may reasonably deem necessary, shall have access to and the right to examine, 

audit, excerpt, and transcribe any books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent to the 

accounting practices and procedures of the SNSC and involve transactions relating to this Contract. The 

SNSC agrees to maintain these records for a period of six years from the date of termination of this 

Agreement. 

 
14. Events of Default. An Event of Default includes: the failure of either Party to observe or perform its 

obligations hereunder and the breach or default of this Agreement by either Party. 
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15. Force Majeure. The Parties shall each be excused from performance under this Contract while and to the 

extent that either of them are unable to perform, for any cause beyond its reasonable control. Such causes 

shall include, but not be restricted to fire, storm, flood, earthquake, explosion, war, total or partial failure 

of transportation or delivery facilities, raw materials or supplies, interruption of utilities or power, and any 

act of government or military authority.  In the event either Party is rendered unable wholly or in part by 

force majeure to carry out its obligations under this Contract then the Party affected by force majeure 

shall give written notice with explanation to the other Party immediately. 

 

16. Governing Law. This Contract shall be deemed to have been made and accepted in Itasca County, 

Minnesota, and the laws of the State of Minnesota shall govern any interpretations or constructions of the 

Contract without regard to its choice of law or conflict of laws principles.  

 

17. Data Practices. The Parties acknowledge that this Contract is subject to the requirements of Minnesota’s 

Government Data Practices Act (Act), Minnesota Statutes, Section 13.01 et seq. The SNSC agrees to 

abide by the applicable provisions of the Act, HIPAA requirements and all other applicable state or 

federal rules, regulations or orders pertaining to privacy or confidentiality. The SNSC understands that all 

of the data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained or disseminated by the SNSC in 

performing those functions that the City would perform is subject to the requirements of the Act, and the 

SNSC must comply with those requirements as if it were a government entity.  This does not create a duty 

on the part of the SNSC to provide the public with access to public data if the public data is available 

from the City, except as required by the terms of this Contract. 

 

18. No Waiver. Any Party’s failure in any one or more instances to insist upon strict performance of any of 

the terms and conditions of this Contract or to exercise any right herein conferred shall not be construed 

as a waiver or relinquishment of that right or of that Party’s right to assert or rely upon the terms and 

conditions of this Contract. Any express waiver of a term of this Contract shall not be binding and 

effective unless made in writing and properly executed by the waiving Party. 

 

19. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Contract shall not affect the 

validity or enforceability of any other provision.  Any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be deemed 

severed from this Contract to the extent of its invalidity or unenforceability, and this Contract shall be 

construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain that particular provision to the extent of its 

invalidity or unenforceability. 

 

20. Entire Contract. These terms and conditions constitute the entire Contract between the Parties regarding 

the subject matter hereof. All discussions and negotiations are deemed merged in this Contract.   

 

21. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are incorporated into and are made a part of this Amendment.  

 
22. Headings and Captions. Headings and captions contained in this Contract are for convenience only and 

are not intended to alter any of the provisions of this Contract and shall not be used for the interpretation 

of the validity of the Contract or any provision hereof. 

 

23. Survivability. All covenants, indemnities, guarantees, releases, representations and warranties by any 

Party of Parties, and any undischarged obligations of City and the SNSC arising prior to the expiration of 

this Contract (whether by completion or earlier termination), shall survive such expiration. 

 

24. Execution. This Contract may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts that, when taken 

together, shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same document. The signature of any 

Party to the counterpart shall be deemed a signature to the Contract, and may be appended to, any other 

counterpart. Facsimile and email transmissions of executed signature pages shall be deemed as originals 

and sufficient to bind the executing Party. 
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25. SNSC's Right of Possession and Use: SNSC shall have the right to possess and use the IRA Civic Center 

for the purposes, to the extent and at the times set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference. SNSC's right to possess and use the IRA Civic Center shall be intermittent and 

confined to those portions of the IRA Civic Center specifically identified in Exhibit A or necessary to 

carry out SNSC's intended uses as identified in Exhibit A. City and its licensees shall have the right to 

enter upon and use the IRA Civic Center at all times not inconsistent with Exhibit A. SNSC shall at all 

times comply with all statutes, ordinances, codes and regulations of any governmental authority 

concerning the use of the premises. SNSC shall not permit any hazardous or dangerous activity to be 

conducted at the IRA Civic Center or any activity which will increase insurance risks for premiums on the 

premises. 

 

26. Schedule of Use:  SNSC shall submit to City annually before April 1 a schedule of all proposed ice uses 

for the following year, which schedule shall be subject to City’s approval. ISD 318 and GRAHA’s ice 

uses shall be given priority scheduling by the City. 

 

27. Supervision, Crowd Control:   

 

a. Safety: SNSC shall be responsible to summon appropriate medical personnel in the event any 

such persons require medical attention. 

 

b. Crowd Control:  SNSC shall monitor and oversee spectator activity for the purpose of 

maintaining orderly behavior and compliance with any policies for the use of the IRA Civic 

Center which may be promulgated by City from time-to-time. 

 

28. Parking Lot:  SNSC, its participants, staff and spectators shall have the right to use the IRA Civic Center 

parking lot in conjunction with School’s activities and events at the IRA Civic Center, subject to parking 

lot utilization policies which may be promulgated by City from time-to-time.  Said use shall be in 

common with other invitees of City who may be using the IRA Civic Center. 

 

29. Concessions: City retains the exclusive right to operate all concessions at the IRA Civic Center, either 

through representatives of City or City’s assignees. This Lease Agreement does not confer upon SNSC 

the right to operate concessions at the IRA Civic Center. 

 
ARTICLE II – LEASE 

 
1. Lease:  SNSC shall pay to City monthly lease payments in accordance with the following table: 

 

Period Base Hourly Rate 

July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 $154/hour 

 

 

 

2. Usage:  SNSC may use the premises only for the purposes described in this Agreement and shall not 

sublet or otherwise rent the ice to the public or any other outside group. 

 

3. Lease Renegotiations:  Lease renegotiations due to the increase or alteration in use by SNSC shall be 

conducted in accord with this Section.  For the 2025-2026 lease period, the parties shall conduct any 
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renegotiations during the month of March 2025.  If the parties are unable to reach agreement after any 

such renegotiation, then this agreement shall terminate as of June 30, 2025.   

4. Within thirty (30) days of the end of each 12 month period in the Lease term, starting on the Effective 

Date of the Lease (each such 12 month period shall be referred to herein as “Lease Year”), City agrees to 

provide the Commissioner of the Department of Management and Budget, his or her successor or assigns, 

a reconciliation of all rent received under all use agreements for the Property and the operating and 

maintenance expenses for the Property for the then just-completed Lease Year (“Reconciliation 

Statement”).  If for any Lease Year the rent collected for Property for the prior Lease Year exceeds the 

operating and maintenance expenses for the Property for such prior Lease Year, based upon the City’s 

Reconciliation Statement, then City shall immediately refund to SNSC any overpayment. SNSC shall 

provide evidence of such refund to the Commissioner of the Department of Management and Budget, his 

or her successor or assigns, within 30 days of the end of such Lease Year.  

 

 
ARTICLE III – MAINTENANCE, REPAIR 

 

1. Maintenance, Repair:    City shall at all times during the term of this Lease Agreement, at City’s own cost 

and expense, repair and maintain the IRA Civic Center, any improvements or alterations thereto, all 

fixtures and equipment therein, and the exterior of the building and the parking lot, except as otherwise 

provided in this Article. 

 

2. Damages: SNSC shall reimburse City for the reasonable cost to repair and restore the IRA Civic Center in 

the event of damage to the premises caused by negligence on the part of participants, coaches or other 

staff, or spectators who are in or upon the IRA Civic Center in conjunction with any of SNSC's activities 

or events.   

 

3. Clean up: Although City retains ultimate responsibility for maintenance, SNSC shall perform routine 

clean up after its use of the premises, including proper storage of all equipment, pick up and proper 

disposal of litter.  

 

4. Alterations, Improvements: SNSC shall not make alterations or improvements to the premises without the 

advance written consent of City.  
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ARTICLE IV -UTILITIES 
 

1. City shall furnish such heat, air conditioning, water, sewer, electricity and garbage collection as shall be 

necessary, in City's judgment for the comfortable use and occupancy of the premises under normal 

conditions.  

 

2. SNSC shall conserve heat, water, and electricity, and shall not neglect or misuse, water fixtures, electric 

lights, or other equipment or facilities furnished in conjunction with City's provision of utilities pursuant 

to this Article.  

ARTICLE V - TERM 
 

1. The term of this Lease Agreement shall be from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, except that this Lease 

Agreement may terminate pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

  

2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, City is not required to renew this Lease with 

SNSC, and may at that time, in its sole option and discretion (i) decide to self-operate the Governmental 

Program in the Property, (ii) contract with some other entity to operate the Governmental Program in the 

Property, or (iii) determine that the Property is no longer needed or useful for the operation of the 

Governmental Program and sell its interest in the Property. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI - DEFAULTS 
 

1. On the occurrence of either of the following: (a) a lease payment from the SNSC to the City shall remain 

unpaid in whole or in part for more than thirty (30) days after it is due and payable; or (b) the SNSC's 

violation or default in any of covenants, agreements, stipulations or conditions herein, and such violation 

or default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the City of such 

violation or default; then it shall be optional for the City to declare this Lease Agreement forfeited and the 

terms, including SNSC's right of use and possession of the IRA Civic Center, ended.  

 

2. City shall not be deemed to be in default under this Lease Agreement until the SNSC has given the City 

written notice specifying the nature of the default, and the City does not cure such default within thirty 

(30) days after receipt of such notice or within such reasonable time thereafter as may be necessary to 

cure such default where such default is of such character as to reasonably require more than thirty (30) 

days to cure.  

 

ARTICLE VII - ASSIGNMENT, SUBLETTING 
 

1. SNSC shall not assign any rights or duties under this Lease Agreement or sublet the leased premises, or 

any part thereof, nor allow any other person to occupy or use the leased premises without the prior written 

consent of City, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld. A consent to one assignment, sublease 

or other occupation or use by any other person or entity shall not be a consent to any subsequent 

assignment, sublease, occupation or use by persons other than School. This Lease Agreement shall not be 

assignable, as to the interest of SNSC, by operation of law, without the written consent of City.  If City 

does give consent to assignment, subletting or occupation by another, such consent shall not release 

SNSC from its obligations hereunder unless a release is specifically given by City.  
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ARTICLE VIII - CITY'S ACCESS 
 

1. City, its agents and employees shall have the right to enter the leased premises upon reasonable advance 

notice for the purpose of inspecting, repairing, altering or improving the leased premises, or for any other 

purpose not inconsistent with Exhibit A. There shall be no diminution of rent and no liability on the part 

of City by reason of any inconvenience, annoyance or injury caused by City's reasonable exercise of the 

rights reserved by City in this Article.  

 

ARTICLE IX - FIRE AND OTHER CASUALTY 
 

1. If during the term of this Lease Agreement the leased premises or any portion thereof shall be damaged or 

destroyed by fire or other casualty so that the said leased premises or a portion thereof shall thereby be 

rendered unfit for use or occupation, City shall have the option to either (a) repair such damage with all 

reasonable diligence and restore the premises to substantially the condition immediately prior to such 

event, and until said premises shall have been duly repaired and restored, the rent herein reserved, or a 

just and proportionate part thereof, according to the nature and extent of the injury which has been 

sustained, shall be abated, or (b) City may terminate this lease and end the term thereof, and in case of 

such termination, the rent shall be paid to the date of such fire or casualty and all other further obligations 

on the part of either party hereto shall cease.  

 

ARTICLE X - HOLDING OVER 
 

1. Any holding over by SNSC of the leased premises after the expiration or termination of the term of this 

Lease Agreement without consent of City shall constitute a default by SNSC hereunder and SNSC shall 

be liable and responsible for all damages and costs sustained by City thereby. Said holding over shall 

constitute SNSC to be a tenant from month-to-month, subject to all the conditions, provisions and 

obligations of this Lease Agreement and so far as the same can be applicable to a month-to-month 

tenancy.  

 

 

ARTICLE XI - INDEMNIFICATION, INSURANCE 
 

1. Indemnity:  SNSC shall protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify City against any and all claims, 

actions, losses, costs, expenses and liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees for defense, arising out 

of or in any way related to SNSC's use of the premises or any of SNSC's activities or events, save when 

said claim, action, loss, cost, expense or liability is proximately caused solely and exclusively by the 

negligence or breach of this Lease Agreement by City. In case of any action or proceeding brought 

against City by reason of a claim covered by this Agreement, upon notice from City, SNSC covenants to 

defend such action or proceeding by counsel reasonable satisfactory to City. 

  

2. Insurance:  SNSC shall maintain through the term of this Lease Agreement a policy of comprehensive 

general liability insurance with limits of at least $1,000,000 per person, $1,000,000 per occurrence, or 

City's statutory limits of liability pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, whichever is greater.  As to each such 

policy City shall be named as an additional insured.  Said policy of insurance shall be evidenced by a 

certificate of insurance which shall be placed on file with City by SNSC prior to commencement of 

occupancy of the premises by SNSC. Each such policy or certificate shall contain a valid provision or 

endorsement that the policy may not be cancelled, terminated, changed or modified without giving City 

thirty (30) days advance written notice of such change. The policy shall also contain a contractual liability 

87

Item 13.



 -9- 

endorsement evidencing insurance coverage for SNSC's indemnification obligation to City under this 

Lease Agreement.  

 

3. Liability to SNSC: City shall not be liable to SNSC or to any employee, student or invitee of SNSC for 

any claim or cause of action arising out of death, injury, damage to property occurring in, on or about the 

leased premises except for damages attributable exclusively to the negligence or breach of this Lease 

Agreement by City, its employees or agents, by a court of competent jurisdiction.  

 

4. Liability Limits Not Waived:  Nothing in this Article XI shall cause either City or SNSC to be subject to 

liability in excess of any statutory limits of liability applicable to City or SNSC. 

 

ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Notices: All notices herein provided for shall be sent by registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 

requested, and shall be deemed to have been given when sent, and if by SNSC to City shall be addressed 

to City at the place herein provided for the payment of rent, and if given by City to SNSC shall be 

addressed to: President, SNSC, PO Box 111, Grand Rapids, MN 55744-0111. 

 

2. Waiver, Modification: No waiver of any condition, covenant, right or option of this Lease by City shall be 

deemed to imply or constitute a further waiver of any like condition or covenant of said Lease Agreement. 

No amendment or modification of this Lease Agreement shall be valid or binding unless expressed in 

writing and executed by duly authorized representatives of the parties in the same manner as the 

execution of this Lease.  

 

3. Representations: Neither City nor any agent or employee of City has made any representations or 

promises with respect to the leased premises or the IRA Civic Center except as herein expressly set forth, 

and no rights, privileges, easements or licenses are required by SNSC except as herein expressly set forth.  

 

4. Cumulative Rights: No right or remedy herein conferred on and reserved to the SNSC or the City is 

intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy hereof provided by law, but each shall be 

cumulative in addition to every other right or remedy given herein or not or hereafter existing by law or in 

equity or by statute.  

 

5. Approvals: Wherever the City's or the SNSC's approval or consent shall be required herein, such approval 

or consent shall not be arbitrarily or unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld and shall be deemed 

to have been given, unless within twenty (20) days of the request therefor, the City of the SNSC, as 

appropriate, notifies the requesting party that the City or the SNSC, as appropriate, is denying such 

approval or consent, stating in such notice that reasonable grounds therefor.  

 

6. Successors, Assigns: This Lease Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the 

parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. However, nothing in this paragraph shall be 

deemed to avoid the necessity of SNSC obtaining written consent from City to assign or sublet this Lease 

Agreement.  

 

7. No Partnership: Nothing contained in this Lease Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a 

partnership or joint venture of or between City and SNSC or to create any other relationship between the 

parties hereto other than that of City and SNSC.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the day and year first above written.  
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      CITY:  CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS 

 

 

      BY:          

       Its Mayor 

 

      BY:           

       Its City Clerk 

 

      Date:  __________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

      SNSC:  

 

      BY:          

 

       Its         

 

      BY:           

 

       Its         

       

Date: ___________________________________________ 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider accepting the resignation of Roger Mischke from the Pokegama 

Golf Board 

PREPARED BY: Kimberly Gibeau 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Roger Michke has submitted his resignation from the Pokegama Golf Board.  This creates a 

vacancy for a term through March 1, 2027 for a resident member.  Staff is recommending 

accepting the resignation and authorizing the process for filling the vacancy.  

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to accept the resignation of Roger Mischke from the Pokegama Golf Board and 

authorize staff to begin the process of filling the vacancy.   
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider approving change order for Yanmar Arena Project 

PREPARED BY: Glen Hodgson 

 

BACKGROUND: 

One change order related to the Yanmar Arena project is presented for Council approval. 

 
Change Order 17 for Work Scope 8 (Electrical) with Hart Electric: 

 Provides for labor and materials necessary to install motion sensor switches for exhaust 
fans and lighting in the “north restrooms.” 

 Increases the Hart Electric contract by $1,508.53. 
 
Sufficient funds remain in the project contingency to cover this increase. 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion approving this change order. 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider approving final payment in the amount of $36,409.30 for Work 

Scope 4 on the Civic Center Project 

PREPARED BY: Glen Hodgson 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The contract for Work Scope 4 (Roofing) with Thelen Heating and Roofing is complete and 

ready for final payment.  Final payment has been recommended by ICS, and I concur with that 

recommendation. 

The amount of this final payment is $36,409.30. 

Original Contract Amount = $728,000.00 

Final Contract Amount = $728,395.00 

No balancing change order is required for this contract.  Previous change orders have brought the 

final contract amount to the number stated above.   

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion approving final payment in the amount of $36,409.30 for Work Scope 4 on the 

Civic Center Project. 
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May 9, 2024 

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, 
and Citizens of the City of Grand Rapids: 

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the City of Grand Rapids for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2023, is hereby submitted. Minnesota State Statutes require that local governments publish within six months of the close of 
each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. This requirement has been met by the engagement of the firm of Redpath and Company, Ltd. and their report is 
included in the financial section of this report. 

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Grand Rapids.  Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report. To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of Grand Rapids has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse 
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City of Grand Rapids’ financial statements in 
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Grand Rapids’ 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that 
the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The City of Grand Rapids’ financial statements have been audited by Redpath and Company, Ltd., a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the 
City of Grand Rapids for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit 
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statement, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based on the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for 
rendering an unmodified (“clean”) opinion that the City of Grand Rapids’ financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2023, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first 
component of the financial section of this report. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a 
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complement this letter of 
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Government 

The Village of Grand Rapids was incorporated on June 11, 1891, and became a statutory City on January 9, 1974.  The City 
of Grand Rapids, the Itasca County seat, is located 180 miles north of Minneapolis and St. Paul, Minnesota, in the north 
central part of the state. The City is located in the heart of a resort and recreation area and is the major commercial service 
and industrial center. The City of Grand Rapids currently occupies a land area of 24.40 square miles and serves a population 
of 11,346. The City of Grand Rapids signed an Annexation Agreement with the Grand Rapids Township in 2000 and the City 
annexed the last area of the Township on January 1, 2010. The City of Grand Rapids is empowered to levy a property tax on 
both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.  It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate 
limits by annexation.  
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The City operates under a Council-Administrator form of government.  Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a 
governing Council consisting of the mayor and four other members. The governing Council is responsible, among other 
things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and approving the hiring of City employees. The 
City Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council and overseeing the day-to-
day operations of the City. Council members serve four-year staggered terms, with two Council members elected every two 
years. The mayor is elected to serve a two-year term. 
 
The City of Grand Rapids provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, the construction and 
maintenance of highway, streets, and other infrastructure, recreational and cultural facilities, and general administrative 
services. In addition, the City also provides enterprise activities such as a golf course and storm water utility.   
 
The City has two discretely presented component units, the Grand Rapids Economic Development Authority (GREDA) and 
the Grand Rapids Public Utilities Commission (GRPUC).  Both governing boards are appointed by the City Council. The 
Council has the ability to approve or modify the GREDA’s budget and is governed by Article VIII of the bylaws. The GREDA 
does not issue separate financial statements. The GRPUC provides electric power distribution system, water production 
treatment and distribution systems, and wastewater collection and treatment systems. The City guarantees the general 
obligation debt of the GRPUC. Separate financial statements are issued by the GRPUC.  
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Grand Rapids’ financial planning and control.  All agencies of the 
City of Grand Rapids are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Administrator in May of each year for the 
following year’s budget. The City Administrator uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. 
The City Administrator meets with the Council to develop a budget. The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the 
proposed budget and certify an adopted final budget to the County Auditor by no later than December 30. 
 
The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police). Department heads may make 
transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfer of appropriations between departments, however, require the 
special approval of the governing Council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual 
government fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is 
presented on page 100 as part of the basic financial statements for the government funds. For governmental funds other 
than the general fund, and with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is presented in the governmental fund 
subsection of this report, shown on pages 148 - 155. 
 
 
Local economy 
 
Grand Rapids is a regional center with a retail market area population of approximately 49,000 and home to several state 
education and governmental agencies as well as the site of Itasca County government operations. The City is the regional 
headquarters for the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources and the home of Itasca Community College now 
reorganized and rebranded as Minnesota North College, Itasca Campus. 
 
A major contributor to the local economy is forestry and its related products and activities. The UPM Blandin Paper Mill, 
historically one of the City’s largest employers, operates in the City of Grand Rapids. While Blandin has downsized its 
operations over the past two decades, it continues to be one of few paper production facilities, nationwide, maintaining a full 
order sheet and delivering a profit to the parent company, further evidenced by UPM’s investment of over $10M in its 
manufacturing process equipment in 2019. According to company officials, in 2022, Blandin had one of its best years in a 
very long time. This surge stems from a couple of factors. First, Blandin has fewer competitors in the marketplace, with other 
North American coated paper manufacturers going off line or converting to other products. Second, mills owned by UPM in 
Europe have experienced strikes and difficulties presented by past reliance on raw materials sourced from Russia.  
 
Grand Rapids is also home to Yanmar Compact Equipment North America, Inc. (formerly known ASV Holdings, Inc). Yanmar 
currently employs approximately 243 in their Grand Rapids based manufacturing of compact track loaders and skid steer 
loaders together with a parts distribution center. They employed 153 in 2017, prior to them bringing their parts distribution in 
house. In September of 2019, 100% of the ASV shares were purchased by Yanmar, a global producer of engines, 
agricultural equipment, construction and marine equipment, tools and components.  
The City and Grand Rapids EDA have successfully worked with Yanmar, along with the Minnesota Department of IRRR and 
MN DEED to facilitate an expansion of Yanmar. The significant expansion of the Grand Rapids production facility includes 
the addition of a 30,000 square feet addition to the plant, site improvements, assembly layout modifications, additional 
equipment and staffing.The City of Grand Rapids approved a tax abatement to assist this project. As with all tax abatement 
and TIF provided by the City of Grand Rapids, it was reviewed to confirm that the request was consistent with the Economic 
Development Policies (business subsidy policy). This review process ensures that the City benefits from the use of public 
assistance in measurable ways, such as increased tax base, new and retained jobs that provide a living wage, addressing 
housing needs, or redevelopment of marginal, blighted, property. 
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Two major elements of the ASV/Yanmar business plan are driving the need to expand. First, a significant ramp-up in the 
production of ASV and Yanmar branded Compact Track Loaders (CTL); both existing products and the planned launch of 
new products to keep pace with the growing demand. Second, a relocation of a line of Yanmar Compact Mini Excavator 
(CEX) production from Japan to the Grand Rapids facility, designed to serve the North American market.  Between this year 
and the end of 2026, ASV/Yanmar projects the addition of 284 production and operations jobs and 79 administrative and 
professional positions.   

The City and Grand Rapids EDA are working with developers interested in addressing the current and increasing demand for 
housing in the community.  The EDA has entered into a preliminary development agreement with Oppidan, Inc. for their 
prospective development of a 132-unit apartment on EDA property.  The EDA is also working with the development firm 
Shafer-Richardson on their interest in a 76-unit apartment downtown. In addition, the EDA is platting the former site of an 
elementary school for the development of 22 single family home and are also working with local investors on the 
redevelopment of the former wastewater treatment plant site, to create a 60-unit manufactured home community.    

A permit has been issued for a 64-unit My Place extended stay hotel on the cleared site of the former K-Mart.  This project 
will commence in the spring of 2023 and will be open in spring of 2024. 

Building permit activity in 2023 was again in excess of the 20-year annual average of $29.8M, with permits for projects 
reaching a total value of $48.1M. Commercial projects accounted for $15.0M of the total, which was close to the 20-year 
average of $14.5M of annual permitted commercial construction. In terms of the number of permits issued, the 2023 total of 
527 permits was the highest since 2019. 

In 2023 development highlights included the remodeling and the construction of a 30K sq. ft. addition to the Yanmar Compact 
Equipment manufacturing plant valued at $3.8M.  The largest single project permitted in 2023 was for the renovation of the 
IRA Civic Center valued at $12.0M. Other major projects included a remodeling of the Blandin Foundation Office at $1.3M 
and mechanical upgrades at the Grand Rapids Senior High School valued at $9.5M.  

Long-term financial planning 

The City has a Five Year Capital Improvement Plan for infrastructure and equipment and a Pavement Management Plan for 
streets. The City analyzes each capital project to determine if sufficient funding is in place and how the project will affect the 
levy. Excess General Fund balances are annually allocated to capital equipment and building replacements.  Projects that 
have additional outside funding are given a higher priority. This policy has allowed the City to meet future infrastructure and 
capital equipment needs without a significant increase in the levy.  

Realizing the volatility of Local Government Aid (LGA) and the loss of the Market Value Homestead Credit, the City Council is 
developing funding mechanisms that will assist in minimizing the uncontrolled fluctuations in outside funding along with 
creating efficiencies in the work force. The City is focusing on reducing the growth of expenditure by making permanent 
adjustments to the base.  

The City, GRPUC, and other cities and townships are working to share services to reduce costs for both the City, GRPUC, 
and the partnering cities and townships. The City of Grand Rapids is in an agreement with the City of Cohasset to provide 
Cemetery Sexton Services which also provide additional resources for the City. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

In 2017, the City implemented the Uniform Guidance for Procurement Procedures to ensure that the procurement process 
complies with all applicable legal requirements, federal and state regulations. This ensures that the goods and services 
required by the City are obtained using established procedures that comply with all legal requirements for public purpose 
expenditures while promoting fair and open competition to ensure public confidence in the procurement process, ensure fair 
and equitable treatment of vendors who transact business with the City, and provide safeguards for the maintenance of a 
procurement system of quality and integrity. 

In 2018, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 75 to improve accounting and 
financial reporting for post-employment benefits other than pensions. This statement identifies methods and assumptions that 
are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and 
attribute that present value to periods of employee service. 
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In 2022, the City implemented the lease accounting standard, the latest Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement 87. Under the standard, state and local government organizations are required to capitalize most leases on the 
balance sheet, reporting them as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.  
 
In 2023, the City implemented the Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 96. This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial 
reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users. This statement 
defines a SBITA, establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset and a corresponding subscription 
liability. It provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs.  
 
 
Major initiatives 
 
The City is working on several major initiatives as follows: 
 

1. Central School, originally constructed in 1895 as a K-12 school, transferred to the City in 1972, had its last major 
renovation in 1983, and is in need of major capital improvements.  Improvements include, but are not limited to, a 
new roof/truss system, elevator, HVAC, and bathrooms.  The opinion of cost for these improvements are $7.6 
million. 
 

2. With the legalization of cannabis in the State, the City will be required to have at least one dispensary in the 
corporate limits.  This will likely occur in the second quarter of 2025.  Prior to this the city staff will be preparing a 
feasibility study to determine if the dispensary should be municipally owned or privately. 
 

3. Housing will continue to be a focus in 2024.  With over 600 new jobs being created, stress on existing housing 
supplies increase.  Key projects are located at the former wastewater treatment plant, Golf Course Road corridor, 
Block 20/21 across the street from the library, and the former ISD 318 Administration Building. 

 
 
Awards and Acknowledgements 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to the City of Grand Rapids for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022. This was the thirty first consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious award. To be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and efficiently organized ACFR. This 
report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.   
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current ACFR continues to meet the 
Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate.   
 
The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the 
entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation to all members of the department who 
assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. The Mayor and City Council are to be commended for their 
diligence and resolve in keeping the City in sound and stable financial condition.  
The City Council’s commitment to continually plan for the City’s future and dedication to maintaining high financial standards 
has helped the City maintain its strong financial condition. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Tom Pagel Barbara A. Baird 
City Administrator Finance Director 
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Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
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for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

City of Grand Rapids
Minnesota

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2022

Executive Director/CEO
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GRAND RAPIDS, CITY OF
PRINCIPAL CITY OFFICIALS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS
December 31, 2023

     Term Expires
Mayor: 
   Dale Christy December 31, 2024

Council Members:
   Dale Adams December 31, 2024

Tasha Connelly December 31, 2024
   Molly MacGregor December 31, 2026

Tom Sutherland December 31, 2026

City Administrator………………………………… Tom Pagel

Finance Director - Treasurer…………………………Barbara Baird

Fire Chief……………………………………………Travis Cole

Director of Library Services…………………………Will Richter

Director of Community Development………………Rob Mattei

Human Resource Officer……………………………Chery Pierzina

City Clerk……………………………………………Kimberly Gibeau

Public Works Director / City Engineer………………Matt Wegwerth

Chief of Police………………………………………Andy Morgan

Director of Golf Operations…………………………Bob Cahill

Director of Parks and Recreation……………………Dale Anderson
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400 Robert Street North, Suite 1600, St. Paul, MN, 55101   651.426.7000 www.redpathcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council  
City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the Economic Development Authority (discretely presented component 
unit), each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grand 
Rapids, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the Economic Development Authority 
(discretely presented component unit), each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota, as of December 31, 2023, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
We did not audit the financial statements of the Public Utilities Commission (a discretely 
presented component unit), which represent 41 percent, 44 percent, and 45 percent, respectively, 
of the assets, net position, and revenues of the primary government and it’s discretely presented 
component units as of December 31, 2023. Those statements were audited by other auditors 
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included for the Public Utilities Commission, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  
The financial statements of the Public Utilities Commission were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards.   
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be independent of the City of 
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Grand Rapids, Minnesota and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of 
Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the 
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial 
doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The financial statements of the Public Utilities Commission 
were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Governmental Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s
internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule, and the schedules of 
OPEB and pension information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s basic financial statements.  The 
accompanying combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.  The other 
information comprises the introductory, statistical, and other information sections but does not 
include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.  Our opinions on the basic 
financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any 
form of assurance thereon.   
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other 
information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material 
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 9, 
2024 on our consideration of the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Grand 
Rapids, Minnesota’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
REDPATH AND COMPANY, LLC 
St. Paul, Minnesota 
 
May 9, 2024 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
As management of the City of Grand Rapids (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2023.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, 
which can be found on pages 3 through 6 of this report.   
 
Financial Highlights 
 
The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the 
close of the most recent fiscal year by $72,855,026 (net position).   
 
The City’s total net position increased by $7,516,734. The governmental activities of the City 
increased by $7,320,888. This increase is due to a $9,834,000 increase in Capital Assets.  
 
The business-type activities increased by $195,846 due to a $253,000 increase in cash and 
investments.  
 
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $17,930,004.  Of this amount, $7,771,495 is restricted by external 
constraints established by creditors, grantors, contributors, or by state statutory provisions. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year the general fund balance was $1,173,469.  Of that amount, 
$1,173,469 was in a non-spendable form, $37,348 was restricted, $1,286,122 was committed 
and $5,191,745 was unassigned. 
 
The City’s total debt increased from $48,202,301 to $50,464,516 (excluding compensated 
absences).  The City issued General Obligation Street Reconstruction Bonds, Series 2023A for 
$2,220,000 and General Obligation Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2023B for $4,575,000 in 
2023. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the City include 
general government, public safety, public works, and culture and recreation.  The business-type 
activities of the City include a golf course and a storm water utility. 
 
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary 
government), but also two legally separate entities (Public Utilities Commission and Economic 
Development Authority) for which the City is financially accountable.  Financial information for 
these component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the 
primary government itself.  The Public Utilities Commission issues separate financial statements.  
The Economic Development Authority does not. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 33 through 35 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may 
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near term 
financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

For 2023, the City maintained four individual major governmental funds.  Information is 
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the following major funds: 
 

 General fund 
 GR/Cohasset Industrial Park 
 Capital Equipment Replacement 
 Civic Center Capital Improvements 

 
Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 
sub-combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general and special revenue funds.  
 
A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for those funds to demonstrate 
compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 36 and 37 of this 
report. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The City maintains two enterprise funds as a part of its proprietary fund 
type.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The City uses enterprise funds to 
account for its golf course and storm water utility operations.  Proprietary funds provide the same 
type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.   
 
Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide services for the City’s other 
departments, such as pension benefits.  The internal service fund is reported with governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 39 through 41 of this 
report. 
 
Fiduciary funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s 
own programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary 
funds.  
 
The fiduciary fund financial statements provide separate information for the following custodial 
funds: 

 Lodging Tax 
 Cable TV Commission 

 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 42 through 43 of this report. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government–wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 45 through 97 of this report. 
 
Other information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor 
governmental funds, custodial funds, and the Economic Development Authority (EDA) 
component unit is presented immediately following the required supplementary information on 
budgetary comparisons.  Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found 
on pages 122 through 145 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position.  In the case of the City, assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources by $72,855,026 at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net position ($55,787,432 or 77%) reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS' NET POSITION 
 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Assets:

Current and other assets $41,471,152 $30,097,256 $1,180,821 $944,318 $42,651,973 $31,041,574
Capital assets 87,313,116 74,916,682 2,731,558 2,790,676 90,044,674 77,707,358

Total assets 128,784,268 105,013,938 3,912,379 3,734,994 132,696,647 108,748,932

Total deferred outflows of resources 5,197,950 5,948,314        -              -       5,197,950 5,948,314

Liabilities: 
Long-term liabilities outstanding 52,584,116 42,311,561 38,643 18,576 52,622,759 42,330,137
Other liabilities 7,235,713 6,029,493 96,230 112,555 7,331,943 6,142,048

Total liabilities 59,819,829 48,341,054 134,873 131,131 59,954,702 48,472,185

Total deferred inflows of resources 5,065,971 845,668 18,898 41,101 5,084,869 886,769

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 53,100,727 47,899,453 2,686,705 2,790,676 55,787,432 50,690,129
Restricted 10,325,138 9,316,590        -              -       10,325,138 9,316,590
Unrestricted 5,670,553 4,559,487 1,071,903 772,086 6,742,456 5,331,573

Total net position $69,096,418 $61,775,530 $3,758,608 $3,562,762 $72,855,026 $65,338,292

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

A portion of the City’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions 
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is $6,742,456.  
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net position for the government as a whole.    
 
In 2016, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions – an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  Essentially, the standard required the 
unfunded portion of defined benefit pension plans to be reported by all participating employers.  
Recording the net pension liability and the pension related deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources do not change the City’s future funding requirements or obligations under the plans, 
which are determined by Minnesota statutes. 
 
Net position was impacted by ($5,390,306) at December 31, 2023 due to the Public Employees 
Retirement Association net pension liability.  Pension-related amounts included in the above 
schedule related to the standard are as follows: 
 

Deferred outflows of resources $4,550,642
Noncurrent assets        -       
Deferred inflows of resources (4,550,995)
Noncurrent liabilities (5,389,953)

Total ($5,390,306)

 
Governmental Activities 
 
Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $7,320,888 in 2023.  Key elements 
of this increase are as follows: 
 

 Operating grants and contributions increased $8,523,645 due to due to the city receiving 
$2,500,000 in contributions for the CP2015-1 Sylvan Bay Project. The city received over 
$5,000,000 in contributions for the GR/Cohasset Industrial Park Project. The Police 
Department received a one-time Health and Safety grant from the State of Minnesota for 
$490,000. 
 

 Capital grants and contributions increased by $4,196,707 due to due to one-time State 
Bond in the amount of $5,500,000 for renovations and ADA compliance items at the 
Yanmar Arena. 
 

 City sales tax was new in 2023 and amounted to $1,573,230.  
 

 These increases in revenues were offset by expenses increasing $9,516,296 due to 
capital projects that included the Yanmar Arena Renovations, the GR/Cohasset Industrial 
Park Project and CP2015-1 Sylvan Bay Project. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

City of Grand Rapids' Changes in Net Position 
 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services $3,229,662 $2,953,665 $1,818,827 $1,736,148 $5,048,489 $4,689,813
Operating grants and contributions 11,772,269 3,248,624        -              -       11,772,269 3,248,624
Capital grants and contributions 7,418,614 3,221,907 20,046        -       7,438,660 3,221,907

General revenues:
Taxes 8,714,567 8,464,200        -              -       8,714,567 8,464,200
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 933,281 924,990        -              -       933,281 924,990
City sales tax 1,573,230        -              -              -       1,573,230        -       
Grants and contributions not 

        restricted to specific programs 2,669,197 1,766,907        -              -       2,669,197 1,766,907
Unrestricted investment earnings 142,687 88,991 11,264 6,439 153,951 95,430
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 149,684 (623,194) 12,159 (42,515) 161,843 (665,709)
Gain on sale of capital assets 101,514 3,341 13,925        -       115,439 3,341
Other        -              -              -              -              -              -       

   Total revenues 36,704,705 20,049,431 1,876,221 1,700,072 38,580,926 21,749,503

Expenses:
General government 4,972,574 4,615,082        -              -       4,972,574 4,615,082
Public safety 5,127,557 4,678,868        -              -       5,127,557 4,678,868
Public works 15,721,896 7,788,447        -              -       15,721,896 7,788,447
Culture and recreation 2,485,168 2,081,855        -              -       2,485,168 2,081,855
Interest and fees on long-term debt 1,076,622 703,269        -              -       1,076,622 703,269
Golf course        -              -       947,369 858,647 947,369 858,647
Storm water utility        -              -       733,006 654,748 733,006 654,748

   Total expenses 29,383,817 19,867,521 1,680,375 1,513,395 31,064,192 21,380,916

Change in net position 7,320,888 181,910 195,846 186,677 7,516,734 368,587

Net position - January 1 61,775,530 61,593,620 3,562,762 3,376,085 65,338,292 64,969,705

Net position - December 31 $69,096,418 $61,775,530 $3,758,608 $3,562,762 $72,855,026 $65,338,292

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

Below are specific graphs that provide comparisons of the governmental activities revenues and 
expenditures: 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

Business-Type Activities 
 
Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $195,846 in 2023. The City has two 
business-type activities – Pokegama Golf Course and a Storm Water Utility Fund.  The net 
position of the Pokegama Golf Course increased $37,894 in 2023 compared to an $21,891 
increase in 2022.  The Golf Course had a 6.6% increase in number of rounds played. 
 
The Storm Water Utility Fund is used to pay for storm water maintenance and infrastructure 
construction.  The net position of the Storm Water Utility Fund increased $171,163 in 2023 
compared to a $189,067 increase in 2022. The increase is due to due to $13,925 in sales of 
fixed assets and $12,450 in insurance recovery money. Any funds that are not used for storm 
water utility maintenance by the Public Works Department are used to reduce storm water 
infrastructure improvement project costs.     
 
Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in 
assessing the City’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $17,930,004.  Approximately 7% of this total amount ($1,301,553) constitutes 
non-spendable fund balance and approximately 43% ($7,771,495) constitutes restricted fund 
balance.  The remainder of the fund balance consists of amounts committed ($2,418,974) and 
assigned ($2,115,974) by City Council, as well as unassigned fund balance ($4,322,008).  
Additional information about the City’s fund balance classifications can be found in Note 16. 
 
The general fund balance increased by $59,844 in 2023, compared to a $74,292 increase in 
2022.  Prior to other financing sources and uses, the General Fund balance increased $715,620 
in 2023 compared to a $472,045 increase in 2022.  Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

 Intergovernmental revenue increased $197,058 due to due to the City receiving an 
additional $70,000 increase in Local Government Aid. The City received additional 
insurance aid for the Police and Fire departments.  
 

 Charges for services increased $410,109 primarily due to $83,000 increase to rental 
inspection fees and business subsidy fees. The City collected approximately $215,800 
engineering fees and finance fees for the city construction projects. Unorganized 
township fire contract fees increased by $80,000.   

 
The GR/Cohasset Industrial Park fund had a fund balance increase of $165,310 due to all 
necessary revenue funding being paid in 2023 for the project which is approximately 97% 
complete.  
 
The Capital Equipment Replacement fund had a fund balance increase of $996,491 due to a 
one-time Public Health and Safety grant in an approximate amount of $500,000. The city issued 
$435,000 of Capital Leases in 2023. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

The Civic Center Capital Improvement fund had a fund balance decrease of $6,737,685 due to 
the $15,500,000 Capital Renovation/ADA Project at the Yanmar Arena being 95% complete. 
 
The non-major special revenue funds increased by $40,784 for 2023 due to significant change in 
net increase in the fair valuation of investment and investment income of approximately $40,000. 
 
The non-major debt service funds increased by $941,072 for 2023 primarily due to the collection 
of the Local Sales Tax of .5% for the Yanmar Arena renovation project. 
 
The non-major capital project funds decreased by $150,407 due to the issuance of the GO 
Street Reconstruction Bonds, 2023A for the CP 2015-1 Sylvan Bay project. 
  
Proprietary Funds.  The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
The Golf Course had an operating income of $21,081. Operating revenues increased by 
$96,727 due to a 6.6% increase in the number of rounds played. 
 
The Storm Water Utility had an operating income of $128,012. Operating revenues decreased 
by $4,039 due to uncollectable storm water utility fees. Operating expenses increased by 
$83,398 due to a $30,000 increase in personnel and $40,000 increase in contracted services. 
 
Budgetary Highlights 
 
General Fund.  The General Fund had an increase in fund balance of $59,844.  The General 
Fund revenues were over budget by $610,202 due to several items. Licenses and Permits was 
over by $132,878 because several large projects happening within the city and management 
was not aware of them. Charges for services were over budget by $237,770 due to additional 
fees collected for rental inspections of $30,000. Business subsidy fees and finance fees of 
$180,000. Intergovernmental revenues were over budget by $141,534 primarily due to additional 
monies for Police and Fire insurance aid of approximately $57,000. The city had several state 
grants that totaled approximately $53,500. 
 
Total expenditures were over budget by $28,633. This is due to the Public Works department 
with higher personnel costs of approximately $64,000.  
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration  
 
Capital assets.  The City’s gross investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of December 31, 2023, amounts to $90,044,674 (net of accumulated 
depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, 
buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

City of Grand Rapids’ Capital Assets 
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 

 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Land and land improvements $6,978,701 $6,739,252 $919,686 $919,686 $7,898,387 $7,658,938
Artwork 182,565 182,565        -              -       182,565 182,565
Construction in progress 16,994,417 14,671,448        -              -       16,994,417 14,671,448
Building and improvements 19,562,850 10,789,935 1,380,727 1,451,047 20,943,577 12,240,982
Vehicles, equipment and furniture 4,897,353 5,050,771 386,940 419,943 5,284,293 5,470,714
Infrastructure 38,259,178 37,482,711        -              -       38,259,178 37,482,711
Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles 438,052        -       44,205        -       482,257        -       

   Total $87,313,116 $74,916,682 $2,731,558 $2,790,676 $90,044,674 $77,707,358

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 6.  
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt 
outstanding of $50,464,516 (excluding compensated absences), an increase of $2,262,215 from 
2022.  Of the total outstanding amount: 

 $4,620,000 is general obligation improvement debt that is supported in part by special 
assessments, 

 $540,000 is general obligation tax increment debt which is financed through the City’s 
economic development program, 

 $27,855,000 are CIP Bonds, Street Reconstruction Bonds and an Equipment Certificate 
that is supported by property tax levies, 

 $7,149,000 are general obligation revenue bonds that are due from the Grand Rapids 
Public Utilities Commission, 

 $9,575,000 are general obligation revenue notes that are due from the Grand Rapids 
Public Utilities Commission,  

 $725,516 is a combined total of unamortized bond premiums. 
 

City of Grand Rapids’ Outstanding Debt 
 

G.O. Improvement Bonds, G.O. Tax Increment Bonds, other G.O. Bonds, capital leases, loans 
and bond premium: 

 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

General obligation improvement bonds $4,620,000 $6,040,000 $       -       $       -       $4,620,000 $6,040,000
General obligation tax increment bonds 540,000 580,000        -              -       540,000 580,000
Other general obligation bonds 27,855,000 26,765,000        -              -       27,855,000 26,765,000
General obligation revenue bonds - PUC 7,149,000 2,897,500        -              -       7,149,000 2,897,500
General obligation revenue notes - PUC 9,575,000 11,172,000        -              -       9,575,000 11,172,000
Capital leases, loans, bond premium 725,516 747,801        -              -       725,516 747,801

   Total $50,464,516 $48,202,301 $0 $0 $50,464,516 $48,202,301

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

The City issued General Obligation Street Reconstruction Bonds, Series 2023A for $2,220,000 
and General Obligation Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2023B for $4,575,000 in 2023.   
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a Minnesota city may issue to 3% of 
total Estimated Market Value.  The current debt limitation for the City is $31,986,987.  Of the 
City's outstanding debt, $21,930,646 is counted within the statutory limitation. 
 
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8. 
 
Requests for information.  This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of 
the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Finance Director, 420 North Pokegama Avenue, Grand 
Rapids, Minnesota 55744-2662. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Statement 1
December 31, 2023

Economic Public
Governmental Business-Type Development Utilities

Assets: Activities Activities Total Authority Commission
Cash and investments $16,953,508 $1,183,760 $18,137,268 $1,103,536 $6,947,782
Accrued interest receivable 21,218        -       21,218        -       83,587
Due from other governmental units 2,640,869        -       2,640,869 156        -       
Due from primary government        -              -              -              -       115,442
Due from component units 16,780,548 71,699 16,852,247        -              -       
Accounts receivable - net 171,289 7,487 178,776 37,566 3,014,529
Pledges receivable 6,500        -       6,500        -              -       
Internal balances 116,192 (116,192)        -              -              -       
Prepaid items 343,925 15,169 359,094        -       157,979
Property taxes receivable 347,507        -       347,507        -              -       
Special assessments receivable 2,222,296        -       2,222,296        -              -       
Inventories - at cost        -              -              -              -       760,068
Other receivable        -              -              -              -       73,418
Land held for resale        -              -              -       2,657,072        -       
Lease receivable 390,322 18,898 409,220        -       1,531,351
Notes receivable 300,000        -       300,000 575,846        -       
Designated cash and investments        -              -              -              -       2,309,721
Restricted accounts receivable        -              -              -              -       9,949,850
Financial assurance landfill closure        -              -              -              -       4,916,394
Net pension asset 1,176,978        -       1,176,978        -              -       
Capital assets - nondepreciable 24,155,683 919,686 25,075,369        -       2,205,803
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 63,157,433 1,811,872 64,969,305        -       62,195,927
Other assets        -              -              -              -       109,416
Non-utility property - net of amortization        -              -              -              -       485,297

                Total assets 128,784,268 3,912,379 132,696,647 4,374,176 94,856,564

Deferred outflows of resources:
Service territory acquisition        -              -              -              -       116,905
Loss on refunding        -              -              -              -       63,360
Related to pensions 4,946,222        -       4,946,222        -       553,590
Related to OPEB 251,728        -       251,728        -              -       

                Total deferred outflows of resources 5,197,950 0 5,197,950 0 733,855

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 723,899 12,525 736,424 41,099 1,273,752
Accrued wages payable 153,552 4,037 157,589        -       69,553
Due to other governmental units 21,855 1,595 23,450 9,081 95,594
Due to component units 111,613 5,854 117,467        -              -       
Contracts payable 911,186        -       911,186        -              -       
Deposits payable 15,769 30,000 45,769        -       377,575
Accrued interest payable 270,715 383 271,098        -       21,935
Unearned revenue 356,716 7,832 364,548 646,508        -       
Due to primary government:

Due within one year        -              -              -       37,790 2,058,646
Due in more than one year        -              -              -              -       14,984,831

Compensated absences:
 Due within one year 90,877 25,979 116,856        -       214,287
 Due in more than one year 596,737 1,815 598,552        -       98,534

Net pension liability:
Due in more than one year 5,389,953        -       5,389,953        -       2,108,142

Landfill closure costs:
Due in more than one year        -              -              -              -       2,342,354

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 4,478,000        -       4,478,000 17,500        -       
Due in more than one year 45,986,516        -       45,986,516 1,378,578        -       

Lease liabilities: 
Due within one year 81,117 8,025 89,142        -              -       
Due in more than one year 351,166 36,828 387,994        -              -       

Other post employment benefits:
Due within one year 20,414        -       20,414        -              -       
Due in more than one year 259,744        -       259,744        -              -       

                Total liabilities 59,819,829 134,873 59,954,702 2,130,556 23,645,203

Deferred inflows of resources:
Demand payment deferral        -              -              -              -       9,949,850
Related to leases 390,322 18,898 409,220        -       1,531,351
Related to pensions 4,642,338        -       4,642,338        -       715,156
Related to other post employment benefits 33,311        -       33,311        -              -       
Other deferred credits        -              -              -              -       28,497

                Total deferred inflows of resources 5,065,971 18,898 5,084,869 0 12,224,854

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 53,100,727 2,686,705 55,787,432        -       47,512,259
Restricted for:
   Debt service 8,399,366        -       8,399,366        -              -       
   Public safety 468,602 468,602

Itasca County share of airport 109,518        -       109,518        -              -       
   Pensions 1,176,978        -       1,176,978        -              -       
   Financial assurance        -              -              -              -       2,574,040
   Other purposes 170,674        -       170,674        -              -       
Unrestricted 5,670,553 1,071,903 6,742,456 2,243,620 9,634,063

                Total net position $69,096,418 $3,758,608 $72,855,026 $2,243,620 $59,720,362

Component Units
Primary Government

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

33 133

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended  December 31, 2023

Operating Capital
Charges For Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government $4,972,574 $960,267 $1,205,606 $30,000
Public safety 5,127,557 1,006,901 1,187,474        -       
Public works 15,721,896 498,520 9,314,062 1,888,614
Culture and recreation 2,485,168 763,974 52,250 5,500,000
Interest and fees on long-term debt 1,076,622        -       12,877        -       

Total governmental activities 29,383,817 3,229,662 11,772,269 7,418,614

Business-type activities:
Golf course 947,369 963,245        -       7,600
Storm water utility 733,006 855,582        -       12,446

Total business-type activities 1,680,375 1,818,827 0 20,046

Total primary government $31,064,192 $5,048,489 $11,772,269 $7,438,660

Component units:
Economic Development Authority $1,305,246 $23,145 $150,720 $       -       
Public Utilities Commission 28,680,475 26,028,875        -       5,641,310

Total component units $29,985,721 $26,052,020 $150,720 $5,641,310

General revenues:
General property taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
City sales tax
Grants and contributions not 

restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings (loss)
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments
Gain on sale of capital assets

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - January 1, as previously stated

Correction of an error 

Net position - January 1, as restated

Net position - December 31

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement 2

Economic Public
Governmental Business-Type Development Utilities

Activities Activities Total Authority Commission

($2,776,701) $       -       ($2,776,701) $       -       $       -       
(2,933,182)        -       (2,933,182)        -              -       
(4,020,700)        -       (4,020,700)        -              -       
3,831,056        -       3,831,056        -              -       

(1,063,745)        -       (1,063,745)        -              -       
(6,963,272) 0 (6,963,272) 0 0

       -       23,476 23,476        -              -       
       -       135,022 135,022        -              -       

0 158,498 158,498 0 0

(6,963,272) 158,498 (6,804,774) 0 0

(1,131,381)        -       
       -       2,989,710

(1,131,381) 2,989,710

8,714,567        -       8,714,567 75,083        -       
933,281        -       933,281        -              -       

1,573,230        -       1,573,230        -              -       

2,669,197        -       2,669,197 3,706        -       
142,687 11,264 153,951 14,268 232,714
149,684 12,159 161,843 9,934        -       
101,514 13,925 115,439 117,990        -       

14,284,160 37,348 14,321,508 220,981 232,714

7,320,888 195,846 7,516,734 (910,400) 3,222,424

61,775,530 3,562,762 65,338,292 3,154,020 53,327,156

       -              -              -              -       3,170,782

61,775,530 3,562,762 65,338,292 3,154,020 56,497,938

$69,096,418 $3,758,608 $72,855,026 $2,243,620 $59,720,362

Component Units
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
BALANCE SHEET Statement 3
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2023

101 General Fund
403 GR/Cohasset 

Industrial Park

407 Capital 
Equipment 

Replacement

483 Civic Center 
Capital 

Improvements

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Assets
Cash and investments $5,552,168 $197,586 $747,967 $597,541 $9,858,246 $16,953,508
Accrued interest receivable 21,218        -              -              -              -       21,218
Due from other governmental units 301,868 210,691        -       125,306 1,997,465 2,635,330
Due from other funds 799,670        -              -              -              -       799,670
Due from component units 18,758        -              -              -       37,790 56,548
Accounts receivable 134,493        -              -              -       36,796 171,289
Pledges receivable        -              -              -              -       6,500 6,500
Interfund loan receivable 957,628        -              -              -              -       957,628
Prepaid items 215,841        -       103,681        -       24,403 343,925
Taxes receivable - delinquent 307,114        -              -              -       40,393 347,507
Special assessments receivable 52,610        -              -              -       2,199,686 2,252,296
Lease receivable        -              -              -              -       390,322 390,322
Note receivable 300,000        -              -              -              -       300,000

Total assets $8,661,368 $408,277 $851,648 $722,847 $14,591,601 $25,235,741

                Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
   Accounts payable $107,830 $8,316 $61,106 $21,331 $525,316 $723,899
   Accrued wages payable 137,402        -              -              -       16,150 153,552
   Due to other governmental units 19,779        -              -              -       2,076 21,855
   Due to component units 35,004        -       31,535        -       45,074 111,613
   Contracts payable        -       226,960        -       342,689 341,537 911,186
   Due to other funds        -              -              -              -       799,670 799,670
   Deposits payable 12,670        -              -              -       3,099 15,769
   Interfund loan payable        -              -       891,610        -       23,242 914,852
   Unearned revenue 275 169,453        -              -       186,988 356,716

Total liabilities 312,960 404,729 984,251 364,020 1,943,152 4,009,112

Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to leases        -              -              -              -       390,322 390,322

   Unavailable revenue 659,724        -              -              -       2,246,579 2,906,303
Total deferred inflows of resources 659,724 0 0 0 2,636,901 3,296,625

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 1,173,469        -       103,681        -       24,403 1,301,553
Restricted 37,348        -       468,602        -       7,265,545 7,771,495
Committed 1,286,122        -              -              -       1,132,852 2,418,974
Assigned        -       3,548        -       358,827 1,753,599 2,115,974
Unassigned 5,191,745        -       (704,886)        -       (164,851) 4,322,008

Total fund balances 7,688,684 3,548 (132,603) 358,827 10,011,548 17,930,004

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances $8,661,368 $408,277 $851,648 $722,847 $14,591,601 $25,235,741

Fund balance reported above $17,930,004
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 87,313,116
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as 
unavailable revenue in the funds:

Delinquent taxes 347,507
Assessments not yet due or delinquent 2,222,296
Pledges not yet due 6,500
Due from other governmental units 5,539
Notes receivable not yet due 300,000

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
  reported in the funds:

Bonds and unamortized bond premium (33,740,516)
Lease liabilities (432,283)
Accrued interest payable (270,715)
Compensated absences payable (687,614)
Other post employment benefits (61,741)

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of pension and other post employment benefits to
individual funds.  The assets and liabilities are included in the governmental activities on the Statement of Net Position. (5,316,890)

Amounts pertaining to the Grand Rapids Fire Relief Association Pension Plan are not current financial resources,
  and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:

Net pension asset 1,176,978
Deferred outflows of resources 395,580
Deferred inflows of resources (91,343)

Net position of governmental activities $69,096,418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE Statement 4
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

101 General Fund
403 GR/Cohasset 

Industrial Park

407 Capital 
Equipment 

Replacement

483 Civic Center 
Capital 

Improvements

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Totals 
Governmental 

Funds

Revenues:
Taxes:

General property $5,067,736 $       -       $210,717 $       -       $2,778,891 $8,057,344
Tax abatements        -              -              -              -       38,313 38,313
Tax increments        -              -              -              -       566,948 566,948
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 933,281        -              -              -              -       933,281

     City sales tax        -              -              -              -       1,573,230 1,573,230
Licenses and permits 440,743        -              -              -              -       440,743
Intergovernmental 2,912,395 3,189,428 504,148 5,500,000 4,211,225 16,317,196
Special assessments 3,202        -              -              -       261,438 264,640
Charges for services 1,630,939        -              -              -       938,580 2,569,519
Fines and forfeits 65,645        -              -              -       44,924 110,569
Interest and investment income 49,901        -       3,206        -       89,580 142,687
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 64,814        -       3,774 4,827 76,269 149,684
Contributions and donations 20,161        -              -              -       335,113 355,274
Reimbursement from component units        -       1,841,912        -              -       2,955,365 4,797,277
Other 26,712        -       3,300        -       18,013 48,025

Total revenues 11,215,529 5,031,340 725,145 5,504,827 13,887,889 36,364,730 

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,652,661        -       36,819        -       1,575,870 4,265,350
Public safety 4,362,075        -       82,397        -       161,843 4,606,315
Public works 2,746,117        -       11,029        -       634,614 3,391,760
Culture and recreation 249,548        -              -              -       1,794,677 2,044,225
Miscellaneous 475,302        -              -              -              -       475,302

Capital outlay/construction 14,206 4,866,030 481,504 12,202,705 7,540,863 25,105,308
Debt service:

Principal retirement        -              -       26,917        -       2,592,345 2,619,262
Interest        -              -       8,076        -       1,032,482 1,040,558
Paying agent fees        -              -              -              -       7,575 7,575
Bond issuance costs        -              -              -              -       72,562 72,562

Total expenditures 10,499,909 4,866,030 646,742 12,202,705 15,412,831 43,628,217 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 715,620 165,310 78,403 (6,697,878) (1,524,942) (7,263,487)

Other financing sources (uses):
Lease issuance        -              -       435,668        -       34,672 470,340
Bond issuance        -              -              -              -       2,220,000 2,220,000
Bond premium        -              -              -              -       35,700 35,700
Sale of capital assets 1,414        -       39,420        -       60,680 101,514
Insurance recoveries 51,334        -              -              -       822 52,156
Transfers in 39,807        -       471,000        -       774,983 1,285,790
Transfers out (748,331)        -       (28,000) (39,807) (469,652) (1,285,790)

Total other financing sources (uses) (655,776) 0 918,088 (39,807) 2,657,205 2,879,710 

Net change in fund balance 59,844 165,310 996,491 (6,737,685) 1,132,263 (4,383,777)

Fund balance - January 1 7,628,840 (161,762) (1,129,094) 7,096,512 8,879,285 22,313,781

Fund balance - December 31 $7,688,684 $3,548 ($132,603) $358,827 $10,011,548 $17,930,004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, Statement 5
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended  December 31, 2023

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
(Statement 2) are different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (Statement 4) ($4,383,777)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense:

Depreciation and amortization (4,366,857)
Capital outlay 25,105,308
Capital outlay not capitalized (8,332,217)
Contribution of land from discretely presented component unit 232,288

In the statement of activities only the gain/loss on the sale of capital assets is reported. 
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial
resources.  Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balance by the net
book value of the capital assets sold. (242,088)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds:

Change in delinquent taxes 51,962
Change in deferred and delinquent special assessments (60,969)
Change in pledges receivable (2,000)
Change in other receivable (69,513)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  The amounts of these differences are:

Proceeds from the issuance of bonds (2,220,000)
Proceeds from the issuance of leases (458,786)
Principal payments on bonds payable 2,590,000
Principal payments on leases payable 26,503
Current year amortization of bond premium 22,285
Change in due from other governmental units accrual related to a federal credit on BAB bonds (2,591)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Expenses reported in the statement of activities include the effects of the changes in these
expense accruals as follows:

Change in compensated absences payable (43,791)
Change in other post employment benefits (31,197)
Change in accrued interest payable (13,912)

Governmental funds report Fire Department pension contributions as expenditures, however  
pension expense is reported in the statement of activities.  This is the amount by which 
pension expense differed from pension contributions.

Pension expense 96,252

An internal service fund is used by management to charge pension costs to individual funds.
This amount is the portion of net revenue attributable to governmental activities. (576,012)

Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement 2) $7,320,888

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Statement 6
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2023

Governmental 
Activities

613 Pokegama Golf 
Course

655 Storm Water 
Utility Internal Service

Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $281,696 $902,064 $1,183,760 $       -       
Due from component units        -       71,699 71,699        -       
Due from other governmental units        -              -              -              -       
Accounts receivable 776 6,711 7,487        -       
Prepaid items 15,169        -       15,169        -       
Lease receivable 18,898        -       18,898        -       

                Total current assets 316,539 980,474 1,297,013 0 

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land and land improvements 871,481 48,205 919,686        -       
Buildings and structures 2,604,149        -       2,604,149        -       
Machinery, equipment and furniture 1,114,326 489,321 1,603,647        -       
Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles        -       46,532 46,532        -       

Total capital assets 4,589,956 584,058 5,174,014 0
Less:  Allowance for depreciation and amortization (2,063,576) (378,880) (2,442,456)        -       

               Net capital assets 2,526,380 205,178 2,731,558 0
Total noncurrent assets 2,526,380 205,178 2,731,558 0

                Total assets 2,842,919 1,185,652 4,028,571 0

Deferred outflows of resources - related to pensions        -              -              -       4,550,642

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
   Accounts payable 10,895 1,630 12,525        -       
   Accrued wages payable 2,942 1,095 4,037        -       
   Due to other governmental units 1,595        -       1,595        -       
   Due to component units 1,454 4,400 5,854        -       
   Accrued interest payable 383        -       383        -       
   Deposits payable        -       30,000 30,000        -       
   Interfund loan payable 42,776        -       42,776        -       
   Lease liability - current        -       8,025 8,025        -       
   Compensated absences payable - current 25,979        -       25,979        -       
   Unearned revenue 7,832        -       7,832        -       
                Total current liabilities 93,856 45,150 139,006 0 
Noncurrent liabilities:
   Lease liability        -       36,828 36,828        -       

Compensated absences payable 1,747 68 1,815        -       
Net pension liability        -              -              -       5,389,953

                Total noncurrent liabilities 1,747 36,896 38,643 5,389,953
                Total liabilities 95,603 82,046 177,649 5,389,953

Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to leases 18,898        -       18,898        -       
Related to pensions        -              -              -       4,550,995

Total deferred inflows of resources 18,898 0 18,898 4,550,995

Net position:
Investment in capital assets 2,526,380 160,325 2,686,705        -       
Unrestricted 202,038 943,281 1,145,319 (5,390,306)

                Total net position $2,728,418 $1,103,606 $3,832,024 ($5,390,306)

Net position reported above $3,832,024

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the net effect of activity
between the internal service fund and the enterprise funds over time. (73,416)

Net position of business-type activities $3,758,608

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Totals

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND Statement 7
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Governmental 
Activities

613 Pokegama Golf 
Course

655 Storm Water 
Utility Totals Internal Service

Operating revenues:
   Season passes $219,339 $       -       $219,339 $       -       
   Green fees 467,143        -       467,143        -       
   Special play 25,734        -       25,734        -       
   Rentals and leases 233,621        -       233,621        -       
   Charges for service 15,408 853,307 868,715 644,969
            Total operating revenues 961,245 853,307 1,814,552 644,969 

Operating expenses:
    Personnel services 410,270 320,448 730,718 1,241,320
    Materials and supplies 98,625 83,229 181,854        -       
    Other services and charges 303,434 266,231 569,665        -       
    Depreciation and amortization 127,835 55,387 183,222        -       
            Total operating expenses 940,164 725,295 1,665,459 1,241,320 

Operating income (loss) 21,081 128,012 149,093 (596,351)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmental revenue        -              -              -       7,128
Interest and investment income 4,223 7,041 11,264        -       
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 4,056 8,103 12,159        -       
Interest expense (1,066) (639) (1,705)        -       
Insurance recoveries        -       12,446 12,446        -       
Miscellaneous revenue 2,000 2,275 4,275        -       
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets        -       13,925 13,925        -       

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 9,213 43,151 52,364 7,128

Income before capital contributions 30,294 171,163 201,457 (589,223)

Capital contributions 7,600        -       7,600        -       
         Total capital contributions 7,600 0 7,600 0

Change in net position 37,894 171,163 209,057 (589,223)

Net position - January 1 2,690,524 932,443 3,622,967 (4,801,083)

Net position - December 31 $2,728,418 $1,103,606 $3,832,024 ($5,390,306)

Changes in net position reported above $209,057
Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the net effect of activity

between the internal service funds and the enterprise funds over time. (13,211)

Change in net position of business-type activities (Statement 2) $195,846 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Statement 8
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Governmental 
Activities

613 Pokegama Golf 
Course

655 Storm Water 
Utility Internal Service

Cash flows from operating activities:
   Receipts from customers and users $953,276 $857,433 $1,810,709 $       -       
   Receipts from interfund charges for pension benefits        -              -              -       644,969
   Payment to suppliers (390,680) (385,926) (776,606) (644,969)
   Payment to employees (398,293) (330,773) (729,066)        -       
          Net cash flows provided by operating activities 164,303 140,734 305,037 0

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
    Interfund borrowing cash payments (27,461)        -       (27,461)        -       
    Interest on interfund borrowing (1,366) (639) (2,005)        -       
          Net cash flows provided by (used in) noncapital
          financing activities (28,827) (639) (29,466) 0

Cash flows from capital and related 
   financing activities:
    Acquisition of capital assets (83,186)        -       (83,186)        -       

 Capital contributions 7,600        -       7,600        -       
    Insurance recoveries        -       12,446 12,446        -       

 Proceeds on sale of capital asset        -       17,860 17,860        -       
          Net cash flows (used in) capital and
          related financing activities (75,586) 30,306 (45,280) 0

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and investment income 8,279 15,144 23,423        -       

          Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 68,169 185,545 253,714 0

          Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 213,527 716,519 930,046        -       

          Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 $281,696 $902,064 $1,183,760 $0 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided (used) by operating activities:
    Operating income (loss) $21,081 $128,012 $149,093 ($596,351)
    Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
      to net cash flows from operating activities:
       Depreciation and amortization 127,835 55,387 183,222        -       
       Miscellaneous revenue 2,000 2,275 4,275        -       
      Intergovernmental revenue        -              -              -       7,128
      Changes in assets and liabilities:
        Decrease (increase) in receivables 23,191 1,851 25,042        -       
        Decrease (increase) in prepaid items 6,419        -       6,419        -       
        Decrease (increase) in deferred outflows of resources        -              -              -       996,749
        Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (10,957)        -       (10,957)        -       
        Increase (decrease) in payables 16,937 (46,791) (29,854) (4,794,343)
        Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources (22,203)        -       (22,203) 4,386,817

Total adjustments 143,222 12,722 155,944 596,351 
Net cash provided by operating activities $164,303 $140,734 $305,037 $0

Noncash capital and related financing activities:
    None

Totals

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Statement 9
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2023

Assets:
Cash and investments $101,774

Total assets 101,774

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 101,774

Total liabilities 101,774

Net position: 
Restricted $0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION Statement 10
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Additions:
Lodging tax collections $432,584
Cable franchise fee collections 236,858

Total additions 669,442

Deductions: 
Payments to other entities 639,696
Administrative fees 29,746

Total deductions 669,442

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position        -       
Net position - beginning        -       
Net position - ending $       -       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota (the City) was incorporated in 1891 and operates under the State of 
Minnesota Statutory Plan A form of government.  The governing body consists of a five member City council 
elected by voters of the City. 
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies. 
 

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 
 
 As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial 

statements of the reporting entity include those of the City and its component units.  Generally, 
component units are legally separate organizations for which the officials of the primary government 
are financially accountable. 

 
 COMPONENT UNITS 
 
 In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 

financial statements of component units have been included in the financial reporting entity either as 
blended component units or as discretely presented component units. 

 
 Discretely Presented Component Units.  The component unit's columns in the combined financial 

statements include the financial data of the Economic Development Authority (EDA) and the Public 
Utilities Commission (PUC) of Grand Rapids.  These component units are presented in separate 
columns to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.   

 
 The EDA's governing board is appointed by the City Council.  The primary government is able to 

impose its will because the City Council has the ability to approve or modify the EDA's budget and to 
veto or overrule other decisions of the EDA's governing body.  The EDA is responsible for advancing 
the expansion of the local economy through efforts focused on business assistance, recruitment, 
retention and expansion.  Funding for the various programs administered by the EDA is provided 
through imposed tax levies and state funding sources.  The EDA does not issue separate financial 
statements. 

 
 The PUC's governing board is appointed by the City Council.  The City guarantees the general 

obligation debt of the PUC, which was issued in the City’s name. Accordingly, the PUC’s debt has 
been reported as liabilities of the City, with an offsetting receivable due from the PUC component unit.  
Separate financial statements for the PUC may be obtained by contacting the City of Grand Rapids, 
Minnesota. 

 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT – GRAND RAPIDS/ITASCA COUNTY AIRPORT 

 
The agreement delegates to the City responsibility for all maintenance, management, and operations 
subject to certain limitations, and specifies the City will be the airport’s fiscal agent.  Real property, 
improvements, structures and equipment of the airport are owned 50% by the City and 50% by Itasca 
County. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 

activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on 
fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from discretely 
presented component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

 
 The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 

business-type activity is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or business-type activity.  Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or business-type activity and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or business type 
activity.  Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

 
 Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 

funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. 

 
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PRESENTATION 
 

 The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements and the 
fiduciary financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as 
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
 Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as 
they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  
For this purpose, the City considers all revenues, except reimbursement grants, to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Reimbursement grants are 
considered available if they are collected within one year of the end of the current fiscal period.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
 Property taxes, special assessments, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and interest 

associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the portion of special assessments receivable 
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current 
period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the City. 
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The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The GR/Cohasset Industrial Park Fund accounts for the capital activity of the Grand 
Rapids/Cohasset Industrial Park.  
 
The Capital Equipment Replacement Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for capital 
improvement replacement. 
 
The Civic Center Capital Improvements Fund accounts for the capital activity of the Civic Center. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
 The Pokegama Golf Course Fund accounts for the City’s golf course operations. 
 
 The Storm Water Utility Fund accounts for the City’s storm water utility operations.  Storm water 

infrastructure is accounted for by the City’s governmental activities. 
 
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 
 

Fiduciary Funds –Custodial Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for 
individuals, private organizations, and other governments.  The City’s Custodial Funds account for 
the lodging tax and the Cable T.V. Commission.  The funds are custodial in nature and use the 
economic resources measurement focus. 

 
Internal Service Fund - the pension benefit fund is used to provide pension benefits to other funds 
of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. 
 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are transactions between the City’s enterprise 
funds and various other functions of government.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the enterprise funds are charges for service.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost 
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for an allowable use, it is the City’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 

47 147

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

D. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
 Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America.  Annual appropriated budgets are legally adopted for the General and Special 
Revenue Funds, except for the Electric Vehicle Charging Stations Fund. 

 
 Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 

expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the appropriation, is not 
employed by the City because it is at present not considered necessary to assure effective budgetary 
control or to facilitate effective cash management. 

 
 The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 

statements: 
 

1. The City Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating and capital budget 
for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1.  These budgets include proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

 
2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 
 
3. The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution on a fund basis. 
 
4. Interdepartmental or interfund appropriations and deletions are or may be authorized by the 

City Council with fund (contingency) reserves or additional revenues.  Management can 
amend budgets within each department. 

 
5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for 

the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds. 
 
6. Legal debt obligation indentures determine the appropriation level and debt service tax levies 

for the Debt Service Funds.  Supplementary budgets are adopted for the Proprietary Funds to 
determine and calculate user charges.  These debt service and budget amounts represent 
general obligation bond indenture provisions and net income for operation and capital 
maintenance and are not reflected in the financial statements. 

 
7. A capital improvement program is reviewed annually by the City Council for the Capital 

Project Funds.  However, appropriations for major projects are not adopted until the actual bid 
award of the improvement.  The appropriations are not reflected in the financial statements. 

 
8. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the total department level 

without City Council authorization.  Monitoring of budgets is maintained at the expenditure 
category level (i.e., personnel; material and supplies; other services and charges; capital 
outlay) within each activity. 

 
9. The City Council may authorize transfer of budgeted amounts between City funds. 
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The following is a listing of funds whose expenditures exceeded budgeted appropriations: 
 
Final Amount Over 

Budget Actual Budget

Major Funds:
General Fund $10,471,276 $10,499,909 $28,633

Nonmajor Funds:
211 Public Library 925,664 940,868 15,204
225 Central School 116,050 116,681 631
226 Airport Operations 260,291 340,526 80,235
228 IRA Civic Center 381,990 561,560 179,570
231 Haz-Mat 60,000 91,114 31,114
232 Police Forfeiture 3,500 17,957 14,457
233 Cemetery 265,714 290,274 24,560  

 
The expenditures exceeding budget were funded by available fund balance, interfund loan or other 
financing sources. 

 
E. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 Cash and investment balances of the primary government and the EDA (a component unit) are pooled 

and invested to the extent available in authorized investments.  Investment income is allocated to 
individual funds on the basis of the fund's equity in the cash and investment pool.  Cash and 
investments of the Public Utilities Commission component unit are maintained and invested 
separately. 

 
 Investments are stated at fair value, based upon quoted market prices, except for investments in 2a7-

like external investment pools, which are stated at amortized cost.  Investment income is accrued at the 
balance sheet date. 

 
 For purposes of the statement of cash flows of the Proprietary Fund type, the City considers all highly 

liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  All 
of the pooled cash and investments allocated to the primary government’s Proprietary Fund types are 
considered to be cash and cash equivalents.   
 
The PUC component unit does not consider restricted cash and investments to be cash equivalents. 
 

F. INVESTMENT INCOME 
 
 Investment income consists of interest and dividends received and the change in fair value of 

investments.  The change in fair value consists of realized and unrealized gains and amortization of 
premiums and discounts.   

 
G. PROPERTY TAX REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 
 The City Council annually adopts a tax levy and certifies it to the County in December 

(levy/assessment date) of each year for collection in the following year.  The County is responsible for 
billing and collecting all property taxes for itself, the City, the local School District and other taxing 
authorities.  Such taxes become a lien on January 1 and are recorded as receivables by the City at that 
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date.  Real property taxes are payable (by property owners) on May 15 and October 15 of each 
calendar year.  Personal property taxes are payable by taxpayers on February 28 and June 30 of each 
year.  These taxes are collected by the County and remitted to the City on or before July 7 and 
December 2 of the same year.  Delinquent collections for November and December are received the 
following January.  The City has no ability to enforce payment of property taxes by property owners.  
The County possesses this authority. 

 
 GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 The City recognizes property tax revenue in the period for which the taxes were levied.  Uncollectible 

property taxes are not material and have not been reported. 
 
 GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 The City recognizes property tax revenue when it becomes both measurable and available to finance 

expenditures of the current period.  In practice, current and delinquent taxes, and State credits received 
by the City in July, December and January are recognized as revenue for the current year.  Taxes 
collected by the County by December 31 (remitted to the City the following January) and taxes and 
credits not received at year end are classified as delinquent and due from County taxes receivable.  The 
portion of delinquent taxes not collected by the City in January is fully offset by deferred inflows of 
resources because they are not available to finance current expenditures. 

H. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE RECOGNITION 

 
 Special assessments are levied against benefited properties for the cost or a portion of the cost of 

special assessment improvement projects in accordance with State Statutes.  These assessments are 
collectible by the City over a term of years usually consistent with the term of the related bond issue.  
Collection of annual installments (including interest) is handled by the County Auditor in the same 
manner as property taxes.  Property owners are allowed to (and often do) prepay future installments 
without interest or prepayment penalties. 

 
 Once a special assessment roll is adopted, the amount attributed to each parcel is a lien upon that 

property until full payment is made or the amount is determined to be excessive by the City Council or 
court action.  If special assessments are allowed to go delinquent, the property is subject to tax forfeit 
sale.  Proceeds of sales from tax forfeit properties are remitted to the City in payment of delinquent 
special assessments.  Pursuant to State Statutes, a property shall be subject to a tax forfeit sale after 
three years unless it is homesteaded, agricultural or seasonal recreational land in which event the 
property is subject to such sale after five years. 

 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 The City recognizes special assessment revenue in the period that the assessment roll was adopted by 
the City Council.  Uncollectible special assessments are not material and have not been reported. 

 
 GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 Revenue from special assessments is recognized by the City when it becomes measurable and available 

to finance expenditures of the current fiscal period.  In practice, current and delinquent special 
assessments received by the City are recognized as revenue for the current year.  Special assessments 
that are collected by the County by December 31 (remitted to the City the following January) are also 
recognized as revenue for the current year.  All remaining delinquent, deferred and special deferred 
assessments receivable in governmental funds are completely offset by deferred inflows of resources. 
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I. INVENTORIES  
 

 The original cost of materials and supplies has been recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase.  
These funds do not maintain material amounts of inventory.   

 
J. PREPAID ITEMS 
 
 Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 

prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.  Prepaid items are reported 
using the consumption method and recorded as expenditures/expenses at the time of consumption. 

 
K. LAND HELD FOR RESALE 
 
 Land held for resale is valued at the lower of cost or market (net realizable value).  Due to the nature of 

redevelopment activities, cost is frequently higher than the market value.  Market values are 
determined using appraised values or estimated actual sales price. 

 
L. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, bridges, 

sidewalks, and similar items) and intangible assets such as easements and computer software, are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an estimated useful life in 
excess of one year and an initial, individual cost meeting the following thresholds: 

 
 

Assets 
Governmental 

Funds 
Proprietary 

Funds 
Land and land improvements $10,000 $5,000 
Buildings and structures 25,000 5,000 
Vehicles, equipment and furniture 5,000 2,500 
Infrastructure 100,000 5,000 

 
Capital assets are defined by the Public Utilities Commission as assets with an estimated useful life in 
excess of one year and an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000.  
 
Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated 
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service 
concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value. 
 

 In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by 
governmental activities) the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or 
amount.  The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets 
through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be 
capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or 
estimated acquisition year).  As the City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, 
including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.  The reported value 
excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital 
assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the 
original estimate. 

 
  

51 151

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Buildings and structures 20 - 40 years
Vehicles, equipment and furniture 5 - 30 years
Infrastructure 25 years
Public utilities 10 - 50 years

Assets

 
 

M. RIGHT-TO-USE LEASED ASSETS 
 

The City has recorded right-to-use leased assets as a result of implementing GASB 87. The right-to-use 
leased assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease 
liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus ancillary 
charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right-to-use leased assets are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the related asset.  

 
N. LEASE RECEIVABLE 
 

The City's lease receivable is measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received 
during the lease term. Under the lease agreement, the entity may receive additional variable lease 
payments that are dependent upon the lessee's revenue/the lessee's usage levels. These variable 
payments are excluded from the lease receivable.  
 
A deferred inflow of resources is recorded for the lease. The deferred inflow of resources is recorded at 
the commencement of the lease in an amount equal to the initial recording of the lease receivable, and 
is recognized as revenue over the lease term. 

 
O. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 
 
 During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 

provided or services rendered, and are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.  
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it 
that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing 
fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

 
Short-term receivables and payables between funds are classified as “due from other funds” or “due to 
other funds” on the balance sheet.  Such items, which are expected to be eliminated in 2024, represent 
temporary balances due to interfund billings or reclassifications of funds with internally reported 
negative cash balances. 

 
 Long-term interfund loans are classified as “interfund loan receivable” or “interfund loan payable” on 

the balance sheet.  Interfund loan receivables are offset by nonspendable fund balance in the applicable 
governmental fund to indicate the related fund balance amount is not in a spendable form and is not 
available for appropriation. 
 
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 

 
 Uncollectible amounts are not material for interfund receivables and have not been reported. 
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P. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
 It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused flexible time off (FTO) and 

extended medical benefit (EMB).  All FTO pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds 
only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  There is 
no liability for unpaid EMB since accumulated balances are not paid when employees separate from 
service with the City. 

 
Q. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
 In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 

statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  
Bond premiums and discounts are being amortized over the life of the related debt. 

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts 
during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses.   

 
R. FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS 

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in classifications that disclose 
constraints for which amounts in those funds can be spent.  These classifications are as follows: 

 
Nonspendable - consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, 
such as prepaid items and interfund loans receivable. 
 
Restricted - consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors, 
grantors or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory provisions. 
 
Committed - consists of amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally 
imposed by formal action (resolution) of the City Council.  The committed amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by 
resolution. 
 
Assigned - consists of amounts intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not 
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed: 
 

 In governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balances represent the 
remaining amount that is not restricted or committed.  The City Council retains the 
authority to assign fund balance, which is performed by resolution when a fund is 
established. 

 In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the 
governing body itself or by an official to which the governing body delegates the 
authority.  Currently, no individual has been delegated this authority because no fund 
balance is assigned in the General Fund. 

 
Unassigned - is the residual classification for the General Fund and also reflects negative residual 
amounts in other funds. 
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to first use 
restricted resources, and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
When committed, assigned or unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
resources in the following order: 1) committed 2) assigned and 3) unassigned, except for the revenue 
stabilization commitment which is to be used only in certain circumstances as described in Note 16C. 

 
S. TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE CITY AND ITS COMPONENT UNITS 

 
The City conducts routine transactions with its component units for goods or services provided or 
received.  The PUC reimburses the City for its share of construction costs incurred by the City. 
 
Significant transactions between the City and its component units during 2023 are described in Note 
20.  
 

T. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 
 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates that affect amounts 
reported in the financial statements during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from such 
estimates. 

 
U. UTILITY REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 
 Billings are rendered and recorded monthly based on metered usage.   

 
V. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The government has two 
items that qualify for reporting in this category.  They are the pension and other post-employment 
benefits related deferred outflows of resources reported on the government-wide Statement of Net 
Position and the proprietary funds Statement of Net Position. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The government has leases, pension, 
and other post-employment benefits related deferred inflows of resources reported in the government-
wide Statement of Net Position and the proprietary funds Statement of Net Position.  The government 
also has a type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies 
for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the 
governmental fund balance sheet.  The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from the 
following sources:  property taxes, special assessments, due from component units, land held for 
resale, and notes receivable. Deferred inflows relating to lease receivables are reported on both the 
Statement of Net Position and the governmental fund balance sheet.  
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W. PENSION PLANS 
 

DEFINED BENEFIT COST SHARING MULTIPLE – EMPLOYER PLANS 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement 
Association (PERA) and additions to and deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA, except that PERA’s fiscal year end is 
June 30.  For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and 
benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
SINGLE EMPLOYER PLAN 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Grand Rapids Fire Department Relief Association (Relief) and additions to/deductions 
from the Relief’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported 
by the Relief.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
 

Note 2 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

A. DEPOSITS 
 

In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the City maintains deposits at those depository banks 
authorized by the City Council, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve System. 
 

 Minnesota Statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond, or collateral.  
The fair value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or 
bonds.   

 
 Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as collateral be held in safekeeping by the City 

Treasurer or in a financial institution other than that furnishing the collateral.  Minnesota Statute 
118A.03 identifies allowable forms of collateral. 

 
At December 31, 2023 the carrying amount of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was 
$12,361,496. 
 
Custodial credit risk – Deposits – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
City’s deposits may not be returned to it.  State Statutes require that insurance, surety bonds or 
collateral protect all City deposits.  The fair value of collateral pledged must equal 110% of deposits 
not covered by insurance or bonds.  As of December 31, 2023, the bank balance of the City’s deposits 
was $14,181,353 all of which was either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
or covered by perfected pledged collateral held in the City’s name. 
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B. INVESTMENTS 
 

Subject to rating, yield, maturity and issuer requirements as prescribed by statue, Minnesota Statutes 
118A.04 and 118A.05 authorized the City to invest in United States securities, state and local 
securities, commercial paper, time deposits, temporary general obligation bonds, repurchase 
agreements, Minnesota joint powers investment trust and guaranteed investment contracts.  
 
As of December 31, 2023, the City had the following investments and maturities: 
 

Fair Less

Investment Type Rating Value Than 1 1-5 6-10
Brokered CD's NR $6,595,538 $871,679 $5,523,963 $199,896
Federal Home Loan Bank AAA 341,756        -       341,756        -       
Money Market Mutual Fund Aaa-mf 42,748 42,748        -              -       

Total $6,980,042 $914,427 $5,865,719 $199,896

Total investments $6,980,042
NR - Not Rated Deposits 12,361,496

Petty cash 1,040
   Total cash and investments $19,342,578

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset.  The hierarchy has three levels.  Level 1 investments are valued 
using inputs that are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.  Level 2 investments 
are valued using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable either directly 
or indirectly.  Level 2 investments include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, quoted 
prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable for the asset, or inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data 
by correlation or other means.  Level 3 investments are valued using inputs that are unobservable. 
 
The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2023: 
 

Investment Type 12/31/2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments at fair value:

Brokered CD's $6,595,538 $       -       $6,595,538 $       -       
Federal Home Loan Bank 341,756        -       341,756                     -       
Money Market Mutual Fund 42,748        -       42,748                       -       

Total $6,980,042 $       -       $6,980,042 $       -       

Fair Value Measurement Using

 
Following is a reconciliation of the City’s cash and investment balances as of December 31, 2023: 
 

Cash and investments - primary government:
Governmental and business-type (Statement 1) $18,137,268
Fiduciary (Statement 9) 101,774

Cash and investments - EDA (Statement 1) 1,103,536
Cash and investments - PUC (Statement 1) 6,947,782
Restricted cash and investments - PUC (Statement 1) 2,309,721

$28,600,081
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C. INVESTMENT RISKS 
 
Custodial credit risk – investments – For investments in securities, custodial credit risk is the risk that 
in the event of failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value 
of its investment securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  Investments in investment 
pools and money markets are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form, and 
therefore are not subject to custodial credit risk disclosures.  The City policy is to limit its exposure by 
holding investments in securities with approved security broker/dealers selected by creditworthiness 
(minimum capital requirement $10,000,000 and at least five years of operation).  
 
Interest rate risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments could 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  The City’s investment policy requires the City to 
diversify its investment portfolio to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of 
assets in a specific maturity.  No more than 25% of the total investments should have maturities 
extending beyond five years and in no circumstances should any extend beyond ten years.  The policy 
also states the City’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all 
operating needs which may be reasonably anticipated. 
 
Credit risk – Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will be unable 
to fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  State law limits investments to commercial 
paper to those rated in the highest quality category by at least two nationally recognized rating 
agencies; in any security of the State of Minnesota or any of its municipalities which is rated “A” or 
better by a national bond rating service for general obligation and rated “AA” or better for a revenue 
obligation; a general obligation of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency to those rated “A” or better 
by a national bond rating agency; mutual funds or money market funds whose investments are 
restricted to securities described in MS 118A.04.  The City’s investment policy does not place further 
restrictions on investment options. 
 
Concentration of credit risk – Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may be attributed to 
the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer.  The City places no limit on the amount 
the City may invest in any one issuer.  The City does not have exposure to a single issuer that equals or 
exceeds 5% of the overall portfolio and, therefore, there is no concentration of credit risk. 
 
Investment balances at December 31, 2023 for the Public Utilities Commission are as follows: 
 

Demand deposits and cash on hand $3,366,929
Term series 250,000
Government agencies notes 999,565
CD's 4,052,236
Money market 588,773
      Total cash and investments 9,257,503

Less designated cash and investments:
Electric replacement funds 1,247,342
Watermain replacement funds 790,364
Wastewater-sewer main replacement funds 272,015

      Total designated cash and investments 2,309,721

      Total cash and investments $6,947,782
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Note 3 RECEIVABLES 
 

Significant receivables balances not expected to be collected within one year of December 31, 2023 are as 
follows: 
 

Storm Water Nonmajor
General Utility Funds Total EDA

Special assessments receivable $26,305 $3,356 $1,999,948 $2,029,609 $       -       
Property taxes receivable 153,600        -       20,200 173,800        -       
Interfund loan receivable 693,824        -              -       693,824        -       
Pledges receivable        -              -       6,500 6,500        -       
Notes receivable 300,000        -              -       300,000 399,966
Lease receivable        -              -       299,784 299,784        -       

$1,173,729 $3,356 $2,326,432 $3,503,517 $399,966

Primary Government
Major Funds

 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 

The City completed construction on a multi-use pavilion addition to the IRA Civic Arena in 2018.  A portion of 
the funding was a capital drive, which began in 2016.  As shown above, as of December 31, 2023, outstanding 
pledges receivable were $6,500.     
 
NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
The City issued a note receivable for $300,000 due from Grand Plaza Housing Limited Partnership. The note is 
due January 1, 2039 and has a zero percent (0%) interest rate.  
 
FORGIVABLE LOAN RECEIVABLE: 
 
Grand Rapids Economic Development Authority (GREDA) has established a loan program with forgivable 
terms to fund building improvements that are mandated by the State Building Code. The only outstanding 
forgivable loan at year end was issued on December 18, 2023, to Kreklow Enterprises, LLC for $50,000, the 
maximum amount allowed, at 1.0%. The loan is only required to be repaid if the borrower defaults on the terms 
of the loan, which includes the sale of the property. Each year 10% of the principal balance of the loan will be 
forgiven providing there is no default. If a default should occur, the entire remaining balance unforgiven and 
accumulated interest will be paid back to GREDA. If no events of default occur, and the borrower does not sell 
the property within 10 years of the closing date, the principal and interest payments shall be deferred. Given the 
nature of this loan and uncertainty of repayment, management has determined that it is highly unlikely the 
borrower will default on the loan. 
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Note 4 UNAVAILABLE REVENUES 
 
Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for revenues that are 
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the various components of unavailable revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 
 

Property Special Land Held for Notes Other
Taxes Assessments Resale Receivable Receivables Total

Primary government:
Major funds:

General Fund $307,114 $52,610 $       -       $300,000 $       -       $659,724
Nonmajor Funds 40,393 2,199,686        -              -       6,500 2,246,579

Total primary government 347,507 2,252,296 0 300,000 6,500 2,906,303

EDA (discretely presented component unit)        -              -       2,657,072 626,001 37,517 3,320,590

Total unavailable revenue $347,507 $2,252,296 $2,657,072 $926,001 $44,017 $6,226,893

 
 

Note 5 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

The City has approved five interfund loans.  One loan was made to the Pokegama Golf Course for the 
Pokegama Golf and Park Place Project and the Pokegama Golf Course Irrigation Control Project.  Loans were 
also made to the IRA Civic Center Fund and the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund as financing to those 
funds for capital expenditures.  A summary at December 31, 2023 is as follows: 
 

Interfund Interfund
Loan Loan

Receivable Payable
Major funds:

General Fund $957,628 $       -       
407 Capital Equipment Replacement        -       891,610
613 Pokegama Golf Course        -       42,776

Nonmajor funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

228 IRA Civic Center        -       23,242

Total $957,628 $957,628
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Amounts reported as due to/from other funds at December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds

Major funds:
General Fund $799,670 $       -       

Nonmajor funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

225 Central School        -       4,500
228 IRA Civic Center        -       8,653
231 Haz-Mat        -       4,848
240 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations        -       34,624

Capital Project Funds:
401 General Capital Improvement Projects        -       10,862
402 Municipal State Aid        -       88,674
413 Airport Capital Fund        -       647,509
      Total $799,670 $799,670

 
Due to/from other funds represent temporary balances due to interfund billings and reclassifications of funds 
with internally reported negative cash balances.  The latter will be eliminated with a combination of tax levies, 
grant funds, bond proceeds and other operating revenues. 
 
Amounts reported as interfund transfers at December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 

407 Capital
101 General Equipment Nonmajor

Fund Replacement Funds Total
Transfers out:

Major funds:
General Fund $       -       $471,000 $277,331 $748,331
407 Capital Equipment Replacement        -              -       28,000 28,000
483 Civic Center Capital Improvements 39,807        -              -       39,807

Nonmajor funds        -              -       469,652 469,652
Total $39,807 $471,000 $774,983 $1,285,790

Transfers In

 
The City makes routine interfund transfers to allocate financial resources to the funds that receive benefit from 
services provided by another fund or to establish or close-out funds.  During 2023, the City made transfers from 
the General Fund to Special Revenue Funds ($121,251) to provide ongoing support, to the G.O. Street 
Reconstruction Bonds of 2013B Debt Service Fund ($150,000) as part of its debt financing plan, and to Capital 
Project Funds ($471,000) for capital purposes.  Transfers were also made to allocate funds for capital purposes 
($469,652). 
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Note 6 CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as follows: 
 
Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Primary Government
Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:
Land and land improvements $6,739,252 $239,449 $       -       $6,978,701
Artwork 182,565        -              -       182,565
Construction in progress 14,671,448 16,448,378 (14,125,409) 16,994,417

Total capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized 21,593,265 16,687,827 (14,125,409) 24,155,683

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized: 
Buildings and structures 31,036,924 10,067,317 (1,398,198) 39,706,043
Vehicles, equipment and furniture 13,853,274 573,762 (640,190) 13,786,846
Infrastructure 82,167,328 3,331,542        -       85,498,870
Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles        -       470,340        -       470,340

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 127,057,526 14,442,961 (2,038,388) 139,462,099

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Buildings and structures 20,246,989 1,052,699 (1,156,495) 20,143,193
Vehicles, equipment and furniture 8,802,503 726,795 (639,805) 8,889,493
Infrastructure 44,684,617 2,555,075        -       47,239,692
Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles        -       32,288        -       32,288

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization 73,734,109 4,366,857 (1,796,300) 76,304,666
  

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized - net 53,323,417 10,076,104 (242,088) 63,157,433

Governmental activities capital assets - net $74,916,682 $26,763,931 ($14,367,497) $87,313,116

 
 
Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Primary Government
Business-type activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:
Land and land improvements $919,686 $       -       $       -       $919,686

TTotal capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized 919,686 0 0 919,686

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized: 
Buildings and structures 2,604,149        -              -       2,604,149
Machinery, equipment and furniture 1,550,406 83,187 (29,946) 1,603,647
Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles        -       46,532        -       46,532

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 4,154,555 129,719 (29,946) 4,254,328

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Buildings and structures 1,153,102 70,320        -       1,223,422
Machinery, equipment and furniture 1,130,463 110,575 (24,331) 1,216,707
Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles        -       2,327        -       2,327

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization 2,283,565 183,222 (24,331) 2,442,456

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized - net 1,870,990 (53,503) (5,615) 1,811,872

Business-type activities capital assets - net $2,790,676 ($53,503) ($5,615) $2,731,558
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Reclassifications Balance

Discretely Presented Component Units
Public Utilities Commission:

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:
Land and land rights $1,964,831 $44,786 $       -       $       -       $2,009,617
Construction in progress 631,518 5,935,448 (6,370,780)        -       196,186

Total capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized 2,596,349 5,980,234 (6,370,780) 0 2,205,803

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized: 
Intangibles 711,725        -              -              -       711,725
Infrastructure 47,196,463 8,945,240        -              -       56,141,703
Buildings and improvements 33,892,582 377,788        -       301,927 34,572,297

Machinery and equipment 38,050,114 363,015 (129,590) (301,927) 37,981,612
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 119,850,884 9,686,043 (129,590) 0 129,407,337

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Intangibles 533,396 62,855        -              -       596,251
Infrastructure 21,159,796 1,235,381        -              -       22,395,177
Buildings and improvements 24,519,899 693,167        -              -       25,213,066
Machinery and equipment 17,784,765 1,324,927 (102,777)        -       19,006,915

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization 63,997,856 3,316,330 (102,777) 0 67,211,409
  

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized - net 55,853,028 6,369,713 (26,813)        -       62,195,928

Public Utilities Commission capital assets - net $58,449,377 $12,349,947 ($6,397,593) $0 $64,401,731

 
Depreciation and amortization expense were charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
follows: 
 
Governmental activities:

General government $152,692
Public safety 522,889
Public works, including depreciation and amortization of general infrastructure assets 3,378,257
Culture and recreation 313,019

   Total depreciation and amortization expense - governmental activities $4,366,857

Business-type activities:
Golf course $127,835

Storm water utility 55,387
   Total depreciation and amortization expense - business-type activities $183,222

 
 

Note 7 LEASE RECEIVABLES 
 
The City leases a portion of its land for a Solar Garden. This lease is non-cancelable for a period of 25 years, 
with three renewal periods of 5 years at the lessee’s option. The City considers the likelihood of these options 
being exercised to be greater than 50%. The agreement calls for monthly lease payments of $5,500 - $6,624, 
with increases of 1% each year. The lease receivable is measured at the present value of the future minimum 
lease payments expected to be received during the lease term at a discount rate of 4.75%, which is based on the 
rate available to finance equipment over the same time periods. 
 
The City leases Golf Concessions to Pokegama Grill. This lease is non-cancelable for a period of 2 years. The 
agreement calls for monthly lease payments of $2,000. The lease receivable is measured at the present value of 
the future minimum lease payments expected to be received during the lease term at a discount rate of 4.75%, 
which is based on the rate available to finance equipment over the same time periods. 
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The City leases 351 square feet of Pro Shop space to Bob’s Pro Shop. This lease is non-cancelable for a period 
of 27 months. The agreement calls for monthly lease payments of $475 - $489. The lease receivable is measured 
at the present value of the future minimum lease payments expected to be received during the lease term at a 
discount rate of 4.75%, which is based on the rate available to finance equipment over the same time periods. 
 
The City leases ice to ISD #318. This lease is non-cancelable for a period of 3 years. The agreement calls for 
monthly lease payments of $14,336 - $15,208. The lease receivable is measured at the present value of the 
future minimum lease payments expected to be received during the lease term at a discount rate of 4.75%, 
which is based on the rate available to finance equipment over the same time periods. 
 
At December 31, 2023, the City recorded $409,220 in leases receivables and deferred inflows of resources for 
these arrangements. 
 
Total revenue recognized in relation to these leases is as follows: 
 

Amortization of lease-related deferred inflows
Land leases $370
Space leases 193,308

Total revenue recognized resulting
 from deferred inflow amortization 193,678

Interest revenue 24,540
Other lease related revenues 7,769

Total revenue recognized in 
relation to leased assets $225,987

 
Principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease receivables as of December 31, 2023 were as 
follows:  
 

Solar Garden ISD #318 Pokegama Grill Bob's Pro Shop
Nonmajor Fund Nonmajor Fund Major Fund Major Fund

226 Airport Operations 228 IRA Civic Center 613 Pokegama Grill 613 Pokegama Grill
Year Ending Lease Receivable Lease Receivable Lease Receivable Lease Receivable

December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2024 $538 $14,196 $90,000 $1,251 $17,441 $559 $1,457 $12
2025 716 14,166        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2026 903 14,128        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2027 1,101 14,080        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2028 1,310 14,022        -              -              -              -              -              -       

2029-2033 10,219 68,874        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034-2038 17,378 65,645        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2039-2043 26,810 60,448        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2044-2048 39,009 52,699        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2049-2053 54,728 41,659        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2054-2058 74,921 26,383        -              -              -              -              -              -       
2059-2062 72,787 6,547        -              -              -              -              -              -       

     Total $300,420 $392,847 $90,000 $1,251 $17,441 $559 $1,457 $12
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The Public Utilities Commission leases space for antenna on the roof of their building under a long-term, 
noncancelable lease agreement. The lease expires in 2035. 

 
Cellular Antenna

Public Utilities Commission
Water Utility

Year Ending Lease Receivable
December 31, Principal Interest

2024 $179,129 $5,540
2025 184,504 5,706
2026 190,039 5,877
2027 195,741 6,054
2028 172,538 5,336

2029-2033 534,585 16,533
2034-2038 74,815 2,314

     Total $1,531,351 $47,360

 
The Public Utilities Commission recognized $179,489 of lease revenue and $9,951 of interest revenue for the 
year ended December 31, 2023 in relation to these lease receivables.  
 
 
Note 8 LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

A. DEBT  
 
The City issues general obligation bonds and equipment certificates to provide funds for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.  The reporting entity’s long-term debt is 
segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental activities and amounts to be repaid 
from business-type activities. 
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As of December 31, 2023, the governmental long-term bonded debt of the financial reporting entity 
consisted of the following: 
 

Interest Issue Maturity Original Payable
Primary Government Rates Date Date Issue 12/31/2023
Governmental Activities:

G.O. Tax Increment Bonds:
Refunding TIF Bonds Series 2017B 4.20 - 4.00 12/28/2017 2/1/2034 $705,000 $540,000

G.O. Improvement Bonds:
Improvement Bonds of 2009C 1.85 - 4.30 9/1/2009 2/1/2025 4,565,000 720,000
Improvement Bonds of 2010A 0.75 - 3.625 11/1/2010 2/1/2026 1,115,000 190,000
Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2011B 0.50 - 3.15 12/1/2011 2/1/2027 1,555,000 300,000
Improvement Bonds of 2012A 0.50 - 3.25 4/1/2012 2/1/2028 2,245,000 805,000
Improvement Bonds of 2012B 0.40 - 2.60 4/1/2012 10/1/2027 4,175,000 1,215,000
Improvement Bonds of 2014A 0.50 - 2.90 11/1/2014 2/1/2030 3,000,000 1,225,000
Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2017B 2.30 - 3.00 12/28/2017 2/1/2034 2,215,000 165,000

Total G.O. Improvement Bonds 18,870,000 4,620,000 
Other General Obligation Bonds:

Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2013B 3.00 - 3.50 9/1/2013 2/1/2029 4,025,000 1,830,000
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2016A 0.85 - 2.20 10/5/2016 2/1/2032 2,170,000 1,385,000
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2017A 3.00 - 3.50 9/7/2017 2/1/2033 2,130,000 1,540,000
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2018A 3.00 - 3.25 10/18/2018 2/1/2034 1,960,000 1,520,000
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2020A 1.60 - 2.00 11/5/2020 2/1/2036 2,275,000 2,015,000
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2023A 4.00 - 5.00 11/9/2023 2/1/2039 2,220,000 2,220,000
G.O. Abatement Bonds of 2019A 2.00 - 3.00 9/5/2019 2/1/2035 1,585,000 1,335,000
G.O. Abatement Bonds of 2021B 2.00 - 2.75 7/1/2021 2/1/2042 6,255,000 6,010,000
G.O. Temporary Bonds of 2022A 4.75 12/22/2022 12/1/2025 10,000,000 10,000,000

Total other general obligation bonds 32,620,000 27,855,000 
G.O. Revenue note - direct placement - PUC:

Taxable G.O. Wastewater Revenue Note of 2009E 2.90 11/10/2009 8/20/2029 26,370,232 9,575,000
G.O. Revenue bonds - PUC:

G.O. Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2021A 0.25 - 0.63 5/27/2021 10/15/2025 872,000 389,000
G.O. Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2021C 0.45 - 1.25 9/2/2021 2/1/2029 1,210,000 1,160,000
G.O. Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2021D 2.0 - 3.0 12/9/2021 2/1/2033 1,120,000 1,025,000
G.O. Utility Revenue Bonds of 2023B 4.25 - 5.00 11/9/2023 2/1/2039 4,575,000 4,575,000

Total general obligation revenue bonds - PUC 7,777,000 7,149,000 
Total bonded debt - governmental activities 86,342,232 49,739,000

Bond premium 725,516
Compensated absences N/A 687,614

Total governmental activities $86,342,232 $51,152,130

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated absences N/A $27,794

Total business-type activities $0 $27,794

Component Units:
EDA:

Note payable - Airport Ind Park/Kent 0.00 7/16/2015 7/16/2035 $350,000 $210,000
Note payable - Block 20 & 21 Soil 0.00 8/5/2010 12/31/2029 100,000 100,000
Note payable - Blandin 0.00 2016 2026 175,000 43,974
Note payable - EWCL 0.00 4/1/2020 10/1/2026 650,000 264,256
Note payable - Blandin 0.00 1/29/2021 1/29/2026 140,000 140,000
Special assessment payable 657,883 637,848
       Total EDA 2,072,883 1,396,078

Public Utilities:
Due to Primary Government - G.O. Revenue Note and Bond 34,147,232 16,724,000
Bond premium 228,831
       Total public utilities 34,147,232 16,952,831

       Total component units $36,220,115 $18,348,909
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2024 $35,000 $14,800 $1,310,000 $123,616 $1,165,000 $917,945
2025 40,000 13,815 1,175,000 81,163 11,280,000 911,152
2026 40,000 12,895 755,000 50,067 1,350,000 397,933
2027 45,000 11,918 715,000 29,447 1,370,000 357,752
2028 45,000 10,725 330,000 14,473 1,420,000 315,952
2029 50,000 9,300 165,000 7,240 1,460,000 272,768
2030 55,000 7,725 170,000 2,465 1,160,000 234,689
2031 50,000 6,150        -              -       1,190,000 202,831
2032 55,000 4,575        -              -       1,225,000 171,164
2033 60,000 2,850        -              -       1,085,000 139,933
2034 65,000 975        -              -       935,000 113,235
2035        -              -              -              -       790,000 92,174
2036        -              -              -              -       680,000 74,610
2037        -              -              -              -       530,000 59,250
2038        -              -              -              -       540,000 44,800
2039        -              -              -              -       560,000 29,900
2040        -              -              -              -       365,000 18,650
2041        -              -              -              -       370,000 11,300
2042        -              -              -              -       380,000 3,800

     Total $540,000 $95,728 $4,620,000 $308,471 $27,855,000 $4,369,838

G.O. Tax Increment Bonds
Governmental Activities

G.O. Improvement Bonds
Governmental Activities Governmental Activities

Other G.O. Bonds

 
Revenue Bonds and Notes

Year Ending PUC Component Unit
December 31, Principal Interest

2024 $1,968,000 $470,118
2025 2,177,000 475,742
2026 2,096,000 416,316
2027 2,157,000 354,127
2028 2,219,000 289,613

2029-2033 3,867,000 743,213
2034-2038 1,825,000 283,814

2039 415,000 8,819

     Total $16,724,000 $3,041,762
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Revenue Bonds and Notes
Year Ending EDA Component Unit
December 31, Principal Interest

2024 $17,500 $       -       
2025 17,500        -       
2026 17,500        -       
2027 17,500        -       
2028 17,500        -       

2029-2033 87,500        -       
2034-2035 35,000        -       

     Total $210,000 $0

 
CHANGE IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Balance
as restated Balance Due Within

12/31/20221
Additions Reductions 12/31/23 One Year

Governmental Activities:

  Bonds payable:
G.O. Tax increment bonds $580,000 $       -       ($40,000) $540,000 $35,000
G.O. Improvement bonds 6,040,000        -       (1,420,000) 4,620,000 1,310,000
Other G.O. bonds 26,765,000 2,220,000 (1,130,000) 27,855,000 1,165,000

G.O. Revenue bonds - PUC1 2,897,500 4,575,000 (323,500) 7,149,000 484,000

G.O. Revenue note - direct placement - PUC1 11,172,000        -       (1,597,000) 9,575,000 1,484,000
   Bond premium 747,801 35,700 (57,985) 725,516        -       
   Compensated absences * 643,823 43,791        -       687,614 90,877

Total governmental activities $48,846,124 $6,874,491 ($4,568,485) $51,152,130 $4,568,877

Business Type Activities:
   Compensated absences * $21,421 $6,373 $       -       $27,794 $25,979

Total business-type activities $21,421 $6,373 $0 $27,794 $25,979

Component Units:
   Note payables - EDA $901,262 $       -       ($143,032) $758,230 $17,500

Assessment payable - EDA 637,848        -              -       637,848        -       

   Due to primary government - PUC1 14,069,500 4,575,000 (1,920,500) 16,724,000 1,968,000
Unamortized premiums and discounts - PUC 83,705 152,736 (7,610) 228,831        -       

   Compensated absences - PUC * 280,634 32,187        -       312,821 214,287
Total component units $15,972,949 $4,759,923 ($2,071,142) $18,661,730 $2,199,787

* The change in compensated absences is presented as a net change. 
1 Beginning balances were restated due to a change in presentation of PUC related debt.

Because the City provided a general obligation pledge for the PUC's debt, effective January 1, 2023, the City began reporting the PUC's

debt as a liability. An offsetting receivable due from the PUC equal to the amount of outsatnding debt is also reported. There was no 
impact on net position as a result of this restatement.  
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TAXABLE NOTE PAYABLES - EDA 
 
In 2010, the EDA entered into a $100,000 mortgage agreement, without interest, with the Charles K. Blandin 
Foundation.  The proceeds of this note were used to finance soil correction of EDA land held for resale at Block 
20/21.  The EDA has pledged proceeds from the sale of Block 20/21 to payment of this note upon the earlier of 
the sale of Block 20/21 or the extended maturity date of the note (December 31, 2029). 
 
This note is a special limited obligation of the EDA.  This note shall not be payable from nor charged upon any 
funds other than the proceeds of the sale of Block 20/21, nor shall the EDA be subject to any liability hereon or 
have the powers to obligate itself to pay this note from funds other than the proceeds of the sale of Block 20/21 
and no holder of this note shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of any taxing power of the EDA or 
the City or any other public body, to pay this note, nor to enforce payment thereof against any property of the 
EDA or other public body other than that expressly pledged for payment of the note. 
 
On July 16, 2015, the EDA entered into a $350,000 mortgage agreement, without interest, with the Charles K. 
Blandin Foundation.  The proceeds of this note were used to finance the Economic Development Opportunity at 
the Grand Rapids Airport.  The note is payable in annual installments of $17,500 through the year 2035 
commencing one calendar year after the funds are disbursed.  The note may be fully or partially prepaid at any 
time. 
 
In 2017, the EDA obtained a loan from the Blandin Foundation in the amount of $175,000 for the purpose of 
providing financing for economic development projects.  The loan proceeds were used to provide loans to 
private developers.  The debt to the Blandin Foundation is payable solely from and to the extent of repayment of 
the developer loans.   
 
In 2020, the EDA entered into a $650,000 loan agreement with the Blandin Foundation. The loan proceeds were 
used to provide emergency working capital loans to local business. The loan matures on October 1, 2026. The 
interest rate is 0%. 
 
In 2021, the EDA entered into a $140,000 loan agreement with the Blandin Foundation. The loan matures on 
January 29, 2026. The interest rate is 0%.  
 
TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION WASTEWATER REVENUE NOTE, SERIES 2009E 
 
In 2009, the City authorized the issuance of the Taxable General Obligation Wastewater Revenue Note (Public 
Utilities Project), Series 2009E in the amount of $28,509,779, payable to the Minnesota Public Facilities 
Authority.  The bonds were closed in 2012 and the total draws made were $26,370,232.  As of December 31, 
2023, the outstanding balance on the note was $9,575,000. 
 
The Note is secured by first, all Letter of Credit proceeds; second, net revenues of the Public Utilities 
Wastewater Fund; and third, ad valorem taxes levied by the City in the event proceeds of the Letter of Credit 
and net revenues are insufficient to pay when due the principal and interest on the Note. 
 
The net revenues are supported by a Demand Charge Agreement between the City, Public Utilities Commission 
and Blandin Paper Company (the Company).  Among other things, the demand charge agreement requires the 
Company to pay 90% of the debt service on the Note. 
 
The demand charge is secured by an Irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by Nordea Bank Finland PLC. 
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In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the G.O. Utility Revenue Note and Bonds are 
recorded in the financial statements of the City due to its general obligation pledge on the debt. The Public 
Utilities Commission reports a payable due to the Primary Government equal to the amount of the debt reported 
by the City.  
 
REVENUE PLEDGED 

 
Future revenue pledged for the payment of long-term debt is as follows: 
 

Percent of Remaining Principal Pledged

Use of Total Term of Principal and Interest Revenue

Bond Issue Proceeds Type Debt Service Pledge and Interest Paid Received

G.O. Improvement, 2009C Infrastructure improvements Special assessments 24% 2010- $758,336 $391,866 $323,733

(Build America Bond) Federal BAB credit 10% 2024

Ad Valorem Taxes 66%

G.O. Improvement, 2010A Infrastructure improvements, Special assessments 34% 2012- $200,436 $67,750 $58,822

refund existing debt Ad Valorem Taxes 66% 2026

G.O. Improvement, 2011B Infrastructure improvements, Special assessments 56% 2012- $319,150 $80,143 $52,404

refund existing debt Ad Valorem Taxes 46% 2026

G.O. Improvement, 2012A Infrastructure improvements Special assessments 32% 2013- $871,709 $182,868 $100,931

Ad Valorem Taxes 68% 2027

G.O. Improvement, 2012B Street reconstruction MSA allotments 100% 2013- $1,275,940 $322,025 $322,025

2027

G.O. Street Reconstruction, 2013B Street reconstruction Ad Valorem Taxes 100% 2014- $2,021,206 $333,738 $124,982

2029

Street reconstruction, abatement,

G.O. Improvement, 2014A CIP Projects, and equipment Special assessments 20% 2014- $1,335,425 $238,480 $226,971

Ad Valorem Taxes 80% 2029

Street reconstruction, abatement,

G.O. Street Reconstruction, 2016A CIP Projects, and equipment Special assessments 80% 2016- $1,518,630 $169,760 $164,127

Ad Valorem Taxes 20% 2032

Street reconstruction, abatement,

G.O. Street Reconstruction, 2017A CIP Projects, and equipment Special assessments 13% 2018- $1,805,837 $181,225 $168,261

Ad Valorem Taxes 87% 2033

G.O. Refunding, 2017B Refund of 2006A, 2007A, Special assessments 11% 2018- $803,203 $360,300 $90,906

2008A, 2008B and 2008C bonds Tax Increment 28% 2034

Ad Valorem Taxes 61%

Street reconstruction, abatement,

G.O. Improvement, 2018A CIP Projects, and equipment Ad Valorem Taxes 81% 2018- $1,793,019 $168,538 $151,755

Special assessments 19% 2033

G.O. Improvement, 2019A Abatement Bond Ad Valorem Taxes 92% 2019- $1,523,455 $123,880 $150,922

Tax abatement 8% 2035

G.O. Street Reconstruction, 2020A CIP Projects, and equipment Special assessments 92% 2020- $2,232,123 $171,013 $179,258

Ad Valorem Taxes 8% 2036

G.O. Improvement, 2021B CIP projects, Abatement Bond Ad Valorem Taxes 80% 2022- $7,283,357 $382,931 $410,914

Tax abatement 20% 2042

City Sales Tax

G.O. Temporary, 2022A CIP projects, Abatement Bond, Ad Valorem Taxes 34% 2022- $10,950,000 $447,292 $1,573,230

and equipment Tax abatement 66% 2025

Street reconstruction, abatement,

G.O. Street Reconstruction, 2023A CIP Projects, and equipment Ad Valorem Taxes 100% 2023- $3,097,212 $       -       $       -       

2039

Revenue Pledged Current Year
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B. LESSEE LEASES 
 
The City has entered into lease agreements to lease various assets. Lease agreements that qualify as 
other than short-term leases under GASB 87 have been recorded at the present value of the future 
minimum lease payments as of the date of lease commencement.  
 
As of December 31, 2023, the City had 13 outstanding vehicle leases. Each lease has terms of 48 to 60 
monthly payments from commencement of the lease, ranging from $551 to $964. The lease liability is 
measured at discount rates ranging from 7.48% to 8.37%, which are the rates implicit in the leases.  
 
As a result of the leases, the City’s has recorded right-to-use leased assets with a net book value of 
$482,257 as of December 31, 2023.  
 
Lease liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, was as follows:  
 

Balance Balance Due Within
12/31/22 Additions Reductions 12/31/23 One Year

Governmental activities: 
Lease liabilities $       -       $458,786 ($26,503) $432,283 $81,117

Business-type activities: 
Lease liabilities $       -       $46,532 ($1,679) $44,853 $8,025

 
Total expense related to the right-to-use leased asset for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as 
follows:  

 
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Amortization expense by asset class:

Right-to-use leased assets - vehicles $32,288 $2,327
Total amortization expense 32,288 2,327

Variable lease expense        -              -       
Interest on lease liabilities 8,748 639
Other lease expense        -              -       

Total expense recognized in relation to right-to-use leased assets $8,748 $639
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Principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023 was as 
follows:  
 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2024 $81,117 $31,342 $8,025 $3,451
2025 87,778 24,682 8,723 2,753
2026 94,985 17,474 9,482 1,994
2027 99,963 9,711 10,307 1,169
2028 68,440 2,209 8,316 293

Total $432,283 $85,418 $44,853 $9,660

Governmental Activities Business- Type Activities 
Lease Liabilites Lease Liabilities

 
 
Note 9 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 
 
A. PLAN DESCRIPTION 

 
The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA).  PERA’s defined 
benefit pension plans are established and administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 
353 and 356.  PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

 
1. General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF) 

 
All full-time (with the exception of employees covered by PEPFF) and certain part-time employees of 
the City are covered by the General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF).  GERF members belong to 
the Coordinated Plan.  Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security. 
 

2. Public Employees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFF) 
 

The PEPFF, originally established for police officers and firefighters not covered by a local relief 
association, now covers all police officers and firefighters hired since 1980.  Effective July 1, 1999, the 
PEPFF also covers police officers and firefighters belonging to local relief associations that elected to 
merge with and transfer assets and administration to PERA. 

 
B. BENEFITS PROVIDED 

 
PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Benefit provisions are established by state statute 
and can only be modified by the state legislature.  Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to 
benefits but are not receiving them yet, are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated 
their public service. 
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1. GERF Benefits 
 

Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable 
service, age, and years of credit at termination of service.  Two methods are used to compute benefits 
for PERA’s Coordinated members.  Members hired prior to July 1, 1989 receive the higher of Method 
1 or Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after June 30, 1989.  Under Method 
1, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 1.2% for each of the first ten years of service and 1.7% 
for each additional year.  Under Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated Plan members is 1.7% for 
all years of service.  For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age plus 
years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65.  For members hired on or after July 1, 1989, 
normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66. 

 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January.  The postretirement increase is equal 
to 50% of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) announced by the SSA, with a minimum increase of 
at least 1% and a maximum of 1.5%.  Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at 
least a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase.  
Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full year as of the June 
30 before the effective date of the increase will receive a reduced prorated increase. In 2023, 
legislation repealed the statute delaying increases for members retiring before full retirement age. 
 

2. PEPFF Benefits 
 

Benefits for the PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2010 but before July 1, 2014 vest on a 
prorated basis from 50% after five years up to 100% after ten years of credited service.  Benefits for 
PEPFF members first hired after June 30, 2014 vest on a prorated basis from 50% after ten years up to 
100% after twenty years of credited service.  The annuity accrual rate is 3% of average salary for each 
year of service.  For PEPFF members who were first hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is 
available when age plus years of service equal at least 90. 

 
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January.  The postretirement increase is fixed 
at 1%.  Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least 36 months as of the June 
30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase.  Recipients receiving the 
annuity or benefit for at least 25 months but less than 36 months as of the June 30 before the effective 
date of the increase will receive a reduced prorated increase. 

 
C. CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions.  Contribution rates 
can only be modified by the state Legislature. 
 
1. GERF Contributions 

 
Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50% of their annual covered salary in fiscal 
year 2023 and the City was required to contribute 7.50% for Coordinated Plan members.  The City’s 
contributions to the GERF for the year ended December 31, 2023 were $317,454.  The City’s 
contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute. 
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2. PEPFF Contributions 
 

Police and Fire Plan members were required to contribute 11.80% of their annual covered salary in 
fiscal year 2023 and the City was required to contribute 17.70% for Police and Fire Plan members. The 
City’s contributions to the PEPFF for the year ended December 31, 2023 were $327,515.  The City’s 
contributions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute. 

 
D.  PENSION COSTS 

 
1. GERF Pension Costs 

 
At December 31, 2023, the City reported a liability of $2,963,701 for its proportionate share of 
GERF’s net pension liability.  The City’s net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of 
Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million.  The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer 
contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation.  The 
State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City totaled 
$81,757.   
 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The City’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions received by 
PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2022 through June 
30, 2023, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s participating 
employers.  The City’s proportionate share was 0.0530% at the end of the measurement period and 
0.0537% for the beginning of the period. 
 

City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $2,963,701
State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net 

pension liability associated with the City 81,757             
Total $3,045,458

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $471,056 for its 
proportionate share of the GERF’s pension expense.  In addition, the City recognized an additional 
$367 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s 
contribution of $16 million to the GERF. 
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At December 31, 2023, the City reported its proportionate share of the GERF’s deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and 
  actual economic experience $97,329 $20,282
Changes in actuarial assumptions 476,739 812,325
Difference between projected and
  actual investment earnings        -       106,463
Changes in proportion 33,494 27,828
Contributions paid to PERA
  subsequent to the measurement date 162,423        -       

Total $769,985 $966,898

 
The $162,423 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended December 31, 2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Year Ending Pension 

December 31, Expense
2024 $78,117
2025 (433,720)
2026 60,560
2027 (64,293)
2028        -       

Thereafter        -        
 
2. PEPFF Pension Costs 

 
At December 31, 2023, the City reported a liability of $2,426,252 for its proportionate share of the 
PEPFF’s net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of that date.  The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from 
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of 
PERA’s participating employers.  The City’s proportionate share was 0.1405% at the end of the 
measurement period and 0.1363% for the beginning of the period. 
 
The State of Minnesota also contributed $18 million to PEPFF during the plan fiscal year ended June 
30, 2023.  The contribution consisted of $9 million in direct state aid that meets the definition of a 
special funding situation and $9 million in supplemental state aid that does not meet the definition of a 
special funding situation.  The $ 9 million direct state aid was paid on October 1, 2022.  Thereafter, by 
October 1 of each year, the state will pay $9 million to the PEPFF until full funding is reached or July 
1, 2048, whichever is earlier.  The $9 million in supplemental state aid will continue until the fund is 
90% funded, or until the State Patrol Plan (administered by the Minnesota State Retirement System) is 

74 174

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

90% funded, whichever occurs later. The State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability associated with the City totaled $97,691. 
 

City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $2,426,252
State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net 

pension liability associated with the City 97,691             
Total $2,523,943

 
The State of Minnesota is included as a non-employer contributing entity in the PEPFF Schedule of 
Employer Allocations and Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer, Current Reporting Period Only 
(pension allocation schedules) for the $9 million in direct state aid.  PEPFF employers need to 
recognize their proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s pension expense (and grant revenue) 
under GASB 68 special funding situation accounting and financial reporting requirements.  For the 
year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $775,781 for its proportionate 
share of the Police and Fire Plan’s pension expense.  The City recognized an additional ($5,884) as 
pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s 
contribution of $9 million to the PEPFF.   
 
The State of Minnesota is not included as a non-employer contributing entity in the Police and Fire 
Pension Plan pension allocation schedules for the $9 million in supplemental state aid.  The City 
recognized $12,645 for the year ended December 31, 2023 as revenue and an offsetting reduction of 
net pension liability for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s on-behalf contributions to 
the Police and Fire Fund.  
 
At December 31, 2023, the City reported its proportionate share of the PEPFF’s deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and 
  actual economic experience $670,369 $       -       
Changes in actuarial assumptions 2,822,617 3,412,044
Difference between projected and
  actual investment earnings        -       124,089
Changes in proportion 121,488 47,964
Contributions paid to PERA
  subsequent to the measurement date 166,183        -       

Total $3,780,657 $3,584,097
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The $166,183 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended December 31, 2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Year Ending Pension 

December 31, Expense
2024 $122,210

2025 28,648
2026 608,652
2027 (136,931)
2028 (592,202)

Thereafter        -        
 
The net pension liability will be liquidated by the Pension Benefit Internal Service Fund. 

 
E.  ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS  

 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using an individual 
entry-age normal actuarial cost method and the following actuarial assumptions: 

 
Inflation 2.25% per year
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%  

 
The long-term investment rate of return is based on a review of inflation and investment return 
assumptions from a number of national investment consulting firms.  The review provided a range of 
investment return rates deemed to be reasonable by the actuary.  An investment return of 7.00% was 
deemed to be within that range of reasonableness for financial reporting purposes. 
 
Benefit increases after retirement are assumed to be 1.25% for the GERF and 1.00% for the PEPFF. 
 
Salary growth assumptions in the GERF range in annual increments from 10.25% after one year of 
service to 3.0% after 27 years of service. In the PEPFF, salary growth assumptions range from 11.75% 
after one year of service to 3.0% after 24 years of service. 
 
Mortality rates for GERF were based on the Pub-2010 General Employee Mortality Table.  Mortality 
rates for PEPFF were based on the Pub-2010 Public Safety Employee Mortality tables.  The tables are 
adjusted slightly to fit PERA’s experience.  
 
Actuarial assumptions for GERF are reviewed every four years.  The most recent four-year experience 
study for GERF was completed in 2022.  The assumption changes were adopted by the Board and 
become effective with the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation.  The most recent four-year experience study 
for PEPFF was completed in 2020 and adopted by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 
2021 actuarial valuation. 
 
The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2023: 
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General Employees Fund 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
 The investment return assumption and single discount rate were changed from 6.50% to 7.00%. 
 
Changes in Plan Provisions: 
 An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $170.1 million was contributed to the Plan 

on October 1, 2023. 
 The vesting period of those hired after June 30, 2010, was changed from five years of allowable 

service to three years of allowable service. 
 The benefit increase delay for early retirements on or after January 1, 2024, was eliminated. 
 A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 2.50% minus the actual 2024 adjustment will be 

payable in a lump sum for calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024. 
 

Police and Fire Fund 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
 The investment return assumption was changed from 6.50% to 7.00%. 
 The single discount rate changed from 5.40% to 7.00%. 
 
Changes in Plan Provisions: 
 An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $19.4 million was contributed to the Plan 

on October 1, 2023. 
 Vesting requirement for new hires after June 30, 2014, was changed from a graded 20-year vesting 

schedule to a graded 10-year vesting schedule, with 50% vesting after five years, increasing 
incrementally to 100% after 10 years. 

 A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 3.00% will be payable in a lump sum for 
calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024. 

 Psychological treatment is required effective July 1, 2023, prior to approval for a duty disability 
benefit for a psychological condition relating to the member’s occupation. 

 The total and permanent duty disability benefit was increased, effective July 1, 2023. 
 

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the 
reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major 
asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting 
the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages.  The target allocation 
and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 

 
Target Long-Term Expected 

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic equity 33.5% 5.10%
International equity 16.5% 5.30%
Fixed income 25% 0.75%
Private markets 25% 5.90%

Total 100%  
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F.  DISCOUNT RATE 
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2023 was 7.00%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and 
employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary 
net position of the GERF and PEPFF were projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 
 

G.  PENSION LIABILITY SENSITIVITY 
 

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the 
discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower 
(6.00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Proportionate share of the 
  GERF net pension liability $5,243,024 $2,963,701 $1,088,870
Proportionate share of the 
  PEPFF net pension liability $4,813,974 $2,426,252 $463,226  

 
H.  PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

 
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-
issued PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information.  That report may be obtained at www.mnpera.org. 

 
I.  PENSION EXPENSE 

 
Pension expense recognized by the City for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

 
GERF $471,056
PEPFF 775,781
Fire Relief (Note 11) (91,252)

Total $1,155,585

 
 

Note 10 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN  
 
Four council members of the City of Grand Rapids are covered by the Public Employees Defined Contribution 
Plan (PEDCP), a multiple-employer deferred compensation plan administered by PERA. The PEDCP is a tax 
qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of 
employees are tax deferred until time of withdrawal. 
 
Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less administrative 
expenses. Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions, including the employee and 
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employer contribution rates for those qualified personnel who elect to participate. An eligible elected official 
who decides to participate contributes 5% of salary which is matched by the elected official's employer. For 
ambulance service personnel, employer contributions are determined by the employer, and for salaried 
employees must be a fixed percentage of salary. Employer contributions for volunteer personnel may be a unit 
value for each call or period of alert duty. Employees who are paid for their services may elect to make member 
contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer share. Employer and employee contributions are 
combined and used to purchase shares in one or more of the seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental 
Investment Fund. For administering the plan, PERA receives 2% of employer contributions and twenty-five 
hundredths of 1% (.0025) of the assets in each member's account annually. 
 
Total contributions made by the City during fiscal year 2023 were: 
 

Required
Employer 

Employee (Pension Expense) Employee Employer Rate
$1,683 $1,683 5% 5% 5%

Contribution Amount Percentage of Covered Payroll

 
 
 
Note 11 SINGLE EMPLOYER PLAN 
 
A. PLAN DESCRIPTION 

 
All members of the Grand Rapids Fire Department are covered by a defined benefit plan administered by 
the Grand Rapids Fire Department Relief Association (Relief Association). The Plan is a single employer 
retirement plan and is established and administered in accordance with Minnesota Statute, Chapter 424A 
and 424B. 
 

B. BENEFITS PROVIDED 
 

The Relief Association provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members and benefits 
to survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established in accordance with the State Statute  
and vest after ten years of credited service. The defined retirement benefits are based on a member’s years 
of service. Benefit provisions can be amended by the Relief Association within the parameters provided by 
State Statutes. 

 
Twenty Year Service Pension 
A member of the Association who shall have served in the Grand Rapids Fire Department for at least 20 
years, but has not reached the age of 50 years, may retire from said department and be placed on the 
deferred pension roll.  When the member reaches the age of 50 years, upon application, the member shall 
be paid the sum of $6,500 for each full year of active service.  For members retiring prior to January 1, 
2015, during the time the member is on the deferred pension roll, the Association shall add to the amount 
payable to such member interest, compounded annually, at the rate of 5% per year.  Fully vested members 
will be eligible to receive the final year on a pro-rated basis.  For members retiring after January 1, 2015, 
the amount payable will be transferred to a separate investment vehicle held by the Relief Association.  The 
deferred member bears the full investment risk subsequent to transfer.  When the member applies for their 
pension, the deferred service pension shall be equal to the fair value of the member’s separate investment 
vehicle. 
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Disability Benefits 
A member who becomes permanently disabled from being an active firefighter in the Fire Department of 
the City of Grand Rapids will be eligible to collect a disability benefit in an amount equal to his/her full 
years of active service multiplied by the yearly lump sum service pension rate.  If a member receives a 
disability benefit and subsequently returns to active duty, the total disability benefit will be deducted from 
his/her service pension.  

 
Survivor Benefits 
To be eligible to receive a survivor benefit, a participant must satisfy the following requirements: 

 
(i) Have died in active service with the Fire Department; or 
(ii) Have died prior to receiving his retirement benefit.  

 
If a participant in active service dies, the participant’s beneficiary shall receive a lump sum payment equal 
to 100% of the participant’s accrued benefit. 
 
If a participant who has retired or ceased from active service dies, the participant’s beneficiary shall receive 
a lump sum survivor benefit determined as follows: 
 

Years of active 
service credited 

to participant
multiplied by

Benefit level in 
effect for 

participant
multiplied by

Vesting 
percentage for 

completed 
years of active  

 
The survivor benefit level will be the benefit level in effect at the participant’s separation date.  However, if 
the participant had a break in service, the survivor benefit level shall be determined as described in the 
definition of break in service. 
 
Such survivor benefit shall be paid to the participant’s beneficiary as soon as administratively feasible 
following the participant’s death and the approval of the survivor benefit payment request form.  
A participant’s beneficiary shall be as follows: 
  

(a) The participant’s surviving spouse; or 
(b) If no surviving spouse, the participant’s surviving children; or 
(c) If no surviving spouse or surviving children, the participant’s designated beneficiary or 

beneficiaries. 
  

State Supplemental Benefits 
Minnesota Statute 424A.10 provides for the payment of a supplemental benefit equal to ten percent of a 
regular lump sum distribution up to a maximum of $1,000.  The supplemental benefit is in lieu of a State 
income tax exclusion for lump sum distributions and will no longer be available if State tax law is modified 
to exclude lump sum distributions from State income tax.  The Association qualifies for these benefits. 
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C. EMPLOYEES COVERED BY BENEFIT TERMS 
 

At December 31, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Retired members entitled to benefits,
  but have not received them 12

Current members:  
Fully vested (20 years or more) 3
Partially vested (10 years to 19 years) 8
Nonvested (less than 10 years) 19

Total 42

 
D. CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 424A.092 sets the minimum contribution requirement for the City and State aid 
on an annual basis. These statutes are established and amended by the state legislature.  The Relief 
Association is comprised of volunteers; therefore, members have no contribution requirements.  The City 
receives the State aid contribution and is required by state statutes to pass this through as payment to the 
Relief Association.  The City’s contributions to the Relief Association for the year ended December 31, 
2023 were $5,000.  State aid contributions for the year ended December 31, 2023 were $147,629.   

 
E. NET PENSION LIABILITY 

 
The City’s net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2023.  
 

F. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 
 

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Expected long-term investment return 6.00%
20-year municipal bond yield N/A
Salary increases 2.50%
Inflation None
Age of service retirement 50
Post retirement benefit increase N/A  

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These asset class estimates are 
combined to produce the portfolio long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the current asset allocation percentage (or target allocation, if available) and by adding 
expected inflation.  All results are then rounded to the nearest quarter percentage point. 
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The best-estimate of expected future real rates of return were developed by aggregating data from several 
published capital market assumption surveys and deriving a single best-estimate based on the average 
survey values.  These capital market assumptions reflect both historical market experience as well as 
diverse views regarding anticipated future returns.  The expected inflation assumption was developed based 
on an analysis of historical experience blended with forward-looking expectations available in market data. 

 
Best estimates of geometric real and nominal rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
pension plan’s asset allocation as of the measurement date are summarized in the following table: 

 
Portfolio Expected

Asset Class Weight Class Return

Cash 5% 2.00%
Fixed income 37% 3.90%
Equities 57% 7.90%
Other 1% 7.00%

Total portfolio 100% 6.00%  
 

G. DISCOUNT RATES  
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.00%.  The liability discount rate was 
developed using the alternative method described in paragraph 43 of GASB 67, which states that “if the 
evaluations required by paragraph 41 can be made with sufficient reliability without a separate projection 
of cash flows into and out of the pension plan, alternative methods may be applied in making the 
evaluations.”  The determination of the discount rate assumed that the plan’s current overfunded status, 
combined with Minnesota statutory funding requirements, provide sufficient reliability that projected plan 
assets will be adequate to pay future retiree benefits.  Therefore, the plan’s long-term expected return on 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 
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H. CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at January 1, 2023 $2,145,637 $3,241,079 ($1,095,442)
Changes for the year:

Service cost 80,644        -       80,644
Interest cost 132,647        -       132,647
Assumption changes        -              -              -       
Plan changes        -              -              -       
Contributions - employer        -       5,000 (5,000)
On behalf contributions - State of MN        -       147,629 (147,629)
Projected investment return        -       197,727 (197,727)
Gain or loss        -       (42,643) 42,643
Benefit payments , (31,000) (31,000)        -       
Administrative expense        -       (12,886) 12,886
Other changes        -              -              -       

Net changes 182,291 263,827 (81,536)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $2,327,928 $3,504,906 ($1,176,978)

Increase (Decrease)

 
 

I. PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) SENSITIVITY  
 
The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.00 
percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1-percentage-point lower (5.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.00 percent) than the current rate:  

 
1% Decrease 1% Increase

in Discount Rate Discount Rate in Discount Rate
(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%)

Net pension liability (asset) ($1,115,101) ($1,176,978) ($1,235,785)  
 
J. PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
Relief Association financial report.  That report may be obtained by writing to Grand Rapids Fire 
Department Relief Association, 104 SE 11th Street, Grand Rapids, Minnesota, 55744. 

 
  

83 183

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

K. PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RLEATED TO PENSIONS 

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of ($91,252).  The City also 
recognized $147,629 for the year ended December 31, 2023, as pension expense (and grant revenue) for the 
State of Minnesota’s on-behalf contribution to the plan.  At December 31, 2023, the City reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between projected and
  actual investment earnings $328,607 $       -       
Differences between expected and 
  actual economic experience 34,577 40,428
Changes in actuarial assumptions 32,396 50,915

Total $395,580 $91,343

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended Expense
December 31, Amount

2024 $82,183
2025 97,742
2026 134,894
2027 6,226
2028 (16,808)

Thereafter        -        
 
 

Note 12 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 
 
A. PLAN DESCRIPTION 

 
In addition to providing the pension benefits described in Note 9 and 10, the City provides post- 
employment health care benefits, as defined in paragraph B, through The Operating Engineers Local #49 
Health and Welfare Fund (the plan).  The plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by a plan administrator selected by the plan.  The authority to provide these benefits is 
established in Minnesota Statutes Sections 471.61 Subd. 2a and 299A.465.  The benefits, benefit levels, 
employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the City and can be amended by the 
City through its personnel manual and collective bargaining agreements with employee groups.  No assets 
are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 

 
B. BENEFITS PROVIDED 

 
Clerical and Public Works Employees 
Clerical and public works employees who retire at age 55 or older with 5 or more years of service 
may continue medical coverage in the Operating Engineer Local #49 Plan by paying full premiums 
from their City and State health savings accounts. Once these accounts are depleted, the City is 
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required to allow retirees to continue participation in the plan until age 65. The City is required to pay 
$100 per month and the retiree is required to pay the remaining portion of the premium cost. The 
premium is a blended rate premium determined on the entire active and retired population. Since the 
projected claims costs for the retirees exceed the premium paid by retirees, the retirees are receiving an 
implicit rate subsidy (benefit). 
 
Police and Sergeants 
Police and sergeant employees who retire at age 50 or older with 5 or more years of service, or any age 
with 30 years of service (if hired before 7/1/89), or whose age plus service is at least 90, may continue 
medical coverage in the City Plan by paying full premiums from their City and State health savings 
accounts. Once these accounts are depleted, the City is required to allow retirees to continue 
participation in the Plan until age 65. The City is required to pay $100 per month and the retiree is 
required to pay the remaining portion of the premium cost. The premium is a blended rate premium 
determined on the entire active and retired population. Since the projected claims costs for the retirees 
exceed the premium paid by retirees, the retirees are receiving an implicit rate subsidy (benefit). 
 
Exempt and Library Employees 
Exempt and library employees who retire at age 55 and older with 3 or more years of service, or any 
age with 30 years of service (if hired before 7/1/89), or whose age plus service is at least 90, may 
continue medical coverage in the City Plan until age 65. The retiree is required to pay 100% of their 
premium cost. The premium is a blended rate premium determined on the entire active and retired 
population. Since the projected claims costs for the retirees exceed the premium paid by retirees, the 
retirees are receiving an implicit rate subsidy (benefit). 

 
C. PARTICIPANTS 

 
At December 31, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Active employees electing coverage 45
Retirees electing coverage 1
Spouses electing coverage 1

Total 47

 
D. TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 
 

The City’s total OPEB liability of $280,158 was measured as of January 1, 2023 and was determined by an 
actuarial valuation dated January 1, 2023.  Changes in the total OPEB liability during 2023 were: 
 

Balance - beginning of year $22,253
Changes for the year:

Service cost 1,281
Interest cost 471
Plan changes        -       
Differences between expected and actual experience 289,929
Changes in assumptions (33,776)
Benefit payments        -       
Net changes 257,905

Balance - end of year $280,158

 
There were no plan changes since the measurement date of January 1, 2023.  
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E. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND OTHER INPUTS 
 

The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 
 

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases varied by contract
Discount rate 4.00%
20-year muncipal bond yield 4.00%  

 
Since the plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, both the discount rate and the investment rate of return 
was based on published rate information for 20-year high quality, tax exempt, general obligation municipal 
bonds as of the measurement date.   
 
Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Headcount-Weighted Mortality Tables 
(General, Safety) with MP-2021 Generational Improvement Scale.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023 valuation are similar to those used to value pension 
liabilities for Minnesota public employees. The rates are based on the four-year experience study for the 
Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota Police and Fire Plan completed in 2020 and the 
four-year experience study for the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota General 
Employees Plan completed in 2019.  

 
The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2023:  

 Health care trend rates were added since the plan now has benefits where health care trend rates 
should be applied.  

 The mortality tables were updated from the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Headcount-
Weighted Mortality Tables (General, Safety) with MP-2020 Generational Improvement Scale to 
the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Headcount-Weighted Mortality Tables (General, Safety) 
with MP-2021 Generational Improvement Scale.  

 The inflation rate was changed from 2.00% to 2.50%.  
 The discount rate was changed from 2.00% to 4.00%.  
 The retirement, withdrawal, and salary increase rates for public safety employees were updated to 

reflect the latest experience study.  
 These changes decreased the liability $33,776. 

 
F. SENSITIVITY OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE 

 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (3.00%) or 1% higher (5.00%) than the 
current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)

Total OPEB liability $299,092 $280,158 $262,873  
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G. SENSITIVITY OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE HEALTHCARE 
COST TREND RATES 

 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1% lower (5.50% decreasing to 
4.00% over 6 years and then to 3.00% over the next 48 years) or 1% higher (7.50% decreasing to 6.00% 
over 6 years and then to 5.00% over the next 48 years) than the current healthcare cost trend rates (6.50% 
decreasing to 5.00% over 6 years and then to 4.00% over the next 48 years):  
 

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability $265,421 $280,158 $295,963  
 

H. OPEB EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED 
TO OPEB 

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized $50,421 of OPEB expense.  At December 31, 
2023, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and 
  actual economic experience $231,943 $5,337
Changes in actuarial assumptions 561 27,974
Contributions paid subsequent
  to the measurement date 19,224        -       

Total $251,728 $33,311

 
The $19,224 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year 
ended December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

OPEB
Year Ended Expense

December 31, Amount
2024 $48,604
2025 48,612
2026 50,744
2027 51,233
2028        -       

Thereafter        -        
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Note 13 TAX ABATEMENTS – PAY-AS-YOU-GO TAX INCREMENT 
 

A. TAX INCREMENT DISTRICTS 
 
 The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the State of Minnesota Office of the State 

Auditor (OSA).  Any disallowed claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the 
applicable fund.  Management has indicated that they are not aware of any instances of noncompliance 
which would have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
B. TAX ABATEMENTS – PAY-AS-YOU-GO TAX INCREMENT 

 
The City provides tax abatements pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 469.174 to 469.1794 (Tax Increment 
Financing) through a pay-as-you-go note program.  Tax increment financing (TIF) can be used to 
encourage private development, redevelopment, renovation and renewal, growth in low-to-moderate-
income housing, and economic development within the City.  TIF captures the increase in tax capacity 
and property taxes from development or redevelopment to provide funding for the related project.     
 
The City has entered into tax increment pay-as-you-go agreements.  The agreements are not a general 
obligation of the City and are payable solely from available tax increment.  Accordingly, these 
agreements are not reflected in the financial statements of the City.  Details of the pay-as-you-go notes 
are as follows: 

TIF District #1-6, Old Hospital: 
 
Issued in 2008 (2008B) in the principal sum of $307,500 with an interest rate of 7.75 % per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2010 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2032.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest 
payments will be completed February 1, 2032.  The City shall have no obligation to pay any unpaid 
balance of principal or accrued interest that may remain after the final payment on February 1, 2032.  
The current year abatement (TIF note payments) amounted to $35,335.  At December 31, 2023, the 
principal amount outstanding on the note was $307,500. 
 
TIF District #1-7, Block 37: 
 
Issued in 2008 (2008A) in the principal sum of $389,300 with an interest rate of 7.25% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2009 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2035.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest 
payments will be completed February 1, 2035.  The current year abatement (TIF note payments) 
amounted to $14,962.  At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was 
$389,300. 
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TIF District #1-8, Lakewood Heights: 
 
Issued in 2013 (2013A) in the principal sum of $350,000 with an interest rate of 5.00% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2013 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2035.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for street, utilities, right-of-way, land acquisition, 
and other public improvements.  Principal and interest payments will be completed February 1, 
2039.  The City shall have no obligation to pay any unpaid balance of principal or accrued interest 
that may remain after the final payment on February 1, 2039.  The current year abatement (TIF note 
payments) amounted to $37,475.  At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the 
note was $166,339. 

 
TIF District #1-10, River Hills Apartments: 
 
Issued in 2017 (2016A) in the principal sum of $300,000 with an interest rate of 4.00% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2017 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2033.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest 
payments will be completed February 1, 2033.  The current year abatement (TIF note payments) 
amounted to $30,879.  At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was 
$180,711. 
 
Issued in 2018 (2017B) in the principal sum of $300,000 with an interest rate of 4.00% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2018 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2034.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest 
payments will be completed February 1, 2034.  The current year abatement (TIF note payments) 
amounted to $32,732.  At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was 
$194,619. 

 
TIF District #1-13, Unique Opportunities Apartments: 
 
Issued in 2021 (2021A) in the principal sum of $372,000 with an interest rate of 5.00% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2023 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including August 1, 2038.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment derived 
from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note provides for 
payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six months.  The 
payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest payments will be 
completed August 1, 2038. The current year abatement (TIF note payments) amounted to $23,212.  
At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was $366,290. 
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TIF District #1-12, The Pillars: 
 
Issued in 2022 (2022A) in the principal sum of $1,751,833 with an interest rate of 4.75% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2022 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2030.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest 
payments will be completed February 1, 2030.  The current year abatement (TIF note payments) 
amounted to $105,089.  At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was 
$1,689,291. 
 
TIF District #1-11, Rebound (Sawmill): 
 
Issued in 2023 (2023A) in the principal sum of $1,250,000 with an interest rate of 5.5% per annum.  
Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2023 and each February 1 and August 1 thereafter 
to and including February 1, 2047.  Payments are payable solely from available tax increment 
derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to the City.  The pay-as-you-go note 
provides for payment to the developer equal to 90% of all tax increment received in the prior six 
months.  The payment reimburses the developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest 
payments will be completed February 1, 2047.  The current year abatement (TIF note payments) 
amounted to $31,934.  At December 31, 2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was 
$1,244,611. 

 
1st Avenue Condominiums Abatement: 
 
Issued in 2015, this Taxable Limited Revenue Note, Series 2015 in the principal sum of $320,000 
with an interest rate of 3.00% per annum.  Principal and interest shall be paid on August 1, 2015 and 
each February 1 and August 1 thereafter to and including February 1, 2030.  Payments are payable 
solely from available tax abatement derived from the developed/redeveloped property and paid to 
the City and to Itasca County.  The Taxable Limited Revenue Note provides for payment to the 
developer equal to all tax abatement received in the prior six months.  The payment reimburses the 
developer for public improvements.  Principal and interest payments will be completed February 1, 
2030.  The current year abatement (TIF note payments) amounted to $45,427.  At December 31, 
2023, the principal amount outstanding on the note was $11,804. 

 
C. ARBITRAGE 
 
 The City has on occasion, issued greater than $5 million of bonds in a given year (as listed in Footnote 

8) and, therefore; is required to rebate excess investment income relating to these issues to the federal 
government.  The City calculates arbitrage rebate every five years as permitted by arbitrage 
regulations.  The extent of the City’s liability for arbitrage rebates for bond issues not currently 
requiring five year rebate calculations is not determinable at this time.  However, in the opinion of 
management, any such liability would be immaterial. 

 
 
  

90 190

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

Note 14 CONTINGENCIES 
 

A. LITIGATION 
 
 Existing and pending lawsuits, claims and other actions in which the City is a defendant are either 

covered by insurance; of an immaterial amount; or, in the judgment of the City management, remotely 
recoverable by plaintiffs. 

B. FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDS 

 
 Amounts received or receivable from federal and state agencies are subject to agency audit and 

adjustment.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of 
the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of funds which may be disallowed by the agencies cannot be 
determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

C. TAX INCREMENT DISTRICTS 

 
 The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the State of Minnesota Office of the State 

Auditor (OSA).  Any disallowed claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the 
applicable fund.  Management has indicated that they are not aware of any instances of noncompliance 
which would have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
 

Note 15 OTHER DEFERRED DEBITS AND CREDITS 
 
During 2011-2012, Grand Rapids PUC constructed landfill sites to dispose of industrial waste from UPM 
Blandin Paper. Cost of the sites is deferred and expensed over the estimated useful life of the individual site. A 
portion of the cost for the Landfill Phase 8 site was reimbursed by UPM Blandin Paper and is recorded as 
a deferred credit. These deferred credits are amortized as revenue over the life of the landfill. A portion of 
the 2011A bonds were issued for the landfill phase 8 project that finished construction in January 2013. 
UPM Blandin Paper pays a demand charge in amounts sufficient to pay principal and interest on these 
bonds. For rate making purposes, the Commission has elected to defer the demand charge revenue until 
the debt service is paid.  
 
On the statement of net position, the Commission reports $485,297 of non-utility property.  This amount 
consists of deferred debits relating to the 2011 Landfill Phase 8.  
 
Bond issuance costs are recovered through rates over the life of the debt.  The commission has elected to create 
an other asset for this cost and amortize it over the life of the debt using the effective interest rate method.  The 
unamortized balance at December 31, 2023 is $109,416. 
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Note 16 FUND BALANCE 
 

A. CLASSIFICATIONS 
 

Definitions of fund balance classifications are included in Note 1R.  At December 31, 2023, a 
summary of the governmental fund balance classifications are as follows: 

 
403 407 Capital 483 Civic Other

General GR/Cohasset Equipment Center Capital Governmental
Fund  Industrial Park Replacement Improvements Funds Total

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $215,841 $       -       $103,681 $       -       $24,403 $343,925
Interfund loans receivable 957,628        -              -              -              -       957,628

Restricted:
Debt service        -              -              -              -       7,022,701 7,022,701
Public safety        -              -       468,602        -              -       468,602
Law enforcement        -              -              -              -       64,555 64,555
Airport operations (Itasca County's Share)        -              -              -              -       109,518 109,518
Other purposes 37,348        -              -              -       68,771 106,119

Committed:
Revenue stabilization 1,286,122        -              -              -       1,286,122
Public library        -              -              -              -       761,451 761,451
Central school        -              -              -              -       93,117 93,117
Airport operations (City's 50% Share)        -              -              -              -       109,517 109,517
Cemetery        -              -              -              -       159,018 159,018
Domestic animal control facility        -              -              -              -       9,749 9,749

Assigned:
Capital purposes        -       3,548        -       358,827 1,753,599 2,115,974

Unassigned 5,191,745        -       (704,886)        -       (164,851) 4,322,008

Total $7,688,684 $3,548 ($132,603) $358,827 $10,011,548 $17,930,004

 
 

B. MINIMUM UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE POLICY 
 

The City Council has formally adopted a policy regarding the minimum unassigned fund balance for 
the General Fund.  The most significant revenue source of the General Fund is property taxes.  This 
revenue source is received in two installments during the year – June and December.  As such, it is the 
City’s goal to begin each fiscal year with sufficient working capital to fund operations between each 
semi-annual receipt of property taxes. 
 
The City’s policy for unassigned funds in the General Fund is: 

 Minimum cash flow – to equal 50% of the following year General Fund property tax levy and 
anticipated local government aids. 

 Compensated absences – equal to the sum of flexible time off and compensatory time for 
employees each December 31. 

 Emergency or unanticipated expenditures – equal to 10% of the prior year General Fund 
annual revenues. 

 Neighborhood and economic development – equal to the principal amount of the sale of the 
liquor store. 

At December 31, 2023, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $5,191,745, compared to 
its targeted unassigned fund balance of  $6,794,175 based on the above policy. 
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C. REVENUE STABILIZATION 
 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 11-111 committing 10% of prior year annual revenues of the 
General Fund for revenue stabilization.  This commitment of fund balance was done to provide a stable 
source of revenue for general operations of the City during periods of economic recession.  The City 
uses the National Bureau for Economic Research (NBER) as its reference in determining the beginning 
and end of an economic recession.   
 
During a recession, this fund balance commitment can be used to offset all or part of the temporary 
revenue decrease and shall occur at the end of the first and/or second fiscal year following the 
beginning of an economic recession as determined by the NBER.  In the third fiscal year after the 
beginning of an economic recession, the revenue stabilization amount will be replenished by an annual 
amount equal to 10% of annual revenue, multiplied by a factor of approximately 11.25%. 
 
Due to the recession which began in 2008, the City depleted its revenue stabilization reserve in 2010.  
During 2011, the City began replenishing the reserve in accordance with its policy described above.  
The reserve at December 31, 2023 is as follows: 
 

Revenue stabilization at December 31, 2021 $1,049,832
2022 replenishment 119,937

Revenue stabilization at December 31, 2022 1,169,769
2023 replenishment 116,353

Revenue stabilization at December 31, 2023 $1,286,122

 

Note 17 COMMITMENTS 

 
A. POWER CONTRACT 

 
Minnesota Power (MP) provides wholesale electric service under a contract that expires December 31, 
2029, unless prior to that date, a new customer of GRPU with a 15-minute peak of equal to or greater 
than 10 MW locates in the IEDC Eco Industrial Park. The contract requires no minimum purchase of 
power and provides that Grand Rapids PUC may add new renewable generation capacity up to ten 
percent (10%) (non-cumulative) of the total Grand Rapids PUC load, based on the previous year’s 
average annual billed demand, excluding any existing renewable generation capacity prior to 
September 1, 2015. 
 
In addition, beginning in 2022, a new electric service agreement was negotiated with the 13 Northeast 
Minnesota Municipal Power Agency (NEMMPA) Municipal Customers. This contract expires 
December 31, 2029. The agreement includes a flat customer charge per month, a predetermined yearly 
base capacity charge, a yearly predetermined base energy charge, a yearly predetermined incremental 
capacity charge, and a yearly predetermined incremental energy charge. The contract also contains a 
base energy adjustment which reflects the sum of (1) a projection of fuel and purchased power costs 
for the upcoming service year; and (2) a true-up of any variances between projected and actual fuel and 
purchased power costs for services to NEMMPA Municipal Customers. Grand Rapids Public Utilities 
Commission is a member of NEMMPA. The peak power requirements for 2023 was 30,231 kW.  
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Grand Rapids PUC entered into a Municipal Minnesota Interconnect agreement on September 16, 
2021, with MP. The Grand Rapids PUC, as the area EPS Operator, and MP, as the Interconnect 
Customer, both agree to allow each party to connect to the other party’s area electric power system 
related solar equipment at the Itasca Clean Energy Solar Plus Battery Storage project in Grand Rapids, 
Minnesota. 

 
B. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

 
The City has several active construction projects as of December 31, 2023. The remaining commitment 
on these projects is $599,469.  
 
The Public Utilities Commission has several active construction projects as of December 31, 2023.  
The remaining commitment on these projects is $577,277. 

 
C. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS 

 
State and federal laws and regulations require the Public Utilities Commission to place a final cover on 
its landfill sites when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the site for 20 years after closure.  Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid 
only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the Grand Rapids PUC reports a 
portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on 
landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date, in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and 
Postclosure Care Costs.  
 
The $2,342,354 reported as the landfill closure and postclosure care liability at December 31, 2023, 
represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 47.64% of the estimated 
capacity of the currently permitted landfill. Grand Rapids PUC will recognize the remaining costs of 
closure and postclosure care of $2,574,040 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These 
amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2023. Actual 
costs may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.  
 
Under the 1996-2001 permit, landfill sites C, D, E, and F were filled to capacity.  The 2001-2006 
permit included Kettle D and landfill Phases One through Four.  Phases Five through Eight were added 
under the new permit effective September 2006 to September 2011.  Kettle D was filled in 2006 and 
closed in 2008.  Phases One through Four were filled and began the closure process in 2007.  Final 
closure on Phases One through Four was completed in 2010.  Construction of Phases Five and Six was 
completed in 2008.  Phases Five and Six were put into service in 2008 and have an estimated life of ten 
years.  Phase 7 was constructed in 2010 and placed into service in 2010 with an estimated life of ten 
years.  Construction of Phase 8 began in 2011 and was placed in service in 2013. 
 
On February 15, 2023, UPM Blandin Paper Company established an irrevocable letter of credit for 
$4,916,394 with Nordea Bank on behalf of the Grand Rapids Public Utilities Commission.  The 
purpose of the letter of credit is to provide assurance that funds will be available when needed for 
closure, post-closure care of, and/or contingency action of the landfill. 
 
Closure costs relate to open and planned landfill sites.  There are no sites that will be closed within one 
year.  Post-closure costs cover all sites, including those that are already closed.  No issues have been 
identified that would require post-closure costs to be incurred, and no issues are anticipated in the next 
year. 
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Note 18 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
Workers compensation coverage is provided through a pooled self-insurance program through the League of 
Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT).  The City pays an annual premium to LMCIT.  The City is subject 
to supplemental assessments if deemed necessary by the LMCIT.  The LMCIT reinsures through Workers 
Compensation Reinsurance Association (WCRA) as required by law.  The City does not have a deductible for 
its workers compensation insurance.  The City’s workers compensation coverage is retrospectively rated.  With 
this type of coverage, final premiums are determined after loss experience is known.  The amount of premium 
adjustment, if any, is considered immaterial and not recorded until received or paid. 
 
Property and casualty insurance coverage is provided through a pooled self-insurance program through the 
LMCIT.  The City pays an annual premium to the LMCIT.  The City is subject to supplemental assessments if 
deemed necessary by the LMCIT.  The LMCIT reinsures through commercial companies for claims in excess 
various amounts.  For property and casualty coverage, the City has a $1,000 deductible per occurrence with no 
annual maximum. 
 
The City carries commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including life, employee health and accident 
insurance. 
 
There were no significant reductions in insurance from the previous year or settlements in excess of insurance 
coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
 
Note 19 CONDUIT DEBT 
 
From time to time, the City has issued various industrial development and housing revenue bonds to provide 
financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial 
facilities deemed to be in the public interest.  The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable 
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans.  Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of 
the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance.  Neither the City, the 
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.  Accordingly, 
the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, there was one bond issue outstanding, with an estimated aggregate principal amount 
payable of $757,420. 
 
 
Note 20 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAX - PUC 
 
Effective January 1, 1997, the Grand Rapids Public Utilities Commission and the City of Grand Rapids 
established a formal agreement for payments in lieu of tax (PILOT) from the Grand Rapids PUC to the City.  
This payment was equal to 7% of gross retail electric sales for the prior year. Beginning January 1, 2010, the 
PILOT agreement was modified, and the annual cash payment changed to 4.84 mills per kilowatt hours sold, 
with a minimum annual payment of $823,000.  The agreement was modified again in 2012.  Beginning January 
1, 2013, the annual cash PILOT is increased to 5.00 mills per kilowatt hours sold, with a minimum annual 
payment of $868,000.  In 2015, a resolution was approved to exclude kilowatt hours sold in electric service 
territory acquisitions made after January 1, 2015, for a period of time equivalent to the time basis used in the 
lost revenue calculation; typically a period of ten years from the date of the electric service territory acquisition. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 
 
 

 

 

The amount of the PILOT, including cash and utility supplied services, to the City for 2023 was $868,840.   
 
 
Note 21 DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 
 
At December 31, 2023, individual funds with deficit fund balances are as follows: 
 

Special Revenue Funds:
228 IRA Civic Center ($93,511)
240 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (34,631)

Capital Project Funds:
407 Capital Equipment Replacement (132,603)
413 Airport Capital Fund (25,489)
484 2022 Infrastructure / ARPA (10,655)  

 
 

Note 22 MAJOR CUSTOMER AND DEMAND PAYMENT DEFERRAL 
 
Grand Rapids Public Utilities Commission has a contract with UPM Blandin Paper Company (UPM Blandin) 
where UPM Blandin reimburses the Grand Rapids PUC for expenses associated with the operations of the 
industrial wastewater treatment plant.  Amounts charged for wastewater treatment service was $3,618,951.  
Grand Rapids PUC also has contracts with UPM Blandin whereby UPM Blandin pays demand charges for 
principal and interest on the General Obligation Revenue Bonds Series 2009E and 2021C.  For ratemaking 
purposes, the commission has elected to defer the recognition of the revenue until the debt service on the bonds 
are paid.  The total demand charges paid by UPM Blandin for 2023 was $1,666,177. 
 
 
Note 23 RESTATEMENT - PUC 
 
Grand Rapids Public Utilities Commission restated the December 31, 2022 Statement of Net Position and 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the correction of an error related to the 
landfill closure/postclosure costs. It was noted in the prior year that the liability was overstated and did not 
account for the capacity used.  
 
The following table summarizes the breakdown of the current year restatement related to the prior period 
adjustment:  
 

Net position - January 1, as previously stated $53,327,156
Correction of an error 3,170,782
Net position - January 1, as restated $56,497,938
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Note 24 RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) recently approved the following statements which 
were not implemented for these financial statements: 
 

Statement No. 99 Omnibus 2022. The provisions of this Statement contain multiple effective dates, the 
next being for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.  
 
Statement No. 102 Certain Risk Disclosures. The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2024.  

 
The effect these standards may have on future financial statements is not determinable at this time. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 11
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND Page 1 of 4
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Actual Over (Under)

Revenues: Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Taxes:
  General property taxes $5,081,232 $5,081,232 $5,067,736 ($13,496)
  Payment in lieu of taxes:

Housing Authorities 45,000 45,000 65,281 20,281
Public utilities 868,000 868,000 868,000        -       

Total taxes 5,994,232 5,994,232 6,001,017 6,785
Licenses and permits:

Business 41,360 41,360 47,205 5,845
Nonbusiness 266,505 266,505 393,538 127,033

Total licenses and permits 307,865 307,865 440,743 132,878
Intergovernmental:

Federal:
Public safety grants 30,000 30,000 28,420 (1,580)

State:
    Local government aid 1,820,524 1,820,524 1,820,524        -       
    Market value homestead credit        -              -       1,898 1,898

Taconite supplemental aid 247,469 247,469 247,469        -       
Municipal state aid street maintenance 186,200 186,200 186,200        -       
Police aid 173,000 173,000 203,269 30,269
Fire aid 135,000 135,000 148,629 13,629
Police training aid 19,000 19,000 19,194 194
State - miscellaneous 3,249 3,249 56,881 53,632
US gas tax refund 500 500 937 437

Local:
Aitkin-Itasca-Mille Lacs Violent Crimes Enforcement Team        -              -       5,382 5,382
Itasca County - excess school levy replacement        -              -       37,673 37,673
School District #318 155,919 155,919 155,919        -       

Total intergovernmental 2,770,861 2,770,861 2,912,395 141,534
Charges for services:

General government 283,282 283,282 445,739 162,457
Public safety 839,298 839,298 887,373 48,075
Public works 270,589 270,589 297,827 27,238

Total charges for services 1,393,169 1,393,169 1,630,939 237,770
Fines and forfeits 67,000 67,000 65,645 (1,355)
Special assessments        -              -       3,202 3,202
Interest and investment income 41,000 41,000 49,901 8,901
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments        -              -       64,814 64,814
Miscellaneous:

Donations/contributions 10,000 10,000 20,161 10,161
Rentals and leases 3,000 3,000 3,790 790
Other 18,200 18,200 22,922 4,722

Total miscellaneous 31,200 31,200 46,873 15,673

Total revenues 10,605,327 10,605,327 11,215,529 610,202

2023

Budgeted Amounts

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 11
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND Page 2 of 4
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Actual Over (Under)

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Expenditures:

General government:
Mayor and city council:

Current:
Personnel services $45,258 $45,258 $45,240 ($18)
Materials and supplies        -              -       56 56
Other services and charges 82,700 82,700 93,866 11,166

Total mayor and city council 127,958 127,958 139,162 11,204
Administration:

Current:
Personnel services 543,877 543,877 556,891 13,014
Materials and supplies 1,850 1,850 363 (1,487)
Other services and charges 58,995 58,995 42,342 (16,653)

Total administration 604,722 604,722 599,596 (5,126)
Finance:

Current:
Personnel services 548,082 548,082 522,214 (25,868)
Materials and supplies 3,300 3,300 1,626 (1,674)
Other services and charges 52,685 52,685 51,565 (1,120)

Total finance 604,067 604,067 575,405 (28,662)
Information technology:

Current:
Personnel services 248,416 248,416 322,962 74,546
Materials and supplies 1,350 1,350 1,459 109
Other services and charges 76,515 76,515 39,946 (36,569)
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 6,931 1,931

Total information technology 331,281 331,281 371,298 40,017
Community development:

Current:
Personnel services 531,311 531,311 457,626 (73,685)
Materials and supplies 6,700 6,700 6,437 (263)
Other charges and services 35,900 35,900 30,162 (5,738)

Total community development 573,911 573,911 494,225 (79,686)
 Building safety:

Current:
Personnel services 364,244 364,244 378,161 13,917
Materials and supplies 8,000 8,000 14,612 6,612
Other charges and services 88,100 88,100 80,202 (7,898)

Total building maintenance - city hall 460,344 460,344 472,975 12,631

Total general government 2,702,283 2,702,283 2,652,661 (49,622)

2023

Budgeted Amounts

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 11
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND Page 3 of 4
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Actual Over (Under)

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Expenditures: (continued)

Public safety:
Police protection:

Current:
Personnel services $3,276,423 $3,284,414 $3,250,169 ($34,245)
Materials and supplies 116,700 116,700 106,232 (10,468)
Other charges and services 335,228 335,228 303,766 (31,462)

Total police protection 3,728,351 3,736,342 3,660,167 (76,175)
Fire protection:

Current:
Personnel services 537,213 537,213 519,522 (17,691)
Materials and supplies 55,600 55,600 59,004 3,404
Other charges and services 112,974 112,974 123,382 10,408

Total fire protection 705,787 705,787 701,908 (3,879)

Total public safety 4,434,138 4,442,129 4,362,075 (80,054)

Public works: 
Public works:

Current:
Personnel services 1,365,940 1,365,940 1,430,117 64,177
Materials and supplies 264,600 264,600 287,867 23,267
Other services and charges 513,100 513,100 532,905 19,805
Street lighting 240,000 240,000 228,859 (11,141)
Capital outlay        -              -       7,275 7,275

Total public works 2,383,640 2,383,640 2,487,023 103,383
Fleet maintenance:

Current:
Personnel services 219,854 219,854 219,860 6
Materials and supplies 25,900 25,900 27,101 1,201
Other services and charges 44,400 44,400 26,339 (18,061)

Total fleet maintenance 290,154 290,154 273,300 (16,854)

Total public works 2,673,794 2,673,794 2,760,323 86,529

2023

Budgeted Amounts

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 11
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND Page 4 of 4
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Actual Over (Under)

Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Expenditures: (continued)

Culture and recreation: 
Current:

Personnel services $83,432 $179,601 $233,218 $53,617
Materials and supplies 500 500 6,992 6,492
Other services and charges 9,500 9,500 9,338 (162)

Total culture and recreation 93,432 189,601 249,548 59,947

Miscellaneous:
City-wide:

Current:
Other services and charges 334,843 334,843 354,402 19,559

Special projects:
Current:

Other services and charges 128,626 128,626 120,900 (7,726)
Total miscellaneous 463,469 463,469 475,302 11,833

Total expenditures 10,367,116 10,471,276 10,499,909 28,633

Revenues over (under) expenditures 238,211 134,051 715,620 581,569

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets        -              -       1,414 1,414
Insurance recoveries        -              -       51,334 51,334
Transfers out (737,873) (737,873) (748,331) (10,458)
Transfers in 499,662 499,662 39,807 (459,855)

Total other financing sources (uses) (238,211) (238,211) (655,776) (417,565)

Net change in fund balance $0 ($104,160) 59,844 $164,004

Fund balance - January 1 7,628,840

Fund balance - December 31 $7,688,684

2023

Budgeted Amounts

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 12
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
For The Last Ten Years

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability:

Service cost 1,281$           2,025$           1,966$             1,937$             1,645$             1,556$             
Interest cost 471                436                672                  935                  1,648               16,116             
Plan changes -                -                -                  -                  -                  (402,538)         
Differences between expected and actual experience 289,929         -                (3,354)             -                  (12,815)           -                  
Changes in assumptions (33,776)         -                (685)                1,317               (2,164)             400                  
Benefit payments -                -                -                  (11,216)           (16,670)           (35,410)           
   Net change in total OPEB liability 257,905         2,461             (1,401)             (7,027)             (28,356)           (419,876)         
   Total OPEB liability - beginning 22,253           19,792           21,193             28,220             56,576             476,452           
   Total OPEB liability - ending 280,158$       22,253$         19,792$           21,193$           28,220$           56,576$           

Covered-employee payroll $2,998,058 $2,997,809 $2,910,494 $2,761,631 $2,681,195 $5,049,054

Total OPEB liabilty as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.3% 0.7% 0.7% 0.8% 1.1% 1.1%

The schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the City's fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 and
is intended to show a ten year trend.  Additional years will be added as they become available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 13

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (1) - 
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
For The Last Ten Years

State's City's Proportionate
Proportionate  Share of the Net City's

City's City's Share (Amount)  Pension Liability and Proportionate Share
Proportionate Proportionate of the Net  the State's Proportionate of the Net Pension Plan Fiduciary

Share Share (Amount) Pension  Share of the Net Liability as a Net Position as
Measurement Fiscal Year (Percentage) of of the Net Liability Pension Liability Percentage of its a Percentage

Date Ending the Net Pension Pension Associated with Associated with Covered Covered of the Total
June 30 December 31 Liability Liability (a) City (b) City (a+b) Payroll (c) Payroll ((a+b)/c) Pension Liability

2015 2015 0.0522% $2,705,275 $       -       $2,705,275 $2,975,003 90.9% 78.2%
2016 2016 0.0515% 4,181,545 54,641 4,236,186 3,160,670 134.0% 68.9%
2017 2017 0.0522% 3,332,414 41,879 3,374,293 3,354,712 100.6% 75.9%
2018 2018 0.0525% 2,912,485 95,496 3,007,981 3,526,752 85.3% 79.5%
2019 2019 0.0509% 2,814,147 87,496 2,901,643 3,593,322 80.8% 80.2%
2020 2020 0.0524% 3,141,619 97,027 3,238,646 3,739,709 86.6% 79.1%
2021 2021 0.0522% 2,233,444 68,208 2,301,652 3,757,969 61.2% 87.0%
2022 2022 0.0537% 4,253,058 124,745 4,377,803 3,975,267 110.1% 76.7%
2023 2023 0.0530% 2,963,701 81,757 3,045,458 4,217,484 72.2% 83.1%

1.   The schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the City's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and is intended to
    show a ten year trend.  Additional years will be reported as they become available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 14

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS(1) - 
GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
For The Last Ten Years

Statutorily Contributions in Contribution Contributions as a 
Required Relation to the Deficiency Covered Percentage of 

Fiscal Year Contribution Statutorily Required (Excess) Payroll Covered
Ending (a) Contribution (b) (a-b) (c) Payroll (b/c)

December 31, 2015 $233,723 $233,723 $    -       $3,114,384 7.50%
December 31, 2016 243,845 243,845        -       3,251,272 7.50%
December 31, 2017 257,796 257,796        -       3,437,287 7.50%
December 31, 2018 266,730 266,730        -       3,556,404 7.50%
December 31, 2019 276,142 276,142        -       3,681,888 7.50%
December 31, 2020 291,122 291,122        -       3,881,626 7.50%
December 31, 2021 292,388 292,388        -       3,898,515 7.50%
December 31, 2022 299,429 299,429        -       3,992,385 7.50%
December 31, 2023 317,454 317,454        -       4,232,725 7.50%

1.   The schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the City's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and is intended to
    show a ten year trend.  Additional years will be reported as they become available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 15

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY(1) - 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND
For The Last Ten Years

State's City's Proportionate
Proportionate  Share of the Net City's

City's City's Share (Amount)  Pension Liability and Proportionate Share
Proportionate Proportionate of the Net  the State's Proportionate of the Net Pension Plan Fiduciary

Share Share (Amount) Pension  Share of the Net Liability as a Net Position as
Measurement Fiscal Year (Percentage) of of the Net Liability Pension Liability Percentage of its a Percentage

Date Ending the Net Pension Pension Associated with Associated with Covered Covered of the Total
June 30 December 31 Liability Liability (a) City (b) City (a+b) Payroll (c) Payroll ((a+b)/c) Pension Liability

2015 2015 0.1500% $1,704,351 $       -       $1,704,351 $1,333,738 127.8% 86.6%
2016 2016 0.1440% 5,778,971        - 5,778,971 1,384,958 417.3% 63.9%
2017 2017 0.1310% 1,768,656        - 1,768,656 1,348,835 131.1% 85.4%
2018 2018 0.1331% 1,418,709        - 1,418,709 1,403,112 101.1% 88.8%
2019 2019 0.1377% 1,465,956        - 1,465,956 1,452,254 100.9% 89.3%
2020 2020 0.1315% 1,733,311 40,834 1,774,145 1,483,509 116.8% 87.2%
2021 2021 0.1298% 1,001,918 45,032 1,046,950 1,533,581 65.3% 93.7%
2022 2022 0.1363% 5,931,238 259,010 6,190,248 1,655,432 358.3% 70.5%
2023 2023 0.1405% 2,426,252 97,691 2,523,943 1,844,891 131.5% 86.5%

1.   The schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the City's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and is intended to
    show a ten year trend.  Additional years will be reported as they become available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 16

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS(1) - 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND
For The Last Ten Years

Contributions as a 
Statutorily Contributions in Contribution Percentage of 
Required Relation to the Deficiency Covered Covered

Fiscal Year Contribution Statutorily Required (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Ending (a) Contribution (b) (a-b) (c) (b/c)

December 31, 2015 $219,785 $219,785 $    -       $1,354,978 16.22%
December 31, 2016 223,959 223,959        -       1,382,461 16.20%
December 31, 2017 221,152 221,152        -       1,365,140 16.20%
December 31, 2018 232,463 232,463        -       1,434,959 16.20%
December 31, 2019 248,008 248,008        -       1,463,178 16.95%
December 31, 2020 279,224 279,224        -       1,577,536 17.70%
December 31, 2021 281,680 281,680        -       1,591,411 17.70%
December 31, 2022 301,697 301,697        -       1,704,501 17.70%
December 31, 2023 327,515 327,515        -       1,850,366 17.70%

1.   The schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the City's fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and is intended to
    show a ten year trend.  Additional years will be reported as they become available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 17

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS  (1) - 

GRAND RAPIDS FIRE DEPARTMENT RELIEF ASSOCIATION
For The Last Ten Years

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Measurement date December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Total pension liability:

Service cost $80,644 $96,594 $79,740 $75,628 $73,783
Interest cost 132,647 109,591 91,327 88,668 79,734
Plan changes        -              -       215,447        -              -       
Gain or loss        -       (46,387)        -              -              -       
Differences between expected and actual experience        -              -              -       69,157        -       
Changes of assumptions        -       (71,281)        -       46,936        -       
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (31,000) (76,200)        -              -              -       

Net change in total pension liability 182,291 12,317 386,514 280,389 153,517
Total pension liability - beginning 2,145,637 2,133,320 1,746,806 1,466,417 1,312,900
Total pension liability - ending (a) $2,327,928 $2,145,637 $2,133,320 $1,746,806 $1,466,417

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Contributions - State of Minnesota 147,629 132,100 143,391 137,585 131,658
Contributions - employee        -              -              -              -              -       
Net investment income 197,727 183,640 161,612 242,051 133,639
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (31,000) (76,200)        -              -              -       
Administrative expense (12,886) (10,429) (12,532) (12,022) (11,439)
Gain or loss (42,643) (640,602) 185,786        -       271,292

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 263,827 (406,491) 483,257 372,614 530,150
 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 3,241,079 3,647,570 3,164,313 2,791,699 2,261,549
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $3,504,906 $3,241,079 $3,647,570 $3,164,313 $2,791,699

Net pension liability / (asset) - ending (a) - (b) ($1,176,978) ($1,095,442) ($1,514,250) ($1,417,507) ($1,325,282)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 150.56% 151.05% 170.98% 181.15% 190.38%

Covered payroll (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Measurement date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Total pension liability:

Service cost $71,473 $63,391 $72,757 $75,241
Interest cost 81,962 72,102 68,376 66,133
Plan changes        -       99,530        -              -       
Gain or loss (21,899)        -              -              -       
Differences between expected and actual experience        -              -       (40,925)        -       
Changes of assumptions 26,796        -       (11,420)        -       
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (170,700)        -       (130,773) (222,729)

Net change in total pension liability (12,368) 235,023 (41,985) (81,355)
Total pension liability - beginning 1,325,268 1,090,245 1,132,230 1,213,585
Total pension liability - ending (a) $1,312,900 $1,325,268 $1,090,245 $1,132,230

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Contributions - State of Minnesota 131,511 128,622 130,759 131,098
Contributions - employee        -              -              -              -       
Net investment income 153,082 312,604 138,089 (98,329)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (170,700)        -       (130,773) (222,729)
Administrative expense (11,317) (11,676) (10,672) (11,540)
Gain or loss (318,100)        -              -              -       

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (210,524) 434,550 132,403 (196,500)
 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 2,472,073 2,037,523 1,905,120 2,101,620
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $2,261,549 $2,472,073 $2,037,523 $1,905,120

Net pension liability / (asset) - ending (a) - (b) ($948,649) ($1,146,805) ($947,278) ($772,890)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 172.26% 186.53% 186.89% 168.26%

Covered payroll (2) (2) (2) (2)

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll (2) (2) (2) (2)

1.  GASB 68 was implemented in 2015.  Information prior to 2015 is not available.
2.  The Grand Rapids Fire department Relief Association is comprised of volunteers, 

therefore there are no payroll expenditures.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Statement 18

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS(1) - 

GRAND RAPIDS FIRE DEPARTMENT RELIEF ASSOCIATION
For The Last Ten Years

Statutorily Contributions in Contribution Contributions as a 
Required Relation to the Deficiency Covered Percentage of 

Fiscal Year Contribution Statutorily Required (Excess) Payroll Covered
Ending (a) Contribution (b) (a-b) (c) Payroll (b/c)

December 31, 2015 $    -       $5,000 ($5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2016        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2017        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 30, 2018        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2019        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2020        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2021        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2022        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

December 31, 2023        -       5,000 (5,000) (2) (2)

1.  GASB 68 was implemented in 2015.  Information prior to 2015 is not available.
2.  The Grand Rapids Fire department Relief Association is comprised of volunteers, therefore, there are no payroll expenditures.  
(i.e., there are no covered payroll amounts or percentage calculations.)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
December 31, 2023  

 
 

 

 

A.    LEGAL COMPLIANCE – BUDGETS 
 
The General Fund budget is legally adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  The legal level of budgetary control is at the expenditure department level.   
 
 
B.    PENSION INFORMATION 
 

PERA – General Employees Retirement Fund 
 
2023 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The investment return assumption and single discount rate were changed from 6.50% to 7.00%. 
Changes in Plan Provisions: 
- An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $170.1 million was contributed to the Plan on 

October 1, 2023. 
- The vesting period of those hired after June 30, 2010, was changed from five years of allowable 

service to three years of allowable service. 
- The benefit increase delay for early retirements on or after January 1, 2024, was eliminated. 
- A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 2.50% minus the actual 2024 adjustment will be 

payable in a lump sum for calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024. 
 

2022 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021. 
 
2021 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
‐ The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50% to 6.50% for financial 

reporting purposes.  
‐ The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020. 

 
2020 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
‐ The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%. 
‐ The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%. 
‐ Assumed salary increase rates were decreased 0.25% and assumed rates of retirement were changed 

resulting in more unreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements. 
Assumed rates of termination and disability were also changed. 

‐ Base mortality tables were changed from RP-2014 tables to Pub-2010 tables, with adjustments. 
‐ The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019. 
‐ The spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year older. 
‐ The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed 

from 35% to 45%.  The assumed number of married female new retirees electing the 100% Joint & 
Survivor option changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding number of married new retirees 
electing the Life annuity option was adjusted accordingly. 

Changes in Plan Provisions: 
- Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period July 1, 2020 through 

December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated for privatizations occurring after 
June 30, 2020. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
December 31, 2023  

 
 

 

 

2019 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
‐ The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018. 
Changes in Plan Provisions: 
‐ The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0 million to 

$21.0 million per year.  The State’s special funding contribution was changed prospectively, requiring 
$16.0 million due per year through 2031. 

 
2018 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017. 
- The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044 and 2.50 percent 

per year thereafter to 1.25 percent per year. 
 
2017 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.8 percent for active members and 

60 percent for vested and non-vested deferred members.  The revised CSA loads are now 0.0 percent 
for active member liability, 15.0 percent for vested deferred member liability and 3.0 percent for non-
vested deferred member liability. 

- The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year for all years 
to 1.0 percent per year through 2044 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter. 

 
2016 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2035 and 

2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years. 
- The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%.  The single discount rate was 

changed from 7.9% to 7.5%. 
- Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study date June 30, 2015.  The assumed 

future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25% to 3.25% for payroll 
growth and 2.50% for inflation. 

 
PERA – Public Employees Police and Fire Fund 
 
2023 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The investment return assumption was changed from 6.50% to 7.00%. 
- The single discount rate changed from 5.40% to 7.00%. 
Changes in Plan Provisions: 
- An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $19.4 million was contributed to the Plan on 

October 1, 2023. 
- Vesting requirement for new hires after June 30, 2014, was changed from a graded 20-year vesting 

schedule to a graded 10-year vesting schedule, with 50% vesting after five years, increasing 
incrementally to 100% after 10 years. 

- A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 3.00% will be payable in a lump sum for calendar 
year 2024 by March 31, 2024. 

- Psychological treatment is required effective July 1, 2023, prior to approval for a duty disability 
benefit for a psychological condition relating to the member’s occupation. 

- The total and permanent duty disability benefit was increased, effective July 1, 2023. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
December 31, 2023  

 
 

 

 

2022 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The single discount rate changed from 6.50% to 5.40%.  
- The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021. 
 
2021 Changes  
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
‐ The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50% to 6.50% for financial 

reporting purposes.  
‐ The inflation assumption was changed from 2.50% to 2.25%.  
‐ The payroll growth assumption was changed from 3.25% to 3.00%. 
‐ The base mortality tables for healthy annuitants, disabled annuitants and employees were changed from 

RP-2014 tables to Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality tables.  The mortality improvement scale was 
changed from MP-2019 to MN-2020. 

‐ Assumed salary increase and retirement rates were modified as recommended in the July 14, 2020 
experience study.  The changes result in a decrease in gross salary increase rates, slightly more 
unreduced retirements and fewer assumed early retirements. 

‐ Assumed rates of withdrawal were changed from select and ultimate rates to service-based rates. The 
changes result in more assumed terminations.  

‐ Assumed rates of disability were increased for ages 25-44 and decreased for ages over 49.  Overall, 
proposed rates result in more projected disabilities.  

‐ Assumed percent married for active female members was changed from 60% to 70%.  
 
2020 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 

- The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019. 
 

2019 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
‐ The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018 
 
2018 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017.  

 
2017 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The single discount rate was changed from 5.60% to 7.50%. 
- Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience study.  The 

net effect is proposed rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates. 
- Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements. 
- The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) load was 30 percent for vested and non-vested deferred 

members.  The CSO has been changed to 33 percent for vested members and 2 percent for non-vested 
members. 

- The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational table 
to the RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year for 2006), with male rates adjusted by a factor 
of 0.96.  The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-2016.  The base 
mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 disabled mortality table to the 
mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees. 
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
December 31, 2023  

 
 

 

 

- Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.0 percent for the first three years of service.  Rates 
beyond the selection period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations 
overall. 

- Assumed percentage of married female members decreased from 65 percent to 60 percent. 
- Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives assumed to 

be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years older) to the 
assumption that males are two years older than females. 

- The assumed percentage of female members electing Joint and Survivor annuities was increased. 
- The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent for all years to 1.00 

percent per year through 2064 and 2.50 percent thereafter. 
 

2016 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0% per year through 2037 and 

2.5% thereafter to 1.0% per year for all future years. 
- The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%.  The single discount rate changed 

from 7.9% to 5.6%. 
- The assumed future increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25% to 3.25% for 

payroll growth and 2.50% for inflation. 
 

Single Employer – Fire Relief Association 
 

There are no factors that affect trends in the amounts reported, such as change in benefit terms or 
assumptions.  With only six years reported in the RSI, there is no additional information to include in the 
notes.  Details can be obtained from the financial reports of the Fire Relief Association.  
 
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay 
related benefits. During the measurement period ending December 31, 2021, benefit level per year of 
service increased from $5,500 to $6,500. 
  

 
C.    OPEB INFORMATION  
 
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay 
related benefits.  
 

2023 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:  
- Health care trend rates were added since the plan now has benefits where health care trend rates should 

be applied. 
- The mortality tables were updated from the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Headcount-Weighted 

Mortality Tables (General, Safety) with MP-2020 Generational Improvement Scale to the Pub-2010 
Public Retirement Plans Headcount-Weighted Mortality Tables (General, Safety) with MP-2021 
Generational Improvement Scale.  

- The inflation rate was changed from 2.00% to 2.50%.  
- The discount rate was changed from 2.00% to 4.00%. 
- The retirement, withdrawal, and salary increase rates for public safety employees were updated to 

reflect the latest experience study.  
- These changes decreased the liability $33,776.  
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
December 31, 2023  

 
 

 

 

2022 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:  
- None.  
 
2021 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions: 
- The discount rate was changed from 2.90% to 2.00%. 
- The mortality tables were updated from the RP-2014 tables to the Pub-2010 public retirement plans 

head count weighted mortality tables.   
 

2020 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:  
-  The discount rate was changed from 3.80% to 2.90%.  
 
2019 Changes 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:  
-  The mortality tables were updated from the RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2016 

Generational Improvement Scale (with Blue Collar adjustment for Police and Fire Personnel) to the 
RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2018 Generational Improvement Scale (with Blue 
Collar adjustment for Police and Fire Personnel). 

- The retirement and withdrawal tables for police and fire employees were updated. 
-  The discount rate was changed from 3.30% to 3.80%. 
- These changes decreased the liability $2,164. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 

A Special Revenue Fund accounts for revenues derived from specific taxes or 
other earmarked revenue sources.  They are usually required by statute or local 
ordinance and/or resolution to finance particular functions, activities or 
governments. 
 
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 
The Debt Service Funds were established to finance and account for the payment 
of principal and interest on general long-term indebtedness of the City not 
accounted for in other Governmental and Proprietary Funds. 

 
 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
 

The Capital Project Funds are established to account for the resources expended 
to acquire assets of a relatively permanent nature other than those financed by 
Enterprise Funds. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET Statement 19
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2023

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Project

Assets
Cash and investments $1,276,244 $6,922,546 $1,659,456 $9,858,246
Due from other governmental units 95,800 340,505 1,561,160 1,997,465
Due from component units        -              -       37,790 37,790
Accounts receivable 24,770 1,026 11,000 36,796
Pledges receivable 6,500        -              -       6,500
Prepaid items 24,028        -       375 24,403
Taxes receivable - delinquent 40,393        -              -       40,393
Special assessments receivable        -       1,647,380 552,306 2,199,686
Lease receivable 390,322        -              -       390,322

Total assets $1,858,057 $8,911,457 $3,822,087 $14,591,601

                Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
   Accounts payable $38,665 $241,376 $245,275 $525,316
   Accrued wages payable 16,150        -              -       16,150
   Due to other governmental units 2,076        -              -       2,076
   Due to component units 23,611        -       21,463 45,074
   Contracts payable        -              -       341,537 341,537
   Due to other funds 52,625        -       747,045 799,670
   Deposits payable 3,099        -              -       3,099
   Interfund loan payable 23,242        -              -       23,242
   Unearned revenue 59,128        -       127,860 186,988

Total liabilities 218,596 241,376 1,483,180 1,943,152

Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to leases 390,322        -              -       390,322

   Unavailable revenue 46,893 1,647,380 552,306 2,246,579
Total deferred inflows of resources 437,215 1,647,380 552,306 2,636,901

Fund balance:
Nonspendable 24,028        -       375 24,403
Restricted 174,073 7,022,701 68,771 7,265,545
Committed 1,132,852        -              -       1,132,852
Assigned        -              -       1,753,599 1,753,599
Unassigned (128,707)        -       (36,144) (164,851)

Total fund balance 1,202,246 7,022,701 1,786,601 10,011,548

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
  of resources, and fund balance $1,858,057 $8,911,457 $3,822,087 $14,591,601

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental Funds
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Statement 20
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Project

Revenues:
   Taxes:
       General property $929,267 $1,849,624 $       -       $2,778,891
       Tax abatements        -       38,313        -       38,313
       Tax increments        -       566,948        -       566,948
       City sales tax        -       1,573,230        -       1,573,230
   Intergovernmental 320,481 430,814 3,459,930 4,211,225
   Special assessments        -       247,595 13,843 261,438
   Charges for services 938,580        -              -       938,580
   Fines and forfeits 44,924        -              -       44,924
   Interest and investment income 34,277 45,774 9,529 89,580
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 7,028 14,812 54,429 76,269
   Contributions and donations 52,725        -       282,388 335,113

Reimbursement from component units        -              -       2,955,365 2,955,365
   Other 1,973        -       16,040 18,013

Total revenues 2,329,255 4,767,110 6,791,524 13,887,889 

Expenditures:
   Current:
      General government 4,006 543,251 1,028,613 1,575,870
      Public safety 161,843        -              -       161,843
      Public works 564,231        -       70,383 634,614
      Culture and recreation 1,414,614        -       380,063 1,794,677
   Capital outlay/construction 118,610        -       7,422,253 7,540,863
   Debt service:
      Principal retirement 2,345 2,590,000        -       2,592,345
      Interest 197,270 835,212        -       1,032,482
      Paying agent fees        -       7,575        -       7,575
      Bond issuance costs        -              -       72,562 72,562

Total expenditures 2,462,919 3,976,038 8,973,874 15,412,831 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (133,664) 791,072 (2,182,350) (1,524,942)

Other financing sources (uses):
   Lease issuance 34,672        -              -       34,672
   Bond issuance        -              -       2,220,000 2,220,000
   Bond premium        -              -       35,700 35,700
   Sale of capital assets 17,703        -       42,977 60,680

Insurance recoveries 822        -              -       822
   Transfers in 121,251 150,000 503,732 774,983
   Transfers out        -              -       (469,652) (469,652)

Total other financing sources (uses) 174,448 150,000 2,332,757 2,657,205 

Net change in fund balance 40,784 941,072 150,407 1,132,263 

Fund balance - January 1 1,161,462 6,081,629 1,636,194 8,879,285

Fund balance - December 31 $1,202,246 $7,022,701 $1,786,601 $10,011,548

Reconciliation of beginning fund balance to prior year ending fund balance:
Prior year ending fund balance reported $8,881,747

Prior year ending fund balance for funds reported as nonmajor in 
prior year and major in current year:

403 GR/Cohasset Industrial Park 161,762
Prior year ending fund balance for funds reported as major in 

prior year and nonmajor in current year:
484 2022 Infrastructure/ARPA (164,224)

   Current year beginning fund balance $8,879,285

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental Funds

123 223

Item 17.



- This page intentionally left blank -

124 224

Item 17.



 

 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.   
 
Public Library - accounts for the operations of the City's public library. 
 
Central School - accounts for the operation and preservation of a historic building. 
 
Airport Operations – accounts for the operations of the Grand Rapids/Itasca 
County Airport. 
 
IRA Civic Center - accounts for the operation of the City's civic center. 
 
Haz-Mat - accounts for the State approved Hazardous Materials Program. 
 
Police Forfeiture - accounts for the County, State and Federal forfeitures received. 

 
Cemetery - accounts for the operations of the City’s cemetery. 

 
Domestic Animal Control Facility - accounts for costs associated with operating 
the facility. 
 
Electric Vehicle Charging Stations – accounts for the operation, maintenance, and 
use of electric charging stations. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING BALANCE  SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE  FUNDS
December 31, 2023

211 Public 
Library

225 Central 
School

226 Airport 
Operations

228 IRA Civic 
Center

Assets

Cash and investments $750,820 $110,683 $190,160 $       -       
Due from other governmental units 37,613        -       39,206        -       
Accounts receivable 1,500        -       4,462 18,678
Pledges receivable        -              -              -       6,500
Prepaid items 13,788 1,909 1,922 565
Taxes receivable - delinquent 30,642        -              -              -       
Lease receivable        -              -       300,322 90,000

Total assets $834,363 $112,592 $536,072 $115,743

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
   Resources, and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
   Accounts payable $13,804 $6,984 $2,673 $14,439
   Accrued wages payable 10,899        -       1,243        -       
   Due to other governmental units 1,548        -       44 483
   Due to component units 2,231 1,278 980 18,467
   Due to other funds        -       4,500        -       8,653
   Deposits payable        -       3,099        -              -       
   Interfund loan payable        -              -              -       23,242
   Unearned revenue        -       1,705 9,853 47,470

Total liabilities 28,482 17,566 14,793 112,754

Deferred inflows of resources:
   Related to leases        -              -       300,322 90,000
   Unavailable revenue 30,642        -              -       6,500

Total deferred inflows of resources 30,642        -       300,322 96,500

Fund balance (deficit):
Nonspendable 13,788 1,909 1,922 565
Restricted        -              -       109,518        -       
Committed 761,451 93,117 109,517        -       
Unassigned        -              -              -       (94,076)

Total fund balance (deficit) 775,239 95,026 220,957 (93,511)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
  of resources, and fund balance $834,363 $112,592 $536,072 $115,743
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Statement 21

231 Haz-Mat
232 Police 
Forfeiture 233 Cemetery

235 Domestic 
Animal Control 

Facility
240 Electric Vehicle 

Charging Stations

Totals Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds

$       -       $59,915 $161,326 $3,340 $       -       $1,276,244
9,775        -       774 8,432        -       95,800

       -              -       100        -       30 24,770
       -              -              -              -              -       6,500
       -              -       5,043 801        -       24,028
       -              -       9,751        -              -       40,393
       -              -              -              -              -       390,322

$9,775 $59,915 $176,994 $12,573 $30 $1,858,057

$       -       $       -       $64 $701 $       -       $38,665
287        -       2,801 920        -       16,150

       -              -              -       1        -       2,076
       -              -       217 401 37 23,611

4,848        -              -              -       34,624 52,625
       -              -              -              -              -       3,099
       -              -              -              -              -       23,242
       -              -       100        -              -       59,128

5,135 0 3,182 2,023 34,661 218,596

       -              -              -              -              -       390,322
       -              -       9,751        -              -       46,893
       -              -       9,751        -              -       437,215

       -              -       5,043 801        -       24,028
4,640 59,915        -              -              -       174,073

       -              -       159,018 9,749        -       1,132,852
       -              -              -              -       (34,631) (128,707)

4,640 59,915 164,061 10,550 (34,631) 1,202,246

$9,775 $59,915 $176,994 $12,573 $30 $1,858,057
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL  REVENUE  FUNDS 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

211 Public 
Library

225 Central 
School

226 Airport 
Operations 228 IRA Civic Center

Revenues:
   General property taxes $716,366 $       -       $       -       $       -       
   Intergovernmental 35,268        -       174,962        -       
   Charges for services 201,397 57,412 140,419 503,641
   Fines and forfeits 86        -              -              -       
   Interest and investment income 7,786 572 14,723 9,676
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 7,028        -              -              -       
   Contributions and donations 42,075        -              -       2,000
   Other        -       803 250        -       

Total revenues 1,010,006 58,787 330,354 515,317 

Expenditures:
   Current:
      General government        -              -              -              -       
      Public safety        -              -              -              -       
      Public works        -              -       317,150        -       
      Culture and recreation 932,970 116,681        -       364,963
   Capital outlay/construction 7,898        -       23,376        -       

Debt service:
Principal retirement        -              -              -              -       
Interest        -              -              -       196,597

Total expenditures 940,868 116,681 340,526 561,560 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 69,138 (57,894) (10,172) (46,243)

Other financing sources (uses):
Lease issuance        -              -              -              -       

   Sale of capital assets        -              -       16,362        -       
Insurance recoveries        -              -       822        -       

   Transfers in 4,452 58,289 20,000        -       
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,452 58,289 37,184 0

Net change in fund balance 73,590 395 27,012 (46,243)

Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 701,649 94,631 193,945 (47,268)

Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 $775,239 $95,026 $220,957 ($93,511)
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Statement 22

231 Haz-Mat 232 Police Forfeiture 233 Cemetery
235 Domestic Animal 

Control Facility
240 Electric Vehicle 
Charging Stations

Totals Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds

$       -       $       -       $212,901 $       -       $       -       $929,267
95,314 1,456 10,481 3,000        -       320,481

       -              -       35,676        -       35 938,580
       -       13,318        -       31,520        -       44,924
       -       480 1,040        -              -       34,277
       -              -              -              -              -       7,028
       -       8,650        -              -              -       52,725
       -              -       920        -              -       1,973

95,314 23,904 261,018 34,520 35 2,329,255 

       -              -              -              -       4,006 4,006
91,114 1,456        -       69,273        -       161,843

       -              -       247,081        -              -       564,231
       -              -              -              -              -       1,414,614
       -       16,501 40,175        -       30,660 118,610

       -              -       2,345        -              -       2,345
       -              -       673        -              -       197,270

91,114 17,957 290,274 69,273 34,666 2,462,919 

4,200 5,947 (29,256) (34,753) (34,631) (133,664)

       -              -       34,672        -              -       34,672
       -              -       1,341        -              -       17,703
       -              -              -              -              -       822
       -              -       3,757 34,753        -       121,251

0 0 39,770 34,753 0 174,448

4,200 5,947 10,514 0 (34,631) 40,784 

440 53,968 153,547 10,550        -       1,161,462

$4,640 $59,915 $164,061 $10,550 ($34,631) $1,202,246
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NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

 
The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, 
and payment of principal, interest and related costs on long-term debt. 
 
The City's Debt Service Funds account for three types of bonded indebtedness: 
 

• General Debt Bonds 
• Tax Increment Bonds 
• Improvement Bonds 
 

 
General Debt Bonds are repaid primarily from general property taxes. 
 
Tax Increment Bonds are repaid primarily from tax increment collections. 
 
Improvement Bonds are repaid primarily from special assessments. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING  BALANCE  SHEET
NONMAJOR DEBT  SERVICE  FUNDS
December 31, 2023

305 Refunding Bonds of 
2017B

306 GO Street 
Reconstruction & CIP 

2018A
307 GO & Abatement 

Bond 2019A

310 GO Street 
Reconstruction Bonds 

of 2020A
Assets

Cash and investments $203,224 $319,485 $449,226 $214,726
Accounts receivable        -              -              -              -       
Due from other governmental units        -              -              -              -       
Special assessments:

Delinquent 2,814 1        -              -       
Deferred        -       101,246 84,475 99,650
Special deferred 130,038        -       637,845        -       

Total assets $336,076 $420,732 $1,171,546 $314,376

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $500 $       -       $       -       $       -       

Total liabilities 500 0 0 0

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue 132,852 101,247 722,320 99,650

Total deferred inflows of resources 132,852 101,247 722,320 99,650

Fund balance:
Restricted 202,724 319,485 449,226 214,726

Total fund balance 202,724 319,485 449,226 214,726

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources, and fund balance $336,076 $420,732 $1,171,546 $314,376
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Statement 23
Page 1 of 2

311 GO & Abatement 
Bond 2021B

312 Taxable GO Temp 
Bond 2022A

358 Improvement Bonds 
of 2009C

359 Improvement Bonds 
of 2010A

360 Improvement Bonds 
of 2011B

361 Improvement Bonds 
of 2012A

362 G.O. State-Aid 
Street Bonds of 2012B

$362,727 $1,132,045 $501,697 $115,488 $214,693 $541,098 $12,038
       -              -       1,026        -              -              -              -       
       -       340,505        -              -              -              -              -       

       -              -       2,128        -       327 2,355        -       
8,014        -       46,589 13,539 64,112 81,058        -       

       -              -              -              -              -       5,152        -       

$370,741 $1,472,550 $551,440 $129,027 $279,132 $629,663 $12,038

$       -       $500 $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       
0 500 0 0 0 0 0

8,014        -       48,717 13,539 64,439 88,565        -       
8,014 0 48,717 13,539 64,439 88,565 0

362,727 1,472,050 502,723 115,488 214,693 541,098 12,038
362,727 1,472,050 502,723 115,488 214,693 541,098 12,038

$370,741 $1,472,550 $551,440 $129,027 $279,132 $629,663 $12,038
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING  BALANCE  SHEET
NONMAJOR DEBT  SERVICE  FUNDS
December 31, 2023

365 G.O. Street 
Reconstruction 
Bonds of 2013B

366 Improvement 
Bonds of 2014A

367 Improvement 
Bonds of 2016A

368 G.O. 
Improvement 

Reconstruction 
Bonds of 2017A

369 1st Ave Condo 
Abatement

Assets

Cash and investments $737,823 $346,008 $310,868 $382,850 $31,194
Accounts receivable        -              -              -              -              -       
Due from other governmental units        -              -              -              -              -       
Special assessments:

Delinquent 7,742 74 379 429        -       
Deferred 102,641 49,888 94,151 108,266        -       
Special deferred 1,175        -              -       3,292        -       

Total assets $849,381 $395,970 $405,398 $494,837 $31,194

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $22,709

Total liabilities 0 0 0 0 22,709

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue 111,558 49,962 94,530 111,987        -       

Total deferred inflows of resources 111,558 49,962 94,530 111,987 0

Fund balance:
Restricted 737,823 346,008 310,868 382,850 8,485

Total fund balance 737,823 346,008 310,868 382,850 8,485

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources, and fund balance $849,381 $395,970 $405,398 $494,837 $31,194
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Statement 23
Page 2 of 2

370 TIF 1-8 
Lakewood 

Heights

371 TIF 1-6 Old 
Hospital Housing 

Bonds

372 TIF 1-7 
Block 37 

Redevelopment

373 TIF 1-6 Old 
Hospital Housing 

Paygo
375 TIF 1-4 

Oakwood Terrace
376 TIF 1-10 
River Hills

377 TIF 1-11 
Sawmill Inn 

Redevelopment
378 - TIF 1-12 

The Pillars 

379 TIF 1-13 
Unique 

Opportunities

Totals Nonmajor 
Debt Service 

Funds

$58,203 $104,142 $28,930 $47,439 $565,158 $76,930 $22,334 $115,957 $28,263 $6,922,546
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       1,026
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       340,505

       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       16,249
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       853,629
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       777,502

$58,203 $104,142 $28,930 $47,439 $565,158 $76,930 $22,334 $115,957 $28,263 $8,911,457

$21,527 $       -       $7,193 $20,304 $       -       $35,519 $17,336 $92,576 $23,212 $241,376
21,527 0 7,193 20,304 0 35,519 17,336 92,576 23,212 241,376

       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       1,647,380
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,647,380

36,676 104,142 21,737 27,135 565,158 41,411 4,998 23,381 5,051 7,022,701
36,676 104,142 21,737 27,135 565,158 41,411 4,998 23,381 5,051 7,022,701

$58,203 $104,142 $28,930 $47,439 $565,158 $76,930 $22,334 $115,957 $28,263 $8,911,457

135 235

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR DEBT  SERVICE  FUNDS 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

305 Refunding Bonds of 
2017B

306 GO Street 
Reconstruction & CIP 

2018A
307 GO & Abatement 

Bond 2019A

310 GO Street 
Reconstruction Bonds of 

2020A
311 GO & Abatement 

Bond 2021B
Revenues:

Taxes:
General property $59,743 $131,597 $125,945 $156,625 $385,103
Tax abatement        -              -              -              -              -       
Tax increments        -              -              -              -              -       
City sales tax        -              -              -              -              -       

Intergovernmental:
State:

Supplemental aid 2,949 6,496 6,217 7,731 19,009
MSA        -              -              -              -              -       

Federal BAB credit        -              -              -              -              -       
Special assessments 28,214 13,662 18,760 14,902 6,802
Interest and investment income 1,474 2,226 3,287 1,166 1,612
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments        -              -              -              -              -       

   Total revenues 92,380 153,981 154,209 180,424 412,526

Expenditures:
General government:

Current:
Contractual services 4,000 2,750 250 249 251
Developer assistance        -              -              -              -              -       

Debt service:
Principal retirement 295,000 120,000 90,000 135,000 245,000
Interest 9,375 48,538 33,880 36,013 137,931
Paying agent fees 500 550 550 500 500

   Total expenditures 308,875 171,838 124,680 171,762 383,682

Revenues over (under) expenditures (216,495) (17,857) 29,529 8,662 28,844

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in        -              -              -              -              -       

   Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0 0

Net change in fund balance (216,495) (17,857) 29,529 8,662 28,844

Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 419,219 337,342 419,697 206,064 333,883

Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 $202,724 $319,485 $449,226 $214,726 $362,727
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Page 1 of 2

312 Taxable GO Temp 
Bond 2022A

358 Improvement Bonds 
of 2009C

359 Improvement Bonds 
of 2010A

360 Improvement Bonds 
of 2011B

361 Improvement Bonds 
of 2012A

362 G.O. State-Aid 
Street Bonds of 2012B

365 G.O. Street 
Reconstruction 

Bonds of 2013B
366 Improvement 
Bonds of 2014A

$       -       $252,838 $50,863 $28,118 $74,818 $       -       $90,687 $207,084
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       

1,573,230        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       

       -       12,480 2,511 1,388 3,693        -       4,476 10,222
       -              -              -              -              -       322,025        -              -       
       -       15,468        -              -              -              -              -              -       
       -       42,947 5,448 22,898 22,420        -       29,819 9,665

5,718 3,123 767 1,659 4,504 329 6,010 2,093
       -              -              -              -       6,249        -       8,563        -       

1,578,948 326,856 59,589 54,063 111,684 322,354 139,555 229,064

35,552 249 250 250 248 250 1,248 252
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -       

       -       345,000 60,000 70,000 155,000 290,000 270,000 205,000
250,695 46,866 7,750 10,143 27,868 32,025 63,738 33,480

500 400 400 525 525 525 550 550
286,747 392,515 68,400 80,918 183,641 322,800 335,536 239,282

1,292,201 (65,659) (8,811) (26,855) (71,957) (446) (195,981) (10,218)

       -              -              -              -              -              -       150,000        -       
0 0 0 0 0 0 150,000 0

1,292,201 (65,659) (8,811) (26,855) (71,957) (446) (45,981) (10,218)

179,849 568,382 124,299 241,548 613,055 12,484 783,804 356,226

$1,472,050 $502,723 $115,488 $214,693 $541,098 $12,038 $737,823 $346,008
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR DEBT  SERVICE  FUNDS 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

367 Improvement 
Bonds of 2016A

368 G.O. 
Improvement 

Reconstruction 
Bonds of 2017A

369 1st Ave Condo 
Abatement

370 TIF 1-8 
Lakewood Heights

371 TIF 1-6         
Old Hospital Housing 

Bonds
Revenues:

Taxes:
General property $139,670 $146,533 $       -       $       -       $       -       
Tax abatement        -              -       38,313        -              -       
Tax increments        -              -              -       47,839 61,393
City Sales Tax        -              -              -              -              -       

Intergovernmental:
State:

Supplemental aid 6,894 7,233        -              -              -       
MSA        -              -              -              -              -       

Federal BAB credit        -              -              -              -              -       
Special assessments 17,563 14,495        -              -              -       
Interest and investment income 2,048 2,686 18 340 649
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments        -              -              -              -              -       

   Total revenues 166,175 170,947 38,331 48,179 62,042

Expenditures:
General government:

Current:
Contractual services 250 252        -       238 615
Developer assistance        -              -       45,427 43,055        -       

Debt service:
Principal retirement 140,000 130,000        -              -       40,000
Interest 29,760 51,225        -              -       15,925
Paying agent fees 500 500        -              -              -       

   Total expenditures 170,510 181,977 45,427 43,293 56,540

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,335) (11,030) (7,096) 4,886 5,502

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in        -              -              -              -              -       

   Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0 0

Net change in fund balance (4,335) (11,030) (7,096) 4,886 5,502

Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 315,203 393,880 15,581 31,790 98,640

Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 $310,868 $382,850 $8,485 $36,676 $104,142
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Statement 24
Page 2 of 2

372 TIF 1-7         
Block 37 

Redevelopment

373 TIF  1-6         
Old Hospital Housing 

Paygo
375 TIF 1-4 

Oakwood Terrace
376 TIF 1-10        
River Hills

377 TIF 1-11        
Sawmill Inn 

Redevelopment
378 - TIF 1-12 

The Pillars 
379 TIF 1-13 Unique 

Opportunities
Totals Nonmajor 

Debt Service Funds

$       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $1,849,624
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       38,313                       

15,985 41,541 25,426 78,933 38,524 205,725 51,582 566,948                     
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       1,573,230                  

       -       2,022        -              -              -              -              -       93,321                       
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       322,025                     
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       15,468                       
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       247,595                     

197 254 4,762 396 107 284 65 45,774                       
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       14,812                       

16,182 43,817 30,188 79,329 38,631 206,009 51,647 4,767,110

238        -       862 238 453 172 172 49,289                       
14,387 39,207        -       71,040 49,270 185,152 46,424 493,962                     

       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       2,590,000                  
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       835,212                     
       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       7,575                         

14,625 39,207 862 71,278 49,723 185,324 46,596 3,976,038

1,557 4,610 29,326 8,051 (11,092) 20,685 5,051 791,072

       -              -              -              -              -              -              -       150,000                     
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150,000

1,557 4,610 29,326 8,051 (11,092) 20,685 5,051 941,072

20,180 22,525 535,832 33,360 16,090 2,696        -       6,081,629                  

$21,737 $27,135 $565,158 $41,411 $4,998 $23,381 $5,051 $7,022,701
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
 

The Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).   
 
General Capital Improvement Projects – accounts for general capital improvement projects that 
are not funded by bonds. 
 
Municipal State Aid – accounts for allotments received from the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation. 

 
Park Acquisition and Development – accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used to 
improve the City's park and recreational facilities. 
 
Airport Capital Fund – accounts for the capital activity of the Grand Rapids/Itasca County 
Airport. 
 
GR Arts and Culture Capital Project Fund – accounts for the accumulation of resources to be 
used to improve the City’s arts and culture. 
 
Infrastructure – Bonded Funds – accounts for infrastructure improvements that have been 
financed by bond proceeds. 
 
Infrastructure – ARPA Fund – accounts for infrastructure projects and the accumulation of 
resources and the costs related to the American Rescue Plan Funding. 
 
Infrastructure – Other Funds – accounts for infrastructure projects which are not financed by 
bond proceeds. 
 
Permanent Improvement Revolving – designed to be a revolving fund for infrastructure 
improvements. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING  BALANCE  SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL  PROJECT  FUNDS
December 31, 2023

401 General Capital 
Improvement Projects 402 Municipal State Aid

404 Park Acquisition and 
Development 413 Airport Capital Fund

Assets

Cash and investments $6,080 $       -       $45,910 $       -       
Due from other governmental units 413,804 502,033        -       645,323
Due from component units        -              -              -              -       
Accounts receivable        -              -       11,000        -       
Prepaid items        -              -       375        -       
Special assessments receivable:

Delinquent        -              -              -              -       
Deferred        -              -              -              -       
Special deferred        -              -              -              -       

Total assets $419,884 $502,033 $57,285 $645,323 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $211,111 $       -       $       -       $4,855
Due to component units        -              -              -       2,254
Contracts payable        -              -              -       16,194
Due to other funds 10,862 88,674        -       647,509
Unearned revenue        -              -              -              -       

Total liabilities 221,973 88,674 0 670,812 

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue        -              -              -              -       

Total deferred inflows of resources 0 0 0 0 

Fund balance (deficit):
Nonspendable        -              -       375        -       
Restricted 68,771        -              -              -       
Assigned 129,140 413,359 56,910        -       
Unassigned        -              -              -       (25,489)

Total fund balance (deficit) 197,911 413,359 57,285 (25,489)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
  resources, and fund balance $419,884 $502,033 $57,285 $645,323 
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Statement 25

418 GR Arts and Culture 
Capital Project

482 2021 Infrastructure 
Bonds

484 2022 Infrastructure/ 
ARPA

485 2023 Infrastructure 
Bonds

501 Permanent 
Improvement Revolving

Totals Nonmajor Capital 
Project Funds

$83,600 $497,298 $143,480 $729,163 $153,925 $1,659,456
       -              -              -              -              -       1,561,160
       -              -              -              -       37,790 37,790
       -              -              -              -              -       11,000
       -              -              -              -              -       375

       -              -              -              -       12,578 12,578
       -              -              -              -       229,618 229,618
       -              -              -              -       310,110 310,110

$83,600 $497,298 $143,480 $729,163 $744,021 $3,822,087 

$1,125 $11,417 $7,066 $9,701 $       -       $245,275
       -              -       19,209        -              -       21,463
       -       239,809        -       85,534        -       341,537
       -              -              -              -              -       747,045
       -              -       127,860        -              -       127,860

1,125 251,226 154,135 95,235 0 1,483,180 

       -              -              -              -       552,306 552,306
0 0 0 0 552,306 552,306 

       -              -              -              -              -       375
       -              -              -              -              -       68,771

82,475 246,072        -       633,928 191,715 1,753,599
       -              -       (10,655)        -              -       (36,144)

82,475 246,072 (10,655) 633,928 191,715 1,786,601 

$83,600 $497,298 $143,480 $729,163 $744,021 $3,822,087 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

401 General Capital 
Improvement Projects 402 Municipal State Aid

404 Park Acquisition 
and Development

413 Airport Capital 
Fund

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

State:
MSA $       -       $593,288 $       -       $81,864
Other 916,827        -              -       146,668

Other intergovernmental        -              -              -       284,599
Special assessments        -              -              -              -       
Interest and investment income 2,447 3,287 480        -       
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments        -              -              -              -       
Contributions and donations 252,500        -       8,175 21,713
Reimbursement from component units        -       411,189        -              -       
Other  16,040        -              -              -       

Total revenues 1,187,814 1,007,764 8,655 534,844

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 1,014,724        -              -              -       
Public works        -       61,033        -       9,350
Culture and recreation        -              -       18,559        -       

Capital outlay/construction 380,144 1,237,686        -       715,630
Debt service:

Bond issuance costs        -              -              -              -       
Total expenditures 1,394,868 1,298,719 18,559 724,980

Revenues over (under) expenditures (207,054) (290,955) (9,904) (190,136)

Other financing sources (uses):
Bond issuance        -              -              -              -       
Bond premium        -              -              -              -       
Sale of capital assets        -       35,321        -       7,656
Transfers in 231,620 180,727        -       28,000
Transfers out        -              -              -              -       

Total other financing sources (uses) 231,620 216,048 0 35,656

Net change in fund balance 24,566 (74,907) (9,904) (154,480)

Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 173,345 488,266 67,189 128,991

Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 $197,911 $413,359 $57,285 ($25,489)

144 244

Item 17.



Statement 26

418 GR Arts and Culture 
Capital Project

482 2021 Infrastructure 
Bonds

484 2022 Infrastructure/ 
ARPA

485 2023 Infrastructure 
Bonds

501 Permanent 
Improvement Revolving

Totals Nonmajor Capital 
Project Funds

$       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $       -       $675,152
       -              -       627,582        -              -       1,691,077
       -              -       809,102        -              -       1,093,701
       -              -              -              -       13,843 13,843

235        -              -              -       3,080 9,529
       -              -       6,562        -       47,867 54,429
       -              -              -              -              -       282,388
       -              -       40,963 2,503,213        -       2,955,365
       -              -              -              -              -       16,040

235 0 1,484,209 2,503,213 64,790 6,791,524

2,249        -              -              -       11,640 1,028,613
       -              -              -              -              -       70,383
       -       361,504        -              -              -       380,063
       -       134,068 932,262 3,998,453 24,010 7,422,253

       -              -              -       72,562        -       72,562
2,249 495,572 932,262 4,071,015 35,650 8,973,874

(2,014) (495,572) 551,947 (1,567,802) 29,140 (2,182,350)

       -              -              -       2,220,000        -       2,220,000
       -              -              -       35,700        -       35,700
       -              -              -              -              -       42,977

63,385        -              -              -              -       503,732
       -              -       (398,378) (53,970) (17,304) (469,652)

63,385 0 (398,378) 2,201,730 (17,304) 2,332,757

61,371 (495,572) 153,569 633,928 11,836 150,407

21,104 741,644 (164,224)        -       179,879 1,636,194

$82,475 $246,072 ($10,655) $633,928 $191,715 $1,786,601

Reconciliation of beginning fund balance to prior year ending fund balance:
Prior year ending fund balance reported $1,638,656

Prior year ending fund balance for funds reported as nonmajor in 
prior year and major in current year:

403 GR/Cohasset Industrial Park 161,762 
Prior year ending fund balance for funds reported as major in 

prior year and nonmajor in current year:
484 2022 Infrastructure/ARPA (164,224)

Current year beginning fund balance $1,636,194
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INDIVIDUAL BUDGET TO ACTUAL STATEMENTS 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 211 PUBLIC LIBRARY Statement 27
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
   General property taxes $759,331 $759,331 $716,366
   Intergovernmental:
      State:
         Supplemental aid        -              -       35,268
   Charges for services:
         Townships 128,000 128,000 143,384
         Other 28,081 28,081 58,013
   Fines and forfeits        -              -       86
   Interest and investment income 4,300 4,300 7,786
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments        -              -       7,028
   Contributions and donations 1,500 1,500 42,075

Total revenues 921,212 921,212 1,010,006 

Expenditures:
   Culture and recreation:
      Current:
         Personnel services 686,946 686,946 682,233
         Materials and supplies 90,218 90,218 94,405
         Other services and charges 148,500 148,500 156,332
      Capital outlay        -              -       7,898

Total expenditures 925,664 925,664 940,868 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,452) (4,452) 69,138

Other financing sources (uses)

   Transfers in 4,452 4,452 4,452

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,452 4,452 4,452

Net change in fund balance $0 $0 73,590

Fund balance - January 1 701,649

Fund balance - December 31 $775,239 

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 225 CENTRAL SCHOOL Statement 28
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
   Charges for services:
         Rent $56,100 $56,100 $57,412
   Interest and investment income        -              -       572
   Other        -              -       803

Total revenues 56,100 56,100 58,787 

Expenditures:
   Culture and recreation:
      Current:
         Materials and supplies 1,800 1,800 1,811
         Other services and charges 114,250 114,250 114,870

Total expenditures 116,050 116,050 116,681 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (59,950) (59,950) (57,894)

Other financing sources (uses):
   Transfers in 59,950 59,950 58,289

Total other financing sources (uses) 59,950 59,950 58,289

Net change in fund balance $0 $0 395

Fund balance - January 1 94,631

Fund balance - December 31 $95,026 

Budgeted Amounts

149 249

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 226 AIRPORT OPERATIONS Statement 29
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
   Charges for services:
         Rent $122,050 $122,050 $124,354
         Other 20,696 20,696 16,065
   Intergovernmental:
         State operations reimbursement 66,231 66,231 66,231
         Itasca County 20,000 20,000 62,833
         Federal        -              -       45,898
   Interest and investment income 300 300 14,723
   Other        -              -       250

Total revenues 229,277 229,277 330,354 

Expenditures:
   Public works:
      Current:
         Personnel services 113,791 113,791 106,956
         Materials and supplies 39,500 39,500 16,315
         Other services and charges 107,000 107,000 193,879
      Capital outlay        -              -       23,376

Total expenditures 260,291 260,291 340,526 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (31,014) (31,014) (10,172)

Other financing sources (uses):
   Sale of capital assets        -              -       16,362
   Insurance recoveries        -              -       822
   Transfers in 31,014 31,014 20,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 31,014 31,014 37,184

Net change in fund balance $0 $0 27,012

Fund balance - January 1 193,945

Fund balance - December 31 $220,957 

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 228 IRA CIVIC CENTER Statement 30
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
Charges for services:

Rent $470,000 $470,000 $433,048
Advertising 36,000 36,000 65,967
Other 2,600 2,600 4,626

Interest and investment income        -              -       9,676
Contributions and donations        -              -       2,000

Total revenues 508,600 508,600 515,317

Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:

Current:
         Personnel services 225,067 120,907 124,112
         Materials and supplies 7,000 7,000 9,187
         Other services and charges 254,083 254,083 231,664

Debt service:
Interest        -              -       196,597

Total expenditures 486,150 381,990 561,560

Revenues over (under) expenditures 22,450 126,610 (46,243)

Net change in fund balance $22,450 $126,610 (46,243)

Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 (47,268)

Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 ($93,511)

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 231 HAZ-MAT Statement 31
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:  

      State:
         Haz-Mat reimbursement $60,000 $60,000 $95,314

Total revenues 60,000 60,000 95,314

Expenditures:
   Public safety:
      Current:
         Personnel services 32,190 32,190 51,087
         Materials and supplies 10,810 10,810 7,630
         Other services and charges 17,000 17,000 32,397

Total expenditures 60,000 60,000 91,114

Revenues over (under) expenditures $0 $0 4,200 

Fund balance - January 1 440

Fund balance - December 31 $4,640 

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 232 POLICE FORFEITURE Statement 32
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $       -       $       -       $1,456
Fines and forfeits 4,000 4,000 13,318
Interest and investment income        -              -       480
Miscellaneous 250 250 8,650

Total revenues 4,250 4,250 23,904 

Expenditures:
Public safety:

Current:
Materials and supplies 3,500 3,500 1,456

Capital outlay        -              -       16,501
Total expenditures 3,500 3,500 17,957 

Revenues over (under) expenditures $750 $750 5,947

Fund balance - January 1 53,968

Fund balance - December 31 $59,915 

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 233 CEMETERY Statement 33
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
General property taxes $226,157 $226,157 $212,901
Intergovernmental:

      State:
Supplemental aid        -              -       10,481

Charges for services:
Cemetery 34,500 34,500 35,676

Interest and investment income 300 300 1,040
   Other 1,000 1,000 920

Total revenues 261,957 261,957 261,018 

Expenditures:
Public works:

Current:
Personnel services 212,874 212,874 216,982
Materials and supplies 13,600 13,600 8,340
Other services and charges 39,240 39,240 21,759

Capital outlay        -              -       40,175
Debt service: 

Principal retirement        -              -       2,345
Interest        -              -       673

Total expenditures 265,714 265,714 290,274 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,757) (3,757) (29,256)

Other financing sources (uses):
Lease issuance        -              -       34,672

   Sale of capital assets        -              -       1,341
   Transfers in 3,757 3,757 3,757

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,757 3,757 39,770

Net change in fund balance $0 $0 10,514

Fund balance - January 1 153,547

Fund balance - December 31 $164,061 

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - 235 DOMESTIC ANIMAL CONTROL FACILITY Statement 34
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual
Original Final Amounts

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $3,000 $3,000 $3,000
Fines and forfeits 37,250 37,250 31,520

Total revenues 40,250 40,250 34,520

Expenditures:
Public safety:

Current:
Personnel services 55,013 55,013 53,105
Materials and supplies 4,000 4,000 2,952
Other services and charges 18,160 18,160 13,216

Total expenditures 77,173 77,173 69,273

Revenues over (under) expenditures (36,923) (36,923) (34,753)

Other financing sources (uses)
   Transfers in 36,923 36,923 34,753

Total other financing sources (uses) 36,923 36,923 34,753

Net change in fund balance $0 $0 0

Fund balance - January 1 10,550

Fund balance - December 31 $10,550 

Budgeted Amounts
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CUSTODIAL FUNDS 
 
Custodial Funds account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee 
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental 
units, and/or other funds.   During 2022, the City of Grand Rapids had the 
following Custodial Funds: 
 
Lodging Tax - accounts for tax pass-through of lodging tax collections. 
 
Cable TV Commission - accounts for the pass-through of franchise fees to the 
Cable TV Commission. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Statement 35
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
December 31, 2023

872 Lodging Tax
877 Cable TV 

Commision Totals

Assets:
Cash and investments $20,788 $80,986 $101,774
Receivables: 

Accounts        -              -              -       
Total assets 20,788 80,986 101,774

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 20,788 80,986 101,774

Total liabilities 20,788 80,986 101,774

Net position: 
Restricted $    -       $    -       $    -       
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION Statement 36
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

872 Lodging Tax
877 Cable TV 

Commision Totals

Additions:
Lodging tax collections $432,584 $       -       $432,584
Cable franchise fee collections        -       236,858 236,858

Total additions 432,584 236,858 669,442

Deductions: 
Payments to other entities 410,176 229,520 639,696
Administrative fees 22,408 7,338 29,746

Total deductions 432,584 236,858 669,442

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position        -              -              -       
Net position - beginning        -              -              -       
Net position - ending $       -       $       -       $       -       

159 259

Item 17.



- This page intentionally left blank -

160 260

Item 17.



 

 

COMPONENT UNIT 
 

Economic Development Authority – The EDA is a discretely presented 
component unit which does not issue separate financial statements. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINING BALANCE  SHEET Statement 37
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMPONENT UNIT
December 31, 2023

Capital
Assets General Project Totals

Cash and investments $35,293 $1,068,243 $1,103,536
Due from other governmental units        -       156 156
Accounts receivable        -       37,566 37,566
Inventory - land held for resale        -       2,657,072 2,657,072
Notes receivable        -       635,001 635,001

Total assets $35,293 $4,398,038 $4,433,331

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
   Accounts payable $10,006 $31,093 $41,099
   Due to other governmental units        -       9,081 9,081

Due to primary government        -       37,790 37,790
Unearned revenue        -       646,508 646,508

Total liabilities 10,006 724,472 734,478 

Deferred inflows of resources:
   Unavailable revenue        -       3,320,590 3,320,590

Total deferred inflows of resources 0 3,320,590 3,320,590 

Fund balance:
Restricted        -       75,000 75,000
Assigned 25,287 277,976 303,263

Total fund balance 25,287 352,976 378,263

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
  of resources, and fund balance $35,293 $4,398,038 $4,433,331
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE Statement 38
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMPONENT UNIT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Capital
General Project Totals

Revenues:
   General property taxes $35,000 $40,083 $75,083
   Intergovernmental        -       23,706 23,706
   Charges for services        -       4,080 4,080
   Interest and investment income 128 14,140 14,268
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments        -       9,934 9,934
   Contributions        -       130,720 130,720
   Miscellaneous:
      Loan repayment        -       278,561 278,561
      Other        -       18,052 18,052

Total revenues 35,128 519,276 554,404

Expenditures:
   Economic development:
      Current:
         Materials and supplies 7        -       7
         Other services and charges 14,130 1,240,896 1,255,026
         Loan disbursement        -       165,000 165,000
      Debt service:
         Principal        -       143,032 143,032
         Interest        -       214 214

Total expenditures 14,137 1,549,142 1,563,279 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 20,991 (1,029,866) (1,008,875)

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of land held for resale        -       292,390 292,390

Total other financial sources (uses)        -       292,390 292,390

Net change in fund balance 20,991 (737,476) (716,485)

Fund balance - January 1 4,296 1,090,452 1,094,748

Fund balance - December 31 $25,287 $352,976 $378,263
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III.  STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 
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III.  STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 
 
This part of the City of Grand Rapid’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City 
of Grand Rapid’s overall financial health. 
 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant 
local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in 
the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and 
the activities it performs. 

 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the 
comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year.   
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017
Governmental activities:

Net investment in capital assets $33,830,578 $33,884,548 $36,971,014 $37,512,555
Restricted 10,281,228 9,803,311 10,100,529 13,147,731
Unrestricted 4,784,327 4,927,309 2,940,736 (1,186,433)

Total governmental activities net position $48,896,133 $48,615,168 $50,012,279 $49,473,853

Business type activities:
Net investment in capital assets $2,894,190 $2,841,005 $2,797,345 $2,904,137
Restricted        -              -              -              -       
Unrestricted 424,469 494,673 337,782 14,513

Total business-type activities net position $3,318,659 $3,335,678 $3,135,127 $2,918,650

Primary government:
Net investment in capital assets $36,724,768 $36,725,553 $39,768,359 $40,416,692
Restricted 10,281,228 9,803,311 10,100,529 13,147,731
Unrestricted 5,208,796 5,421,982 3,278,518 (1,171,920)

Total primary government net position $52,214,792 $51,950,846 $53,147,406 $52,392,503

Note: GASB 68 was implemented in 2015.  Net position was restated for 2014 to reflect the reporting of net pension liability 
and pension related deferred outflows of resources.

Fiscal Year
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Table 1

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$40,214,116 $42,846,042 $45,277,093 $48,653,953 $47,899,453 $53,100,727
10,060,607 10,896,992 10,530,098 9,519,302 9,316,590 10,325,138

814,352 1,270,800 2,115,273 3,420,365 4,559,487 5,670,553
$51,089,075 $55,013,834 $57,922,464 $61,593,620 $61,775,530 $69,096,418

$2,954,613 $2,888,261 $2,708,980 $2,756,809 $2,790,676 $2,686,705
       -              -              -              -              -              -       

(60,547) (74,841) 214,488 624,115 772,086 1,071,903
$2,894,066 $2,813,420 $2,923,468 $3,380,924 $3,562,762 $3,758,608

$43,168,729 $45,734,303 $47,986,073 $51,410,762 $50,690,129 $55,787,432
10,060,607 10,896,992 10,530,098 9,519,302 9,316,590 10,325,138

753,805 1,195,959 2,329,761 4,044,480 5,331,573 6,742,456
$53,983,141 $57,827,254 $60,845,932 $64,974,544 $65,338,292 $72,855,026

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017
Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government $3,701,667 $2,993,026 $3,649,895 $3,096,685
Public safety 3,382,829 3,674,182 4,208,454 3,807,777
Public works 5,417,245 5,239,892 5,646,605 6,368,065
Culture and recreation 2,054,143 2,028,067 2,367,449 2,327,649
Interest and fees on long-term debt 834,833 740,526 731,702 871,133

Total governmental activities expenses 15,390,717 14,675,693 16,604,105 16,471,309

Business-type activities:
Golf course 554,859 598,114 651,127 683,231
Storm water utility 425,389 440,557 688,176 701,325

Total business-type activities expenses 980,248 1,038,671 1,339,303 1,384,556

Total primary government expenses $16,370,965 $15,714,364 $17,943,408 $17,855,865

Program revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government $563,808 $565,218 $458,276 $559,770
Public safety 527,001 561,365 580,225 587,714
Public works 424,349 323,177 326,167 1,048,588
Culture and recreation:

Ice rent 474,909 484,801 496,778 509,811
Other activities 526,763 532,720 551,263 531,064

Operating grants and contributions 1,980,477 1,615,576 2,262,521 1,179,042
Capital grants and contributions 1,757,480 806,243 3,523,916 1,410,953

Total governmental activities program revenues 6,254,787 4,889,100 8,199,146 5,826,942

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Golf course 555,588 589,499 569,276 567,053
Storm water utility 553,074 563,011 567,357 592,947

Operating grants and contributions        -              -              -              -       
Capital grants and contributions 46,388        -              -              -       

Total business-type activities program revenues 1,155,050 1,152,510 1,136,633 1,160,000

Total primary government program revenues $7,409,837 $6,041,610 $9,335,779 $6,986,942

Net (expense) revenue:
Governmental activities ($9,135,930) ($9,786,593) ($8,404,959) ($10,644,367)
Business-type activities 174,802 113,839 (202,670) (224,556)

Total primary government net (expense) revenue (8,961,128) (9,672,754) (8,607,629) (10,868,923)

Fiscal Year
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Table 2
Page 1 of 2

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$3,027,254 $4,330,097 $4,566,308 $3,727,831 $4,615,082 $4,972,574
3,551,574 3,872,939 3,811,071 3,907,045 4,678,868 5,127,557
6,569,274 8,735,821 7,451,179 6,633,805 7,788,447 15,721,896
2,387,392 2,215,769 1,825,496 1,954,824 2,081,855 2,485,168

662,757 654,344 625,932 715,158 703,269 1,076,622
16,198,251 19,808,970 18,279,986 16,938,663 19,867,521 29,383,817

628,752 630,928 636,642 712,099 858,647 947,369
755,772 743,983 657,178 613,529 654,748 733,006

1,384,524 1,374,911 1,293,820 1,325,628 1,513,395 1,680,375

$17,582,775 $21,183,881 $19,573,806 $18,264,291 $21,380,916 $31,064,192

$425,485 $1,126,227 $649,606 $591,979 $759,284 $960,267
614,953 717,861 781,224 879,364 881,549 1,006,901
897,927 488,316 1,387,390 505,483 388,751 498,520

526,840 562,840 421,120 588,587 540,271 433,048
463,216 450,658 383,881 305,231 383,810 330,926

1,878,743 2,536,708 3,169,921 2,153,675 3,248,624 11,772,269
2,730,703 7,022,082 1,088,517 4,403,281 3,221,907 7,418,614
7,537,867 12,904,692 7,881,659 9,427,600 9,424,196 22,420,545

582,728 597,184 653,736 781,728 877,502 963,245
718,751 696,628 746,488 875,888 858,646 855,582

       -              -              -              -              -              -       
       -              -              -       115,400        -       20,046

1,301,479 1,293,812 1,400,224 1,773,016 1,736,148 1,838,873

$8,839,346 $14,198,504 $9,281,883 $11,200,616 $11,160,344 $24,259,418

($8,660,384) ($6,904,278) ($10,398,327) ($7,511,063) ($10,443,325) ($6,963,272)
(83,045) (81,099) 106,404 447,388 222,753 158,498

(8,743,429) (6,985,377) (10,291,923) (7,063,675) (10,220,572) (6,804,774)

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017

General revenues and other changes in net position
Governmental activities:

Taxes $6,022,589 $6,640,739 $6,945,795 $7,239,603
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 903,494 902,766 903,478 906,119
City sales tax        -              -              -              -       
Unrestricted grants and contributions 1,740,285 1,742,132 1,776,992 1,759,578
Investment earnings (loss) 122,519 109,041 107,331 121,034
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 6,900        -       14,196 60,429
Insurance recoveries and other 20,924 7,450 50,778 15,678
Special item - reimbursement for land swap costs        -              -              -              -       
Transfers 3,500 103,500 3,500 3,500

Total governmental activities 8,820,211 9,505,628 9,802,070 10,105,941

Business-type activities:
Unrestricted grants and contributions        -              -              -       1,000
Investment earnings (loss) 6,919 6,349 5,619 3,884
Gain on sale of capital assets        -       331        -       5,750
Insurance recoveries 4,000        -              -       945
Transfers (3,500) (103,500) (3,500) (3,500)

Total business-type activities 7,419 (96,820) 2,119 8,079

Total primary government $8,827,630 $9,408,808 $9,804,189 $10,114,020

Change in net position:
Government activities $1,907,050 $369,698 $15,477 $1,700,982
Business-type activities 93,273 77,982 115,958 (194,591)

Total primary government $2,000,323 $447,680 $131,435 $1,506,391

Note: GASB 68 was implemented in 2015. Pension expense for years prior to 2015 was not restated.

Fiscal Year
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Table 2
Page 2 of 2

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$7,354,409 $7,629,869 $7,659,562 $7,924,863 $8,464,200 $8,714,567
915,788 913,682 911,762 914,886 924,990 933,281

       -              -              -              -              -       1,573,230
1,864,606 1,843,498 2,086,492 2,096,967 1,766,907 2,669,197

133,871 206,030 136,466 107,623 (534,203) 292,371
21,576 199,455 2,512,675 67,402 3,341 101,514
14,856        -              -       70,478        -              -       

       -       33,003        -              -              -              -       
(29,500) 3,500        -              -              -              -       

10,275,606 10,829,037 13,306,957 11,182,219 10,625,235 14,284,160

       -              -              -              -              -              -       
3,322 3,953 3,644 5,229 (36,076) 23,423

895        -              -              -              -       13,925
24,744        -              -              -              -              -       
29,500 (3,500)        -              -              -              -       
58,461 453 3,644 5,229 (36,076) 37,348

$10,334,067 $10,829,490 $13,310,601 $11,187,448 $10,589,159 $14,321,508

($368,761) $3,924,759 $2,908,630 $3,671,156 $181,910 $7,320,888
(166,095) (80,646) 110,048 452,617 186,677 195,846

($534,856) $3,844,113 $3,018,678 $4,123,773 $368,587 $7,516,734

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS(1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017
General Fund:

Fund balance:
Nonspendable $401,947 $306,783 $636,954 $1,108,226
Restricted 14,268 17,185 17,577 21,677
Committed 331,201 422,995 517,869 613,922
Unassigned 4,903,066 5,253,912 5,066,530 4,526,746

Total general fund 5,650,482 6,000,875 6,238,930 6,270,571

All other governmental funds:
Fund balance:

Nonspendable 23,387 26,659 18,334 37,351
Restricted 6,607,864 7,012,776 7,033,902 9,945,077
Committed 636,819 646,943 804,728 748,398
Assigned 1,819,910 2,076,696 1,480,898 1,433,487
Unassigned (117,775) (184,210) (579,562) (929,731)

Total all other government funds 8,970,205 9,578,864 8,758,300 11,234,582

Total all funds $14,620,687 $15,579,739 $14,997,230 $17,505,153

Fiscal Year
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Table 3

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$1,146,321 $1,236,463 $1,471,076 $1,652,993 $1,411,674 $1,173,469
19,419 22,535 35,950 39,516 35,374 37,348

713,901 817,236 925,572 1,049,832 1,169,769 1,286,122
4,339,372 4,544,575 4,909,111 4,812,207 5,012,023 5,191,745
6,219,013 6,620,809 7,341,709 7,554,548 7,628,840 7,688,684

38,130 79,738 52,941 45,109 35,693 128,084
7,212,565 7,108,403 6,792,754 6,282,145 13,375,777 7,265,545

736,371 780,416 853,737 931,143 1,030,787 1,132,852
2,110,453 1,677,812 1,811,774 2,364,975 1,748,247 2,115,974
(798,902) (537,062) (944,929) (1,920,561) (1,505,563) (401,135)

9,298,617 9,109,307 8,566,277 7,702,811 14,684,941 10,241,320

$15,517,630 $15,730,116 $15,907,986 $15,257,359 $22,313,781 $17,930,004

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017
Revenues

Taxes $6,951,608 $7,549,081 $7,802,196 $8,179,557
Licenses and permits 275,941 343,241 259,518 332,376
Intergovernmental 5,014,278 3,887,034 5,726,983 3,771,612
Special assessments 990,937 835,650 989,932 631,282
Charges for services 2,021,418 1,945,088 1,980,441 2,083,233
Fines and forfeits 172,374 150,911 140,003 116,367
Investment income (loss) 122,519 109,041 107,331 121,034
Contributions and donations        -              -              -              -       
Other 441,708 378,950 899,017 1,093,069

Total revenues 15,990,783 15,198,996 17,905,421 16,328,530

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,591,609 2,318,002 3,047,872 2,404,189
Public safety 3,074,009 3,224,886 3,338,016 3,340,909
Public works 3,188,479 2,575,664 2,731,258 2,822,303
Culture and recreation 1,735,137 1,720,627 1,947,341 1,931,650
Miscellaneous 570,460 545,535 514,541 553,452

Capital outlay/construction 3,698,823 749,073 5,870,681 4,736,594
Decertify TIF districts        -              -              -       91,038
Debt service:

Principal retirement 5,040,000 2,475,000 2,590,000 2,597,000
Interest 815,457 764,607 711,789 680,534
Paying agent fees 8,775 8,000 7,600 7,150
Bond issuance costs 70,491        -       52,693 112,018

Total expenditures 20,793,240 14,381,394 20,811,791 19,276,837

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,802,457) 817,602 (2,906,370) (2,948,307)

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets 6,900 2,000 55,400 133,885
Lease issuance        -              -              -              -       
Issuance of refunding bonds        -              -              -       3,013,286
Bond issuance/bond premium 3,000,000        -       2,214,183 2,289,881
Insurance recoveries 47,329 35,950 50,778 15,678
Transfers in 1,053,297 602,038 1,002,717 4,116,142
Transfers out (1,049,797) (498,538) (999,217) (4,112,642)

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,057,729 141,450 2,323,861 5,456,230

Net change in fund balance ($1,744,728) $959,052 ($582,509) $2,507,923

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 31.0% 23.1% 21.8% 22.5%

Fiscal Year
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Table 4

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$8,217,883 $8,490,925 $8,536,045 $8,758,762 $9,440,654 $11,169,116
212,505 499,947 450,688 384,777 479,768 440,743

5,860,934 10,498,053 5,742,470 8,423,475 7,337,009 16,317,196
762,813 514,977 432,474 341,486 318,005 264,640

2,089,178 2,163,196 2,067,732 2,219,548 2,275,889 2,569,519
114,828 112,553 92,407 98,337 114,060 110,569
133,871 206,030 136,466 107,623 (534,203) 292,371
       -              -              -              -       326,351 346,624
712,397 312,273 1,063,428 242,963 445,944 4,853,952

18,104,409 22,797,954 18,521,710 20,576,971 20,203,477 36,364,730

2,426,762 3,525,148 2,960,690 3,094,350 3,805,894 4,293,761
3,608,088 3,798,604 3,847,373 4,020,689 4,202,501 4,606,345
2,795,132 2,864,435 2,984,860 3,275,655 3,388,567 3,383,502
2,015,958 1,869,413 1,525,058 1,663,705 1,781,666 1,677,314

562,856 332,564 1,214,096 569,299 422,144 475,302
4,546,229 8,813,591 7,745,469 12,160,921 6,306,014 25,452,036

       -       95,693        -              -              -              -       

5,420,000 2,480,000 2,480,000 2,515,000 2,495,000 2,619,262
669,089 629,512 613,237 578,766 670,696 1,040,558

6,250 6,350 6,850 6,600 7,075 7,575
60,199 50,948 57,920 116,617 123,390 72,562

22,110,563 24,466,258 23,435,553 28,001,602 23,202,947 43,628,217

(4,006,154) (1,668,304) (4,913,843) (7,424,631) (2,999,470) (7,263,487)

47,887 210,616 2,526,905 51,402 6,476 101,514
       -              -              -              -              -       470,340
       -              -       2,275,000 6,255,000        -              -       

1,973,026 1,647,547 83,520 370,304 10,000,000 2,255,700
27,218 19,127 206,288 97,298 49,416 52,156

2,096,040 982,070 806,486 1,297,912 823,737 1,285,790
(2,125,540) (978,570) (806,486) (1,297,912) (823,737) (1,285,790)
2,018,631 1,880,790 5,091,713 6,774,004 10,055,892 2,879,710

($1,987,523) $212,486 $177,870 ($650,627) $7,056,422 ($4,383,777)

33.1% 18.7% 16.5% 17.9% 17.5% 13.6%

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017
Function/Program
Governmental activities:

General government $566,308 $594,476 $781,676 $567,926
Public safety 1,122,613 1,141,745 1,083,258 1,133,127
Public works 3,325,271 1,922,976 3,971,370 2,785,332
Culture and recreation 1,059,045 1,070,269 2,115,700 1,108,439
Other        -              -              -       232,118

Total governmental activities program revenues 6,073,237 4,729,466 7,952,004 5,826,942

Business-type activities:
Golf course 555,588 589,499 569,276 567,053
Storm water utility 553,074 563,011 567,357 592,947

Total business-type activities program revenues 1,108,662 1,152,510 1,136,633 1,160,000

Total primary government program revenues $7,181,899 $5,881,976 $9,088,637 $6,986,942

Fiscal Year
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Table 5

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$486,735 $1,261,059 $1,627,440 $1,352,643 $2,235,654 $2,383,464
1,154,522 1,393,344 1,322,337 1,516,232 1,491,635 2,194,375
4,360,082 8,941,143 3,638,837 5,628,437 4,699,936 12,060,419
1,494,977 1,255,309 1,263,344 905,912 978,241 6,316,224

41,551 34,710 29,701 24,376 18,730 12,877
7,537,867 12,885,565 7,881,659 9,427,600 9,424,196 22,967,359

582,728 597,184 653,736 781,728 877,502 963,245
718,751 696,628 746,488 875,888 858,646 855,582

1,301,479 1,293,812 1,400,224 1,657,616 1,736,148 1,818,827

$8,839,346 $14,179,377 $9,281,883 $11,085,216 $11,160,344 $24,786,186

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
TAX CAPACITY VALUE AND ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY Table 6
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Commercial/ Total Less: Fiscal Adjusted Total Estimated Tax Capacity
Ended Residential Industrial All Tax Disparity Tax Capacity Direct Tax Market as a Percent

December 31 Property Property Other Capacity Contribution Value Rate Value of EMV

2014 $4,496,682 $3,933,451 $618,235 $9,048,368 $1,120,826 $7,927,542 79.308          $754,740,246 1.05%

2015 4,571,503    3,906,927     681,838    9,160,268   933,840      8,226,428    79.245          762,916,480    1.08%

2016 4,724,671    3,974,339     819,387    9,518,397   1,109,824   8,408,573    79.232          786,530,358    1.07%

2017 4,756,343    3,960,710     882,231    9,599,284   1,192,888   8,406,396    82.208          792,082,220    1.06%

2018 4,757,558    3,908,563     937,951    9,604,072   1,216,383   8,387,689    82.493          795,696,602    1.05%

2019 5,115,784    3,801,713     910,424    9,827,921   1,219,912   8,608,009    83.290          824,925,900    1.04%

2020 5,144,945    3,818,146     789,321    9,752,412   1,152,780   8,599,632    83.457          822,147,100    1.05%

2021 5,258,120    3,870,142     769,972    9,898,234   1,094,170   8,804,064    83.454          836,239,865    1.05%

2022 5,858,812    3,900,149     703,981    10,462,942 1,172,324   9,290,618    82.553          891,732,700    1.04%

2023 7,663,545    4,013,585     713,279    12,390,409 1,002,186   11,388,223  71.662          1,066,232,900 1.07%

Source: Itasca County Auditor's Office
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES Table 7
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Itasca School Special Taxing Overlapping
Fiscal Year Operating Debt Total County District #318 District Tax Rate

2014 60.623             18.685             79.308             53.852             18.583             0.260               152.003           

2015 59.934             19.311             79.245             55.038             16.618             0.115               151.016           

2016 62.105             17.127             79.232             58.157             16.530             0.296               154.215           

2017 63.426             18.782             82.208             60.240             16.909             0.293               159.650           

2018 63.881             18.612             82.493             62.465             17.189             0.254               162.401           

2019 65.202             18.088             83.290             64.844             24.182             0.298               172.614           

2020 65.307             18.150             83.457             67.034             23.901             0.305               174.697           

2021 66.095             17.359             83.454             62.770             21.635             0.281               168.140           

2022 62.569             19.984             82.553             61.029             22.808             0.283               166.673           

2023 55.294             16.368             71.662             48.590             18.176             0.227               138.655           

Source: Itasca County Auditor's Office

Direct Rate - City of Grand Rapids Overlapping Rates
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS Table 8
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total City Taxable of Total City
Capacity Capacity Capacity Capacity

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

UPM Blandin Paper Mill $463,825 1 3.71% $610,103 1 6.85%
Enbridge Energy, LP 304,525      2 2.43% 273,410      2 3.07%
Wal-Mart Stores 182,318      3 1.46%
Pillars of Grand Rapids, LLC 149,466      4 1.19% 207,352      3 2.33%
Enbridge Energy Pipelines 135,388      5 1.08% 145,633 4 1.63%
Majestic Pines Grand, LLC 125,105      6 1.00%
Grand Hospitality LLC 123,700      7 0.99% 122,453 6 1.37%
Grand Rapids Healthcare 118,341      8 0.95%
Arrowhead Promotion & Fulfillment Co 115,558      9 0.92% 106,404 9 1.19%
Grand Itasca Clinic & Hospital 112,503      10 0.90%
Burlington Northern & Santa Fe 124,018 5 1.39%
ASV, Inc.  * 112,032 7 1.26%
Target Corporation 108,442 8 1.22%
Home Depot USA, Inc 100,430 10 1.13%

Total principal taxpayers 1,830,729 14.63% 1,910,277 21.44%

All other taxpayers 10,680,230 85.37% 7,000,166   78.56%

Total $12,510,959 100.00% $8,910,443 100.00%

Source: Itasca County Auditor's Office
Current Property Valuations, Net Tax Capacity by Classification, Trend of Valuations and Larger Taxpayers have been furnished
by Itasca County.

*Formerly Terex Corp., Inc.

20142023
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS Table 9
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collections in
Ended for the Percentage Subsequent Percentage

December 31 Fiscal Year Amount  of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2014 $6,281,859 $6,201,927 98.73% $79,932 $6,281,859 100.00%

2015 6,845,166         6,774,792         98.97% 70,374              6,845,166         100.00%

2016 6,951,560         6,847,996         98.51% 87,383              6,935,379         99.77%

2017 7,258,674         7,169,418         98.77% 49,666              7,219,084         99.45%

2018 7,408,178         7,249,845         97.86% 60,347              7,310,192         98.68%

2019 7,689,023         7,545,606         98.13% 69,055              7,614,661         99.03%

2020 7,793,670         7,698,321         98.78% 89,933              7,788,254         99.93%

2021 8,079,328         7,864,173         97.34% 84,852              7,949,025         98.39%

2022 8,603,265         8,555,109         99.44% 19,228              8,574,337         99.66%

2023 8,603,265         8,492,059         98.71% -                       8,492,059         98.71%

Source: Itasca County Auditor's Office

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE Table 10
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-type
Activities Bonded

General General Tax General Total Total Debt
Obligation Obligation Increment Other Obligation Governmental Capital Primary Per

Fiscal Year Bonds Impr Bonds Bonds Debt PUC Debt* Activities Leases Government Capita

2014 $6,475,141 $20,054,957 $790,000 $108,868 $29,841,000 $57,269,966        -       $57,269,966 $5,269

2015 5,794,793 18,268,519 770,000 85,224 27,721,386 52,639,922        -       52,639,922 4,843      

2016 7,276,630 16,417,458 750,000 61,580 25,506,149 50,011,817        -       50,011,817 4,601      

2017 8,821,458 17,584,683 730,000 40,936 23,469,912 50,646,989 111,968 50,758,957 4,439      

2018 9,664,438 13,270,296 705,000 27,292 21,389,000 45,056,026 85,564 45,141,590 3,964      

2019 10,678,913 11,416,220 680,000 13,648 19,240,000 42,028,781 58,129 42,086,910 3,695      

2020 12,429,876 9,537,720 650,000        -       17,201,000 39,818,596 29,621 39,848,217 3,499      

2021 18,320,195 7,751,432 615,000        -       17,186,187 43,872,814        -       43,872,814 3,943      

2022 27,422,573 6,130,228 580,000        -       14,069,500 48,202,301        -       48,202,301 4,272      

2023 28,500,651 4,699,865 540,000        -       16,724,000 50,464,516        -       50,464,516 4,448      

Note:  Personal income not available.
Excludes component units.
Includes unamortized issuance premium for 2014 through 2023
* Debt of the Public Utilities Commission component unit, for which the City has a general obligation peldge

Governmental Activities
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING Table 11
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Less Amounts Net General Percentage of 
Obligation Restricted for Obligation Estimated Bonded Debt

Fiscal Year Bonds  c Debt service Bonded Debt Market Value  a Per Capita b

2014 $6,475,141 $1,232,228 $5,242,913 0.6947% $482.37

2015 5,794,793 1,252,221 4,542,572 0.5954% 417.94                  

2016 7,276,630 2,100,311 5,176,319 0.6581% 476.25                  

2017 8,821,458 2,913,286 5,908,172 0.7459% 516.67                  

2018 9,664,438 2,690,044 6,974,394 0.8765% 612.38                  

2019 10,678,913 3,716,614 6,962,299 0.8440% 611.32                  

2020 12,429,876 3,903,822 8,526,054 1.0370% 748.56                  

2021 18,320,195 4,051,168 14,269,027 1.7063% 1,282.49               

2022 27,422,573 4,370,275 23,052,298 2.5851% 2,043.10               

2023 28,500,651 5,499,560 23,001,091 2.1572% 2,027.24               

a  See Table 6 for Estimated Market Value data.
b  Population can be found in Table 14.
c  Includes unamortized issuance premium for 2014 through 2022.

General Bonded Debt Outstanding
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT Table 12
December 31, 2023

% of Debt City of 
Net Debt Applicable Grand Rapids

Outstanding to City(2) Share of Debt
Direct debt

City of Grand Rapids (1) $50,464,516 100.00% $50,464,516

Overlapping debt:

Itasca County 87,280,000 13.63% 11,899,046

School District 318 97,110,000 19.57% 19,008,460

Total overlapping debt 184,390,000 30,907,506

Total direct and overlapping debt $234,854,516 $81,372,022

Source: Itasca County Auditor's Office

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City.  This Schedule 
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses
of the City of Grand Rapids.  This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay
long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.  However, this
does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.

(1) Includes all debt related to governmental activities as presented in Table 10 which includes unamortized bond premiums
of $725,516

(2) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the taxable market values.  Applicable percentages
were estimated by determining the portion of the county's and school district's taxable market value that is within the City's 
boundaries.
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION Table 13
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2023

Estimated Market value $1,066,232,900
Debt limit percentage* 3%
Debt limit amount 31,986,987          

Debt applicable to limit:
     Lease revenue bonds -                           
     General obligation bonds 21,930,646

21,930,646          
Less:
     Cash and equivalents in G.O. Bond Debt Service Funds (3,909,750)           
           Total net debt applicable to limit 18,020,896          

Legal debt margin $13,966,091

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Years 2014 Through 2023

Net Debt Legal Amount of Debt Net Bonded
Fiscal Debt Applicable Debt Applicable to Debt per
Year Population Limit to Limit Margin Debt Limit Capita

2014 10,869             $22,642,207 $5,393,126 $17,249,081 23.82% 496.19                 
2015 10,869             22,887,494     4,581,451            18,306,043     20.02% 421.52                 
2016 10,869 23,595,911     5,471,587            18,124,324     23.19% 503.41                 
2017 11,435 23,762,467     6,588,263            17,174,204     27.73% 576.15                 
2018 11,389             23,870,898     7,606,103            16,264,795     31.86% 667.85                 
2019 11,389             24,747,777     8,386,527            16,361,250     33.89% 736.37                 
2020 11,390             24,664,413     10,002,051          14,662,362     40.55% 878.14                 
2021 11,126             25,087,196     15,747,803          9,339,393       62.77% 1,415.41              
2022 11,283             26,751,981     17,848,824          8,903,157       66.72% 1,581.92              
2023 11,346             31,986,987     18,020,896          13,966,091     56.34% 1,588.30              

Source:  Itasca County Auditors Office and City Finance Department
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE Table 14
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Special Tax
Assessment Increment

Fiscal Year Collections Principal Interest Coverage Collections Principal Interest Coverage

2014 $609,576 $1,645,000 $466,922 28.86% $180,957 $15,000 $35,371 359.25%

2015 551,895     1,315,000  437,515     31.49% 237,023     20,000       34,715       433.20%

2016 514,410     1,505,000  416,830     26.77% 372,139     20,000       33,965       689.59%

2017 412,018     1,495,000  380,497     21.97% 383,897     20,000       33,170       722.02%

2018 447,143     1,450,000  344,854     24.91% 362,772     25,000       28,371       679.72%

2019 404,464     1,510,000  296,329     22.39% 227,734     25,000       19,900       507.20%

2020 314,002     1,505,000  256,638     17.82% 228,705     30,000       19,076       466.02%

2021 258,644     1,420,000  215,700     15.81% 235,563     35,000       18,100       443.62%

2022 249,526     1,255,000  174,800     17.45% 275,131     35,000       17,051       528.58%

2023 237,124     1,420,000  167,505     14.94% 566,948     40,000       15,925       1013.76%

Special assessment collections do not include prepayments.

Excludes component units.

Improvement Bonds

Debt Service

Tax Increment Bonds

Debt Service
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS Table 15
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
Personal Personal Unemployment

Fiscal Year Population Income Income Rate

2014 10,869 9.90%

2015 10,869 7.60%

2016 10,869 6.70%

2017 11,435 8.47%

2018 11,389 10.60%

2019 11,389 6.10%

2020 11,389 5.60%

2021 11,390 5.28%

2022 11,283 4.61%

2023 11,346 4.00%

Source:  Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development
            

Information Not Available
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS Table 16
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Taxpayer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

ISD #318(1) 716               1 8.94% 624               1 6.68%
Grand Itasca Clinic & Hospital 526               2 6.57% 600               2 6.43%
Itasca County 421               3 5.26% 420               4 4.50%
Northland Counseling Center, Inc 250               4 3.12%
ASV Inc.(3) 250               5 3.12% 450               9 4.82%
North Homes, Inc. 250               6 3.12%
Magnetation 300               6 3.21%
UPM Blandin Paper Mill 226               7 2.82% 460               3 4.93%
Arrowhead Promo & Fulfillment 220               8 2.75% 290               7 3.11%
City of Grand Rapids(1) 179               9 2.24% 234               8 2.51%
Wal-Mart 183               10 2.29% 300               5 3.21%
Grand Village Nursing Home(2) 160               10 1.71%

Total 3,221            40.24% 3,838            41.10%

All other employers 4,784            59.76% 5,500            58.90%

Total 8,005            100.00% 9,338            100.00%

Source: Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development

(1) Formerly Terex Corp., Inc.
(2) Includes full-and part-time employees. 
(3) Formerly known as Itasca County Nursing Home.

2023 2014
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM Table 17
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

General government:
Administration 4.00   4.00   4.00   4.00   3.00   4.00   4.00   4.00   4.00   4.00    
Finance 5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00   5.00    
Community development 4.05   4.05   4.55   4.55   4.55   5.55   5.55   4.55   4.55   4.55    
Engineering 2.45   2.45   2.45   3.45   3.45   4.45   4.45   4.45   4.45   4.45    
Information technology 2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   3.00    

Police officers and records 22.50 22.50 22.50 25.50 26.50 27.50 27.70 24.70 24.70 22.50  
Public works 14.00 14.00 14.00 16.00 17.00 18.00 20.00 20.00 19.00 18.00  
Parks and recreation 3.00   3.00   3.00   3.00   2.00   3.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00    
Library 8.75   8.75   8.50   8.50   8.50   8.50   6.50   7.50   7.50   7.50    
Golf course 2.00   2.00   2.00   2.00   1.00   1.00   1.00   2.00   2.00   2.00    

Total 67.75 67.75 68.00 74.00 73.00 79.00 78.20 76.20 75.20 73.00  

The City has 30 paid-on-call firefighters.

Source: City Finance Department

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of December 31
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM Table 18
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Police:
Physical and sexual assaults 460          441          346          145          218 230 231 191         137          190          
Parking citations 314          239          208          590          487 451 370 337         383          177          
DUI arrests 211          117          110          94            72 73 52 56           86            62            
Traffic citations 1,544       2,175       1,579       1,366       1232 1381 863 953         984          606          
Accidents 568          495          451          416          535 412 320 358         408          361          

Fire:
Emergency responses 138          167          182          212          146 199 203 219         214          194          
Haz-Mat responses 36            53            17            13            3 0 1 1             1              2              
Inspections 100          55            6              5              8 19 28 26           4              18            

Community development:
Permits issued:

Commercial 96            110          120          153          120 107 113 134         88            110          
Governmental 25            20            29            22            12 12 13 14           5              17            
Residential 373          401          405          382          393 442 368 378         354          401          

Building safety devision:
Rental inspections -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              181          132          
Re-inspections -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -              169          135          

Public works:
Streets swept (miles) 93            93            93            93            93 94 94 94           94            94            
Roads (miles) 93            93            93            93            93 94 94 94           94            94            
Streetlights 1,325       1,325       1,325       1,578       1584 1630 1624 1,696      1,924       1,667       

Parks and recreation:
    Playgrounds 10            11            11            11            11 11 11 11           11            11            
    Baseball/softball fields 7              7              7              7              7 7 7 7             7              7              
    Soccer fields 3              3              3              3              2 3 3 3             3              3              
    Skate park 1              1              1              1              1 1 1 1             1              1              
Library:

Volumes in collection 75,173     75,751     74,541     70,991     73,332     74,073     73,670     72,425    70,704     71,039     
Total volumes borrowed 172,438   173,954   163,483   160,089   183,169   191,876   98,190     131,131  160,723   165,796   

Golf course:
Number of passes sold

Junior* 59            77            57            46            42 40 62 48           63            84            
Young adult* 14            15            12            11            11 10 34 38           53            48            
Single 110          107          128          113          99 101 101 127         124          118          
Family 63            74            63            60            64 62 48 56           54            58            

*Junior =Children ages 10 to 18
*Young Adult=Ages 19 to 24
Source: Various City Departments

192 292

Item 17.



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM Table 19
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Police:
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units 20 20 20 20 22 20 20 20 21 22

Fire stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1
Public works:

Miles of streets maintained 93 93 95 95 95 95 94 94 95 95
Miles of sidewalks maintained 91 100 103 103 104 103 48 48 49 49
Miles of curbs and gutters maintained 112 112 113 113 113.5 113 113 113 160 160

Parks and recreation:
Community parks and playgrounds 24 26 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25
Total acres 227 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350

Source: Various City Departments

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF INDEBTEDNESS
December 31, 2023

Final
Interest Issue Maturity
Rates Date Date

General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds:
Refunding TIF Bonds Series 2017B 4.20 - 4.60 12/28/2017 2/1/2034

Total General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds

General Obligation Improvement Bonds:
Improvement Bonds of 2009C 1.85 - 4.3 9/1/2009 2/1/2025
Improvement Bonds of 2010A 0.75 - 3.625 11/1/2010 2/1/2026
Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2011B 0.50 - 3.15 12/1/2011 2/1/2027
Improvement Bonds of 2012A 0.50 - 3.25 4/1/2012 2/1/2028
Improvement Bonds of 2012B 0.40 - 2.60 4/1/2012 10/1/2027
Improvement Bonds of 2014A 0.50 - 2.90 11/1/2014 2/1/2030
Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2017B 2.3 - 3.0 12/28/2017 2/1/2034

Total General Obligation Improvement Bonds 

Other General Obligation Debt:
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2013B 3.00-3.50 9/1/2013 2/1/2029
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2016A 0.850 - 2.2 10/5/2016 2/1/2032
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2017A 3.0 - 3.45 9/7/2017 2/1/2033
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2018A 3.0 - 3.25 10/18/2018 2/1/2034
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2020A 1.60 - 2.00 11/5/2020 2/1/2036
Street Reconstruction Bonds of 2023A 4.00 - 5.00 11/9/2023 2/1/2039
G.O. Abatement Bonds of 2019A 2.0 - 3.0 9/5/2019 2/1/2035
G.O. Abatement Bonds of Bonds of 2021B 2.00 - 2.75 7/1/2021 2/1/2042
G.O. Temporary Bonds of 2022A 4.75 12/22/2022 12/1/2025

Total Other General Obligation Debt

Note payable - Block 20 & 21 Soil 0.00 8/5/2010 12/31/2029
Note payable - Airport Ind Park/Kent 0.00 7/16/2015 7/16/2035
Note payable - Blandin 0.00 2016 2026
Note payable - VFW/Rose buildings 0.00 1/29/2021 1/29/2026
Note payable - Blandin 0.00 4/1/2020 10/1/2026
Note payable - Blandin 0.00 4/1/2020 10/1/2026

Revenue Bonds and Notes (Public Utilities):
Taxable G.O. Wastewater Revenue Note of 2009E 2.90 11/10/2009 8/20/2029
Taxable G.O. Utility Revenue Bonds of 2013C 2.00-4.50 9/1/2013 2/1/2029
G.O. Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2021A 0.25 - 0.63 5/27/2021 10/15/2025
G.O. Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2021D 2.0 - 3.0 12/9/2021 2/1/2033
G.O. Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds of 2021C 0.45 - 1.25 9/2/2021 2/1/2029
G.O. Utility Revenue Bonds of 2023B 4.25 - 5.00 11/9/2023 2/1/2039

Total Revenue Bonds (Public Utilities)

Total bonded indebtedness

196 296

Item 17.



Exhibit 1

Prior Years
Original Payable Payable Due in 2024

Issue Payments 01/01/23 Issued Payments 12/31/2023 Principal Interest

$705,000 $125,000 $580,000        -       $40,000 $540,000 $35,000 $14,800
705,000 125,000 580,000 0 40,000 540,000 35,000 14,800 

4,565,000 3,500,000 1,065,000        -       345,000 720,000 355,000 28,663
1,115,000 865,000 250,000        -       60,000 190,000 60,000 5,725
1,555,000 1,185,000 370,000        -       70,000 300,000 70,000 8,182
2,245,000 1,285,000 960,000        -       155,000 805,000 155,000 23,644
4,175,000 2,670,000 1,505,000        -       290,000 1,215,000 295,000 25,807
3,000,000 1,570,000 1,430,000        -       205,000 1,225,000 210,000 29,120
2,215,000 1,755,000 460,000        -       295,000 165,000 165,000 2,475

18,870,000 12,830,000 6,040,000 0 1,420,000 4,620,000 1,310,000 123,616 

4,025,000 1,925,000 2,100,000        -       270,000 1,830,000 280,000 55,487
2,170,000 645,000 1,525,000        -       140,000 1,385,000 140,000 26,960
2,130,000 460,000 1,670,000        -       130,000 1,540,000 135,000 47,250
1,960,000 320,000 1,640,000        -       120,000 1,520,000 120,000 44,938
2,275,000 125,000 2,150,000        -       135,000 2,015,000 140,000 33,262
       -              -              -       2,220,000        -       2,220,000        -       72,887

1,585,000 160,000 1,425,000        -       90,000 1,335,000 95,000 31,105
6,255,000        -       6,255,000        -       245,000 6,010,000 255,000 131,056

10,000,000        -       10,000,000        -              -       10,000,000        -       475,000
30,400,000 3,635,000 26,765,000 2,220,000 1,130,000 27,855,000 1,165,000 917,945 

100,000        -       100,000        -              -       100,000        -              -       
350,000 122,500 227,500        -       17,500 210,000 17,500        -       
175,000 116,655 58,345        -       14,371 43,974        -              -       
140,000        -       140,000        -              -       140,000        -              -       
550,000 246,533 303,467        -       73,761 229,706        -              -       
100,000 28,050 71,950        -       37,400 34,550        -              -       

26,370,232 15,353,232 11,017,000        -       1,442,000 9,575,000 1,484,000 277,675
2,305,000 2,150,000 155,000        -       155,000        -              -              -       

872,000 289,500 582,500        -       193,500 389,000 194,000 1,805
1,120,000        -       1,120,000        -       95,000 1,025,000 100,000 26,250
1,210,000 15,000 1,195,000        -       35,000 1,160,000 190,000 9,963
       -              -              -       4,575,000        -       4,575,000        -       154,425

31,877,232 17,807,732 14,069,500 4,575,000 1,920,500 16,724,000 1,968,000 470,118

$83,267,232 $34,911,470 $48,355,762 $6,795,000 $4,653,532 $50,497,230 $4,495,500 $1,526,479

2023
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS TO MATURITY Exhibit 2
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
December 31, 2023

Tax Street Street Street Street G.O. Street G.O. G.O. Street
Increment Reconstruction Reconstruction Reconstruction Reconstruction Abatement Reconstruction Abatement Temporary Reconstruction

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds
Series 2017B Series 2013B Series 2016A Series 2017A Series 2018A Series 2019A Series 2020A Series 2021B Series 2022A Series 2023A Total

Bonds payable $540,000 $1,830,000 $1,385,000 $1,540,000 $1,520,000 $1,335,000 $2,015,000 $6,010,000 $10,000,000 $2,220,000 $28,395,000

Future interest payable 95,728             191,206           133,630           265,837              273,018           188,455           217,123            1,273,357         950,000            877,212            4,465,566

Totals $635,728 $2,021,206 $1,518,630 $1,805,837 $1,793,018 $1,523,455 $2,232,123 $7,283,357 $10,950,000 $3,097,212 $32,860,566

Payments to maturity:
2024 $49,800 $335,488 $166,960 $182,250 $164,937 $126,105 $173,262 $386,056 $475,000 $72,887 $2,132,745
2025 53,815 336,937 169,110 183,125 166,263 123,255 170,462 383,975 10,475,000 183,025 12,244,967
2026 52,895 337,712 171,160 183,850 167,438 130,255 172,612 381,756        -       203,150 1,800,828
2027 56,918 332,881 168,160 179,500 163,538 127,105 169,712 384,331        -       202,525 1,784,670
2028 55,725 337,325 170,110 179,963 164,562 128,880 171,762 381,700        -       201,650 1,791,677
2029 59,300 340,863 167,010 180,158 165,437 126,130 173,713 378,932        -       200,525 1,792,068
2030 62,725        -       168,860 180,117 161,237 128,880 170,613 380,957        -       204,025 1,457,414
2031 56,150        -       170,445 179,754 156,950 126,580 173,102 383,850        -       202,150 1,448,981
2032 59,575        -       166,815 179,058 162,418 129,170 171,103 382,700        -       204,900 1,455,739
2033 62,850        -              -       178,062 157,638 126,650 173,908 386,400        -       202,275 1,287,783
2034 65,975        -              -              -       162,600 124,070 171,515 384,950        -       205,100 1,114,210
2035        -              -              -              -              -       126,375 168,999 383,400        -       203,400 882,174
2036        -              -              -              -              -              -       171,360 381,750        -       201,500 754,610
2037        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       384,950        -       204,300 589,250
2038        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       383,000        -       201,800 584,800
2039        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       385,900        -       204,000 589,900
2040        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       383,650        -              -       383,650
2041        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       381,300        -              -       381,300
2042        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       383,800        -              -       383,800

$635,728 $2,021,206 $1,518,630 $1,805,837 $1,793,018 $1,523,455 $2,232,123 $7,283,357 $10,950,000 $3,097,212 $32,860,566
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS TO MATURITY Exhibit 3
GENERAL OBLIGATION IMPROVEMENT BONDS 
December 31, 2023

2011B 2017B
2009C 2010A Improvement 2012A 2012B 2014A Improvement

Improvement Improvement Refunding Improvement Improvement Improvement Refunding
Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Total

Bonds payable $720,000 $190,000 $300,000 $805,000 $1,215,000 $1,225,000 $165,000 $4,620,000

Future interest payable 38,336 10,436 19,150 66,709 60,940 110,425 2,475 308,471

Totals $758,336 $200,436 $319,150 $871,709 $1,275,940 $1,335,425 167,475              $4,928,471

Payments to maturity:
2024 $383,663 $65,725 $78,182 $178,644 $320,807 $239,120 $167,475 $1,433,616
2025 374,673 68,534 81,007 173,607 319,112 239,230        -       1,256,163
2026        -       66,177 78,701 173,488 316,926 169,775        -       805,067
2027        -              -       81,260 173,207 319,095 170,885        -       744,447
2028        -              -              -       172,763        -       171,710        -       344,473
2029        -              -              -              -              -       172,240        -       172,240
2030        -              -              -              -              -       172,465        -       172,465

$758,336 $200,436 $319,150 $871,709 $1,275,940 $1,335,425 $167,475 $4,928,471
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
TAXABLE VALUATIONS Exhibit 4
December 31, 2023

2024 2023
Tax Capacity Tax Capacity

Values Values
Taxable valuations:
  Real estate $12,569,690 $11,677,130
  Personal property 738,371              713,279              

Net tax capacity 13,308,061         12,390,409         
   Less: Captured tax increment value (523,923)             (416,980)             
   Fiscal disparities contributions (1,198,566)          (1,002,186)          

   Taxable net tax capacity $11,585,572 $10,971,243
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA
SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED TAX LEVIES
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
December 31, 2023

$4,565,000 $1,750,000 $1,555,000
Improvement Improvement Improvement $2,245,000 $4,025,000 $3,000,000

Year of Supplemental Bonds and CIP & Refunding Improvement Improvement Improvement
Levy/ Improvement Series Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds

Collection Bond Levy(1) 2009C(2) Series 2010A Series 2011B Series 2012A Series 2013B Series 2014A

2023/2024 ($135,000) $303,165 $57,510 $58,407 $124,414 $108,145 $235,700
2024/2025 (80,000)                         -       55,486 56,792 124,376 109,510 162,032
2025/2026 (80,000)                         -              -       60,309 124,165 104,522 163,345
2026/2027 (55,000)                         -              -              -       123,784 109,864 164,363
2027/2028 (10,000)        -              -              -              -       113,854 165,077
2028/2029        -              -              -              -              -              -       165,476
2029/2030        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2030/2031        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2031/2032        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2032/2033        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2033/2034        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2035        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2036        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2037        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2038        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2039        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2040        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       
2034/2041        -              -              -              -              -              -              -       

($360,000) $303,165 $112,996 $175,508 $496,739 $545,895 $1,055,993

(1)This column represents decreased levies which were approved to eliminate projected cash surpluses
    in various Debt Service Funds.

(2)This is a Build America Bond and the amount presented is after reduction for Federal Credit.

(3)Schedule of Deferred Tax Levies excludes levy for GO Improvement Bonds Series 2006C
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Exhibit 5

$2,170,000 $2,130,000 $1,960,000 $1,585,000 $2,275,000 $6,255,000 $2,220,000
GO Street GO Street GO Street Improvement GO Street GO CIP/ GO Street

Reconst Bonds Reconst Bonds Reconst Bonds Bonds Reconst Bonds Abatement Reconst Bonds

Series 2016A Series 2017A Series 2018A Series 2019A Series 2020A 2021B Series 2023A Total

$151,129 $171,398 $141,808 $130,914 $163,696 $406,928 $218,360 $2,136,574
153,334 172,237 143,953 138,421 166,191 404,670 216,195 1,823,197
150,184 167,670 140,690 135,114 163,331 407,518 215,670 1,752,518
152,284 168,353 142,677 137,057 165,720 404,828 214,883 1,728,813
149,029 168,641 144,507 133,591 168,005 401,992 213,833 1,648,529
151,024 168,765 140,929 136,532 164,935 404,263 217,770 1,549,694
152,914 168,555 137,351 134,116 167,115 406,245 215,932 1,382,228
149,102 168,001 144,089 136,952 165,283 405,090 219,082 1,387,599
       -       167,093 139,999 134,305 168,534 409,080 216,458 1,235,469
       -              -       146,213 131,660 166,293 407,610 218,820 1,070,596
       -              -              -       134,137 163,879 406,035 217,140 921,191
       -              -              -              -       166,628 404,355 215,250 786,233
       -              -              -              -              -       407,820 218,400 626,220
       -              -              -              -              -       405,825 215,880 621,705
       -              -              -              -              -       408,975 218,400 627,375
       -              -              -              -              -       406,665        -       406,665
       -              -              -              -              -       404,250        -       404,250
       -              -              -              -              -       406,980        -       406,980

$1,209,000 $1,520,713 $1,422,216 $1,482,799 $1,989,610 $7,309,129 $3,252,073 $20,515,836
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024  

AGENDA ITEM: Consider accepting the 2023 audited financial reports.  

PREPARED BY: Barb Baird  

 

BACKGROUND: 

It has been the past practice for the City Council to accept the Annual Financial Statements and 

other audit reports. The City Council met in a work session on May 13, 2024, to discuss and 

review the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, the Report on Internal Controls, the 

Report on Compliance with Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide, and the Management 

Report. 

 

Ms. Rebecca Petersen, Redpath & Company, Ltd., presented an overview of the City’s financial 

health to the City Council. 

 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to accepting the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, the Audit 

Management Letter, and the auditor’s comments on Compliance and Internal Controls.  
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REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider approval of seasonal contractors  

PREPARED BY: Tom Beaudry 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Seasonal contractors are brought on at Pokegama Golf Course as starters/rangers and golf 

instructors. The list below would be brought on if approved. 

 

REQUESTED BOARD ACTION: 

Make a motion to  approve seasonal contractors. 

Mathew Olson 

Dion Berger 

Jerry Ryan 

Eugene Gagnon 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider passing a resolution accepting donations from the City of 

Cohasset and Harris Township for financial assistance with the July 4th 

Fireworks Display. 

PREPARED BY: Dale Anderson, Director of Parks & Recreation 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Our partnership with the City of Cohasset and Harris Township (the Greater Pokegama Lake 

Association donation will come in July) has provided a quality 4th of July Fireworks Display for 

years.  The resolution is attached for your review. 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to pass a resolution accepting donations from the City of Cohasset and Harris 

Township for financial assistance with the July 4th Fireworks Display. 
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Council member introduced the following resolution and moved for its adoption: 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  24- 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A $6,000 DONATION FROM HARRIS TOWNSHIP and 

 A $6,000 DONATION FROM THE CITY OF COHASSET FOR THE JULY 4, 2024 

INDEPENDENCE DAY FIREWORKS AT POKEGAMA LAKE  

 

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota State Statutes 465.03, states that cities may accept gifts of real 

or personal property, including money, and use them in accordance with the terms the donor 

prescribes; and  

 

WHEREAS, every such acceptance shall be by resolution of the governing body 

adopted by two-thirds majority of its members,  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Grand 

Rapids, Itasca County, Minnesota, accepts the listed donation and terms of the donor as 

follows: 

 

 The Township of Harris has donated $6,000 for the Independence Day 

Fireworks at Pokegama Lake. 

 The City of Cohasset has donated $6,000 for the Independence Day Fireworks 

at Pokegama Lake. 

 

  

Adopted this 13th day of May, 2024. 

 

 

      ___________________________ 

                Tasha Connelly, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

     Kim Johnson-Gibeau, City Clerk 

 

 

Councilmember seconded the foregoing resolution and the following voted in favor thereof: ; 

and the following voted against same:  None, whereby the resolution was declared duly passed 

and adopted. 
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: May 13, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider the approval of a resolution approving certain lender documents 

related to the L&M Supply Distribution Center Project 

PREPARED BY: Rob Mattei, Director of Community Development 

 

BACKGROUND: 

GREDA has recently completed the final of four land sales to SE 7th Ave. Distribution LLC 

(Developer) for the site that will be the location of the L&M Supply Distribution Center 

(Project). 

To finance the Project, the Developer has received a loan from Alerus Financial, a national 

banking association. As a condition of receiving the loan, Alerus requires that GREDA 

subordinate certain rights of entry and reverter related to the property, which are included within 

the purchase agreements and deeds. This was approved by GREDA at their May 9th regular 

meeting. 

The City of Grand Rapids and GREDA have previously approved a Development Assistance 

Agreement with the Developer. As a condition of the loan, Alerus requires that the City and 

GREDA execute the Consent and Estoppel Agreement. This consent will allow assignment of 

the TIF Note to Park State Bank who will be the TIF lender. 

 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 

Make a motion to approve a resolution approving certain lender documents related to the L&M 

Supply Distribution Center Project. 
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CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CERTAIN LENDER DOCUMENTS 

RELATED TO THE L & M SUPPLY PROJECT 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota 

(the “City”) as follows: 

 

 Section 1.  Recitals. 

 

 1.01. The City and the Grand Rapids Economic Development Authority (the “Authority”), have 

executed a certain Development Assistance Agreement (the “Development Assistance Agreement”), 

between the Authority, the City and SE 7th Ave Distribution LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, 

or an affiliate thereof or an entity related thereto (the “Developer”), pursuant to which the City agrees to 

provide to the Developer a Tax Increment Financing Note in the amount of up to $3,479,084 (the “TIF 

Note”) to assist the Developer in financing the construction, improvement and equipping of an 

approximately 210,000 square foot warehouse and distribution center (the “Project”) on certain property 

(the “Property”) to be owned by the Developer and operated by L & M Supply, Inc., a Minnesota corporation 

(the “Tenant”), in connection with the expansion of the Tenant’s existing business. 

 

1.02. To finance the Project, the Developer has received a loan from Alerus Financial, National 

Association, a national banking association (the “Lender”), in the approximate amount of $32,560,000 (the 

“Loan”), and to secure the repayment of the Loan, the Developer will execute a certain Mortgage, Security 

Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement, whereby the Developer shall mortgage the Property to the 

Lender. As a condition of giving the Developer the Loan, the Lender requires that the City and the Authority 

execute a certain Consent and Estoppel Certificate by and between the Authority, the City and the Lender 

(the “Consent and Estoppel”), a form of which is presented to the City Council, pursuant to which the 

Authority and the City acknowledge that the Developer has granted Park State Bank, a banking institution 

(the “TIF Lender”), a security interest in the TIF Note and the payments thereunder, and the Developer’s 

right, title and interest in and to the Development Assistance Agreement, as collateral for an approximately  

$2,400,000 loan from the TIF Lender to the Developer (the “TIF Loan”).  As a condition of giving the TIF 

Loan, the TIF Lender requires that the Authority and the City execute a certain Assignment of Tax 

Increment Financing and Subordination Agreement by and between the Developer, the City, the Authority, 

and the TIF Lender (the “TIF Assignment”), pursuant to which the Developer agrees to assign its rights 

under the Development Assistance Agreement and the TIF Note to the TIF Lender and the City and the 

Authority agree to subordinate their rights under the Development Assistance Agreement to the Promissory 

Note and Construction Loan Agreement related to the TIF Loan. 

 

Section 2.  Lender Documents Approved. 

 

2.01. The City hereby approves the Consent and Estoppel and the TIF Assignment substantially in 

accordance with the terms set forth in the forms presented to the City Council, together with any related 

documents necessary in connection therewith, including without limitation all documents, exhibits, 

certifications or consents referenced in or attached to the Consent and Estoppel and the TIF Assignment 

(collectively, the “Lender Documents”) and hereby authorizes the Mayor and the City Administrator to 

negotiate the final terms thereof and, in their discretion and at such time as they may deem appropriate, to 

execute the Lender Documents on behalf of the City, and to carry out, on behalf of the City, the City’s 

obligations thereunder when all conditions precedent thereto have been satisfied.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, the delivery of the quit claim deed to the Authority shall be contingent upon the delivery of a quit 
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claim deed from the County conveying its interest in the Property to the City. 

 2.02. The approval hereby given to the Lender Documents includes approval of such additional 

details therein as may be necessary and appropriate and such modifications thereof, deletions therefrom and 

additions thereto as may be necessary and appropriate and approved by legal counsel to the City and by the 

officers authorized herein to execute said documents prior to their execution; and said officers are hereby 

authorized to approve said changes on behalf of the City.  The execution of any instrument by the appropriate 

officers of the City herein authorized shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of such document in 

accordance with the terms hereof.  This Resolution shall not constitute an offer and the Lender Documents shall 

not be effective until the date of execution thereof as provided herein.  In the event of absence or disability of 

the officers, any of the documents authorized by this Resolution to be executed may be executed without further 

act or authorization of the City Council by any duly designated acting official, or by such other officer or 

officers of the City Council as, in the opinion of the City Attorney, may act in their behalf. 

 

 2.03. Upon execution and delivery of the Lender Documents, the officers and employees of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to take or cause to be taken such actions as may be necessary on behalf of 

the City to implement the Lender Documents.  

 

  

Adopted on May __, 2024 by the City Council of the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

       ________________________ 

       Mayor 

_______________________ 

City Clerk 
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CONSENT AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE 

 

 THIS CONSENT AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE (this “Estoppel Certificate”), is dated 

as of _______________ __, 2024, and is from the GRAND RAPIDS ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a body corporate and politic organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of Minnesota (the “Authority”), and the CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, 

MINNESOTA, a statutory city organized and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota 

(the “City”), to ALERUS FINANCIAL, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking 

association (the “Lender”), and its successors and assigns. The Authority and the City each hereby 

agrees with the Lender as follows: 

 

 1. Unless the context otherwise indicates, capitalized terms not otherwise defined 

herein shall have the definitions given such terms in that certain that certain Development 

Assistance Agreement dated as of December 15, 2023 (the “Development Assistance Agreement”) 

by and among the Authority, the City and SE 7th Ave Distribution LLC, a Minnesota limited 

liability company (“Borrower”). 

 

 2. Each of the Authority and the City understands that the Lender contemplates 

making (a) a construction and term loan available to the Borrower (the “Construction Loan”), 

which Construction Loan is to be secured by, among other things, a Mortgage, Security Agreement 

and Fixture Financing Statement dated of even date herewith, executed by Borrower in favor of 

the Lender, encumbering the Project (the “Construction Mortgage”). 

 

 3. Each of the Authority and the City understands that the Lender has required this 

Estoppel Certificate as a condition of making the Construction Loan and that the Lender will rely 

on this Estoppel Certificate in connection therewith. 

 

 4. Each of the Authority and the City acknowledges that, in exchange for developing 

the Project, Borrower will receive from the City, among other things, that certain Taxable Tax 

Increment Revenue Note (L & M Supply Project) in the anticipated original principal face amount 

of up to $3,479,084.00 (the “TIF Note”), which will be issued to Borrower in accordance with the 

terms of the Development Assistance Agreement.  Further, each of the Authority and the City 

acknowledges that, to secure the payment of a loan from Park State Bank (the “TIF Lender”) to 

the Borrower, the Borrower has agreed to grant to the TIF Lender a security interest in the TIF 

Note and the payments thereunder and Borrower’s right, title and interest in and to the 

Development Assistance Agreement. 

 

 5. The Authority and the City, as applicable, each further covenants, represents, and 

warrants to and agrees with the Lender as follows: 

 

 a. The TIF Note has been duly authorized by the City and if and when issued 

pursuant to the terms of the Development Assistance Agreement, the TIF Note will be a 

valid and binding special limited obligation of the City, payable solely from the sources 

provided therefor in the TIF Note and the Development Assistance Agreement; 
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 b. That the City will deposit all payments to be made to the City under the TIF 

Note in accordance with the terms of the Development Assistance Agreement and the TIF 

Note);  

 

 c. That it has received and approved the Construction Plans for the Project;  

 

 d. That it hereby consents to the execution and delivery of the Construction 

Mortgage, and to the liens and security interests created therein, as security for the 

Construction Loan;  

 

 e. That the City has the power to issue the TIF Note, upon the conditions set 

forth in the Development Assistance Agreement, and to perform the agreements on its part 

to be performed under the Development Agreement; and 

 

 f. That the Borrower has provided proof of insurance (and proof of the 

payment of all premiums therefor) as contemplated by Section 6.1 the Development 

Assistance Agreement. 

 

 6. Nothing in this Estoppel Certificate shall prevent the Authority or the City from 

exercising their rights and remedies under Section 5.2 of the Development Assistance Agreement.  

Nothing herein shall be construed as subordinating the requirements contained in the Development 

Assistance Agreement. 

 

7. The Development Assistance Agreement has not been amended or modified in any 

respect and represent the entire agreement of the parties thereto as to all of the subject matters dealt 

with therein. The Development Assistance Agreement is in full force and effect and neither the 

Authority nor the City has given any notice of any default thereunder.  To the actual knowledge 

of the undersigned representatives of the Authority and the City, Borrower has performed all of its 

obligations under the Development Assistance Agreement with respect to the Project which are 

required to be performed as of the date hereof.  To the actual knowledge of the undersigned 

representatives of the Authority and the City, the Borrower is not in default in the performance or 

observance of any of its covenants or agreements under the Development Assistance Agreement 

or pursuant to any other agreement with the Authority or with the City as of the date hereof. 
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 8. Until the termination of the Assignment, each of the Authority and the City agrees 

to give the Lender a copy of each notice or demand given to the Borrower with respect to any 

breach or default by the Borrower in its obligations under any of the Development Assistance 

Agreement at the same time such notice, demand or other communication is given to the Borrower 

under the Development Assistance Agreement, addressed to the Lender as follows: 

 

Alerus Financial, National Association 

11100 Wayzata Blvd, #570 

Minnetonka, MN 55305 

Attention:  Eric P. Gundersen, SVP 

 

Neither the giving nor the failure to give a notice to the Lender pursuant to this Section 7 will 

affect the validity of any notice given by the City or Authority to the Borrower. 

 

 9. Each of the Authority and the City agrees to accept the cure by the Lender of any 

default by the Borrower under the Development Agreement within thirty (30) days after the later 

of (i) delivery of notice of such default to the Lender pursuant to Section 7 above and (ii) the 

expiration of the time provided Borrower pursuant to Section 5.2 of the Development Assistance 

Agreement, provided, that, each of the Authority and the City acknowledge that the Lender shall 

be under no obligation to cure any such default.  No commencement of any performance by the 

Lender on any obligation of the Borrower required under the Development Assistance Agreement 

shall obligate the Lender to continue or complete such performance or otherwise perform any of 

the Borrower’s obligations under the Development Assistance Agreement.   

 

 10. The Authority and the City each acknowledge and agree that neither the Lender nor 

its successors or assigns shall be obligated to construct or complete the Project; provided, however, 

that if the Lender or its successors or assigns acquires the Project by foreclosure or a conveyance 

in lieu of foreclosure, the City acknowledges and agrees that, upon substantial completion of the 

Project in accordance with the Development Assistance Agreement, the Lender shall be entitled 

to seek from the City, and the City shall be obligated to issue, a Certificate of Completion for the 

Project in accordance with the terms set forth in Section 4.4 of the Development Assistance 

Agreement. 

 

 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

314

Item 20.



 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned officers of the Authority and the City have 

executed this Consent and Estoppel Certificate as of the date and year first written above. 

 

  

GRAND RAPIDS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 

 

 

By:        

Its: President 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

Its: Executive Director 

 

 

 

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA 

 

 

By:        

Its: Mayor 

 

 

By:        

Its: City Administrator 
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ASSIGNMENT OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

AND SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT 

This ASSIGNMENT OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT (“Assignment”) is effective as of ____________ 2024, by and between SE 7th Ave 

Distribution LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, its successors and assigns 

(“Developer”); PARK STATE BANK, a Minnesota banking corporation (“Lender”); the CITY 

OF GRAND RAPIDS, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota 

(the “City”); and the GRAND RAPIDS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a body 

corporate and politic organized under and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota (the 

“Authority”). 

PRELIMINARY RECITALS 

A. Developer is undertaking a project in the City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota (the 

“City”) on the land described in Exhibit A hereto, consisting of the constructing and equipping of 

an approximately 210,000 square foot warehouse and distribution center, to be owned by 

Developer and operated by L & M Supply, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the “Project”). 

B. The Project is within Tax Increment Financing District No. 1-14: L&M Supply (the 

“TIF District”) created by the City. 

C. The City, the EDA and the Developer have entered into that certain Development 

Assistance Agreement dated as of December 15, 2023 (the “Contract”) setting forth the City’s 

agreement to provide certain tax increment payments derived from the TIF District to reimburse 

Developer for a portion of the capital costs of the Project (the “Tax Increment Financing”) as 

consideration for construction of the Project. 

D. In order to further evidence the Tax Increment Financing, the City will issue and 

deliver to Developer a Tax Increment Revenue Note in the maximum principal amount of Three 

Million Four Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand and Eighty-Four Dollars ($3,479,084) (the “TIF 

Note” and together with the Contract and any and all amendments and documents related to the 

foregoing, the “TIF Documents”).  The TIF Note, if and when issued pursuant to the terms of the 

Contract, shall bear simple non-compounding interest at the rate of 6.50% and is payable as to 

principal from 90% of the tax increments derived from the TIF District, and which have been 

received by the City in the 6-month period preceding each payment date on the TIF Note in 

accordance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.177 (the “Tax Increment”). 

E. The Lender has made or will make credit advances to the Developer pursuant to the 

following: 

i. a Promissory Note from Developer to Lender in the original principal 

amount of not to exceed $2,400,000 (the “Note”); 

ii. a Construction Loan Agreement between Developer and Lender (the “Loan 

Agreement,” and together with this Assignment, the “Loan Documents”) establishing the 

terms and conditions of a loan to the Developer by the Lender of the proceeds of the Note 

(the “Loan”) to finance a portion of the costs of the Project; and 
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iii. Guarantees of L & M Supply, Inc.; L & M Supply Virginia, Inc.; TDS 

Distributors, Detroit Lakes, Inc.; DES Distributors, Inc.; 3Gen Properties, LLC; and L&M 

Legacy RE Holdings, LLC. 

F. Lender requires as a condition precedent to Lender making advances under the Note 

that (i) Developer assign its rights and interests under the TIF Documents to Lender, and (ii) the 

City and the Authority subordinate their rights under the Contract to the Note and the Loan 

Documents as provided herein. 

G. Developer has agreed to execute and deliver this Assignment to Lender as security 

for repayment of the Loan and the Note, and the City and the Authority have agreed to subordinate 

its rights under the Contract to the Note and the Loan Documents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, and for other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Assignment of TIF. 

A. Developer transfers, assigns and grants a security interest in, pledges, and conveys, 

to Lender all right, title and interest of Developer, if any, in and to the TIF Documents (and together 

with the Loan Documents, the “Documents”), provided Lender does not assume any obligations 

under the TIF Documents unless and until Lender assumes such obligations in writing, together 

with the immediate and continuing right to receive and collect all amounts due or to become due 

thereunder and all other rights which may derive from or accrue thereunder and the right to amend, 

cancel, modify, alter or surrender the TIF Documents for the purpose of securing the following 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Indebtedness Secured Hereby”): 

i. payment of the indebtedness evidenced by and performance of the terms 

and conditions of the Note and the Loan Documents; 

ii. payment of all other sums with interest thereon becoming due and payable 

to Lender hereunder and under the Note and the Loan Documents; 

iii. performance and discharge of each and every obligation, covenant and 

agreement of Developer herein and in the Note, the Loan Documents and the TIF 

Documents, to the extent assigned hereunder. 

B. Developer constitutes and appoints the Lender its irrevocable attorney-in-fact to 

enforce all rights, title and interest of the Developer under the TIF Documents, to collect and 

receive any debts or obligations related thereto, and to satisfy the Contract as same might or could 

have done were this Assignment not executed, and covenants with the Lender that the Developer 

has good right to sell, assign and transfer the same. 

2. Present Pledge and Assignment. 

A. This Assignment shall constitute a perfect, absolute and present pledge and 

assignment in connection with which Developer shall have delivered to Lender the TIF Note 

assigned and endorsed to Lender as provided in the following sentence.  Immediately upon the 
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issuance of the TIF Note by the City, the Developer shall execute and deliver to Lender the Allonge 

Endorsement to Note in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B to be attached to the TIF Note. 

B. So long as no default has occurred under the Loan Documents, the TIF Documents, 

or this Assignment, Developer may collect the semi-annual payments under the TIF Note.  From 

and after the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined herein) and after the City has received: 

(i)  written notice from the Lender to the City that payments should be made to the City; (ii) an 

Acknowledgement Regarding TIF Note in the form attached as Exhibit 2 to the TIF Note executed 

by the Lender; and (iii) the re-registration of the TIF Note in the name of the Lender , all payments 

on the TIF Note shall be paid directly to Lender to be held and applied by Lender as provided 

herein and in the Loan Agreement.   

C. If Developer should receive any payments on the TIF Note or otherwise under the 

TIF Documents at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, Developer shall 

immediately deposit such payments with Lender to be held and applied in accordance with the 

Loan Agreement and this Assignment. 

D. If Developer and Lender make inconsistent demands on the City for payment under 

the TIF Note, or otherwise challenge the appropriate party to which payment is to be made, 

Developer and Lender expressly agree and authorize the City to pay to Lender the disputed amount.  

Upon the making of any such payment to Lender, the City’s obligation with respect to the making 

of such payment will be deemed fully satisfied. 

3. Subordination of Contract.  The City and the Authority agree and acknowledge that 

the Note and the Loan Documents, and all advances made thereunder and accrued interest thereon 

are senior and prior to the Contract.  Therefore, the City agrees to subordinate, and subordinates 

any and all liens, security interests and restrictive covenants, if any, included in the Contract to 

any and all liens, security interests and restrictive covenants, if any, securing repayment of the 

Note or created by the Loan Documents; provided, however, that the agreements in this Section 3 

will not limit or otherwise affect the City’s exercise of its remedies set forth in Section 5.2 of the 

Contract and nothing herein shall be construed as subordinating the requirements contained in the 

Contract that the Project be used in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.8 of the Contract. 

Without limiting the foregoing, the City agrees that, in the event of any insured loss and/or 

condemnation award on or for the Project, the City shall attorn solely to the act and decision of 

Lender which shall be made as set forth in the Loan Documents in collecting, settling for and 

paying any and all insurance/awards made to or associated with the Project, except to the extent 

that such amounts are applicable to payment of the City’s administrative fees relating to the TIF 

District and the TIF Documents.  Nothing herein shall be construed as subordinating the City’s 

rights under the TIF Note or the Tax Abatement Note and the Contract to terminate or suspend 

payments under the TIF Note or the Tax Abatement Note. 

4. Warranties.  Developer covenants, warrants and agrees that: 

A. Upon issuance of the TIF Note, it is the true and lawful, absolute owner of 

the TIF Note free and clear from any and all liens, security interest, encumbrances or other 

right, title or interest of any other person, firm or corporation; 
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B. It has the full right and title to assign and pledge the TIF Note and its interest 

in the TIF Documents; there are no outstanding claims, assignments or pledges thereof, 

other than as set forth hereinabove; there are no existing defaults under the TIF Documents 

on the part of the parties hereto; and it has fully complied with and is not in default with 

regard to the TIF Documents. 

C. The TIF Documents shall not be amended, altered, cancelled, modified or 

surrendered without the prior written consent of Lender. 

D. It is in material compliance with the terms, conditions and provisions of the 

Contract. 

E. No default by either Developer, the City, or the Authority exists under the 

terms of the TIF Note or Contract. 

F. The maturity date of the TIF Note is the earliest to occur of payment in full 

of the principal amount of the TIF Note, termination of the Contract or the TIF Note, 

termination of the TIF District, or February 1, 2035. 

G. The Contract remains in full force and effect. 

H. There are no defenses, setoffs or counterclaims against or with regard to the 

TIF Note or the Contract or the indebtedness evidenced thereby.  The TIF Note is a valid 

and enforceable obligation of the City and Developer in accordance with its terms. 

5. Performance under the TIF Documents.  Developer shall (a) enforce or secure the 

performance of each and every material obligation of the City and the Authority in the TIF 

Documents; (b) not borrow against or further pledge or assign any payments due under the TIF 

Documents; and (c) not waive, excuse, condone or in any manner release or discharge the City or 

the Authority from their obligations under the TIF Documents. 

6. Security Agreement.  This Assignment constitutes a Security Agreement under the 

Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the State of Minnesota (the “Code”) and shall be 

governed by the Code. 

7. Events of Default.  An Event of Default shall occur hereunder upon any of the 

following: 

A. a default occurs under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Note; 

or 

B. failure to comply with or perform any of the terms, conditions or covenants 

of this Assignment; or 

C. a default shall occur under any of the Documents or any other instrument 

securing the Loan or the Note; or 
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D. any representation or warranty made by Developer herein, in the or in any 

other Document shall be false, breached or dishonored. 

8. Remedies.  Upon or at any time after an Event of Default that remains uncured after 

any required notice under the Loan Documents, Lender may declare all Indebtedness Secured 

Hereby immediately due and payable and provide notice to the City to thereafter make all 

payments on the TIF Note to Lender and apply all sums held by Lender including the sums 

received from the TIF Note to the Indebtedness Secured Hereby and may, at its option, enforce the 

payment thereof and exercise all of the rights of a holder of the TIF Documents.  In addition, upon 

the occurrence of an Event of Default which remains uncured, Lender may without demand, 

advertisement or notice of any kind (except such notice as may be required under the Code) and 

all of which are, to the extent permitted by law, expressly waived by the Developer: 

A. exercise any of the remedies available to a secured party under the Code; 

B. proceed immediately to exercise each and all of the powers, rights, and 

privileges reserved or granted to Lender under the Documents; and/or 

C. proceed to protect and enforce this Assignment by suits or proceedings or 

otherwise, and for the enforcement of any other legal or equity available to Lender. 

In the event that any notice is required to be given under the Code such requirements for reasonable 

notice shall be satisfied by giving at least 10 days written notice prior to the event or thing giving 

rise to the requirement of notice. 

9. Authorization to the City and the Authority.  The City and the Authority are 

irrevocably authorized and directed by Developer to recognize the claims of Lender without 

investigating the reason for any action taken or the validity of or the amount of indebtedness owing 

to Lender or the existence of any Event of Default.  Developer irrevocably directs and authorizes 

the City and the Authority at the written direction of the Lender to pay exclusively to Lender or its 

assigns from and after the date hereof, all sums due under the TIF Documents without the necessity 

and to the extent such sums are paid to Lender and Developer agree that the City and the Authority 

shall have no further liability to Developer for the same.  The sole signature of Lender shall be 

sufficient for the exercise of any rights under this Assignment and the sole receipt by Lender of 

any sum paid by the City or the Authority shall be in discharge and release of that portion of any 

amount owed by the City or the Authority. 

10. Additional Instruments.  Developer, upon the request of Lender shall, at 

Developer’s sole expense, execute and deliver all assignments, certificates, financing statements 

or other documents and give further assurances and do all other acts and things as Lender may 

request to perfect or to realize upon Lender’s interest in the TIF Note and the TIF Documents or 

to protect, enforce, or otherwise effect Lender’s rights and remedies.  If Developer is unable or 

unwilling to execute any such other assignments, certificates, financing statements or other 

documents and to file financing statements or other public notices or recordings with the 

appropriate authorities, as and when reasonably requested by Lender, and Developer authorizes 

Lender to sign and deliver as its true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact, coupled with an interest, 
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any such assignment, certificate, financing statement or other document and to make any such 

filing. 

11. Amendment.  The TIF Documents shall not be amended, altered, cancelled or 

modified in any way which materially affects the generation or receipt of the Tax Increment 

Financing without the prior written consent of Lender. 

12. Release.  Upon payment and performance in full of the Indebtedness Secured 

Hereby, this Assignment shall be released and shall thereafter become null and void and be of no 

further effect.  Lender shall provide the City written notice of such release. 

13. Successors and Assigns.  This Assignment, and each and every covenant, 

agreement and provision hereof shall be binding upon Developer and its successors and assigns 

and shall inure to the benefit of Lender and its successors and assigns.  Should Lender assign the 

Loan and the Loan Documents to any other person or entity, Lender shall cause such person or 

entity to be bound by the terms and provisions hereof. 

14. Governing Law.  This Assignment is intended to be governed by the laws of the 

State of Minnesota. 

15. Validity and Severability Clause.  The unenforceability or invalidity of any 

provision hereof shall not render any other provision or provisions herein contained unenforceable 

or invalid.  Any provisions found to be unenforceable shall be severable from this Assignment. 

16. Notices; Notice to City and Authority. 

A. Notices which any party hereto may desire or may be required to give to 

any other party shall be made in the manner specified by the Loan Agreement. 

B. Lender agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to notify the City and 

the Authority of the occurrence of any Event of Default by Developer under the Loan 

Documents. 

17. Attorneys’ Fees.  Developer agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees, at any time paid or incurred by Lender, the City and the Authority in 

connection with the enforcement of the Lender’s rights hereunder. 

18. Counterparts.  This Assignment may be executed in several counterparts, each of 

which is an original and all of which constitute but one and the same instrument. 

19. Binding Effect.  The Contract and the obligations of this Assignment shall run with 

the Land and burden the Project and remain in effect and be binding upon the Developer, its 

successors and assigns until terminated; provided, however, the Developer shall remain obligated 

under this Assignment, notwithstanding any assignment or transfer of the Project unless released 

in writing by the City and the Authority, notwithstanding any provision of this Assignment or the 

Contract to the contrary. 

20. Exhibits.  The Exhibits to the Assignment are as follows: 
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Exhibit A  Legal Description 

Exhibit B  Allonge Endorsement to Note 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Assignment of Tax Increment 

Financing and Subordination Agreement to be effective as of the date first above written. 

DEVELOPER: 

SE 7TH AVE DISTRIBUTION LLC 

 

By   

Its  CEO  

 

 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

    ) 

COUNTY OF ITASCA ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of _____________, 

2024, by _______________, the CEO of SE 7th Ave Distribution LLC, a Minnesota limited 

liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 

 

  

Notary Public 
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LENDER: 

PARK STATE BANK 

 

By   

Its   

 

 

 

State of Minnesota, County of Itasca 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________, 2024, by Shannon 

Benolken, Vice President of Park State Bank, a Minnesota banking corporation, on behalf of the 

corporation. 

 

 

  

Notary Public 
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CITY: 

 

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA 

 

 

By __________________________________ 

   Its Mayor 

 

 

By __________________________________ 

   Its City Administrator 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

    ) 

COUNTY OF ITASCA ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of _____________, 

2024, by Tasha Connelly and Tom Pagel, the Mayor and City Administrator, respectively, of the 

City of Grand Rapids, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the City. 

 

 

              

Notary Public 
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AUTHORITY: 

 

GRAND RAPIDS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 

 

 

By __________________________________ 

   Its President 

 

 

By __________________________________ 

   Its Executive Director 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

    ) 

COUNTY OF ITASCA ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of _____________, 

2024, by Sholom Blake and Rob Mattei, the President and Executive Director, respectively, of the 

Grand Rapids Economic Development Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and politic, 

on behalf of the Authority. 

 

 

              

Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 

 

Fryberger, Buchanan, Smith & Frederick, P.A. (CJV) 

302 West Superior Street, Suite 700 

Duluth, MN 55802 
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EXHIBIT A 

TO 

ASSIGNMENT OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

AND SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
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EXHIBIT B 

TO 

ASSIGNMENT OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

AND SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT 

ALLONGE ENDORSEMENT TO TIF NOTE 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, SE 7TH AVE DISTRIBUTORS LLC, a Minnesota limited liability 

company, endorses, assigns and transfers to PARK STATE BANK, a Minnesota banking 

corporation, all of its right, title and interest in and to the following-described Note: 

City of Grand Rapids, Minnesota Tax Increment Revenue Note dated 

___________, 202__, in the original principal amount not to exceed $3,479,084 

executed by the City of Grand Rapids, as maker, to SE 7th Ave Distributors LLC, a 

Minnesota limited liability company, as registered owner. 

Dated: _______________, 20__. 

 

SE 7TH AVE DISTRIBUTORS LLC 

 

By   

Its   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS ALLONGE IS TO BE AFFIXED TO THE NOTE DESCRIBED ABOVE 
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